## HansaWorld Enterprise

## Integrated Accounting, CRM and ERP System for Mac OS X, Windows, Linux, PocketPC 2003 and AIX

**Production Module** 

Program version: 6.1 2009-12-22

© 2009 HansaWorld Ireland Limited, Dublin, Ireland

### Preface

The HansaWorld Enterprise range of products contains a number of powerful accounting, CRM and ERP systems for the Windows, Mac OS X, Linux, PocketPC 2003 and AIX environments.

The programs are designed to make administration and accounting as easy and fast as possible. They are similar in operation regardless of platform. In the specific areas where there are significant differences, these are described and illustrated in full. In all other cases illustrations are taken from the Windows XP version.

This manual covers the Production module in HansaWorld Enterprise. Prior to reading it, you should already be familiar with the Work Area in HansaWorld Enterprise (its modules, registers, windows, menus and buttons, covered in the 'Introduction to HansaWorld Enterprise' manual). This manual assumes knowledge of the Item register (described in the 'Items and Pricing' manual) and of the Stock module.

Text in square brackets - [Save], [Cancel] - refers to buttons on screen.

Information in this document is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of HansaWorld. The Software described in this document is a sophisticated information management system. Features are liable to alteration without notice. This documentation is not intended as a *de facto* representation of the system, but as an overview of its facilities. It cannot be exhaustive in all respects. Whilst effort is made to ensure the accuracy of the information published concerning the features and use of HansaWorld software, it is still possible that certain functions mentioned may not be fully implemented, may not be available under certain circumstances, or may possibly relate to a future release of the software. Errors and omissions excepted. HansaWorld accepts no contingent liabilities. All HansaWorld software related transactions are subject to HansaWorld's Conditions of Sale and Software Licence Agreement. All rights reserved.

### How these manuals are organised

#### Introduction to HansaWorld Enterprise Installing HansaWorld Enterprise, the basic ideas Introduction Work Area Basic elements of HansaWorld Enterprise: modules, registers, windows, menus, functions, buttons **Accounting Principles** About the place of HansaWorld Enterprise in your business, integration between ledgers, objects **Starting Work** Entering opening balances Manuals for each Module Assets Asset accounting, calculation of depreciation using userdefinable depreciation models, revaluation **Cash Book** Inward and outward cash transactions, receipts and payments Consolidation Multi-company reporting, subsidiaries and daughter companies Contracts Periodic invoicing and repeat billing, contract renewals, contract quotations, contracts from invoices CRM Time management using daily or monthly calendar formats. Contact and customer history. Customer letters and mailshots. Target time. Employee time statistics Currency Multi-currency in all modules **Customers, Suppliers and Contact Persons** Customers and suppliers, customer categories and reports Expenses Payments to and from employees Items and Pricing Products and services, pricing Job Costing Project management. Recording time, expenses and purchases. Instalments. Pricing by consultant, project, task and time of day. Budgets and quotations Mail Internal mail, external mail (email), conferences, off-line local mail chat **Nominal Ledger** Transactions, simulations, budgets and revised budgets. Error correction. Account reconciliation. Transaction templates. Flexible management and financial reports with multidimensional analysis and drill-down to transaction level Production Multi-level assemblies from components **Purchase Ledger** Purchase invoices, payments and payment suggestions, creditor reports, prepayments, accruals, acceptance **Purchase Orders** Purchase orders, goods receipts and purchase pricing Sending quotations, call backs, pipeline management, Quotations opportunity forecasting, and conversion ratio reports **Report Generator** User-definable reports Sales Ledger Invoices, receipts, debtor reports and documents, deposits and prepayments, accruals Sales Orders Orders and deliveries. Invoices from orders Service Orders Management of service stock, invoicing of repairs, warranties Deliveries, goods receipts and stock movements, batch and Stock serial number tracking, multi-location stock management System Module Settings and parameters. System-wide usage

## Contents

PrefaceII
The Production Module10
Examples and Work Flow11
Introduction - The Assembled Item and its Recipe11
Building the Assembled Item 14
Additional Production Costs
Scheduling Productions23
The Production Time Entry Interface
Assembly in Stages54
Additional Production Costs with Production Operations
Scheduling Production Operations
Sub-Assemblies with Production Operations (Phantom Items) 86
Settings100
Introduction 100
Account Usage Production 101
Auto Production Items104
Item Effectivity 117
Machine Groups 120
Materials, Standard Operations, Routings
Number Series - Production Operations
Number Series - Production Orders
Number Series - Productions137
Production Settings

Standard Operations.       156         Standard Problems.       156         Work Shifts       157         The Item Register       157         Stocked Items       157         Structured Items       157         Phantom Items       157         The Recipe Register       157         Operations Menu       177         Oper Production Item Alternative       171         The Production Order Register       172         Entering a Production Order       174         Header       177         Comment Card       18         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card       199         Actual Time Card       199         Operations Menu       199         Planned Time Card       199         Production Order Status       199         Production Register       199         Move in Queue       199         Production Record       194         Header       199         Production Register       199         Inspecting a Production record       194         Header       194         Header       194         Header       194	Routings	150
Work Shifts       150         The Item Register       150         Stocked Items       155         Structured Items       155         Phantom Items       156         The Recipe Register       157         Open Production Item Alternative       177         Open Production Order Register       177         The Production Order Register       177         Entering a Production Order       177         Comment Card       188         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card       18         Planned Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Order Status       19         The Production Register       19         Move in Queue       19         Production Register       19         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       211         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       211         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       211         Operations Menu       22         Create Productions       22         Calculate Cost       22         Crea	Standard Operations	150
The Item Register       153         Stocked Items       154         Structured Items       155         Phantom Items       155         The Recipe Register       156         Operations Menu       177         Open Production Item Alternative       177         Item Search       177         The Production Order Register       177         Entering a Production Order       174         Header       177         Comment Card       188         Items Card       188         Planned Time Card       199         Actual Time Card       199         Move in Queue       199         Finish Batch       199         Production Order Status       199         Entering a Production record       190         Header       199         Items Card       201         Comment Card       202         Comment Card       204         Comment Card       204         Header       199         Items Card       201         Comment Card       202         Comment Card       204         Comment Card       204         Nominal Ledger T	Standard Problems	150
Stocked Items       152         Structured Items       154         Structured Items       154         Phantom Items       155         The Recipe Register       155         Operations Menu       177         Open Production Item Alternative       17         Item Search       177         The Production Order Register       177         Entering a Production Order       177         Comment Card       18         Items Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Order Status       19         The Production Register       194         Entering a Production record       194         Header       199         Finish Batch       199         Production Register       194         Entering a Production record       194         Header       191         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       214         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Create Productions       22	Work Shifts	150
Structured Items       15-         Phantom Items       15-         Phentom Items       15-         The Recipe Register       15-         Operations Menu       17-         Open Production Item Alternative       17         Item Search       17         The Production Order Register       17-         Entering a Production Order       17-         Comment Card       18         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Register       194         Entering a Production record       194         Header       199         Production Register       194         Entering a Production record       194         Header       199         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       214         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Finish       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22      <	The Item Register	153
Phantom Items       154         The Recipe Register       155         Operations Menu       17         Open Production Item Alternative       17         Item Search       17         The Production Order Register       17         Entering a Production Order.       17         Comment Card       18         Items Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Register       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Register       19         Items Card       20         Comment Card       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Register       19         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       21         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create P	Stocked Items	153
The Recipe Register       153         Operations Menu.       17         Open Production Item Alternative       17         Item Search.       17         The Production Order Register       17         Entering a Production Order.       17         Entering a Production Order.       17         Entering a Production Order.       17         Comment Card.       18         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card.       19         Actual Time Card.       19         Move in Queue.       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Order Status       19         The Production Register       19         Entering a Production record       194         Header       19         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       214         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Finish       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Serial Nos for Out Items       22         Disass	Structured Items	154
Operations Menu.       17         Open Production Item Alternative       17         Item Search.       17         The Production Order Register       17         Entering a Production Order.       17         Comment Card       18         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Order Status       19         Entering a Production record       19         Keader       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Register       19         Entering a Production record       19         Header       19         Items Card       20         Comment Card       21         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       214         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Create Productions       22         Calculate Cost       22         Generate Serial Nos for Out Items       22         Disassemble       22         Item Search       22	Phantom Items	154
Open Production Item Alternative       17         Item Search       17         The Production Order Register       17         Entering a Production Order       17         Gomment Card       18         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Order Status       19         The Production Register       19         Entering a Production record       19         Header       19         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       214         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Finish       22         Comment Card       214         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Create Productions       22         Calculate Cost       22         Calculate Cost       22         Disassemble       22	The Recipe Register	155
Entering a Production Order       17-         Header       17         Comment Card       18         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Operations Menu       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Order Status       19         The Production Register       190         Header       190         Items Card       190         Header       190         Production Register       190         Inspecting a Production record       190         Header       190         Items Card       200         Comment Card       210         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       211         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       212         Create Productions       222         Create Productions       222         Generate Serial Nos for Out Items       222         Disassemble       222         Item Search       222         Item Search       222         Item Search       222         Item Search       <	Open Production Item Alternative	171
Header       17         Comment Card       18         Items Card       18         Planned Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Actual Time Card       19         Operations Menu       19         Move in Queue       19         Finish Batch       19         Production Order Status       19         The Production Register       19         Entering a Production record       19         Header       19         Items Card       20         Comment Card       21         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       214         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       214         Operations Menu       22         Create Productions       22         Calculate Cost       22         Calculate Cost       22         Disassemble       22         Item Status       22         Item Status       22         Item Status       22         Item Status       22         Open NL Transaction       23	The Production Order Register	173
Move in Queue19Finish Batch19Production Order Status19The Production Register19Entering a Production record19Header19Items Card20Comment Card21Inspecting and Approving Production Records218Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records218Operations Menu222Finish222Create Productions222Calculate Cost222Disassemble222Item Status222Item Status222Item Status222Open NL Transaction230	Header Comment Card Items Card Planned Time Card	177 185 185 190
Entering a Production record       190         Header       190         Items Card       200         Comment Card       210         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       210         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       210         Operations Menu       220         Finish       220         Create Productions       221         Calculate Cost       222         Generate Serial Nos for Out Items       222         Item Status       222         Item Status       222         Open NL Transaction       230	Move in Queue Finish Batch	191 192
Header       199         Items Card       200         Comment Card       211         Inspecting and Approving Production Records       211         Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       211         Operations Menu       222         Finish       222         Create Productions       222         Calculate Cost       222         Generate Serial Nos for Out Items       222         Item Status       222         Item Search       222         Open NL Transaction       230	The Production Register	196
Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records       218         Operations Menu       223         Finish       224         Create Productions       224         Calculate Cost       224         Generate Serial Nos for Out Items       224         Disassemble       224         Item Status       224         Production Status       224         Open NL Transaction       234	Header Items Card	199 208
Operations Menu.       220         Finish       221         Create Productions       222         Calculate Cost       222         Generate Serial Nos for Out Items.       222         Disassemble       222         Item Status       222         Item Search.       222         Open NL Transaction       230	Inspecting and Approving Production Records	218
Finish22Create Productions22Calculate Cost22Generate Serial Nos for Out Items22Disassemble22Item Status22Item Search22Production Status22Open NL Transaction23	Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records	218
Dauxiiusi1	Finish Create Productions Calculate Cost Generate Serial Nos for Out Items Disassemble Item Status Item Search Production Status	

Create Activity Create Stock Movement Create Production Operations. Quality Control	232 236
The Production Item Alternative Register	239
The Production Operation Register	243
Entering a Production Operation Header Items Card Time Card Comment Card Instructions Card	246 252 259 261
Inspecting and Approving Production Operations	264
Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations	265
Operations Menu Add Labour Open NL Transaction Create Activity. Quality Control	269 270 270
The Machine Hours Register	274
Maintenance	279
Introduction	279
Create Planned Records	279
Update Recipes	279

Documents	
Introduction Standard Fields	
Production Labels	
Production Operation Picking Lists	
Production Orders	293
Production Picking Lists	297
Productions	
Routing Productions	
Routing Production Orders	
Reports	
Introduction	
Create Production Operations	
Deficiency List	
Discarded Statistics	314
Item Effectivity	315
Produceability List	316
Production Cost Allocation	317
Production Deficiency	321
Production Journal	323
Production Order Journal	326
Production Planning	328
Production Queue	
Production Statistics	
Production Status	
Recipe Cost Calculation	
Recipe Cost Comparison	
Recipe List (Made of)	
Recipe List (Part of)	340
Running Production Orders	342
ex	

# HansaWorld Enterprise Production

## The Production Module

The HansaWorld Enterprise Production module is designed to facilitate the construction of assembled Items from components. Two types of assembled Item are catered for—

- Items that are assembled on the point of delivery. These Items are never held in stock: the components will be removed from stock when the delivery is made;
- Items that are assembled in advance of delivery and held in stock. Appropriate stock level adjustments will be made for the components and assembled Items at the time of construction or assembly.

## **Examples and Work Flow**

#### Introduction - The Assembled Item and its Recipe

These examples will demonstrate using a Production to assemble an Item to be held in stock. To illustrate the process, we will describe building a hifi rack from various components.

The examples assume Production I-cost, Production W-cost and Discarded Production Cost Accounts have been specified in the Account Usage Stock setting in the Stock module.

Start by recording the hifi rack in the Item register. This should be marked as a Stocked Item—

😂 ltem: Inspect			
Operations		l	New Duplicate Cancel Save
No. Description	80601 HiFi Rack Closed	Group	0
Pricing Stock	Warehouse	Costs Recipe A/C Varieties	Texts Cost Model User Values
Unit Base Price Base Price Change Price Factor Item Formulae Markup % Bonus % Objects Classification	PCS 75.00 13/3/2009 0	Item Type Plain Stocked Item Service Treat Item as Material on Proje	ect

After saving the Item record, choose 'Create Recipe' from the Operations menu. A new Recipe is opened. A Recipe is a list of the components (with quantities) that are needed to produce or build the assembled Item. Components are also known as "Input Items": enter the quantity of each component required to build the assembled Item in the In field. Enter the assembled Item (also known as the "Output Item") on the last row, with the quantity that will be built in the Out field. If a cost such as labour will be incurred when building the Output Item, enter this in the W-cost (Work Cost) field in one of the Input rows, as shown in the illustration below—

	Operation	ns				New	Duplicate	Cano	cel 9	iave
	Code	80601		Comment H	HiFi Rack					
Normal Prod Qty 1			Time to Setup	Language						
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce				Clos	ed	
Fix	ed Assembly Days			Hours to Produce		Minu	utes	Seco	nds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Black		Number Produced	1					
Standard Batch			1	Extra Prod Qty		-				
	Default Routing		-	Exaction (c)						
	Instructions									
	Item	Specification	pecification			Out	Rel. 1	-cost	W-cost	
1	80110	Glass Shelf			5.00			5.00	10.00	^
1	80111	40 cm Steel I			10.00			0.50		
2		50 cm Steel Box Section			10.00			0.50		
2 3	80112			511						
2 3 4	80113	90 cm Steel	Sheet	511	2.00			0.75		
2 3 4 5	80113 80114	90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel	Sheet		2.00			0.50		
2 3 4 5 6	80113 80114 80115	90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw	Sheet Sheet		2.00 2.00 20.00			0.50 0.10		
2 3 4 5 6 7	80113 80114 80115 80116	90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw Spiked Feet	Sheet Sheet		2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00			0.50 0.10 1.00		
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	80113 80114 80115 80116 80117	90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shel	Sheet Sheet		2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00 20.00			0.50 0.10 1.00 0.10	0.00	
2 3 4 5 6 7	80113 80114 80115 80116 80117 80118	90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw Spiked Feet	Sheet Sheet		2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00	1.00		0.50 0.10 1.00	0.00	~

When you save the Recipe, the Recipe Code will be copied to the Recipe field on the 'Recipe' card of the assembled Item—

😒 ltem: Update						[	
Operations				New	Duplicate Ca	ancel Sar	ve
No. Description	80601 HiFi Rack	Group	Not For Sales				0
Pricing Stock	Warehouse Co	osts Recipe	A/C Varieties	Texts	Cost Model	User Values	
Recipe Invoice Recipe Contract Item Rental Invoicing Warranty Months Alternative Code	80601	Barcode Commodity Code EKN Code	ponents during Ent Gray	ry			
Warning Dom. Sales A/C EU Sales A/C Export Sales A/C Dom. cot A/C	115 117	Dom. VAT Code EU VAT Code Export VAT Code	3				
Dom. Cost A/C EU Cost A/C Export Cost A/C		Components Usage	Calculate Perc	eption Taxes holdings Taxes			
Variety Mask Report Order Subsets							

This field connects the assembled Item to its Recipe. Save the Item to confirm.

#### **Building the Assembled Item**

You should use the Production register to build an Output Item and add it to stock. At the same time, the Input Items will be removed from stock.

To use the Production register, follow these steps-

1. Create a new Production and specify the Recipe. The Input and Output Items will be listed in the matrix—

		Opera	tions					Ne	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	S	ave
	No.	5026		Name	HiFi Rack					Status • Created			l
Recipe		80601		Start Date		Er	nd Date 5/:	11/2009					
	Qty		1	Start Time		E	nd Time			O Started			
Loc	ation	PROD				P	1achine			<ul> <li>Finished</li> </ul>	ut Discarded		
Insp	ector						Person						
Prod.						Discarded	Reason						
Actua							Routing						
Heceo													
						Items	Commen	t					
	Item		Descr	<b>'</b> .		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	8011	.0		; Shelf			5.00			5.00	10.00		^ A
2	8011	.1		n Steel Box Sec			10.00			0.50			В
3	8011			m Steel Box Section m Steel Sheet			10.00			0.50			
4	8011						2.00			0.75			C D E
5	8011			cm Steel Sheet			2.00			0.50			-
6	8011			ex Screw			20.00			0.10			E
7	8011			ed Feet			4.00			1.00			
8	8011			er Shelf Seat			20.00			0.10			
9	8011		End				4.00			0.20	0.00		
10	8060	)1	Hifi F	Rack				1.00		46.30			
11													
12													
13													×

The Location will be taken from the 'Sales' card of your Person record.

2. As far as the Input Items are concerned, a Production is treated as a standard outgoing stock transaction. So, if you are using the Do Not Allow Over Delivery option in the Stock Settings setting in the Stock module, you will not be able to approve the Production if you do not have enough stock of the components in the Production Location. You can quickly look up the available stock level of the components in the Production Location using the 'Item Status' function on the Operations menu.

If you need to move the components to the Production Location to finish the Production, save the Production and then choose 'Create Stock Movement' from the Operations menu—

	Oper	ations				New	Duplicate	Cancel Sa	ave
	No.	25			Reserved	Reason			0
	Ord. Date	5/11/200	09	Sent Dal	te	Received Date			
	From Location	WHS		Via Locatio	n	To Location	PROD		
			Positions	Objects	Items Currency	Durations	Freight		
	From Position			To Positio	n	For Production	5026		
		📃 Manu	ial Pick		📃 Send To Forklift Q	Jeue			
		eq. Qty	Sent Qty		Description	R. Old Unit Pr.	R. Extra Cost	R. New Unit Pr.	
1	80110	5			Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Section	0.0			^ A
~	80111	10			40 cm Steel Box Section 50 cm Steel Box Section	0.0		0.00	В
2	00110				90 cm Steel Sheet	0.0		0.00	C
3	80112	10						0.00	D
3 4	80113	2						0.00	0
3 4 5	80113 80114	2			36 cm Steel Sheet	0.0	)	0.00	C D E
3 4	80113	2					)	0.00 0.00 0.00	E
3 4 5 6	80113 80114 80115	2 2 20			36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw	0.0	) ) )	0.00	E
3 4 5 6 7	80113 80114 80115 80116	2 2 20 4			36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat	0.0 0.0 0.0		0.00	E
3 4 5 6 7 8	80113 80114 80115 80116 80117	2 2 20 4 20			36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		0.00 0.00 0.00	E

A Stock Movement will be created that, by default, will move the exact quantities of the components required for the Production from the Main Location to the Production Location. Change the From Location and the Required Quantities as necessary. When the components arrive at the Production Location, enter the Received Quantities, mark the Stock Movement as Received and save it.

3. When work begins, mark the Production as Started and save it. The Start Time and Date will be updated with the current time and date.

4. When work finishes, mark the Production as Finished and save it. The End Time will be updated. Stock levels of the assembled Item and the components will be updated, as will the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. This is the posting in the Nominal Ledger—

Base 1	1 Debit 56.30	Base 1 Credit 46.30 10.00 0.00	
Base 1		46.30 10.00	
Base 1		46.30 10.00	
	56.30	10.00	E
	56.30		E (
	56.30	0.00	(
		0.00	1
			-
			-
			F
			0
			~

The value of the components is credited to the Stock Account, while the value of the Output Item is debited to the same Account. The Work Cost is credited to the Work Cost Account. For details about how these Accounts are chosen, please refer to the 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records' section below on page 218.

5. The assembled Item will be placed in the Production Location. To move it to another Location, choose 'Create Stock Movement' from the Operations menu once again. A Stock Movement will be created to implement this move—

💙 Sto	ck Moveme	nt: Inspe	ct						(		
	Op	perations					New	Duplicate	Cancel S	ave	
		o. 26 te 5/11/20	09	Sent D Via Locat		ved	Reason Received Date To Location				0
_			Positions	Objects		Currency	Durations	Freight			
	From Positio		ual Pick	To Posit		o Forklift Que	For Production	5026			
-	Objec Commei										
	Item	Req. Qty	Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	Description		R. Old Unit Pr.	R. Extra Cost	R. New Unit Pr.		
1	80601	1			HiFi Rack		56.30		56.30	^	А
2											В
3											С
5											C D E
6											E
7											
8											
9											
10										~	
	Confirmed Sent Received	Sent Q	lty	Rcvd	l. Qty		Non Accounted Ext	ra Costs			

Choose a To Location. When the assembled Item arrives there, enter the Received Quantity, mark the Stock Movement as Received and save it.

#### **Additional Production Costs**

As well as posting a Work Cost from a Production (e.g. for labour) as described in the previous example, you can also post the running costs for the Machine used to build the assembled Item. Follow these steps—

1. You should have a record in the Asset register in the Assets module for the Machine. As well as allowing you to account for the depreciation of the Machine, you can use this Asset record to post its running costs. On the 'Costs' card, enter a Running Cost for the Machine. This should be an hourly figure—

😂 Asset: Inspect								
Operati	ons		New	Duplic	ate	Cancel	Save	
Inventory No. Description	WELD1 Welder					] Inactive		0
Category				N/L C	lass			
	Purchase	Owner	Models	Values	Cos	ts		_
Running Cost/hr		2.50		Idle Cos	t/hr		1.00	
Production Objects								
Supplier	501			N	ame E	uropean Tra	ading Co	
Pur. Inv. No.				Sup. Inv.	No.			
Purch. Date	31/12/2005			Purch. V	alue		1660.00	
Prod. Date					VAT			
Serial No.				Not Reclair	med			
Warranty No.				New/U	lsed N	ew		
Contract No.				Obj	ects			
Comment								

18

2. In the Production Settings setting, choose the Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items option, and specify a Machine Cost Item—

roduction Settin	gs: Inspect		
			Sav
	Options	Cost Items	
Machine Cost Item	MACHINE		
Labour Cost Item		Run Time Act. Type	
Setup Cost Item		Setup Act. Type	
Move Cost Item		Move Act. Type	
Queue Cost Item		Queue Act. Type	
Fime Actual Time Fixed Time	act of produced The-		
Add Work Cost	ost of produced Iten	work Cost per Hour	
Add Discarded C	ost	Work Cost per Hoar	

The Machine Cost Item should be a Service Item.

3. Enter a Production, choose the Recipe and specify the Asset in the Machine field. When you save the Production for the first time, the Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items option will cause an extra row to be added for the Machine Cost—

		Operati	ions					N	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ave
	No. 50	027		Name	HiFi Rack					Status			C
R	ecipe 80	0601		Start Date		Er	nd Date 5	/11/2009		<ul> <li>Created</li> <li>Cancelled</li> </ul>			
	Qty		1	Start Time		E	nd Time			O Started			
Loc	ation PR	ROD				r	Machine V	/ELD1		O Finished			
Insp		ctor					O Finished but Discarde			ł			
Prod.					Discarded	Person Reason							
Actua							Routing						
Actua	120						-						
						Items	Comme	nt					
	Item		Desc	r.		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	80110		Glas:	s Shelf			5.00	)		0.00	10.00		^ A
2	80111		40 ci	m Steel Box Sec	tion		10.00	)		0.00			в
3	80112		50 ci	m Steel Box Sec	tion		10.00	)		0.00			C
4	80113		90 ci	m Steel Sheet			2.00	)		0.00			-
5	80114		36 ci	m Steel Sheet			2.00	)		0.00			C D E
6	80115		Hex	Screw			20.00	)		0.00			E
7	80116		Spike	ed Feet			4.00	)		0.00			
8	80117		Rubb	ber Shelf Seat			20.00	)		0.00			
9	80118		End	Сар			4.00	)		0.00	0.00		
10	80601		HiFi I	Rack				1.00		10.00			
11	MACHIN	VE	Mach	nine cost			1.00	)		0.00			
12													
13													~

4. When work begins, mark the Production as Started and save it. The Start Time and Date will be updated with the current time and date. When you are recording the Machine Cost, marking a Production as Started is an important step because it marks the date and time when use of the Machine starts. 5. When work finishes, change the End Date if necessary, mark the Production as Finished and save it. The End Time will be updated. The Machine Cost will be calculated, and placed in the extra row. In this example, the Production took three hours, and the Running Cost of the Machine (from the Asset) is 2.50 per hour—

	Opera	ations		Image: A start of the start				New	Duplicate	Cancel	S	iave
	No. 5027		Name	HiFi Rack					Status			0
Red	ipe 80601		Start Date	5/11/2009	Er	nd Date	5/11/2009		Created Cancelled			
	Qty	1	Start Time	12:15:00	Er	nd Time	15:15:00		O Started			
Local	tion PROD				Ν	1achine	WELD1		<ul> <li>Finished</li> </ul>			
Inspec	tor					Person			🔘 Finished b	ut Discarded		
Prod. C	ord.				Discarded I	Reason						
Actual	Otv				F	Routing						
					Items	Comn	nent					
1	Item	Desci	r.		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	80110	Glass	s Shelf			5.	00		5.00	10.00		^ A
2	80111	40 cr	m Steel Box Sec	tion		10.	00		0.50			В
	80112		m Steel Box Sec	tion		10.			0.50			
	80113		m Steel Sheet				00		0.75			C D E
-	80114		m Steel Sheet			2.	00		0.50			0
-	80115		Screw			20.			0.10			E
	80116		ed Feet				00		1.00			
	80117		ber Shelf Seat			20.			0.10			
	80118	End	•			4.			0.20	0.00		
	80601	Hifi F					1.00	)	63.80			
	MACHINE	Mach	nine cost			1.	00		7.50			
12												
13												¥

In the resulting Nominal Ledger Transaction, the Machine Cost is added to the Work Cost and is posted to the Work Cost Account. On the debit side, it is added to the value of the Output Item and posted to the Stock Account—

	Ope	rations				Ne	w Duplicat	e Cancel	Sa	ve
	No. 502	7	Trans. Date	5/11/2009	Reference					6
	Text									
	Account	Objects		Descriptio	on		Base 1 Debit	Base 1 Credit	V-Cd	
1	740			Stock Va	luation			46.30		^ A
2	231			Productio	on Work Cost			17.50		
З	740			Stock Va			63.80			BCCEFG
4	468			Base Cur	rrency Round Off			0.00		-
5										-
6										E
7										F
8										G
9 10										
10										
12										
13										
14										
15										
16										
17										
18										
19										
20										~
19 20										

#### **Scheduling Productions**

If you have the Resource Planning module, you can use it and the Production Order register to help schedule work on Productions. Follow these steps—

1. Using the Resource Planner setting in the Resource Planning module, choose to display Production Orders in the Resource Planner.

SResource Planner: Inspect	
	Save
Activities	
Activities per Assets	
Activities per Project	
Production Orders	
Production Operations     Rental Reservations	
Resort	

2. You should have records in the Asset register in the Assets module for each of the Machines you use for Productions. As well as allowing you to account for the depreciation of the Machines, these records will allow you to schedule the work for each Machine.

You should now divide your Machines into groups, using the Machine Groups setting in the Production module. Each group should represent a different type of work (e.g. all welding machines should be in the same group). List the Machines in each group, separated by commas—

91	hac	hine Gr	oups: Inspect	
				Save
ſ		Code	Machines	
	1	WELD	WELD1, WELD2, WELD3	~
	2	DRILL	DRILL1, DRILL2, DRILL3	
	З	PAINT	PAINT1,PAINT2,PAINT3	
	4			
	5			
	6			
	7			
	8			
	9			×

3. Having assigned the Machines to Machine Groups, you can now specify the operating hours of the Machines, using the Machine Hours register.

Machine Hours: Inspe	ect				
	New	Dup	licate	Cancel	Save
Group	WELD	Colour	Gray		0
Description					
Monday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Tuesday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Wednesday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Thursday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Friday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Saturday Start	00:00:00	for	0.0	hours	
Sunday Start	00:00:00	for	0.0	hours	

In this example, all Machines belonging to the "WELD" Group can work for eight hours a day, beginning at 8 am. They will not work at weekends. The colour will signify idle time in the Resource Planner.

If you do not enter a record in this register for a particular Machine Group, it will be assumed that the Machines in that Group will be in constant use. 4. The next step is to connect Machines to Recipes (i.e. to specify the Machines that can be used to assemble each Output Item). You should do this using the Production Item Alternative register—

►				New Duplicate Cance	el Save
	Item No.	80601	Start Date	End Date	6
0	)efault Machine	WELD1	Recipe	Routing	
	Machine	Default Recipe	Alternate Recipe	Alternate Routing	
1	WELD2	80601			<u> </u>
2	WELD3	80601			
З					
4					
5					
6					
7					
8					
9 10					
10					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					
19					
20					~

In this example, we have specified that three Machines can be used to produce Item 80601 (the hifi rack), with a preference to use "WELD1". All three Machines will produce the hifi rack using the same Recipe.

5. In the Recipe, you should now specify the time required to build the assembled Item. You can do this using the various To Produce fields (Days, Hours, Minutes, Seconds) fields. One day in this case means a 24-hour day. For example, if the build time is 28 hours, enter "1" in the Days to Produce field and "4" in the Hours to Produce field. These times refer to one application of the Recipe: i.e. they are the times required to produce the Out Qty of the Output Item. You can also specify a Fixed Assembly Days and/or a Time to Setup if the Machine will need calibration or configuration work before the Production will start. These times are independent of the quantity produced (i.e. of the Out Qty).

Use the Standard Batch field to specify how many applications of the Recipe are usually built at one time. It is recommended that you specify a Standard Batch, because this will be the default quantity in Productions created during the scheduling process.

You should also specify a colour for the Resource Planner.

Operation		ns			New	Duplicate	Can	cel S	Gave	e
	Code	80601	Comment	HiFi Rack						6
	Normal Prod Qty	1	Time to Setup			Languaç	je			
	Min Prod Qty		Days to Produce				Clo:	sed		
Fix	ed Assembly Days		Hours to Produce	3.00	D Mini	utes	Seco	Seconds		
	Res. mgr. Colour	Red	Number Produced		1					
	Standard Batch		Extra Prod Qty							
	Default Routing									
	Instructions									
_	Item	Specification		In	Out	Rel. 1	(-cost	W-cost		1
1	Item 80110	Specification Glass Shelf		In 5.00	Out	Rel.	-cost 5.00	W-cost 10.00	~	1
1 2		Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti			Out	Rel.			•	1
-	80110 80111 80112	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti		5.00 10.00 10.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.50		~	1
2 3 4	80110 80111 80112 80113	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet		5.00 10.00 10.00 2.00	Out	Rel. 1	5.00 0.50 0.50 0.75			1
2 3 4 5	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet		5.00 10.00 10.00 2.00 2.00	Out	Rel. 1	5.00 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.50			1
2 3 4 5 6	80110 80111 80112 80113 80113 80114 80115	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw		5.00 10.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 20.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.50 0.10			1
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115 80116	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet		5.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 4.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00			1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115 80116 80117	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat		5.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00 20.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00 0.10	10.00		1
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115 80115 80116 80117 80118	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet		5.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 4.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00			E

- 6. As the configuration work is complete, you can now use the Production Order register to schedule your Productions. You will probably create Production Orders in three ways
  - i. The 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Production and Sales Orders modules will create Production Orders to schedule the assembly of Output Items that you have sold in advance. To be sold in advance, the Output Item must be included in a Sales Order with a Planned Delivery Date.
  - ii. You can use the Sales Forecast register in the MRP module to predict the future monthly sales of Output Items. From a Sales Forecast record, you can create a Production Plan for each month,

26

and from there you can use the 'Create Productions' Maintenance function to schedule the assembly of the Items that you expect to sell.

iii. You can enter Production Orders yourself.

You can decide whether the Maintenance functions mentioned in points i and ii will create Productions or Production Orders, using the Generate Planned options in the Production Settings setting—

Save           Options         Cost Items           Buffer Days         3           Production Lines hold Actual Qty         Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned           Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production         Round odd Hours to One Day           Sequence of Production Operations	Buffer Days 3	Options	Cost Items	Save
Buffer Days       3         Production Lines hold Actual Qty         Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned         Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production         Round odd Hours to One Day         Sequence of Production Operations         Allow to work with Next Sequence while current one is not finished         Complete Sequence before next one         Generate Planned         Productions	Buffer Days 3	Options	Cost Items	
Production Lines hold Actual Qty     Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned     Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production     Round odd Hours to One Day Sequence of Production Operations     Allow to work with Next Sequence while current one is not finished     Complete Sequence before next one Generate Planned Productions	Buffer Days		COSt Itoms	
Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned     Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production     Round odd Hours to One Day Sequence of Production Operations     Allow to work with Next Sequence while current one is not finished     Complete Sequence before next one Generate Planned Productions		)		
O Productions	Allow to work with	Create Stock ( Round odd Ho n Operations	Depreciation from Jurs to One Day while current one	Discarded Production
Production Orders				
	Production Orders			

In this example, we will work from a Sales Order with a Planned Delivery Date of 30 November—

Inv. Address De 9 Desp. Date Order Type M nrad Unit Price	Del. Address Time Normal Class	l
9 Desp. Date Order Type M nrad	Time Normal	
Order Type M	Normal	
nrad		
	Class	
Unit Price	Class	
Unit Price	Ciass	
	% Sum	
75.00	0 75	0.00 🔼 A
		В
		C
		D
		E
		E
		Ч

One way to see the Production requirement is to run the Item History report in the Stock module, using the Include Future Records option—

Item History Radio Import/Exp Only Stocked Item	ıs Deli <b>v</b> a		HansaWorl nvoices, Production Orde iation , Stock Movement	rs, Productions, R s, Stock Transfers	: 31/12/2009 Items 80601 Leturn Goods G, Work Sheet
Cost Date				Include Fu	'ithout Values Iture Records Iw Quantity 2
Date	Туре	No	Location	Qty	Balance
80601	HiFi Rack		PCS		
	Fwd Balance			0	0
5/11/2009	Production	<u>5026</u>	PROD	1	1
5/11/2009	Stock Mov	<u>26</u>	PROD	-1	0
5/11/2009	Stock Mov	<u>26</u>	WHS	1	1
5/11/2009	Production	<u>5027</u>	PROD	1	2
30/11/2009	Future Order	1000001	WHS	-10	-8
				-8	-8.00
					-8

We can bring the Item into the Production process by running the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function. This will result in the following Production Order—

	on Ord	er: Inspect						
	Ope	rations				New	Duplicate	Cancel Save
	No.	14	Name	HiFi Rack				Status O Created
R	Recipe	80601	Qty	10				Cancelled
Due	Date	30/11/2009	Should Start	22/11/2009				
Lo	cation	PROD	Person					O Started
Ma	achine	WELD1	Queue Pos					🔘 Finished
Lang	guage		Extra Prod Qty					Reserved
Ro	outing							- Keserveu
			Comment	Items P	anned Time	Actual Ti	-	
			connorte	10000		Heeder H	ino	
Instru	uction							
C								
Con	nment							
Con	nment							
	nment bjects							
	bjects	Descr.		In	Out	Objects		
ol	bjects	Descr. Glass Shelf		In 5.00	Out	Objects		
Ol	bjects 1		Box Section		Out	Objects		A
Ol Item 1 801	bjects 10 11	Glass Shelf		5.00	Out	Objects		
Ol Item 1 801 2 801	bjects 10 11 12	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel	Box Section	5.00 10.00	Out	Objects		

The Machine chosen is the Default Machine for the Output Item, as set in the Production Item Alternative register (step 4 above). You can choose a different Machine, providing it is one that can be used to build the Output Item.

In this case, we ran the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function using the Ignore Current Stock Levels option. The Qty in the header of the Production Order is therefore the same as the quantity in the Sales Order. As the Item History report illustrated earlier shows, there are already two hi-fi racks in stock, so if we had not used the Ignore Current Stock Levels option, the Qty in the Production Order would have been eight. The Should Start Date is calculated from the Planned Delivery Date using the various times in the Recipe (step 5), the Machine Hours (step 3) and the Qty in the header.

7. When you are ready to include the Production Order in your schedule, mark it as Accepted and save. The Production Order will be placed in a queue for the Machine, and its position in the queue will be shown in the Queue Pos field—

	Ope	rations				New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save		
	No. 14		Name	HiFi Rack			Statu:	s@			
Re	ecipe	80601	Qty	10				0 -	ancelled		
Due	Due Date 30/11/2009		Should Start	t 22/11/2009				<u> </u>	cepted		
Loc	ation	PROD	Person					~	🔘 Started		
Mac	thine	WELD1	Queue Pos	3				🔘 Fi	nished		
Language		Extra Prod Qty					D Pa	eserved			
Ro	uting										
			Comment	Items P	anned Time	Actual Ti	me				
	ment										
	ment jects										
		Descr.		In	Out	Objects					
ОЬ	jects	Descr. Glass Si	helf	In 5.00	Out	Objects					
Ob Item 1 8011 2 8011	jects O 1	Glass Sl 40 cm S	iteel Box Section	5.00 10.00	Out	Objects			A		
Ob Item 1 8011	jects 0 1 2	Glass Sl 40 cm S 50 cm S		5.00	Out	Objects					

A new Production Order will always be placed at the back of the queue, even if those ahead of it in the queue are not needed until later.

8. To see a graphical representation of the queue, open the Resource Planner by clicking the [Resources] button in the Master Control panel.

The 'Resource Type Month Overview' window shown overleaf opens, with Machine Groups listed in a column down the left-hand side of the window.



If you are using more than one of the options in the Resource Planner setting (step 1 above), the column down the left-hand side of the window will include records of different kinds. For example, if you are using the Production Orders and Projects options in the Resource Planner setting, the column down the left-hand side of the window will list Machine Groups and Projects. Therefore it is recommended that you use Project Numbers that make it easy for all users to distinguish Projects from Machine Groups in this window.

To see the Production Orders in the queues for the Machines in a Machine Group, double-click the Machine Group—



In this example, the grey bars signify when the Machines are not working (step 3 above). The purple, blue and red areas are Production Orders in the queue. These Production Orders use different Recipes, hence the different colours.

You can drag a Production Order up or down to another Machine, providing it is one that can be used to build the Output Item. The dragged Production Order will be placed at the end of the other Machine's queue. 9. To see a textual representation of the queue, produce a Production Queue report for the Machine—

2         80603         Deluxe HiFi Rack         WELD1         1         10         10/11/2009           3         80604         Exclusive HiFi Rack         WELD1         2         10         20/11/2009	roduction	erations n Queue ort/Export Ltd		HansaWorld, Print date: 5/11/2009 11:: MachineWELI Both Started and Accepto							
3         80604         Exclusive HiFi Rack         WELD1         2         10         20/11/2009           4         80601         HiFi Rack         WELD1         3         10         30/11/2009	. Order	Recipe	Comment	Machine	Queue	Left	Due Date				
3         80604         Exclusive HiFi Rack         WELD1         2         10         20/11/2009           4         80601         HiFi Rack         WELD1         3         10         30/11/2009	2				-						
	3										
No of Production Orders 3	4	80601	HiFi Rack	WELD1	3						

10. To move a Production Order to a different position in the queue, first open the Production Order. You can do this by double-clicking the coloured bar representing the Production Order in the Resource Planner, or by clicking the Production Order Number in the Production Queue report. Then, choose 'Move in Queue' from the Operations menu—

Specify Move in Queue	
	Run
New Position 3	

Enter the new position in the queue and click the [Run] button. The Production Order will be moved to the new position in the queue. For example, if you move a Production Order from third place in the queue to second, its Queue Pos field will be changed from "3" to "2", and the Queue Pos in the Production Order that was previously second in the queue will be changed from "2" to "3".

- 11. The purpose of Production Orders is to organise and schedule Productions, including allocating the work to the appropriate Machines. Production Orders do not control the assembly process itself, and nor do they update stock levels of the Input and Output Items or the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. To achieve these, you need to create a Production from a Production Order. You can do this using two methods
  - i. Open the Production Order and choose 'Finish Batch' from the Operations menu; and
  - ii. If you are using the Production Time Entry interface, a Production will be created automatically from a Production Order when you begin work on it.

In this example, we will describe the first method. For details of the second, please refer to the section entitled 'The Production Time Entry Interface' below on page 39.

When you use 'Finish Batch', a new Production will be opened, in a window entitled 'Production: New' signifying that it has not yet been saved—

		Operat	ions					N	lew	Duplicate	Cancel	) s	ave	
	No.			Name	HiFi Rack					Status			C	
Recipe		80601		Start Date		E	End Date 5/11/200			<ul> <li>Created</li> <li>Cancelled</li> </ul>				
Qty			2	Start Time		End Time				O Started				
Loc	ation	PROD				Machine WEL		WELD1	<ul> <li>Finished</li> </ul>					
Insp							Person		<ul> <li>Finished br</li> </ul>		ut Discarded			
	Ord.	14				Discarded	Reason							
Actua						0.000.000	Routing							
necua							-							
						Items	Comr	nent						
	Item		Desc			Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff		
1	801			s Shelf				00		5.00	10.00		<u>^</u> A	
2	8013			m Steel Box Sec			10.			0.50			В	
3	801			m Steel Box Sec	tion		10.			0.50				
4	801			m Steel Sheet			2.	00		0.75			C D E	
5	801	14	36 ci	m Steel Sheet			2.	00		0.50			0	
6	8013	15	Hex	Screw			20.	00		0.10			E	
7	8013	16	Spike	ed Feet			4.	00		1.00				
8	8013	17	Rubb	ber Shelf Seat			20.	00		0.10				
9	801	18	End	Сар			4.	00		0.20	0.00			
10	8060	D1	HiFi I	Rack				1.00		46.30				
11														
12														
13													~	

As a default, the Standard Batch size from the Recipe will be copied to the Qty field in the header. This is the number of applications of the Recipe. In this example, one application of the Recipe will produce one hifi rack, so the result of the Production illustrated is that two hifi racks will be produced. If one application of the Recipe produced two hifi racks (i.e. if the Out Qty in the matrix is "2"), then two applications of the Recipe would produce four hifi racks. If the Standard Batch in the Recipe is blank, you will need to enter a Quantity yourself before proceeding.

36
12. Process the Production in the usual way, as described in the 'Building the Assembled Item' section above on page 14. This is the Finished Production—

	Oper	ations		Image: A start of the start			N	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ive
	No. 5028		Name	HiFi Rack					Status			0
Re	cipe 80601		Start Date	5/11/2009	En	d Date 5	/11/2009					
	Qty	2	Start Time	13:55:00	Er	nd Time 1	6:55:00		O Started			
Location PROD		M	1achine V	/ELD1		<ol> <li>Finished</li> </ol>						
Inspe	ctor					Person			O Finished b	ut Discarded		
Prod. (	Ord. 14				Discarded F	Reason						
Actual	Oty				F	louting						
					Items	Comme	nt					
								· ·		1		_
	Item	Desc	r. s Shelf		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	80110 80111		s oneir m Steel Box Sec			5.00			5.00	10.00	1	<u>^ A</u>
2	80112		m Steel Box Sec m Steel Box Sec			10.00			0.50		-	В
4	80113		m Steel Sheet	don		2.00			0.30			С
5	80114		m Steel Sheet			2.00			0.50			C D E
6	80115		Screw			20.00			0.10			E
7	80116	Spik	ed Feet			4.00	)		1.00			
8	80117	Rub	ber Shelf Seat			20.00	)		0.10			
9	80118	End	Сар			4.00	)		0.20	0.00		
10	80601		Rack				1.00		60.05			
11	MACHINE	Mac	hine cost			1.00	)		3.75			
12												_
13												~

Note that the unit cost of the Output Item is slightly different to that illustrated above on page 21. While the actual Work and Machine Costs are the same, two Output Items have been produced (as shown in the Quantity field in the header) instead of one in the previous example, so on a per unit basis these Costs have been halved.

13. If the Production did not result in sufficient assembled Items to fulfil the Production Order, select 'Finish Batch' again to create a new Production. As you create Productions, you can monitor the progress of the Production Order by selecting 'Production Order Status' from the Operations menu—

Production	Order Journa	l .					
Operation	15 📄	0					Search
Production Ord Radio Import/E					Hansa₩o	rld, Print date: 5/ Produ	11/2009 11:26 ction Order 14
Number	Due Date	Queue	Machine	Recipe	Comment		Prod. Qty
<u>14</u>	30/11/2009	3	WELD1	80601	HiFi Rack Produced: Discarded:		10 2
					Left to Produce:		8
Production	Date		Person			Weight	Prod Qty
5028	5/11/2009					80	2

14. When the Production Order has been fulfilled, mark it as Finished and save. It will be removed from the queue for the Machine (the Queue Pos field will be made blank). The other Production Orders in the queue will not have their Queue Pos fields renumbered. The queue is calculated by sorting the Production Orders by Queue Pos, but the Queue Pos is an arbitrary number that does not necessarily represent the actual position in the queue.

38

## The Production Time Entry Interface

The Production Time Entry interface allows you to register the time spent working on Productions in a simple manner that does not require you to search for Productions or Production Orders. As you complete each Production, it will be marked as Finished automatically, thus updating stock levels and the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. Activities will also be created and marked as Done automatically: these will record the various running costs incurred in completing each Production.

The Production Time Entry interface reduces the time spent administering Productions, thus increasing efficiency. It is designed for use in environments where there is a Production Manager who will administer Production Orders (entering them, choosing the Recipe and Machine, and managing the queues), and where Production Operatives working on each Production only need to record the times they begin and end work and the quantities they produce.

To configure the Production Time Entry interface, follow these steps-

1. The first step is to specify that the Production Time Entry interface should be used when particular members of staff log in to your HansaWorld Enterprise system. Change to the User Settings module and open the Login Shortcuts register—

gun	Shortet	ts: Inspect		ال_
				Save
	User	Colour	On Login	
1	AM	Black	Production Time Entry	
2	JM	Black	Production Time Entry	
З				
4				
5				
6				
7				
8				

Specify each Person in the first column using 'Paste Special' if necessary, and enter "Production Time Entry" in the third column, again using 'Paste Special' if necessary. The third column determines the window each Person will see when they first log in. Any Person not listed will see the standard Master Control panel.

2. If you are using the Production Time Entry interface, the time spent working on Productions will be recorded in Activities. These Activities will be created automatically. The next step is to specify the Activity Types that are to be used in these Activities. Open the Production Settings setting and go to the 'Cost Items' card—

roduction Settin	gs: Inspect		
			Save
	Options	Cost Items	
Machine Cost Item	MACHINE		
Labour Cost Item		Run Time Act. Type	
Setup Cost Item		Setup Act. Type	
Move Cost Item		Move Act. Type	
Queue Cost Item		Queue Act. Type	
Time Actual Time Fixed Time			
Auto Calculate C Add Work Cost	ost of produced Ite	ms Work Cost per Hour	
Add Discarded C	ost	work cost per riour	

Each automatic Activity will be assigned one of two Activity Types. The first Type will be used in Activities recording the time spent working on each Production. These are "Run Time" Activities, and they will use the Run Time Activity Type that you specify in this setting. Run Time Activities will always be created, because they are used to control the operation of the Production Time Entry interface.

The second Type will be used in Activities that record the time spent preparing for each Production (e.g. time required to calibrate the Machine). These are "Setup" Activities, and they will use the Setup Time Activity Type that you specify in this setting. Setup Activities are optional: if you want Setup Activities to be created, check the Add Work Cost box.

As well as causing Setup Activities to be created, the Add Work Cost option will also cause a Work Cost to be added to each Production, for the Run Time and the Setup Time. The total time will be calculated from the two Activities, and the cost will be the Work Cost per Hour in the Production Settings setting.

roduction Settin	gs: Inspect		
			Save
	Options	Cost Items	
Machine Cost Item	MACHINE		
Labour Cost Item		Run Time Act. Type	MACHI
Setup Cost Item		Setup Act. Type	SETUP
Move Cost Item		Move Act. Type	•
Queue Cost Item		Queue Act. Type	
Time Actual Time Fixed Time Auto Calculate C	ost of produced It	ems	
Add Work Cost		Work Cost per Hour	0.75

3. The configuration work is now complete. If you are a Production Operative and it has been specified in the Login Shortcuts register that you will use the Production Time Entry interface when you log in (step 1), the first window that you will see when you do so will be the 'Register Time' window—

Production	n Time
Other Ti	ime
Calendar F	Report
	Other T

4. When you start working on a Production Order, click the [Production Time] button. The 'Production Time' window opens—

S Production Time	2	
Prod. Ord. No.		
	Save	
	Other Time	

5. As a Production Operative, enter the Production Order Number supplied by your Production Manager and click the [Save] button. The 'To be Produced' window appears, showing you the Item that the Production Order requires you to produce, the Production Order Number, the quantity required by the Production Order, the quantity produced so far, and the quantity remaining to be produced—

👏 To be Pro	To be Produced					
Item	80601	Prod. Ord.	15			
Ordered	10.00	Produced				
To produce	10.00					
	Clo	ose				

These fields are not enterable, and simply provide you with a reminder of the current Production job.

6. When you have finished work on the Production, click the [Close] button to close the 'To be Produced' window. The 'Register Time' window illustrated in step 3 appears. Click the [Production Time] button again. The 'Specify Produced Quantities' window opens—

😒 Specify Produce	l Quar	tities		
Produced				
Discardeo				
Discarded Reason				
Setup Time (min.)				
Production Order	15			
📃 Set Pro	duction	Order as	Finished	
		Save		
		Cancel		

Complete the window as described below, then click the [Save] button.

Produced	Enter the quantity you	have produced.		
Discarded	If you produced and then discarded any final Items, the quantity discarded.			
	nine were good and on	roduced ten final Items, of which e had to be discarded, enter "9" in ve and "1" in the Discarded field.		
Discarded Reason	Paste Special	Standard Problems setting, Production/Service Orders module		
	If you discarded any Reason before you can	final Items, you must enter a close the window.		
Setup Time (min	Machine or work static	he time required to configure a on before you can begin work (e.g. ng fluids). Enter the Setup Time		
Production Order	er This field provides a reminder of the Production Order you are working on.			
Set Production Or	rder as Finished			
	Check this box if you	want to mark the Production Order		

as Finished. You should do this if you have produced all the Items required in the Production Order, and there is no more work required.

- 7. When you click the [Save] button, the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window closes, to be replaced by the 'Register Time' window illustrated in step 3. Click the [Production Time] button again as described in step 4 to begin work on the next Production Order.
- 8. If you quit HansaWorld Enterprise between steps 5 and 6, the Production Order will remain open in your name. When you next log in and click the [Production Time] button in the 'Register Time' window, you will be taken immediately to the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window described in step 6.
- 9. If you need to work on a Project instead of a Production Order, click the [Other Time] button in the 'Register Time' or 'Production Time' windows.

If you are already working on a Production Order, the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window illustrated in step 6 will appear. Complete this window as described in that step and click the [Save] button. The Production Order will no longer be open in your name. When the 'Register Time' window appears, click the [Other Time] button again.

The 'Other Time' window will appear-

😒 Other Time		
Activity Type		
Project		
Text		
	Save	
	Production Time	

Use this window to create an Activity that will record your work on the Project. Complete it as described below, then click the [Save] button.

Activity Type	Paste Special	Activity Types setting, CRM
		module

Enter the Activity Type, which represents a specific job or task (e.g. cabling, training, analysis).

Project	Paste Special	Project register, Job Costing module
	Specify the Project th enter a Project before y	at you are working on. You must you can save.

Text

Enter some text to be copied to the Activity, perhaps describing the task.

When you click [Save], an Activity will be created, with the current time as the Start Time. It will not have an End Time, meaning it is regarded as "in progress".

When you finish working on the Project, you need to end the Project Activity. Click the [Production Time] or [Other Time] buttons in the 'Register Time' window—

- If you click the [Production Time] button, the 'Production Time' window illustrated in step 4 will appear. When you enter a Production Order Number and click save, the End Time in the Project Activity will be updated and the Activity will be marked as Done. The Activity will therefore be closed. The Production Order will be opened in your name, as described in step 5.
- If you click the [Other Time] button, the 'Other Time' window will appear. Enter the details of the next Project you will work on, and click [Save]. In fact, this will only close the first Project Activity. The 'Other Time' window will appear again. Enter the details of the next Project again, and click [Save]. This time a new Activity will be created, for the second Project. This two-stage process allows you to stop working on a Project, to take a break or because it is the end of the day.

In both cases, when the Project Activity is closed, an appropriate Project Transaction will be created automatically, if the Activity Type belongs to an Activity Class whose Create Project Transaction box is checked. Please refer to the 'Job Costing' module for more details about Project Transactions.

When a Production Operative specifies a Production Order Number in the 'Production Time' window (step 4 above) and saves, the consequences in the Production Order, Production and Activity registers are as follows—

- a. The Production Order will be marked as Started automatically.
- b. If the Production Order is Cancelled or Finished, the Production Operative will be told 'Check Production Order Status', meaning that no more work can be carried out against the selected Production Order, and the Production Operative should specify another one.

The Production Order must also have been assigned to a Machine. If this is not the case, the Production Operative will be told 'Check Production

Order Machine', and again no work on the Production Order will be possible.

c. A new Production will be created from the Production Order automatically. The Status of this Production will be Started—

		Opera	tions		þ			- N	lew	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ave
	No.	5031		Name	HiFi Rack					Status			0
R	ecipe	80601		Start Date	6/11/2009		End Date	6/11/2009		Created Cancelled			
	Qty		10	Start Time	13:54:52	End Time			<ul> <li>Cancelled</li> <li>Started</li> </ul>				
Loc	ation	PROD				Machine	WELD1	<ul> <li>Finished</li> </ul>					
Insp	ector						Person	AM		🔘 Finished b	ut Discarded		
Prod.	Ord.	15				Discarde	d Reason						
Actua	l Oty						Routing						
						Items	Com	ment					
	Item		Descr	·.		Serial No	. In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	_
1	8011	0		Shelf				.00		5.00	10.00		^ A
2	8011	1	40 cn	n Steel Box Sec	tion		10	.00		0.50			В
3	8011	2	50 cn	n Steel Box Sec	tion		10	.00		0.50			
4	8011	3	90 cn	n Steel Sheet			2	.00		0.75			C D E
5	8011	4	36 cn	n Steel Sheet			2	.00		0.50			D
6	8011			Screw			20			0.10			E
7	8011	-		d Feet				.00		1.00			
8	8011			er Shelf Seat			20			0.10			
9	8011	-	End (				4	.00		0.20	0.00		
10	8060	1	HiFi F	Rack				1.00		46.30			
11													
12													
13												1	~

Note that the Qty in the header of this Production is the entire quantity needed to fulfil the Production Order. The Standard Batch size from the Recipe is not used.

As Production Manager, do not create this Production in advance. If your Production Operatives are using the Production Time Entry interface, this Production must be created automatically from that interface. If you create this Production in advance, the Activity described in point d below will not be created, and therefore the time spent by the Operative working on the Production will not be recorded properly. So, if you need to use the Operations menu of the Production to create a Stock Movement to move the components to the Production Location (e.g. workshop) you must wait for the Operative to create the Production. If you need to enter the Stock Movement in advance, enter it directly to the Stock Movement register.

d. A "Run Time" Activity will be created, to record the time spent working on the Production. The Activity Type in this Activity will be the Run Time Activity Type specified in the Production Settings setting, and the Start Time and Date will be the current time and date. The Text of the Activity will be taken from the Activity Type, the Recipe and the quantity of the Production—

	Operations				New	Duplicate	e Cancel	Save
	Text	Machines Cost	, 10.00 * HiFi Rack					C
	Туре	MACHI	Persons	AM				
	Language		Cc					
	Priority		Supervisor		Result		Private	Done
	Time	Custome	r Text Su	ıb Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined	
	Start Time End Time Cost (Time)	13:54:52		6/11/2009 6/11/2009	Task Type Calence To Do Timed Work I	dar To Do	Calendar Time Profile Don't S	how
	Project		Name					
	Customer		Telephone					
	Invoice Item		Contact					
_	Code 1	Text						
1								^
2								
3 4								
4 5								
6								
7								~

The Production Number will be copied to the Production field on the 'Service' card of the Activity.

As mentioned in step 8 above, if the Production Operative quits HansaWorld Enterprise between steps 5 and 6, the Production Order will remain open in their name. This is because this Activity exists (and it is not marked as Done) and because the Production illustrated in point c is marked as Started and contains the Operative's signature in its Person field.

When the Production Operative completes the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window (step 5 above), the consequences are as follows—

- e. If the operator chose the Set Production Order as Finished option, the Production Order will be marked as Finished (irrespective of whether the required Quantity has been produced).
- f. The End Time and Date in the Run Time Activity (from point d above) will be updated, and the Activity will be marked as Done. This will free the operator to work on another Production Order.

Acti	ivity: Inspe	ct							
E	Operations				New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save	
	Text	Machines Co	st, 10.00 * HiFi Rack					(	0
	Туре	MACHI	Persons	AM					
	Language		Cc						
	Priority		Supervisor		Result		📃 Private	🗹 Done	
_	Time	Custon	ner Text Su	ıb Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined		
_	Start Time	14:24:00	Start Date	6/11/2009	Task Type		Calenda		
	End Time	16:59:36	End Date	6/11/2009	<ul> <li>Calence</li> <li>To Do</li> </ul>	lar	Time		
	Cost (Time)	02:35:00	Time Class		O Timed	To Do	O Don'		
					🔘 Work I	Hours			
	Project		Name						
	Customer		Telephone						
	Invoice Item		Contact						
	Code 1	ſext							
1								1	^
2									
4									
5									
6									
7								1	~
							End Activ	vitu	

g. If the operator entered a Setup Time in the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window and if you are using the Add Work Cost option in the Production Settings setting, a second Activity will be created, to record the Setup Time (a "Setup Activity"). The Text of the Activity will be taken from the Activity Type, the Recipe and the quantity of the Production. This Activity will be marked as Done—

	Operations				New	Duplicate	e Cancel	Save
	Text	Setup Cost, 10.	00 * HiFi Rack					C
	Туре	SETUP	Persons	AM				
	Language		Cc					
	Priority		Supervisor		Result		Private	🗹 Done
	Time	Customer	Text Su	ib Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined	
	Start Time End Time Cost (Time)	14:24:00	Start Date End Date Time Class	6/11/2009 6/11/2009	Task Type Calen To Do Timed Work	dar To Do	Calenda Time Profi Don'	)
	Project		Name					
	Customer		Telephone					
	Invoice Item		Contact					
	Code 1	Text						
1								^
2								
3 4								
5								
6								
7								~

The Production Number will be copied to the Production field on the 'Service' card of the Activity.

The Setup Time is assumed to occur at the beginning of the time spent working on the Production. For example, if work starts at 12:00, the Run Time Activity will be created with a Start Time of 12:00 (point d above). When work ends at 15:00, an End Time of 15:00 will be added to this Activity (point f). If the operator specifies a Setup Time of 20 minutes, the Start Time in this Activity will be changed to 12:20 and a Setup Activity will be created, running from 12:00 to 12:20.

h. If you are using the Add Work Cost option in the Production Settings setting, a Work Cost will be added to the Production, calculated using

the total Cost (Time) of the labour and Setup Time Activities and the Work Cost per Hour specified in the Production Settings setting.

		Operal	tions		Image: A start of the start				New	Duplicate	Cancel	S	ave
	No.	5031		Name	HiFi Rack					Status			0
Re	ecipe	80601		Start Date	6/11/2009		End Date	6/11/2009		Created Cancelled			
Qty			10	Start Time	13:23:27		End Time	17:24:08		O Started			
Location PROD						Machine	hine WELD1		<ul> <li>Finished</li> </ul>				
Inspe	ector						Person	AM		🔘 Finished b	ut Discarded		
Prod.	Ord.	15				Discarded	d Reason						
Actua	l Qty						Routing						
	• •					Items	Comr	nent					
													_
	Item		Desci			Serial No		Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	8011			s Shelf m Steel Box Sec				00		5.00	10.00		<u>^</u> A
2	8011			n Steel Box Sec n Steel Box Sec			10.			0.50			В
4	8011			n Steel Box Sec n Steel Sheet	lion			00		0.50			C
5	8011			n Steel Sheet				00		0.75			D
6	8011			Screw			20.			0.10			C D E
7	8011			ed Feet				00		1.00			
8	8011	.7		per Shelf Seat			20.	00		0.10			
9	8011	18	End	Сар			4.	00		0.20	0.227		
10	8060	01	HiFi F	Rack				1.0	00	57.07686			
11	MAC	HINE	Mach	nine cost			1.	00		0.75416			
12													
13													~

In this case, the various calculations are-

Work Cost (from the Recipe) per unit	10.00
Set Up Cost (30 mins @ 0.75 per hour from Production Settin	gs) per
unit	0.038
Run Time Cost (2 hrs 31 mins @ 0.75 per hour) per unit	<u>0.189</u>
Total	0.227

Machine Cost (3 hrs 01 mins @ 2.50 per hour from the Asset) per unit 0.75416

i. The Production will be marked as Finished automatically, stock levels of the components and the final Item will be adjusted, and a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be created, to adjust the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. For more details about this Transaction, please refer to the 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records' section below on page 218. j. As noted in point c above, when the Production is created, the Qty in the header will be the entire quantity needed to fulfil the Production Order. The Operative may not produce this Qty, and therefore will enter a lower Produced quantity in the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window. This quantity will be copied to the Qty field in the Production, overwriting what was previously there. The Run Time and Setup Activities will be updated and the Work Cost they represent will be transferred to the Production as described in points points f - h above, and the Production will then be marked as Finished as described in point i.

For example, if the Qty in the Production Order is ten, then the Qty in the Production will also be ten at first. If the Operative produces two units, then the Qty in the Production will be updated to two before it is marked as Finished. When work on the Production Order restarts, a new Production will be created with a Qty of eight. The 'To be Produced' window will show that ten were ordered, two have been produced already, and eight are still required.

- k. If the Operative entered both Produced and Discarded quantities in the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window, the Production will be updated with the Produced quantity before being marked as Finished, as described in point j above. A second Production will be created for the Discarded quantity. This second Production will be marked as Finished but Discarded, thus removing the components from stock and updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. The two Productions will be connected to each other through the Attachments facility. The second Production will usually not add any final Items to stock. However, if you are using the Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production option in the Production Settings setting, the Discarded final Items will be added to stock, and an automatic Stock Depreciation will then remove them. If you are using the Add Discarded Cost option in the Production Settings setting, the value of the second (Discarded) Production will be added to the first (Finished) Production as a Work Cost, and therefore this value will be included in the stock value of the "good" Items.
- 1. If the Operative only enters a Discarded quantity in the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window (i.e. if everything produced during a shift was discarded), a second Production will be created for the Discarded quantity, in all respects as described in point k. However, the original Production will remain untouched (i.e. the Qty in the header will not be updated and the Status will remain Started), and the Run Time Activity will not be updated as described in point f. In other words, the original Production will remain "in progress", the assumption being that the Operative will return to that Production and attempt to produce the quantity required. If this assumption is not correct, please refer to points i

- vi below for details about closing the Production and freeing the Operative to work on another job (if you need to account for the Work Costs of the discarded work, you will need to do so by creating a Nominal Ledger Transaction yourself).

It may be that the Production Operative enters the wrong Production Order Number in the 'Production Time' window in step 3. If so, you (or the Production Operative, depending on access rights) can proceed as follows—

- i. Locate the Run Time Activity that was created when the Production Operative entered the wrong Production Order Number (point d above). You can do this from the Production Operative's computer by clicking the [Calendar Report] button in the 'Register Time' window, or from any computer by opening the Calendar, entering the Production Operative's signature and clicking the [Report] button towards the top right-hand corner.
- ii. Open the Activity by clicking its Comment in the report, and go to the 'Service' card.

				<b>C</b>			-
Operations			5	Ne	w Duplica	ate Cancel	Sav
Text	Machines Cost, 10.	.00 * HiFi Rack					
Туре	MACHI	Persons	AM				
Language		Cc					
Priority		Supervisor		Re	sult	Private	🗹 Done
Time	Customer	Text Si	ub Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined	
Serial No.			Item		Prod. Oper.		
Service Order		Invoice	e Item		Production	5031	
					Resort Event		
						3	

52

- iii. Note the Production Number in the Production field.
- iv. Delete the Activity.
- v. Locate the Production in the Production register and open it. Mark it as Cancelled and save. You can also remove the Production Operative's signature from the Person field, although this is not essential.
- vi. The Production Operative can now click the [Production Time] button in the 'Register Time' window and enter the correct Production Order Number.

Usually, a Production Operative can only work on one Production Order at a time. The Operative will choose the Production Order at the moment they start working (step 4 above), and enter the quantity they produce when they finish (step 6 above). The Operative will then repeat the cycle for the next Production Order. If a particular Operative needs to work on more than one Production Order at a time, grant that Operative access to the 'Allow Multiple Active Productions' Action in their Access Group. If you are such an Operative, replace steps 4-6 in the earlier sequence with these steps—

- 10. On signing in, the 'Register Time' window will appear. Click the [Production Time] button and enter the first Production Order Number. After clicking the [Save] button, the 'To be produced' window will appear as already described. Click the [Close] button as usual: the 'Register Time' window will re-appear.
- 11. Click the [Production Time] button again and enter the second Production Order Number. After clicking the [Save] button, you will be asked to confirm—

😂 Confirm Order	
Prod. Ord. No. 17	
Confirm	Cancel

- 12. Click the [Confirm] button to confirm that you want to begin work on the second Production Order (or [Cancel] if the Number is not correct). The 'To be produced' window will appear as normal. Click the [Close] button to return to the 'Register Time' window.
- 13. Repeat steps 11 and 12 as required.
- 14. When you have finished work, click the [Production Time] button in the 'Register Time' window again. When the 'Production Time' window

appears, enter the Production Order Number from step 10 and click [Save]. You must enter the Production Order Number from step 10 (i.e. the first Production Order Number that you registered), not one from step 11. Repeating the Production Order Number from step 10 signals to HansaWorld Enterprise that you are no longer entering the Production Orders on which you are starting work, and are now recording that you have finished work.

- 15. Complete the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window as already described and click [Save].
- 16. The 'Specify Produced Quantities' window will re-appear, with the second Production Order Number already entered. Complete the window as appropriate for this Production Order and click [Save].
- 17. Step 16 will be repeated for each Production Order.
- 18. When you have completed step 16 for each Production Order, you be returned to the 'Register Time' window so that you can repeat the cycle.

Please refer to the 'System Module' manual for more details about Access Groups.

## Assembly in Stages

A single Production record represents the process of removing components from stock and assembling them into the final Item. The removing of components from stock, the adding of the final Item to stock and the updating of the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger all occur at the same moment. A single Production record cannot therefore represent a complex Production process with several assembly stages, where components are not all removed from stock at the same time. To meet this requirement, you can use Routings and Production Operations to divide a Production into stages, with the following benefits—

- You can record each stage of the Production process separately, so you will always know exactly how each Production is progressing;
- Components will be removed from stock as you use them, not at the end of the entire Production process; and
- You can record Work in Progress in the Nominal Ledger.

We will adapt the example hifi rack to illustrate the use of multi-stage Productions by dividing the assembly process into the following stages—

i. The rack will include five shelves. Each shelf will consist of a glass sheet on a metal frame. The glass will sit on rubber seats to isolate it from the metal.

The first stage is to construct the metal frames by welding square-section metal tubes together.

ii. The left and right sides of the metal frames will each be attached to a metal support, and each support will have two spiked feet.

The second stage is to construct the two metal supports by pressing metal sheet into shape and welding sections together.

- iii. Holes will be drilled in the frames for the rubber seats, and threaded holes will be drilled in the supports for the spiked feet.
- iv. The frames and supports will be painted.
- v. The rubber seats will be pressed into the frames.
- vi. The spiked feet will be screwed into the supports.
- vii. The final assembly stage will see the frames and supports joined together using hex bolts and the glass shelves will be placed on the frames. Final cosmetic tidying will see plastic end caps being placed on the ends of the supports.

While the first two stages can be completed simultaneously, the others must be completed in order. For example, the components cannot be painted before they have been built, and final assembly cannot take place until the paint has dried. To divide the Production process into the seven stages, follow these steps-

1. The first step is to determine the stage to which each component belongs. Open the Recipe and go to flip B—

	Operation	ns			New Duplic	ate Cancel	Save
	Code	80601	Comment	HiFi Rack			
	Normal Prod Qty	1	Time to Setup		Lang	juage	
	Min Prod Qty		Days to Produce			Closed	
Fix	ed Assembly Days		Hours to Produce	3.00	Minutes	Seconds	
	Res. mgr. Colour		Number Produced	1			
	Standard Batch		Extra Prod Qty				
	Default Routing Instructions						
	Instructions						
		Specification	Description		Material	Recipe	
1			Description		Material COMPONENT	Recipe	
1 2	Item	Specification					
-	Item 80110	Specification Glass Shelf	ion		COMPONENT	-	
2	Item 80110 80111	Specification Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti	ion		COMPONENT WELD_SHELVES	-	
2 3	Item 80110 80111 80112 80113 80114	Specification Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti	ion		COMPONENT WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES	-	
2 3 4	Item 80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115	Specification Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw	ion		COMPONENT WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES WELD_SUPPORTS WELD_SUPPORTS COMPONENT	-	
2 3 4 5 6 7	Item 80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115 80116	Specification Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet	ion		COMPONENT WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES WELD_SUPPORTS WELD_SUPPORTS COMPONENT FEET		
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Item 80110 80111 80112 80113 80113 80114 80115 80116 80117	Specification Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Sheet 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat	ion		COMPONENT WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES WELD_SUPPORTS WELD_SUPPORTS COMPONENT FEET SEATS		
2 3 4 5 6 7	Item 80110 80111 80112 80113 80113 80114 80115 80116 80117 80118	Specification Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel Box Secti 50 cm Steel Box Secti 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet	ion		COMPONENT WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES WELD_SUPPORTS WELD_SUPPORTS COMPONENT FEET		

Assign a Material to each Input Item (and to the Output Item as well).

A "Material" is a generic name for the type of Input Item (for example, "FEET" or "SEATS"), or for the task (for example, "WELD\_SHELVES"). In essence, the Material indicates the Input Items that will be used during a particular Production stage. In this example, the Input Items marked "WELD\_SHELVES" will be used for stage i (constructing the metal shelf frames), while the Input Items marked "WELD\_SUPPORTS" will be used for stage ii (constructing the metal supports). When stage i is completed, all Input Items marked "WELD\_SHELVES" will be removed from stock, as this stage requires those Input Items to be welded together to produce five shelf frames.

The three Input Items marked "COMPONENT" will all be used (removed from stock) at the same time. If they were to be used at different stages in the Production process, we would need to differentiate their Materials, for example to "COMPONENT\_A", "COMPONENT\_B" and so on. In fact this has been done in the example: the spiked feet and rubber seats could also be described as components, but they will be needed at different times in the process.

The Output Item should also be given a Material. This Material controls when the Output Item will be added to stock.

In this example, no Input Item has been given a Material such as "PAINT". This is because no Input Items will be used during stage iii (painting the frames and support). This is for illustrative purposes in the example only: in reality it would be necessary to monitor paint usage and therefore paint would be an Input Item in the Recipe.

As shown in the illustration, there is no need to list the Input Items so that those with the same Material are together, and there is also no need to list them in the sequence in which they will be used. This sequence will be determined in the next steps.

- 2. While the Recipe is open, return to flip A and remove the W-cost (Work Cost). When you divide the Production process into stages, you should assign costs to each stage, not to the process as a whole.
- 3. The next step is to define each stage in the Production process. These stages are known as "Operations". In the example, there will be seven Operations, as described at the beginning of this section.

You should define these Operations using the Standard Operations setting. This is the Standard Operation representing the first stage in the process—

😂 Standard Operation	n: Inspect						
				New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
Code Machine Group	MAKE_SHELF_FR>	Comr Display G		aking Shelf Frames			0
		Materials	Time	Instructions			
Material           1         WELD_SHELVES           2         3           3         4           5         5           6         7           8         9           10         111           12         13           13         14           15         16           17         18           19         9		Qty	Unit Unit Unit Unit	Description Welding Shelves			

Each Standard Operation contains a list of the Materials. These Materials connect the Standard Operation to some of the Items in the Recipe, indicating which of those Items are needed by the Operation. In the example illustrated above, there is one Material, "WELD\_SHELVES". This means that when the Standard Operation is completed, all Input Items marked "WELD\_SHELVES" in the Recipe will be removed from stock. In our Recipe there are no Output Items marked "WELD\_SHELVES" but if there were and if they were Stocked Items, they would be added to stock.

The number of Standard Operations and the Materials that they contain will depend on the particular Production process. For example, in this case we have dedicated an Operation to welding steel box section to produce shelf frames, and we will have a separate Operation representing the drilling of holes in the shelf frames for the rubber seats (stage iii). If the same Person will weld and then drill, we could have a single Operation for these two tasks. If so, however, it would not be possible to account separately for the wear and tear to the various Machines used (e.g. the welder and the drill). This is described in a separate example below on page 69.

In the example, we will enter seven Standard Operations representing the seven stages, as follows—

Std Operation	Materials
MAKE_SHELF_FRAMES	WELD_SHELVES
MAKE_SUPPORTS	PRESS WELD_SUPPORTS
DRILL	DRILL
PAINTING_RACK	PAINT
SEATS	SEATS
FEET	FEET
FINAL_ASSEMBLY	COMPONENT ASSEMBLY

4. Having entered the seven Standard Operations, the next stage is to specify the sequence in which they should be carried out. This sequence is known as a "Routing", and is defined using the Routings setting—

]]		New	Ouplicate Cancel	Sav	/e
	Code	RACK Comment Assembly of Hifi Rack			6
		Description	Sequence	Sub	
1		Making Shelf Frames	1	^	A
2	MAKE_SUPPOR>		2		В
3		Drill Holes in Frames	3		
4	_	Painting Hifi Rack Components	4		
5		Screw Rubber Seats into Shelf Mounts	5		
6		Screw Spiked Feet into Supports	6		
7	FINAL_ASSEME	Final assembly	7		
8					
9					
10					
11					
12 13					
13 14					
14 15					
16					
10					
18					
19					
20					
21					
22					

List the Operations in the grid, using the Sequence field to set the order in which they should be completed.

60

5. The final configuration step is to return to the Recipe and enter the Routing in the Default Routing field—

	Operation	ns				New	Duplicate	Can	cel 9	iave
	Code	80601		Comment	HiFi Rack					(
	Normal Prod Qty		1	Time to Setup			Langua	ge		
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce				Clos	sed	
Fix	ed Assembly Days			Hours to Produce	3.00	D Mini	utes	Seco	nds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Red		Number Produced	:	1				
	Standard Batch		2	Extra Prod Qty						
	Default Routing	RACK								
	Instructions									
	Item	Specification			In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	
1	80110	Glass Shelf			5.00			5.00		^ /
2	80111	40 cm Steel			10.00			0.50		
3	80112	50 cm Steel I		on	10.00			0.50		
	80113 80114	90 cm Steel : 36 cm Steel :			2.00			0.75		
4	00114	Hex Screw	SHEEL		2.00			0.50		
5	80115							1.00		
5 6					4,00			1.00		
5	80116	Spiked Feet Rubber Shel	f Seat		4.00			0.10		
5 6 7	80116 80117	Spiked Feet	f Seat					0.10 0.20	0.00	

If a Recipe has a Routing, you cannot specify a Work Cost in any of the Input rows. Please refer to the next section, 'Additional Production Costs with Production Operations' below on page 69, for details about recording the costs associated with Production Operations.

So, in brief-

- The Default Routing determines the order in which the Operations will be carried out; and
- the Materials determine the Input (and Output) Items that will be used (and produced) by a particular Operation.

6. As the configuration work is complete, you can now use the Recipe in a Production. When you do so, the Routing will be brought in as well—

		Operal	tions		Image: A start of the start			N	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	]s	ave
	No.	5033		Name	HiFi Rack					Status			0
R	ecipe	80601		Start Date		E	nd Date	6/11/2009		<ul> <li>Created</li> <li>Cancelled</li> </ul>			
	Qty		1	Start Time			nd Time			O Started			
Loc		PROD	-				Machine			O Finished			
	ector						Person			🔘 Finished b	ut Discarded	1	
Prod.						Discarded							
Actua							Routing	DACK					
MULUC	n Quy						-						
						Items	Comr	nent					
	Item		Desc	r.		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	8011	10	Glas	s Shelf			5.	00		5.00			^ A
2	8011			m Steel Box Sec			10.			0.50			В
3	8011			m Steel Box Sec	tion.		10.			0.50			C
4	8011			m Steel Sheet				00		0.75			D
5	8011			m Steel Sheet				00		0.50			C D E
6	8011			Screw			20.			0.10			E
7	8011			ed Feet				00		1.00			
8	8011			ber Shelf Seat			20.			0.10			
9 10	8011			Cap			4.	00		0.20	0.00		
10	8060	J1	HIFI	Rack				1.00		46.30			
12	1												

7. If necessary, move stock of the Input Items into the Production Location using a Stock Movement.

8. The next stage is to implement the Routing and its Standard Operations. Save the Production and choose 'Create Production Operations' from the Operations menu. This function uses the Standard Operations listed in the Routing as templates to create Production Operations specific to the Production. One Production Operation will be created from each Standard Operation, to be saved in the Production Operation register. While the Production is still open, you can produce a list of the connected Production Operations by choosing 'Production Status' from the Operations menu—

				Search			
HansaWorld, Print date: 6/11/2009 11:46 t Ltd Production 5033 Overview							
Sequence	Status	In	Out	Cost 🔷			
			Created				
1	Created	1.00		10.00			
2	Created	1.00		2.50			
3	Created	1.00					
4	Created	1.00					
5	Created	1.00		2.00			
6	Created	1.00		4.00			
7	Created	1.00	;	27.80			
	1 2 3 4 5 6	1 Created 2 Created 3 Created 4 Created 5 Created 6 Created	Sequence     Status     In       1     Created     1.00       2     Created     1.00       3     Created     1.00       4     Created     1.00       5     Created     1.00       6     Created     1.00	HansaWorld, Print date: 6/11/2009 1       Production 1       Over       Sequence     Status       In     Out       Created       1     Created       2     Created       3     Created       4     Created       5     Created       1.00       6     Created			

You can open an	individual	Production O	peration	from this report	_

	Operatio	ons				New		Duplicate	Cancel	] [ 9	ave	
	No.	51	Prod.	Order		Proc	d. No.	5033				6
	Qty	1	Actu	ial Qty				Status				
	Start Date	6/11/2009	End	d Date	6/11/2009			• Created				
	Comment	Making Shelf Fra	mes					<ul> <li>Cancelled</li> <li>Started</li> </ul>				
	Sequence							O Finished				
									nd Discarded	ł		
								•				
			Items Time	G	omment	Instructi	ons					
_	Item	Descr.			Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	Unit Cost	Coeff	_	1
1			Section		Denariyo,		Out	Noi.		Coon	~	A
1	80111 80112	40 cm Steel Box 50 cm Steel Box			Denarivo.	10.00	out	Kei.	0.50	Coon	^	A
	80111	40 cm Steel Box			Jenarno,	10.00		Kei.	0.50			E
2	80111	40 cm Steel Box			Jenano.	10.00	ouc	r.ci,	0.50			E
2 3	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00		NGI,	0.50			A B C D
2 3 4	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E
2 3 4 5 6 7	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	80111	40 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.50			E

9. In effect, each Production Operation is a Production in miniature. As with a Production, when work starts, mark the Production Operation as Started and save it. When work finishes, enter the quantity produced in the Actual Qty field. In the example illustrated, this will be one, even though five shelf frames will have been produced. The Actual Qty does not refer to the number of units produced, but to the number of implementations of the Operation. Then, mark the Production Operation as Finished and save it. The relevant quantities of the Input Items will be removed from stock. If the Production Operation contains an Output Item that is a Stocked Item, the relevant quantity will be added to stock.

You have a choice about how to update the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger, as follows—

• You can update the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger each time you Finish a Production Operation. In this case, the value of the

Production so far will be posted to a Work In Progress Account. This will be cleared when you Finish the last Production Operation.

• You can wait until Finishing the Production before updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger, posting every removal and addition to stock at once. All Production Operations must be Finished before you can Finish the Production.

Make this choice and specify the Work In Progress Account using the Account Usage Production setting—

S Account Usage Production	on: Inspect		×
		Save	
Components Usage Production Control Work In Progress	747		
Generate Transaction <ul> <li>Per Production Ope</li> <li>Per Production</li> </ul>	eration		

	Op	erations	Image: A start of the start	New	Duplicati	e Cancel	S	ave
	No. 51	Trans D	ate 6/11/2009 Reference					6
		aking Shelf Frames						6
	Account	Objects	Description	Base 1 D	)ebit	Base 1 Credit	V-Cd	_
1	740	,	Stock Valuation			10.00		Δ Α
2	745		Work in Progress		10.00			<u> </u>
3								BCDEFG
4								<u> </u>
5								D
6								E
7								F
8								G
9								
10								
11								
12								
13								
14 15								
15								
10								
17								
19								
20								~

The Production Operation illustrated above will update the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger by creating the following Transaction—

The value of the Input Items is removed from the Stock Account and added to the Work In Progress Account.

66

The final Production Operation will update the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger by creating the following Transaction—

90		Opera	ations				Ne	w Duplicat	e Cancel	Sa	ave
	No.	57		Trans. Date	6/11/2009	Reference					6
	Text		assembly								
	Account	: 0	Objects		Descriptio	n		Base 1 Debit	Base 1 Credit	V-Cd	
1	740				Stock Va				27.80		^ A
2	740				Stock Val			46.30			В
3	745				Work in F	Progress			18.50		
4											C D E F G
5											0
6											E
7											F
8											G
9											
10 11											
12											
12											
13											
15											
16											
17											
18											
19											
20											~

The value of the Input Items used in the final Production Operation is removed from the Stock Account, and the value of the Output Item is added. The value of the previous Production Operations is removed from the Work In Progress Account. 10. On returning to the Production, selecting 'Production Status' from the Operations menu once again now shows that all Production Operations have been Finished—

Production Status Operations					Search
Production Status Radio Import/Export Ltd			HHansa₩orld, Prir	Produc	009 11:59 tion 5033 Overview
Comment	Sequence	Status	In	Out	Cost
Production 5033				Create	d
1aking Shelf Frames	1	Finished	1.00	1.00	10.00
Aake Supports	2	Finished	1.00	1.00	2.50
rill Holes in Frames	3	Finished	1.00	1.00	
ainting Hifi Rack Components	4	Finished	1.00	1.00	
crew Rubber Seats into Shelf Mounts	5	Finished	1.00	1.00	2.00
crew Spiked Feet into Supports	6	Finished	1.00	1.00	4.00
inal assembly	7	Finished	1.00	1.00	27.80
<u>1.</u>					

Now you can mark the Production as Finished, and create a Stock Movement to move the Output Item from the Production Location to a storage Location (e.g. warehouse or shop).

68

## **Additional Production Costs with Production Operations**

When you use Production Operations to build a Production, you can record four separate types of running costs, as follows—

Labour	the cost of labour
Setup	the cost of setting up the Machine e.g. calibration or replenishing fluids or consumables
Move	the cost of moving parts either from stock to the first Production Operation or from one Production Operation to the next
Queue	the cost incurred in waiting for parts to be ready e.g. waiting for paint to dry or heated parts to cool. Queue time is also known as "non-instant availability".
You can calculate t	hese four running costs using one of two methods—
Actual Time	The costs will be based on the time actually taken to complete a Production Operation
Fixed Time	Costs will be fixed in advance of the Production Operation taking place.
The Running Cost	per Hour in the Asset record is not used to calculate a

The Running Cost per Hour in the Asset record is not used to calculate a Machine's running costs if you are using Production Operations. Therefore you should include this cost in one of the four cost types described above.

Follow these steps-

1. In the Production Settings setting, use the Time options on the 'Cost Items' card to choose whether you will record Actual or Fixed Time—

		Save
		Jave
Options	Cost Items	
MACHINE		
LABOUR	Run Time Act. Type	MACHI
SETUP	Setup Act. Type	SETUP
MOVE	Move Act. Type	
QUEUE	Queue Act. Type	
st of produced Iten	15	
st	Work Cost per Hour	0.75
	LABOUR SETUP MOVE QUEUE st of produced Iten	LABOUR Run Time Act. Type SETUP Setup Act. Type MOVE Move Act. Type QUEUE Queue Act. Type st of produced Items Work Cost per Hour

If you choose the Fixed Time option as in the illustration, you should also specify Labour, Setup, Move and Queue Cost Items. When you create each Production Operation, it will contain an extra row for each cost type, using the Items specified here. If you choose the Actual Time option, you only need specify a Labour Cost Item. In both cases, enter a Work Cost per Hour.

Steps 2-5 below describe the Fixed Time option, while steps 6-9 describe the Actual Time option.

2. If you are using the Fixed Time option, you should now specify the times required to complete each Operation, on the 'Time' card of each Standard Operation record—

Standard Operation: Inspect		
	New	Duplicate Cancel Save
Code MAKE_SHELF_FF Machine Group	Comment Making Shelf Frames	Ø
	Materials Time Instructions	
Setup Time 00:15:00 Move Time	Queue Time 00:15:00 Run Time 01:00:00	

These are the times required for the whole Operation, not per unit.

3. When you create the Routing record, the times from each Standard Operation will be copied to flip B. You can change the times for a particular Routing if necessary. For example, a Standard Operation might contain the times required to complete four Items, as the usual quantity produced. A particular Recipe may require five to be produced, so you will need to adjust the times in the Routing accordingly.

				New Du	iplicate (	Cancel	Save
	Code	RACK Comment	Assembly of Hifi Rad	:k			C
	Operations	Description	Run Time	Setup T.	Queue T.	Move T.	
1	MAKE_SHELF_	Making Shelf Frames	01:00:00	00:15:00	00:15:00		🔨 A
2	MAKE_SUPPOR>	Make Supports	01:00:00	00:30:00	00:15:00		▲ A B
3	DRILL	Drill Holes in Frames	00:05:00	00:01:00			
4	PAINTING_RA(>	Painting Hifi Rack Components	01:00:00	00:15:00	06:00:00		
5	SEATS	Screw Rubber Seats into Shelf Mounts	00:05:00				
6	FEET	Screw Spiked Feet into Supports	00:05:00				
7	FINAL_ASSEME	Final assembly	01:30:00				
8							
9							
10							
11							
12							
13							
14							
15							
16							
17							
18							
19							
20							
21							
22							¥
4. When you create the Production Operations for a Production, the Cost Items specified in the Production Settings setting will be added to the 'Items' card of each Production Operation, with quantities calculated from the Routing—

►	Operati	ions			Nev	•	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ve
	No.	58	Prod. Order		Pro	d. No.	5034			6
	Qty	1	Actual Qty				Status			
		6/11/2009		6/11/2009			💿 Created			
		Making Shelf Fra		011112000			Cancelled			
		-	lics				O Started			
	Sequence	1					Finished	nd Discarded	4	
							<u> </u>		-	
_	Item	Descr.	Items Time C	omment Serial No.	Instructi	Out	Rel.	Unit Cost	Coeff	_
1	80111	40 cm Steel Box	Section	Denarivo.	10.00	Out	KGI.	0.00		~ A
2	80112	50 cm Steel Box			10.00			0.00		В
-			Jocdon							0
3	LABOUR	Labour			1.00			0.75		- U
3 4	LABOUR SETUP	Labour Setup cost			1.00			0.75		-
		Labour Setup cost Move cost								C
4	SETUP	Setup cost			0.25					D
4 5	SETUP MOVE	Setup cost Move cost			0.25			0.75		D
4 5 6	SETUP MOVE	Setup cost Move cost			0.25			0.75		D
4 5 6 7	SETUP MOVE	Setup cost Move cost			0.25			0.75		D
4 5 7 8 9	SETUP MOVE	Setup cost Move cost			0.25			0.75		D
4 5 7 8 9 10 11	SETUP MOVE	Setup cost Move cost			0.25			0.75		D
4 5 7 8 9 10 11 12	SETUP MOVE	Setup cost Move cost			0.25			0.75		D
4 5 7 8 9 10 11	SETUP MOVE	Setup cost Move cost			0.25			0.75		D

5. As normal, when work starts, mark the Production Operation as Started and save it. When work finishes, enter the quantity produced in the Actual Qty field, mark the Production Operation as Finished and save it. The relevant quantities of the Input Items will be removed from stock. If you are updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger from each Production Operation, the total value of the four cost items will be credited to the Work Cost Account and debited to the Work in Progress Account (together with the value of the Input Items removed from stock). The value will be calculated using the Work Cost per Hour specified in the Production Settings setting. In this case, the various calculations are-

Set Up Cost (15 minutes @ 0.75 per hour from Production Settings) 0.1875

Labour (1 hour @ 0.75 per hour from Production Settings)0.75Queue Cost (15 minutes @ 0.75 per hour from Production Settings)0.1875

Total (rounded to two decimal places)	1.13
---------------------------------------	------

	No.									
			Trans. Date	6/11/2009	Reference					(
	Text ccount	Making Shelf Fr Objects	ames	Descriptio			Base 1 Debit	Base 1 Credit	V-Cd	_
	40	Objects		Stock Val			Dase I Debic	10.00		
	31				on Work Cost			1.13		=-
	45			Work in F			11.13	1.15		E ( E F
4					9					0
5										[
6										E
7										F
8										
9										
10										
11										
12										
13										
14										
15										
16 17										
17										
18										
20										~
Diffe	erence	Base 1	0.00			Tota	11	.13	11.13	

6. If you are using the Actual Time option in the Production Settings setting, you need to use Activities to record the time you spend on each Production Operation. You should create these Activities from each Production Operation while its Status is Created or Started, using the 'Create Activity' function on the Operations menu. Before selecting this function, enter Start and End Dates and Times in the Production Operation, as these will be transferred to the Activity—

cti	ivity: Inspe	ct						
	Operations				New	Duplicate	e Cancel	Save
	Text	Making Shelf Fra	ames					cP
	Туре	RUN	Persons	IP				
	Language		Cc	AM				
	Priority		Supervisor		Result		📃 Private	🗹 Done
	Time	Customer	Text Su	ıb Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined	
	Start Time	11:00:00	Start Date	6/11/2009	Task Type		Calendar	
	End Time	11:15:00	End Date	6/11/2009	<ul> <li>Calend</li> <li>To Do</li> </ul>	lar	<ul> <li>Time</li> <li>Profile</li> </ul>	
	Cost (Time)	00:15:00	Time Class		O Timed O Work H			show
	Project		Name					
	Customer		Telephone					
	Invoice Item		Contact					
	Code	Text						
1								^
2								
3 4								
5								
6								
7								~
							End Activi	i

The Activity Type will be taken from the Activity Types, Subsystems setting in the CRM module. If you entered your Signature on the 'Comment' card of the Production Operation, it will be copied to the Persons field in the Activity. Otherwise, enter it to the Activity yourself. Mark the Activity as Done and save.

If you create these Activities in advance, you can also use them for scheduling purposes, as described in the 'Scheduling Production Operations' section below on page 78.

- 7. Repeat step 6 as necessary.
- 8. Choose 'Add Labour' from the Operations menu of the Production Operation. This will add a row to the Production Operation with the Labour Cost Item and Work Cost per Hour specified in the Production Settings setting. The quantity will be the total time for all Done Activities created from the Production Operation—

1.5	Operati	ons				Nev	V	Duplicate	Cancel	S	ave
	No.	65		Prod. Order		Pro	d. No.	5035			4
	Qty	1		Actual Qty				Status			
		6/11/2009			6/11/2009			💿 Created			
		Making Shelf Fr	amer	Enabaco	0/11/2007			Cancelled			
		_	ames					O Started			
	Sequence	-						<ul> <li>Finished</li> <li>Finished a</li> </ul>	nd Discardeo		
									ina Discaraec		
			Items	Time C	Iomment	Instructi	ons				
_	Item	Descr.			Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	Unit Cost	Coeff	_
1	80111	40 cm Steel Box	Section		Donariao.	10.00	Vac	TYON .	0.00	Coon	~
2	80112	50 cm Steel Box				10.00			0.00		
3	LABOUR	Labour				0.25			0.75		
4											E (
5											-
6											
- 7											
8											
8 9											
8 9 10											
8 9 10 11											
8 9 10 11 12											
8 9 10 11											

9. When work finishes, enter the quantity produced in the Actual Qty field, mark the Production Operation as Finished and save it. The relevant quantities of the Input Items will be removed from stock. If you are updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger from each Production Operation, the value of the Labour Cost Item will be credited to the Work Cost Account and debited to the Work in Progress Account (together with the value of the Input Items removed from stock).

11 11 12 12 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14	Tredit V-C 10.00 0.19	Cd
Account         Objects         Description         Base 1 Debit         Base 1 C           1         740         Stock Valuation         1	10.00	^
1740Stock ValuationInterfact2231Production Work CostInterfact3745Work in Progress10.194140Stock Gain0.005InterfactStock Gain0.006InterfactInterfactInterfact6InterfactInterfactInterfact7InterfactInterfactInterfact8InterfactInterfactInterfact9InterfactInterfactInterfact10InterfactInterfactInterfact11InterfactInterfactInterfact12InterfactInterfactInterfact13InterfactInterfactInterfact14InterfactInterfactInterfact	10.00	^
1740Stock ValuationInterfact2231Production Work CostInterfact3745Work in Progress10.194140Stock Gain0.005InterfactStock Gain0.006InterfactInterfactInterfact6InterfactInterfactInterfact7InterfactInterfactInterfact8InterfactInterfactInterfact9InterfactInterfactInterfact10InterfactInterfactInterfact11InterfactInterfactInterfact12InterfactInterfactInterfact13InterfactInterfactInterfact14InterfactInterfactInterfact		
3     745     Work in Progress     10.19       4     140     Stock Gain     0.00       5       0.00       6          7          8          9          10          11          12          13          14	0.19	
4         140         Stock Gain         0.00           5         0         0         0.00           6         0         0         0.00           7         0         0         0.00           8         0         0         0.00           9         0         0         0.00           10         0         0.00         0.00           11         0         0.00         0.00           12         0         0.00         0.00           13         0.00         0.00         0.00           14         0.00         0.00         0.00		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		_
10		
11     11       12     11       13     11       14     11		
12		
13		
14		
13		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		~
Difference Base 1 0.00 Total 10.19	10.19	9

10. If you are using the Fixed Time option as described in steps 2-5, you can also use the Actual Time method ('Create Activity' and 'Add Labour') to add an extra cost to a particular Production Operation.

## **Scheduling Production Operations**

If you have the Resource Planning module, you can use it to help schedule the work of members of staff on Production Operations. Follow these steps—

1. In the Resource Planner setting in the Resource Planning module, choose the Activities option.

	Save
Activities	
Activities per Assets	
Activities per Project	
Production Orders	
Production Operations	
Rental Reservations	
Reservations	
Resort	

2. You should now divide your personnel into groups, using the Display Groups setting in the System module.

😂 Dis	play Gro	ups: Inspect	
			Save
	Code	Persons	]
1	SALES	FF,IP,NB	<u>~</u>
2	PDRIL	JM	
3	PPAIN	FF, IP, NB	
4	PWELD	AM,ND	
5			
6			
7			
8			
9			×

List the Persons in each Group, separated by commas. If you are also using the Resource Planner to schedule work on Production Orders as described above on page 23, it is recommended that you use different Codes in the Machine Groups and Display Groups settings. 3. The next step is to specify the Display Groups whose members are capable of undertaking each task or Operation. You should do this in each Standard Operation record—

🕑 Stan	dard Operation	: Inspect				
					New Duplicate Cancel S	ave
		MAKE_SHELF_FR			Making Shelf Frames	0
	Machine Group		Display G	roup F	WELD	
			Materials	Time	e Instructions	
	Material		Qty	Unit	Description	
1	WELD_SHELVES				Welding Shelves	^
2						
3						
4						
5						
6						
7						
9						
10						
11						
12						
13						
14						
15						
16						
17						
18						
19						~

4. In the Recipe, specify a colour for the Resource Planner.

	Operation	ns				New	Duplicate	Can	cel S	àave			
	Code	80601		Comment	HiFi Rack								
	Normal Prod Qty		1	Time to Setup			Language						
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce		Clos			sed				
Fix	ed Assembly Days	s Hours to Produce			3.00	) Minu	utes	Seco	nds				
	Res. mgr. Colour			Number Produced	1								
	Standard Batch		2	Extra Prod Qty									
	Default Routing		-	2.0.01100 (0)									
	Instructions												
	Item	Specification	n		In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost				
1		Specificatior Glass Shelf			In 5.00	Out	Rel.	I-cost 5.00	W-cost	<u>^</u>			
1	80110	•		חמ		Out	Rel.		W-cost	▲ 4			
	80110 80111	Glass Shelf	Box Sectio		5.00	Out	Rel.	5.00	W-cost	▲ 4 E			
2	80110 80111 80112	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel	Box Sectio   Box Sectio		5.00 10.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50	W-cost				
2 3	80110 80111 80112 80113	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel 50 cm Steel	l Box Sectio l Box Sectio l Sheet		5.00 10.00 10.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.50	W-cost				
2 3 4	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel 50 cm Steel 90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw	l Box Sectio l Box Sectio l Sheet l Sheet		5.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 20.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.50 0.75	W-cost				
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115 80116	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel 50 cm Steel 90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw Spiked Feet	l Box Sectio I Box Sectio I Sheet I Sheet t		5.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00	W-cost				
2 3 4 5 6	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115 80116 80117	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel 50 cm Steel 90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber She	l Box Sectio I Box Sectio I Sheet I Sheet t		5.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 20.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00 0.10					
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80111 80112 80113 80114 80115 80116 80116 80117 80118	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel 50 cm Steel 90 cm Steel 36 cm Steel Hex Screw Spiked Feet	l Box Sectio I Box Sectio I Sheet I Sheet t		5.00 10.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00	W-cost				

5. When you create the Production Operations for a Production, the Display Groups will be copied from each Standard Operation to the 'Comment' card of the corresponding Production Operation—

😂 Production Op	era	tion: I	nspec	t								
	eratio	ons	]						New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
Start D	ent	1 6/11/2 Making		Frames	;	Prod. ( Actua End	al Qty	6/11/2009	Prod. No	Status Created Cancelled Started Finished	d Discarded	0
Location Language Machine Group Display Group Comment	PW	ELD	elle Fran		Items accarded Re Actual Ma Actual Pe	chine	c	Comment	Instructions			

Choose the Person for each Operation-

roduction Ope		in this po									
Dper Oper	ations							New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
N	o. 72				Prod.	. Order		Prod. No.			e P
Q	ty 1				Acti	ual Qty			Status Oreated		
Start Da					En	id Date	9/11/2009				
Comme	nt Mal	king Shelf	Frame	s					O Started		
Sequen	te 1								O Finished		
									<ul> <li>Finished and</li> </ul>	d Discarded	
				Items	Time		Iomment	Instructions			
Location			D	iscarded Re	ason						
Language	i Kob		U	iscaraca ito	ason						
Machine Group				Actual Ma	thine						
Display Group	PWELD			Actual Pe		м					
Comment		Shelf Fra	mes								

6. For the Operation to appear in the Resource Planner assigned to the Person, you need to create an Activity. This Activity will of course also appear in the Person's Calendar, so the Person can become aware of the job through the Calendar or the Resource Planner. To create the Activity, choose 'Create Activity' from the Operations menu—

Operati	ons 📄 🍅			New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
Т	ext Making Shelf	Frames					e
T۶	pe RUN	Persons	AM				
Langua	ge	Cc	FF				
Prio	ity	Supervisor		Result		Private	📃 Done
	ime Custom	er Text Su	ıb Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined	
Start Ti	me 09:00:00	Start Date	9/11/2009	Task Type		Calenda	
End Ti	me 10:30:00	End Date	9/11/2009	<ul> <li>Calenda</li> <li>To Do</li> </ul>	ər	<ul> <li>Time</li> <li>Prof</li> </ul>	
Cost (Tir	ne) 01:30:00	Time Class		O Timed T O Work H		<u> </u>	it Show
Proj	ect	Name					
Custor	ner	Telephone					
Invoice It	em	Contact					
Code	Text						
1							
2							
4							
5							
6							

The Start and End Dates and Times and Person will be copied from the Operation, and your Signature as the creator of the Activity will appear in the Cc field. The Production and Production Operation Numbers will be copied to the 'Service' card, while the Activity and the Production Operation will be connected to each other through the Attachments facility. The Activity Type will be taken from the Activity Types, Subsystems setting.

7. Open the Resource Planner by clicking the [Resources] button in the Master Control panel.

The 'Resource Type Month Overview' window opens, with Display Groups listed in a column down the left-hand side of the window.



If you are using more than one of the options in the Resource Planner setting (step 1 above), the column down the left-hand side of the window will include records of different kinds. For example, if you are using the Production Orders and Activities options in the Resource Planner setting, the column down the left-hand side of the window will list Machine Groups and Display Groups. Therefore it is recommended that you use Machine and Display Group Codes that can easily be distinguished by all users, as mentioned in step 2 above.

84

8. To see the Activities assigned to the Persons in a Display Group, doubleclick the Display Group in the 'Resource Type Month Overview' window illustrated in step 7-



In this example, the red bar signifies an Activity, with the colour taken from the Activity Class to which the Activity Type belongs.

To get a better view of a day, double-click on a date above the grid to open the 'Resource Day Overview'. This shows the Activities scheduled for that day-



Whether you are looking at a month or a day, you can drag an Activity up or down to another Person. To change the date or time of an Activity, open it by double-clicking its coloured bar in the Resource Planner.

### Sub-Assemblies with Production Operations (Phantom Items)

It is likely that a complex Production process with several assembly stages will use sub-assemblies. You can configure Production Operations to take sub-assemblies into account.

The first stage in building the example hifi rack is to construct the metal shelf frames by welding square-section metal tubes together. These metal shelf frames could be considered to be sub-assemblies, since the same shelf frame could be used in different Production processes (for example, hifi racks with three, four and, as in the example, five shelves).

Follow these steps -

1. Create a new Item for the metal shelf frame. This should be a Plain Item.

😒 Item: Inspect			
Operations		l	New Duplicate Cancel Save
Description	80108 Metal Shelf Frame Closed Warehouse	Group V Not For Sales Costs Recipe A/C Varieties	Texts Cost Model User Values
Pricing Stock Unit Base Price Base Price Change Price Factor Item Formulae Markup % Bonus % Objects Classification	warei iouse 4/9/2009	Costs Recipe A/C Varieties  Item Type Plain Stocked Item Structured Item Service Treat Item as Material on Proje	

2. Create a Recipe for the Item. In this example, the metal shelf frame will be made up using the 40 and 50 cm lengths of steel box section that were in the original top-level Recipe. Although the top-level Recipe requires five frames, the result of the sub-assembly Recipe should be one unit (in the Normal Prod Qty field). This gives you the flexibility of being able to use the sub-assembly in other Production processes with the appropriate quantities—

	Operation	ns				New	Duplic	ate Can	cel 🤅	Gave	з
	Code	80108		Comment	Metal Shelf Fra	me					6
	Normal Prod Qty		1	Time to Setup			Lang	juage			
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce				Clos	sed		
Fix	ed Assembly Days			Hours to Produce		Minu	utes	Seco	nds		
	Res. mgr. Colour	Black		Number Produced		1					
	Standard Batch		1	Extra Prod Qty							
	Default Routing										
	Instructions										
		Specification			In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost		1
1		Metal Shelf				1.00				^	A
2		40 cm Stee			2.00			1.00	0.00	Ξ	B
3 4	80112	50 cm Stee	l Box Secti	n	2.00			1.00	0.00		
5											
6											
7											
8											
9											
10										$\sim$	

On flip B, enter the same Material that was used for these components in the top-level Recipe—

	Operation	ns			New Duplic	ate Cancel	Save
	Code	80108	Comment	Metal Shelf Frame	е		
	Normal Prod Qty	1	Time to Setup		Lang	juage	
	Min Prod Qty		Days to Produce			Closed	
Fix	ed Assembly Days		Hours to Produce		Minutes	Seconds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Black	Number Produced	1			
	Standard Batch	1	Extra Prod Qty				
	Instructions						
_	Item	Specification	Description	1	Material	Recipe	
1	80108	Metal Shelf Frame			WELD_SHELVES	Recipe Recipe	<u>^</u>
2	80108 80111	Metal Shelf Frame 40 cm Steel Box Se	ection		WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES	Recipe Recipe	
2 3	80108	Metal Shelf Frame	ection		WELD_SHELVES	Recipe	
2 3 4	80108 80111	Metal Shelf Frame 40 cm Steel Box Se	ection		WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES	Recipe Recipe	
2 3 4 5	80108 80111	Metal Shelf Frame 40 cm Steel Box Se	ection		WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES	Recipe Recipe	
2 3 4	80108 80111	Metal Shelf Frame 40 cm Steel Box Se	ection		WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES	Recipe Recipe	
2 3 4 5 6	80108 80111	Metal Shelf Frame 40 cm Steel Box Se	ection		WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES	Recipe Recipe	
2 3 4 5 6 7	80108 80111	Metal Shelf Frame 40 cm Steel Box Se	ection		WELD_SHELVES WELD_SHELVES	Recipe Recipe	

If one of the components is itself a Plain Item with a Recipe, do not specify a Material here but in the Recipe that produces that Item.

3. Return to the Item from step 1 and enter the Recipe in the Recipe field. This Item is now a "Phantom" Item. A Phantom Item is a Plain Item with a Recipe. It is an Item that only exists momentarily during the Production process. Because of this, it is not an Item that can be sold, and therefore you may want to mark it as Not For Sales as shown in the Illustration in step 1. This will mean the Item will not be included in the Items 'Paste Special' list or in the Price List report. 4. Open the top-level Recipe and replace the components representing the two lengths of steel box section with the new Phantom Item, with the appropriate In Qty-

	Operation	ns			New	Duplical	e Can	cel S	iave
	Code	80601	Comment	HiFi Rack					6
	Normal Prod Qty	1	Time to Setup			Langu	age		
	Min Prod Qty		Days to Produce				Clos	sed	
Fix	ed Assembly Days		Hours to Produce	3.00	) Minu	utes	Seco	nds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Red	Number Produced	:	1				
	Standard Batch	2	Extra Prod Qty						
	Default Routing								
	Instructions								
_	Item	Specification		In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	
1		Specification Glass Shelf		In 5.00	Out	Rel.	I-cost 5.00	W-cost	•
1 2	80110	•			Out	Rel.		W-cost	▲ 4 ■ E
	80110 80108 80113	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame 90 cm Steel Sheet		5.00	Out	Rel.		W-cost	
2 3 4	80110 80108 80113 80114	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet		5.00 5.00 2.00 2.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.75 0.50	W-cost	
2 3	80110 80108 80113 80114 80115	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw		5.00 5.00 2.00 2.00 2.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.75 0.50 0.10	W-cost	
2 3 4 5 6	80110 80108 80113 80114 80115 80116	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet		5.00 5.00 2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00	W-cost	
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80108 80113 80114 80115 80116 80117	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat		5.00 5.00 2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00 20.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00 0.10		
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	80110 80108 80113 80114 80115 80116 80117 80118	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat End Cap		5.00 5.00 2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00		Rel.	5.00 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00 0.10 0.20	W-cost	
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80108 80113 80114 80115 80116 80117 80118	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame 90 cm Steel Sheet 36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat		5.00 5.00 2.00 2.00 20.00 4.00 20.00	Out	Rel.	5.00 0.75 0.50 0.10 1.00 0.10		

	Operation	าร				New Duplica	te Cancel	Save	9
	Code	80601		Comment	HiFi Rack				0
	Normal Prod Qty		1	Time to Setup		Langu	Jage		
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce			Closed		
Fix	ed Assembly Days			Hours to Produce	3.00	Minutes	Seconds		
	Res. mgr. Colour			Number Produced	1				
	Standard Batch		2	Extra Prod Qty					
	Default Routing		-	Excidition Quy					
	Instructions								
	Item	Specification		Description		Material	Recipe		1
1	80110	Glass Shelf				COMPONENT	-	~	A
2	80108	Metal Shelf Fr	rame				Recipe		в
3		90 cm Steel S				WELD_SUPPORTS	-		
4		36 cm Steel S	heet			WELD_SUPPORTS	-		
5		Hex Screw				COMPONENT	-		
6		Spiked Feet				FEET	-		
7		Rubber Shelf	Seat			SEATS	-		
		End Cap				COMPONENT	-		
8	80601	HiFi Rack				ASSEMBLY	Recipe		
8 9 10								$\sim$	

On flip B, make sure that the Phantom Item does not have a Material-

You only need specify Materials for Phantom Items in the sub-assembly Recipe that produces the Phantom Item (as shown in step 2), not in the top-level Recipe. The Material connects the component with the Operation that will remove it from stock. A component that is a Phantom Item is also a Plain Item. So, it is not held in stock and so cannot be removed from stock. If you specify a Material for a Phantom Item in the top-level Recipe, this will be interpreted as an attempt to remove that Item from stock. As a result, you will not be able to complete the Production process and instead you will be told, "Quantity has not been produced yet".

5. In this example, we are still using the "WELD\_SHELVES" Material: the only change was to move this Material from the top-level Recipe to the Recipe that produces the Phantom Item. There is therefore no need to change the Routing or any of the Standard Operations. If we had used a different Material in the Phantom Recipe, then we would now have to

update the Routing and/or the Standard Operations so that the shelf frames would be built at the correct stage in the process.

Remember that each Standard Operation contains a list of the Materials that will be used during a particular stage in the Production process. The Material connects the Standard Operation to some of the Input Items in the Recipe. For example, if the Material is "WELD\_SHELVES", all Input Items marked "WELD\_SHELVES" will be removed from stock when the Standard Operation is completed. The "WELD\_SHELVES" Items can be in the top-level Recipe or, as in this case, in a lower-level Phantom Recipe.

6. The configuration work is complete, so you can now use the revised Recipe in a Production. After creating the Production and specifying the Recipe, and after moving stock of the Input Items into the Production Location using Stock Movements, you can use the 'Create Production Operations' function to create Production Operations. In our example, the change to the Phantom Item will only affect the first Production Operation. Previously (as illustrated above on page 64), the effect of the first Production Operation was to remove the steel box section from stock. Now, the steel box section will again be removed from stock, but the shelf frames will be produced—

	Operati	ons			Nev	/	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ve
	No.	79	Prod. Order		Pro	d. No. 5	037			C
	Qty	1	Actual Qty				atus			
	Start Date	10/11/2009	End Date	10/11/2009			Created			
	Comment	Making Shelf Fra	mes			6	) Cancelled ) Started			
	Sequence	1				č	) Finished			
						č		and Discarded	ł	
	These	Deser	Items Time (	Comment	Instructi		D-I	Upt Cost	Coeff	_
	Item 80108	Descr. Metal Shelf Fram	-	Serial No.	In	Out 1.00	Rel.	Unit Cost 2.00		A A
1	80108	40 cm Steel Box 3			2.00	1.00		0.50		_
								0.50		В
2								0.50		
3	80112	50 cm Steel Box :			2.00			0.50		C
3 4								0.50		D
3								0.50		D
3 4 5								0.50		
3 4 5 6								0.50		D
3 4 5 6 7 8 9								0.50		
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10								0.50		
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11								0.50		
3 4 5 7 8 9 10 11 12								0.50		
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11								0.50		

As the shelf frames are Plain Items (and as they will exist for only a short while), they will not be added to stock (they will not be included in the Stock List report) when you Finish the Production Operation. As with other Production Operations, when you Finish the Production Operation, the value of the components will be added to the Work In Progress Account, not to the Stock Account.

7. In some cases, it might not be appropriate to use Phantom Items. It might be that the Production process is a long one, in which case you might want components that are produced early in the process to appear in your stock valuation for period they exist (i.e. you want stock levels to be maintained, and you want their value to be held in the Stock Account not the Work In Progress Account). Or it might be that you sell components (spare parts) as well as assembled Items.

If so, change the procedure described above in the following ways-

- i. In step 1, the Item should be a Stocked Item. You can still mark it as Not For Sales if you want to prevent it being sold as an Item in its own right.
- ii. Create the Recipe as described in step 2 and be sure to specify Materials on flip B.
- iii. Enter the sub-assembly Item into the top-level Recipe as described in step 4. However, as the sub-assembly is a Stocked Item, you should specify a Material on flip B. Usually this will not be the same Material that you used in the sub-assembly Recipe. The Materials in the sub-assembly Recipe will connect the sub-assembly components to a particular Standard Operation i.e. they indicate the stage in the Production process when the sub-assembly components will be removed from stock and when the sub-assembly will be built and added to stock. The Material in the top-level Recipe will connect the sub-assembly itself to a particular Standard Operation i.e. it indicates the stage in the Production process when the sub-assembly will be removed from stock and built in to the final assembly. In the case of the Phantom Item, as it was never added to stock, there is no need to use a Material in the top-level Recipe to specify when it should be removed from stock. Indeed and as previously mentioned, if you do, you will not be able to complete the Production process.
- iv. As already mentioned, the Production Operation that produces the sub-assembly will debit the Stock Account not the Work in Progress Account, because the sub-assembly is a Stocked Item. However, the Production Operation that removes the sub-assembly from stock will debit the Work In Progress Account as normal.
- 8. The Recipe that produces a sub-assembly might itself be a complex multi-stage process and therefore will need its own Routing. If this is the case, the result of the Recipe must be a Phantom Item. In this case, when you create Production Operations from a Production, the relevant Operations both for the final Item and for the sub-assembly will be created. If the sub-assembly is a Stocked Item, then only the Operations for the final Item will be created, not those for the sub-assembly.

If a sub-assembly has its own Routing (and, especially, if the subassembly contains a further sub-assembly with a Routing), then you will need to plan the Sequence of the Operations carefully. The second stage in building the example hifi rack is to construct the two metal supports by pressing metal sheet into shape and welding sections together. We will now convert this stage into a sub-assembly with its own Routing. Follow these steps—

- i. Create a new Item for the metal support, as described in step 1 above. This must be a Plain Item.
- ii. Create a Recipe for the Item, as described in step 2 above. On flip B, enter the Materials as appropriate—

	pe: Inspect								
	Operation	ns				New Duplica	te Cancel	Save	9
	Code	80109		Comment	Metal Support				0
	Normal Prod Qty		1	Time to Setup		Langu	Jage		
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce			Closed		
Fix	ed Assembly Days			Hours to Produce		Minutes	Seconds		
	Res. mgr. Colour	Black		Number Produced	1				
	Standard Batch		1	Extra Prod Qty					
	Default Routing								
	Instructions								
				D	P	Material	D 1		1
	Item	Specification	1	Description		Material	Recipe		
1		Specificatior Metal Suppi		Description		Material WELD_SUPPORTS	Recipe	^	A
1 2	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description				^	A B
2 3	80109 80113	Metal Supp	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS	Recipe	^	
2 3 4	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe		
2 3 4 5	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe		
2 3 4 5 6	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe		
2 3 4 5 6 7	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe		
2 3 4 5 6	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe		
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe		
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Description	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe		
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	80109 80113	Metal Supp 90 cm Steel	ort I Sheet	Cost of In-Items	1	WELD_SUPPORTS PRESS_LONG	Recipe - -		

iii. Return to the Item from step i and enter the Recipe in the Recipe field. Mark it as Not For Sales if necessary.

iv. As described in step 4 above, open the top-level Recipe and replace the components representing the two sizes of metal sheet with the new Phantom Item—

	Operation	ns			New Duplic	ate Cancel	Save
	Code	80601	Comment	HiFi Rack			(
	Normal Prod Qty	1	Time to Setup		Lang	juage	
	Min Prod Qty		Days to Produce			Closed	
Fi>	ed Assembly Days		Hours to Produce	3.00	Minutes	Seconds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Red	Number Produced	1			
	Standard Batch	2	Extra Prod Qty				
	Instructions						
	Item	Specification	Description				
	rcom	specification	Description		Material	Recipe	
1	80110	Glass Shelf	Description		Material COMPONENT	Recipe	<u> </u>
1 2			Description				
-	80110 80108 80109	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame Metal Support	Description		COMPONENT	-	
2 3 4	80110 80108 80109 80115	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame Metal Support Hex Screw	Description		COMPONENT	- Recipe	
2 3 4 5	80110 80108 80109 80115 80116	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame Metal Support Hex Screw Spiked Feet	Description		COMPONENT	- Recipe Recipe	
2 3 4 5 6	80110 80108 80109 80115 80116 80117	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame Metal Support Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat	Description		COMPONENT COMPONENT FEET SEATS	- Recipe Recipe - - -	
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80108 80109 80115 80116 80117 80118	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame Metal Support Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat End Cap	Description		COMPONENT COMPONENT FEET SEATS COMPONENT	- Recipe - - - -	
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	80110 80108 80109 80115 80116 80117	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame Metal Support Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat	Description		COMPONENT COMPONENT FEET SEATS	- Recipe Recipe - - -	
2 3 4 5 6 7	80110 80108 80109 80115 80116 80117 80118	Glass Shelf Metal Shelf Frame Metal Support Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat End Cap	Description		COMPONENT COMPONENT FEET SEATS COMPONENT	- Recipe - - - -	

Remove the Material from this Item on flip B.

v. Create the Standard Operations and the Routing for the subassembly, and then return to the Recipe from step ii and enter the Routing in the Default Routing field. This is the Routing—

P			New Duplicate	Cancel		Save
	Code	SUPPORTS Comment Make Supp	orts			6
	Operations	Description		Sequence	Sub	
1	PRESS_LONG	Pressing Long Metal Plate into Shape		2	1	<u>^</u> A
2	PRESS_SHORT	Pressing Short Metal Plate into Shape		2	2	В
З		Welding Supports		3		
4						
5						
6						
7						
8						
9						
10						
11						
12						
13						
14						
15 16						
16 17						
17						
10						
20						
20						
22						

In this illustration, we have used the same names for the Operations as for the Materials for clarity.

The first two Operations have the same Sequence number, but different Sub Sequence numbers. These two Operations represent pressing different sizes of metal sheet into shape, so they can take place simultaneously. The two pieces of shaped metal sheet will then be welded together, so this Operation has a later Sequence number. The Sequence numbers are 2 and 3, to fit in with the top-level Routing.

vi. Open the top-level Routing and adjust the Sequence numbers so that the sub-assembly will fit in correctly—

Þ			New Duplicate	Cancel	S	ave
	Code	RACK Comment Asse	mbly of Hifi Rack			C
		Description		Sequence	Sub	
1	MAKE_SHELF_	Making Shelf Frames		1		^ A
2	DRILL	Drill Holes in Frames		4		В
3	_	Painting Hifi Rack Components		5		_
4	SEATS	Screw Rubber Seats into Shelf Mounts		6		
5	FEET	Screw Spiked Feet into Supports		7		
6	FINAL_ASSEME	Final assembly		8		
7						
8						
9						
10						
11						
12						
13						
14						
15						
16						
17 18						
18 19						
19 20						
20 21						
21 22						

Note the gap in the Sequence for the sub-assembly.

Note too that there is no reference to the sub-assembly in the toplevel Routing. The function that creates Production Operations from a Production will first check the Production for Phantom Items with Routings (i.e. for Plain Items with Recipes that have Routings) and create the relevant Production Operations (for the sub-assemblies). It will then refer to the top-level Routing (the one quoted in the Production) and again create the relevant Production Operations (for the top-level Item). So the Production Operations will not be created in the correct sequence, but the Sequence numbers will ensure you can execute them in sequence—

Production Status Radio Import/Export Ltd			HansaWorld, Print	Produc	009 12:11 tion 5038 Overvie <del>w</del>
Comment	Sequence	Status	In	Out	Cost
Production 5038				Create	d
Making Shelf Frames	1	Created	1.00		4.00
Pressing Long Metal Plate into Shape	2.1	Created	1.00		2.00
Pressing Short Metal Plate into Shape	2.2	Created	1.00		2.00
Welding Supports	3	Created	1.00		
Drill Holes in Frames	4	Created	1.00		
Painting Hifi Rack Components	5	Created	1.00		
Screw Rubber Seats into Shelf Mounts	6	Created	1.00		2.00
Screw Spiked Feet into Supports	7	Created	1.00		4.00
Final assembly	8	Created	1.00		27.80

It would of course be possible to fine-tune the sequence so that the supports and the shelf frames are built at the same time. An added refinement might be to add a Routing to the Recipe that builds the shelf frames to move the drilling of holes (currently step 4 in the sequence) from the top level to the sub-assembly level.

# Settings

## Introduction

The Production module contains the following settings-



To edit a setting, ensure you are in the Production module using the [Module] button in the Master Control panel or using the Ctrl-0/#-0 keyboard shortcut. Then, click the [Settings] button in the Master Control panel. The list shown above appears. Then, double-click the relevant item in the list. You can also use the Ctrl-S/#-S keyboard shortcut to open the 'Settings' list.

## **Account Usage Production**

This setting allows you to determine the Accounts that will be used as defaults in your Production transactions. Take care to ensure that the Accounts that you specify here exist in the Account register.

S Account Usage Production		
		Save
Components Usage Production Control Work In Progress Generate Transaction ③ Per Production Ope ○ Per Production	747 745	

#### **Components Usage, Production Control**

## Paste Special

Account register, Nominal Ledger/System module

The standard Nominal Ledger Transaction from a Production or Production Operation will credit the value of the components to a Stock Account, credit the Work Cost to a Production W-cost Account, and debit the value of the final Item to a Stock Account.

This Transaction therefore simply removes the value of the components from stock and adds the value of the final Item to stock. It will therefore not be possible to distinguish the value of Items removed from stock to be used in Productions from the value of the same Items removed from stock for other purposes (e.g. Delivery or Stock Depreciation). If you need to make such a distinction, you can do so using Components Usage and Production Control Accounts. If you specify both a Components Usage Account and a Production Control Account, the Transaction will contain additional postings, debiting the value of the components to the Components Usage Account and crediting that value to the Production Control Account.

The Components Usage and Production Control Accounts will first be from the Item Group to which the component Item belongs (if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module). If these Accounts are empty or you are not using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option, they will be taken from the component Item (in the case of the Components Usage Account only) or from this setting.

#### Work In Progress Paste Special

#### Account register, Nominal Ledger/System module

Production Operations allow you to carry out Productions in stages. You will be able to remove components from stock at any stage, and add the final Item to stock when the final stage is completed. Apart from the final stage, you will not be adding to stock, but you will need to account for the work carried out so far. The Work in Progress Account is used for this purpose. This Account will be debited with the value of each intermediate Production Operation, and credited with the value of the final Production Operation. This Account will only be used if you are using the Per Production Operation option below.

In Transactions created from intermediate Production Operations, the Work In Progress Account will be taken from the Item Groups to which the component Items belong (if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module) or from this setting. In the Transaction created from the final Production Operation, the Work In Progress Account will be taken from the Item Group to which the Output Item belongs (if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option) or from this setting.

#### **Generate Transaction**

If you are using Production Operations to build Productions in stages, use these options to specify whether you want separate Nominal Ledger Transactions to be created from each Production Operation, or a single final Transaction to be created from the Production. The first option allows you to record the value of each Production Operation in the Nominal Ledger in the Work In Progress Account (specified above).

If you choose the Production Operation option, the sequence in which you Finish each Production Operation becomes significant. In particular, the Transaction from the final Production Operation, which debits the value of the final Item to the Stock Account and credits this value to the Work In Progress Account, may not be correct if there are earlier Operations in the sequence that you have not yet Finished. Therefore, if you choose this option, it is recommended that you also use the Complete Sequence Before Next One option in the Production Settings setting. This will ensure that you mark the Operations as Finished in the correct order.

Note that stock levels of components will always be reduced and those of final Items will always be increased from Production Operations. If you choose the Production option, therefore, there may be a difference between the stock valuation in the Stock List report and in the Nominal Ledger.

If you choose the Production option, you should also allow Transactions to be created from Productions in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and in the Number Series - Productions setting. If you choose the Production Operation option, you should again allow Transactions to be created from Productions in the Sub Systems setting (the Productions option in this setting applies to both Productions and Production Operations) and in the Number Series - Production Operations setting

This option only applies to Productions that will be built in stages (Productions with Routings). Productions without Routings will always generate Nominal Ledger Transactions (subject to the Sub Systems and the Number Series - Productions settings).

## **Auto Production Items**

This setting will be useful if you have Recipes in which you can substitute various different component Items to produce the same final Item. For example, you may have a Recipe to produce chocolate milk, which requires milk powder as a component or ingredient. Milk powder is a generic component: when the Recipe simply calls for milk powder, you can in fact use Brand A Milk Powder or Brand B Milk Powder, supplied in 5 kg or 10 kg sacks, and the resulting chocolate milk will be the same.

Using a generic Item (also known as a "Produced Item") as a component in the Recipe in this way means you will only need one Recipe for chocolate milk, instead of many Recipes with each of the milk powder variations. This will minimise the number of Recipes you need to set up and maintain, and also make the choice of the correct Recipe in Production records simple and easy. To work with Auto Production Items, follow these steps-

1. In the Item register, enter records for the specific Items, such as "Brand A Milk Powder, 5 kg", "Brand B Milk Powder, 10 kg" and so on, and for the generic Item—

💙 ltem: Inspect									
Operations					(	New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
	MPSA Milk Powder - Brand Closed	A - 5 kg	Grou		t For Sales				0
💙 ltem: Inspect									_ 🗆 🗙
						New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
No. Description	MPSB Milk Powder - Brand Closed	8 - 10 kg	Grou		t For Sales				0
😂 ltem: Inspect									
Operations						New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
	MPG Milk Powder - Generia	: - 1 kg	Grou		t For Sales				0
Pricing Stock	Warehouse	Costs	Recipe	A/C	Varieties	Texts	Cost Mode	el User \	/alues
Unit Base Price Base Price Change Price Factor Them Formulae	1/12/2009		Item Type Plain Stocked I Structure Service						

2. Create Purchase Items for the specific Items in the usual way—

Item MPSB Desc. Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg Supplier 511 Name Roman Candles SpA Location Price Texts  Price Texts  Price Texts  Price SoB Desc. Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg Supplier 508 Desc. Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg Supplier 508 Name Tyrell, Inc Location Price Texts  Price SoB Purchase Cost Currency Unit Conv. Supplier Item Supplier Unit Norm Ord Qty 1 Min Ord Qty 1 Producer Country of Origin Salesman FF Sales Group					New	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ave		
Location  Price Texts  Price Texts  Price Texts  Price Texts  Item MP5B Desc. Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg Supplier 508 Name Tyrell, Inc Location  Price 5.00 Price Texts  Price 5.00 Purchase Cost Currency Unit Conv. Supplier Item Supplier Unit Norm Ord Qty 1 Producer Country of Origin	Item	MPSB		Desc.	Milk Po	wder - Brand B -	· 10 kg		0		
Price       Texts         Purchase Item: Inspect       Image: Cancel Save         Item MP5B       Desc.       Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg         Supplier 508       Name Tyrell, Inc       Default         Price       5.00       Purchase Cost         Currency       Unit Conv.       Supplier Unit         Norm Ord Qty       1       Min Ord Qty       1         Producer       Country of Origin	Supplier				Name Roman Candles SpA						
Purchase Item: Inspect         New       Duplicate       Cancel       Save         Item       MP58       Desc.       Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg         Supplier       508       Name       Tyrell, Inc         Location       Default         Price       5.00       Purchase Cost         Currency       Unit Conv.         Supplier Item       Supplier Unit         Norm Ord Qty       1       Min Ord Qty       1         Producer       Country of Origin       1	Location						Default				
New     Duplicate     Cancel     Save       Item     MP5B     Desc.     Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg       Supplier     508     Name     Tyrell, Inc       Location     Default       Price     Texts       Price     5.00     Purchase Cost       Currency     Unit Conv.       Supplier Item     Supplier Unit       Norm Ord Qty     1     Min Ord Qty     1       Producer     Country of Origin				Pric	e 📄	Texts					
New     Duplicate     Cancel     Save       Item     MP5B     Desc.     Milk Powder - Brand B - 10 kg       Supplier     508     Name     Tyrell, Inc       Location     Default       Price     Texts       Price     5.00     Purchase Cost       Currency     Unit Conv.       Supplier Item     Supplier Unit       Norm Ord Qty     1     Min Ord Qty     1       Producer     Country of Origin	S P	urchase It	em: In	spect					ſ		
Location     Default       Price     Texts       Price     5.00       Purchase Cost     Unit Conv.       Currency     Unit Conv.       Supplier Item     Supplier Unit       Norm Ord Qty     1       Producer     Country of Origin											
Price     Texts       Price     5.00     Purchase Cost       Currency     Unit Conv.       Supplier Item     Supplier Unit       Norm Ord Qty     1     Min Ord Qty       Producer     Country of Origin		Item	MP2B		De	esc. Milk Powde	er - Brand B -	10 kg			
Price     5.00     Purchase Cost       Currency     Unit Conv.       Supplier Item     Supplier Unit       Norm Ord Qty     1     Min Ord Qty     1       Producer     Country of Origin								-			
Currency     Unit Conv.       Supplier Item     Supplier Unit       Norm Ord Qty     1     Min Ord Qty     1       Producer     Country of Origin		Supplier						-			
Supplier Item         Supplier Unit           Norm Ord Qty         1         Min Ord Qty         1           Producer         Country of Origin         1		Supplier				ame Tyrell, Inc		-			
Norm Ord Qty         1         Min Ord Qty         1           Producer         Country of Origin		Supplier	508		Na	ame Tyrell, Inc	ts	Default			
Producer Country of Origin		Supplier Location	508 Price		Na	ame Tyrell, Inc	ts Purchase	Default			
	-	Supplier Location	508 Price urrency		Na	ame Tyrell, Inc	ts Purchase Unit (	Cost			
Salesman FF Sales Group		Supplier Location C Suppl	508 Price urrency ier Item		Na 5.00	ame Tyrell, Inc	ts Purchase Unit ( Supplie	Cost Conv.		1	
		Supplier Location C Suppl Norm (	Price urrency ier Item Ord Qty		Na 5.00	ame Tyrell, Inc	ts Purchase Unit ( Supplie Min Or	Cost Conv. r Unit d Qty		1	

3. Enter the Recipe. This is an example Recipe for chocolate milk-

	Operation	ns				New	Duplica	te Car	ncel S	iave
	Code	CMP		Comment	Chocolate Milk	Powder - 1kg	ļ			(
	Normal Prod Qty		1	Time to Setup			Langu	Jage		
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce				📃 Cla	sed	
Fixe	ed Assembly Days			Hours to Produce		Minu	utes	Sec	onds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Black		Number Produced						
	Standard Batch		1	Extra Prod Qty						
	Default Routing									
	Instructions									
	Item	Specification	n		In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	
1		Milk Powder		-	1.00				0.00	^ /
2			-	- Generic - 50 g	1.00				0.00	E
3				k Powder - 1 kg	1.00				0.00	
4	CMP	Chocalate I	Milk Powde	r - 1 kg		1.00				
5 6										
7										
8										
9										

Two components in this Recipe (the milk powder and the chocolate flavouring) are generic. Where a generic component is called for, you can in fact use any one of a number of specific Items. For example, you can use Brand A Milk Powder or Brand B Milk Powder as the generic milk powder. The end result, the chocolate milk powder, will be the same, irrespective of which specific Items you use as components.

4. Having entered the generic Item and the specific Items in the Item register, you then need to connect them together. This connection will state that a particular specific Item can be used when a Recipe calls for a particular generic Item. For example, such connections will mean that when the Recipe calls for "milk powder", you can send either Brand A Milk Powder or Brand B Milk Powder to the production area, depending on what you have in stock at the time. You can make these connections using the Auto Production Items setting, available in the MRP and Production modules.

Double-clicking 'Auto Production Items' in the 'Settings' list in the MRP or Production modules opens the 'Auto Production Items: Inspect' window listing the Auto Production Items that have already been entered. Double-click a record in the list to edit it, or add a new record by clicking the [New] button in the Button Bar. When the record is complete, save it by clicking the [Save] button in the Button Bar or by clicking the close box and choosing to save changes. To close it without saving changes, click the close box.

	1 (			N.
New New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save	
			D	)
Item	MPSA		0	
Produced Item	MPG			
Unit Coefficient	5.00			
📃 Default Item to Purcha	se when Produce	d Item is needed		
-				
😒 Auto Pro	duction Itoms			
	duction item.	Inspect		
	New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
	New	Duplicate	Cancel	
	New	Duplicate	Cancel	
	New Item Produced Item	Duplicate MPSB MPG	Cancel	
	New	Duplicate MPSB MPG	Cancel	
	New Item Produced Item Unit Coefficient	Duplicate MPSB MPG 10.00		0
	New Item Produced Item	Duplicate MPSB MPG 10.00		0
	New Item Produced Item Unit Coefficient	Duplicate MPSB MPG 10.00		0

Item	Paste Special	Item register
------	---------------	---------------

Enter here a specific Item that you can use when a Recipe calls for a generic Item. Following the example used in this description, you should enter the Item representing Brand A Milk Powder or Brand B Milk Powder here.

#### Produced Item Paste Special Item register

Specify the generic Item here (in the example, the Item for "milk powder"). As shown in the illustration, it is likely you will need to enter several Auto Production Item records for the same Produced Item, with different Items specified in the field above.
**Unit Coefficient** If the two Items are supplied and used in different Units, enter the ratio between them here. The ratio should represent how many Produced Items can be made from one Item. For example, if you measure the Produced Item in multiples of 1 kg, and the Item is supplied in 10 kg sacks, enter "10" here.

#### Default Item to Purchase when Produced Item is needed

If you have several Auto Production Item records for the same Produced Item, use this check box to choose which one is to be treated as the Default Auto Production Item. This is the Item that you prefer to purchase when the Recipe calls for the generic Item. For example, you can use this check box to signify your preference to purchase Brand B Milk Powder over Brand A Milk Powder. This is described in step 5 below.

You can only have one Default Auto Production Item for a particular Produced Item (generic Item).

- 5. The MRP module allows you to plan future Productions, including the purchasing of the necessary quantity of components. This module is fully described in the 'MRP' manaul. In brief, the process will be as follows
  - i. A Production Plan is a list of assembled Items, showing how many of each you need to build during a particular period (e.g. a month). You can enter a Production Plan yourself, or you can create one based on estimated sales requirements that you have recorded in the Sales Forecast register.

In this example Production Plan, we have specified that we need to produce 2000 x 1 kg chocolate milk powder—

]•		Operatio	ons					New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
	No.	1		Descripti	on						6
	Period	1/12/20	09		- 31/12	2/2009	Creation E	ate 1/12/2009			
	Item		Descri			Start Date	Prod. Days	Needed Date	Suggested Qty	Adjusted Qty	
1	CMP		Choca	alate Milk Po	wder - 1Þ	28/12/2009	3	31/12/2009	2000		~ A
2											E
3											B
4											-
5											
6											
7											
8											
9											
10											
11											
12											
13											
14											
15											
16 17											
17											
18 19											
											~
20											$\sim$

ii. After approving a Production Plan, you should then use the 'Create Purchase Order Plan' Maintenance function to create a Purchase Order Plan. This will list the quantities of each component that you need to purchase in order to produce the assembled Items in the Production Plan.

Illustrated below is the Purchase Order Plan containing the components that we need to purchase in order to produce 2000 x 1 kg chocolate milk powder—

	Opera	ations			New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
								6
	No. 1	Description						6
	Period 1/12	/2009 - 31/1/	2010	Supp	blier	Date 28/1	2/2009	
	Item	Description	Order Date	Del. Days	Needed Date	Suggested Qty	Adjusted Qty	
1	BCMP	Box for Chocolate Milk Pow	> 27/12/2009	1	28/12/2009	2000		<u>∧</u> 4
2	CFG	Chocolate Flavouring - Gen	> 27/12/2009	1	28/12/2009	2000		
3	MPG	Milk Powder - Generic - 1 kg	27/12/2009	1	28/12/2009	2000		E
4								-
5								
6								
7								
8								
9								
10								
11								
12								
13								
14								
15								
16								
17								
18 19								
								~
20								$\sim$

In this example, the chocolate flavouring and the milk powder are both generic components. As they are generic, we cannot issue Purchase Orders for them. Instead, we need to issue a Purchase Order for a specific Item such as Brand A Milk Powder or Brand B Milk Powder. The Item to Order field on flip C of the Purchase Order Plan will suggest the specific Items that we should order—

1		Operation	ns				N	ew Duplicate	Cancel	Save
		•								
										6
	No.			Description						0
	Period	1/12/200	09	-	31/1/2010		Supplier	Date 28/	12/2009	
	Item		Descrip	tion		Item to Order	Pur. Ord. N	Io. Suggested Qty	Adjusted Qty	
1	BCMP		Box for	Chocolate Mil	k Powder - 1 🕨			2000	1	<u>^</u> A
2	CFG		Chocola	ate Flavouring	- Generic - 5>	CFSB		2000	1	A A
3	MPG		Milk Pov	wder - Generic	- 1 kg	MPSB		2000	J	-
4										-
5										
6										
7										
8										
9										
10										
11										
12										
13										
14										
15										
16										
17										
18										
19										-
20										$\mathbf{x}$

The suggested Item is taken from the Auto Production Item record that is marked as the Default Auto Production Item (step 4 above). Before we approve the Purchase Order Plan, we could change the Item to Order, but only to another Item that has been connected to the generic component in an Auto Production Record. For example, as illustrated in step 4 above, the generic Item for milk powder MPG has two connected specific Items, MPSA and MPSB, with MPSB being the default. We could therefore change the Item to Order to MPSA but not to any other Item.

iii. After approving the Purchase Order Plan, you can then use the 'Create Purchase Orders' Maintenance function to create the relevant Purchase Orders.

This is one of the Purchase Orders created to satisfy the Purchase Order Plan illustrated above—

92		)perations							New	D	uplicate	e Ca	incel	S	ave
	No.	3001		Name	Roman C	andles	SpA								0
	Supplier	511		Signers											
			Close	d 🔲	Price Incl \	/AT									
	Dat	e Items	Curre	ency	Terms	Ot	her (	Ord. Addre	ess	Del. Ad	Idress	Ex	tra Costs	;	
Tr	ans, Date	27/12/2009			Plan. Del.	28/12	2/2009	P	ur. Ref.						1
Р	ay. Terms	30		P/Or	der Class				Attn.						
	Our Ref			Or	der Type	Norm	al		Objects						
	Item	Qty	Unit	Descrip	tion				Unit Pri	ce	%	Sum		V-Cd	
1	CFSB	200	10	Chocol	ate Flavou	uring -	Brand B - S	50 g		0.04			80.00	S	🔺 A
2	MPSB	20	0	Milk Po	wder - Bra	and B -	10 kg			4.90			980.00	S	В
3															С
4															D
5															C D E
6															-
7															
8															
9 10															
11															
12															~

If flip C of a Purchase Order Plan contains an Item to Order, this Item is the one that will be included in the Purchase Order. The Supplier and pricing information is taken from the Default Purchase Item illustrated in step 2.

In this example, the generic component requirement is 2000 (i.e. 2000 x milk powder 1 kg). However, the specific Item is supplied in 10 kg bags. We therefore entered a Coefficient of 10 in the relevant Auto Production Item record, as illustrated in step 4, and this Coefficient has determined the Qty of 200 in the Purchase Order.

The Location in the Purchase Order (i.e. the Location to which the Items will be delivered) should be a warehouse and not the

Production area or workshop. The default Location will be taken from the Person record belonging to the user who created the Purchase Order by running the 'Create Purchase Orders' Maintenance function. If no Location has been specified in the relevant Person record, the Location in the Purchase Order will be empty.

You can of course issue *ad hoc* Purchase Orders for specific Items yourself. They do not necessarily have to result from the Production planning process or from the MRP module as described here.

6. When the specific Item arrives, you will receive it into stock in your warehouse (i.e. in the Location specified in the Purchase Order) using a Goods Receipt as normal—

Goo	ds Receipt:	Inspect									-	C
0	Ope	rations						New	Duplicate	Cancel 9	ave	,
	No.	6166		Tra	ans. Date	28/12/200	19					øt
	Sup. No.	511		Name		Roman Ca	ndles SpA					
F	Pur. Order No.	3001		Location		WHS						
			Co	mment	Items	Curre	ncy Ext	ra Costs 🛛 🕞	reight			
	Comment											
	Objects			PO	Contract		F F	Price Incl VAT				
	Item	Qty	Unit	Descrip	tion			Unit Price	Cost Price	Sum		1
1	CFSB	2000		Choco	hocolate Flavouring - Brand B - 50 g			0.04	0.04	80.00	~	А
2	MPSB	200		Milk Po	wder - Bra	nd B - 10 k	9	4.90	4.90	980.00		в
3												С
4												- D
5												-
6												E .
7												F
8												G
9 10												C D E F G H I
10												Ι
12												
13											v	
<b>V</b>	OK Qty	2200		Frei	ght	0	Customs	0	Cost Price	1060.00		
	Ext. Tax	0.00		Subto	tal	1060	VAT	185.5	Total	1245.5		

7. Now you can use a Stock Movement to move the Items from the warehouse to the Production area or workshop—

	Oper	ations		2			New	Duplicate	Cancel 9	òave
	No.	44			📃 Rese	rved	Reason			l
	Ord. Date	28/12/2	009	Sent Da	ate		Received Date	28/12/2009		
	From Location	WHS		Via Locati	ion		To Location	PROD		
			Positions	Objects	Items	Currency	Durations	Freight		
	From Position			To Positi	ion		For Production		1	
		Manu	ual Pick		Send	To Forklift Qu	ieue			
1	Item R CFSB	eq. Qty 2000	Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty 2000	Description Chocolate Fi	lavouring - E>	R. Old Unit Pr. 0.0	R. Extra Cost	R. New Unit Pr. 0.04	<b>^</b> A
2	MPSB	2000		2000		- Brand B - 🎾			4.90	В
3	11 20	200		200	T MICT OTTAOT	prana p				
4										C D E
5										0
6										E
7										
8										
8 9 10										

When you mark the Stock Movement as Received and save it, the Items will be moved to the Production area as usual. Stock levels will be adjusted, as will the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. In addition, one Production for each row in the Stock Movement will be created automatically and immediately marked as Finished. In effect, these Productions will convert the specific Items into generic Items. This is the Production that converts the Brand B Milk Powder to generic milk powder—

		Opera	tions					N	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ve		
	No.	5056		Name	Stock Movem	ent Number 4	4			Status					
R	ecipe			Start Date	28/12/2009	En	d Date 2	8/12/2009		Created Cancelled					
	Qty		1	Start Time	22:48:05	En	id Time 2	2:48:05		O Started					
Loc	ation	PROD				м	lachine			<ol> <li>Finished</li> </ol>	ed d d but Discarded W-cost Coeff 00				
Insp	ector						Person F	F		O Finished b	ut Discardeo	1			
Prod.	Ord.					Discarded F	Reason								
Actua	l Qty					R	outing								
						Items	Comme	ent							
_	Item		Descr	·.		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff			
1	MPS	3	Milk P	owder - Brand	B - 10 kg		200.0	)		4.90			^ A		
2	MPG		Milk P	Powder - Gener	ic - 1 kg			2000.00		0.49			в		
3													B C D E		
4													-		
5													-		
6													-		
8															
9															
10															
11															
11 12													_		

As a result, the Production area now contains 2000 kg of generic milk powder, which you can now use to produce chocolate milk powder.

For such a Production to be created automatically from a Stock Movement, three conditions must be met—

i. There must be a record in the Auto Production Items setting with the specific Item (i.e. the Item in the Stock Movement) in the Item field and the generic Item in the Produced field. The conversion from the Received Quantity in the Stock Movement (also the In Qty in the

Production) to the Out Qty in the Production will be governed by the Coefficient in the Auto Production Item record.

ii. The Type of the To Location in the Stock Movement (i.e. the Production area or workshop) must be "Production"—

Succession: Inspect				
	ĺ	New Duplicate	Cancel	Save
	PROD Production Location			
Contact Telephone Fax E-mail Responsible Person		Reserv. Access		
Stock A/C Purchase Location	Ignore Chronolo Demand Position		Type O Other O Production	

## **Item Effectivity**

You can use this setting together with the Item Effectivity report to monitor the use and performance of consumable Items in the production process.

You can enter separate records in this setting for each individual consumable Item to record how many Output Items it was used to produce. For example, each time you change a cutting disc in a Machine, you can enter the number of Output Items produced by the previous one in the existing Item Effectivity record, approve it, and then create a new Item Effectivity record for the new cutting disc. Alternatively, you can maintain a single record for the cutting disc as a general Item, updating the same Item Effectivity record each time you fit a new cutting disc to the Machine. This second method may help you compare cutting discs with different specifications, purchased from different Suppliers.

If you are using the first method, you can produce the Item Effectivity report using the Overview option to display the information in those records as if you were using the second method. This option adds the figures in all records with the same Item/Supplier/Machine combination to provide totals.

To work with this setting, first ensure you are in the Production module, and then click the [Settings] button in the Master Control panel or use the Ctrl-S/ $\Re$ -S keyboard shortcut to open the 'Settings' list. Double-click 'Item Effectivity' in the list. The 'Item Effectivity: Browse' window lists the Item Effectivity records that have already been entered: double-click one to modify it or click [New] to create a new record. When the record is complete, click the [Save] button in the Button Bar to save changes and close it using the close box, or click the close box if you don't want to save changes.

😒 Item Effectivity	y: Inspect				
		N	ew Duplic	ate Cancel	Save
No.	1		Machine	ANGLE1	0
Start Date	6/11/2009		End Date	6/11/2009	
Start Time	09:00		End Time	17:00	
Item	20101		Supplier	513	
Used Qty		1	Produced	26	
Comment					
🗹 ок					

No.

This field contains the unique identifying number of each Item Effectivity record. This number is generated automatically.

# Machine Paste Special Asset register, Assets module Enter the Machine to which the consumable Item has

Enter the Machine to which the consumable Item has been fitted.

## Start Date, End Date

Paste Special Choose date

Enter the dates when you started using the consumable Item and when you stopped using it. The End Date cannot be earlier than the Start Date.

#### Start Time, End Time

#### Paste Special Current Time

Enter the times when you started using the consumable Item and when you stopped using it.

Item	Paste Special         Item register
	Specify the consumable Item here. This must be an Item in the Item register.
Supplier	Paste Special         Suppliers in Contact register
	Specify the Supplier from whom you purchased the consumable Item.
	If you are maintaining a single Item Effectivity record for each general consumable Item, updating it each time you fit a new one, you can use this field to compare the performance of similar Items from different Suppliers.
Used Qty	Enter the quantity of the consumable Item that you have used. If you are maintaining a single Item Effectivity record for each general consumable Item, you should update this field each time you fit a new one to the Machine. If you are entering separate records in this setting for each individual consumable Item, you will always enter "1" here.
	You do not have to enter a Used Qty before saving an Item Effectivity record, but you must do so before marking it as OK.
Produced	Use this field to record the number of Output Items produced by the consumable Item. If you are maintaining a single Item Effectivity record for each general consumable Item, you should update this field each time you fit a new one to the Machine. If you are entering separate records in this setting for each individual consumable Item, enter the quantity produced when using an individual Item.
	You do not have to enter a figure here before saving an Item Effectivity record, but you must do so before marking it as OK.
Comment	Use this field to record any general comments about the Item Effectivity record.
ОК	When the Item Effectivity record is complete, mark it as OK and save it. You will no longer be able to make any changes. You cannot reverse this action. If you are maintaining a single Item Effectivity record for each general consumable Item, you will need to update the record each time you fit a new one to the Machine and

therefore you should never mark it as OK. An Item Effectivity record does not have to be marked as OK for it to appear in the Item Effectivity report.

## **Machine Groups**

This setting allows you to divide your company's Machines into groups. These groups might represent the different Recipes that the machines can produce. Dividing Machines into Machine Groups will help with resource planning: please refer to page 23 above for an illustrated example.

Each Machine should have its own record in the Asset register in the Assets module. This register will allow you to account for each Machine's depreciation. Please refer to the 'Assets' manual for details. You should record each Machine in the Asset register before entering Machine Groups.

Double-clicking 'Machine Groups' in the 'Settings' list in the Production module opens the 'Machine Groups: Inspect' window listing the Machine Groups that have already been entered. To add a new record, simply enter its details on the first blank line and click [Save] to save and close. Click the close box to close without saving changes.

😂 Ma	chine Gr	oups: Inspect	
			Save
	Code	Machines	
1	WELD	WELD1,WELD2,WELD3	~
2	DRILL	DRILL1,DRILL2,DRILL3	
3	PAINT	PAINT1,PAINT2,PAINT3	
4			
5			
6			
7			
8			
9			×

Code

Specify a unique identification Code for each Machine Group. You can use up to five alphanumeric characters. Use a Code that makes it easy to distinguish Machine Groups from other records in the Resource Planner, but do not use a Code that is the same as a Machine Code (Asset's Inventory Number). Machines Paste Special Asset register, Assets module

Enter the Asset (Inventory) Number of each Machine (Asset) that belongs to the Machine Group, separated by commas.

If you need to use 'Paste Special' to enter several Machines, type the comma before opening the 'Paste Special' list. This will cause the next Machine to be added to those already entered. Otherwise, the previous Machine will be overwritten.

A particular Machine can belong to more than one Machine Group.

## Materials, Standard Operations, Routings

The Production Operation feature in HansaWorld Enterprise allows you to configure and implement a complex Production process with several assembly stages. This feature offers the following benefits—

- You can record each stage of the Production process separately, so you will always know exactly how each Production is progressing;
- Components will be removed from stock as you use them, not at the end of the entire Production process; and
- You can record Work in Progress in the Nominal Ledger.

Dividing a Production process into stages requires you to determine the following-

- 1. What the stages are;
- 2. Which components will be used in each stage (and which assembled Items if any will result from each stage); and
- 3. The sequence in which the stages should be carried out.

In HansaWorld Enterprise, the term given to a stage in the Production process is "Operation". There are two types of Operation—

• When you divide a Production process into stages, you will first create template or model Operations. These are known as "Standard Operations". A Standard Operation record should contain the normal specifications for a stage in the process.

When you implement a Production process, you will create a Production record in the normal way and choose the Recipe. You will then create Operations specific to that Production, using the relevant Standard Operations as templates. The Operations that are specific to a particular Production are known as "Production Operations".

To divide a Production process into stages, follow the steps described below. In these steps we will use as an example a basic Production process that requires three stages: welding, painting and assembly. The Recipe will include Input Items for all three stages: the metal (e.g. box section and/or metal sheet) used in first stage, the paint used in the second stage and the nuts and bolts used in the third stage. The third stage will also result in an assembled Item (a set of shelves) being added to stock.

1. Define the various stages by entering separate records for each stage in the Standard Operations setting.

The example process will require three Standard Operations: "WELDING", "PAINTING" and "SHELF\_ASSEMBLY".

Depending on the circumstances, you may find that you can define a single generic Standard Operation such as "PAINTING" that can be used in many Recipes. In other cases (for example single- and multi-colour painting), you may need to define several more precise Standard Operations, so that you can choose the most appropriate one for each Recipe.

The Standard Operations setting is described in more detail below on page 124.

2. Now you should allocate the Input and Output Items in the Recipe to the relevant Operation. To do this, you need to classify those Items according to their type or task. This classification is given the name "Material". A Material is simply a name for the basic type of Item or task, but it is also the mechanism that connects the Items with the Operations.

In the example Recipe, the Input Items for metal box section will be used during the first Operation, paint will be used during the second Operation, and the nuts and bolts will not be required until the final Operation. To use the nuts and bolts as an example, proceed as follows—

i. Define the Material(s) that you need in the Materials setting. In this example, create a Material "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS".

- ii. You will have listed the nuts and bolts of various sizes as separate Input Items in the Recipe, so that you can control stock of each size. As you will use the nuts and bolts at the same time, and they are all the same type of Item, you can assign the "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS" Material to each of these Items on flip B of the Recipe.
- iii. You will use the nuts and bolts as part of the assembly stage of the Production process. Open the "SHELF\_ASSEMBLY" Standard Operation that represents this stage of the process and include "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS" in the list of Materials.

Steps ii and iii connect specific Input Items (the nuts and bolts) with a particular stage in the Production process (in this case, the last stage). The nuts and bolts will be removed from stock when this stage is completed.

As "SHELF\_ASSEMBLY" is the final Standard Operation, it should also include a Material such as "FINAL\_ITEM". The Material of the Output Item in the Recipe should also be "FINAL\_ITEM". This connects the Output Item with the final "SHELF\_ASSEMBLY" Operation: when this Operation is completed, the Output Item will be added to stock.

The Materials setting is described in more detail below on page 128.

3. Use the Routings setting to define the order in which the Operations should be carried out.

In the example Production process, the Routing will specify that the "WELDING" Operation will be first, followed by "PAINTING" and finally by "SHELF\_ASSEMBLY".

The Routings setting is described in more detail below on page 133.

4. Having configured the Routing, return to the Recipe and enter the Routing in the Default Routing field.

To implement a multi-stage Production process, create a Production record in the normal way and choose the Recipe. As the Production represents a multistage process, you cannot simply mark it as Finished in order to remove the components from stock and add the assembled Item to stock. Instead, you need to create the Production Operations that represent each stage in the process, and mark each Operation as Finished in turn.

Choose 'Create Production Operations' from the Operations menu of the Production. This function uses the Standard Operations as templates to create Production Operations specific to the Production, as follows—

- 1. The function will refer to the Routing specified in the Production to obtain the sequence of Standard Operations.
- 2. The function will then refer to the first Standard Operation in the sequence to obtain a list of Materials.
- 3. The function will then look in the Production to find the Input and Output Items that share the first Material in the list in step 2.

If an Input Item in the Production has a Recipe (i.e. the Input Item is a sub-assembly), the function will also look in the sub-assembly Recipe for Input and Output Items with the Material in question.

- 4. A Production Operation will be created, containing the Input and Output Items found in step 3.
- 5. Step 3 is repeated for each Material in the Standard Operation, and the Input and Output Items that share those Materials will be added to the Production Operation created in step 4.
- 6. Steps 2-5 are repeated for each Standard Operation in the Routing.

If any of the Input Items in the Production are Phantom Items (Plain Items with Recipes) whose Recipes contain Routings, the sequence described above will be carried out for those Routings first, before being carried out for the Routing in the Production itself.

You can now work through the Production Operations in turn. In effect, each Production Operation is a Production in miniature. As you Finish each one, the relevant Input Items will be removed from stock and the relevant Output Items if any and if they are Stocked Items will be added to stock. If you have specified in the Account Usage Production setting that Nominal Ledger Transactions are to be created after each Production Operation, the value of the Production Operation will be posted to the Work In Progress Account (again, specified in the Account Usage Production setting). Work In Progress will be cleared when you Finish the last Production Operation in the sequence.

More details about the Production Operation register can be found below on page 243.

## The Standard Operations setting

The first step when dividing a Production process into stages is to determine what the stages are. You should enter each stage as a separate record in the Standard Operations setting. Standard Operations are essentially templates. They should contain the usual specifications for each stage in the process. When you create Production Operations from a Production, they will be created using the relevant Standard Operations as templates. Production Operations represent the same stages in the process as the Standard Operations, but are specific to the individual Production. If there is something unusual about a Production Operation (e.g. it takes longer than expected to complete), you can register this in the Production Operation without disturbing the template Standard Operation.

To work with the Standard Operations setting, first ensure you are in the Production module, and then click the [Settings] button in the Master Control panel or use the Ctrl-S/ $\Re$ -S keyboard shortcut to open the 'Settings' list. Double-click 'Standard Operations' in the list. The 'Standard Operations: Browse' window lists the Standard Operation records that have already been entered: double-click one to modify it or click [New] to create a new record. When the record is complete, click the [Save] button in the Button Bar to save changes and close it using the close box, or click the close box if you don't want to save changes.

]0				New Duplicate Cancel	Save
	Code SHELF_ASSEMBLY Machine Group	Com Display (		inal Assembly	l
		Materials	Time	e Instructions	
	Material	Qty	Unit	Description	
1	NUTS_AND_BOLTS			Nuts and bolts	
2	FINAL_ITEM			Final Assembly	
3					
4					
5					
6					
7 8					
9					
10					
11					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					

Header		
Code	Specify a unique iden Operation.	tification Code for the Standard
Comment	Enter a name for the St	andard Operation.
Machine Group	Paste Special	Machine Groups setting, Production module
	Used as default in	Production Operations
		chine Group that contains the can use to carry out the work dard Operation.
	The Machine Group v Operation that you crea	vill be copied to each Production ate from this template.
Display Group	Paste Special	Display Groups setting, System module
	Used as default in	Production Operations
		ay Group that contains the Persons work represented by the Standard
	The Display Group w	ill be copied to each Production

The Display Group will be copied to each Production Operation that you create from this template.

## Materials Card

Use the 'Materials' card to list the Materials that will be used as part of the Standard Operation. When you create a Production Operation from a Production using the Standard Operation as a template, every Input and Output Item in the Production that has been assigned one of these Materials will be copied to the Production Operation. Please refer to the description of the Materials setting below on page 128 for an example.

Material	Paste Special	Materials setting, Production module
	Choose a Material from also enter an <i>ad hoc</i> Ma	n the Materials setting. You can terial if necessary.
Qty	Production using the St every Input and Output Material specified a	Production Operation from a tandard Operation as a template, the Item in the Production with the bove will be copied to the Jsually, the In Qty or Out Qty as

appropriate will be copied from the Production row to the corresponding Production Operation row. However, if you enter a Quantity here, it will be copied to the relevant Production Operation row instead. If the Production row has an In Qty, this Quantity will be copied to the In Qty field in the Production Operation row. Otherwise, it will be copied to the Out Qty field. This figure will therefore take priority over the In and Out Quantities in the Production (which themselves will have been taken from the Recipe). As this figure applies to a Material not an Item, it will be used as the In or Out Quantity for every Item in the Production with that Material. Unit **Paste Special** Units setting, Sales Ledger Enter the Unit that the Quantity above refers to. This is for information only. Description The Description is copied from the Materials setting. Time Card Time Materials Instructions Setup Time 01:00:00 Oueue Time 02:00:00 Move Time 03:00:00 Run Time 04:00:00

## Setup Time, Queue Time, Move Time, Run Time

#### Used as default in Routings

Use these four fields to stipulate the time required for the Standard Operation, as follows—

Setup	the time required to set up the Machine or otherwise prepare for the Standard Operation e.g. calibration or replenishing fluids or consumables.
Queue	the time required to wait for parts to be ready from the previous Standard Operation e.g. waiting for paint to dry or heated parts to cool. Queue time is also known as "non-instant availability".
Move	the time required to move parts from stock or from the previous Standard Operation.

## **Run Time** the time required for the Standard Operation itself.

These are the times required for the entire Standard Operation, not to produce one unit. They will be copied to the Routing record and from there to each Production Operation created using the Standard Operation as a template. You can adjust the times in the Routing if necessary.

If you are using the Fixed Time option in the Production Settings setting, the 'Items' card of each Production Operation will contain extra rows for each type of Time. The Item Numbers in these rows will be the Setup, Queue, Move and Labour Cost Items specified in the Production Settings setting, and the Unit Cost in each case will be the Work Cost per Hour in the same setting. The In Qty in each of these rows (number of hours) will be the times from the relevant Routing row which, by default, will be the times specified here. These extra rows allow you to account for the running costs of the Operation.

If you are using the Actual Time option in the Production Settings setting, you can still specify times here. In this case, these times will not be used to account for the running costs of the Operation, but you can use them as guides, to give an idea of how much time is required for the Operation (they will be copied to the 'Time' card of each Production Operation).

#### Instructions Card

Use the 'Instructions' card to record details about how to carry out the Standard Operation. These Instructions will be copied to the 'Instructions' card of each Production Operation.

#### The Materials setting

Materials allow you to determine the components that will be used in each stage in the Production process (and the assembled Items if any that will result from each stage). A "Material" is simply a name for the basic type of Input or Output Item or task, but it is also the mechanism that connects the Items with the Standard Operations (i.e. with the stages in the Production process).

To work with the Materials setting, first ensure you are in the Production module, and then click the [Settings] button in the Master Control panel or use the Ctrl-S/#-S keyboard shortcut to open the 'Settings' list. Double-click 'Materials' in the list. The 'Materials: Browse' window lists the Materials that have already been entered: double-click one to modify it or click [New] to create a new record. Enter a Code and Name and, when the record is complete, click the [Save] button in the Button Bar to save changes and close it using the close box, or click the close box if you don't want to save changes.

💙 Material: Insj	pect			
	New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
	NUTS_AND_BOLTS Buts and Bolts			0

Illustrated below is a Recipe in which the Input and Output Items have all been assigned Materials—

## HansaWorld Enterprise

	Operation	าร			New Duplic	ate Cancel	Sav	e
	Code 80602		Comment	Comment Set of Five Shelves				6
	Normal Prod Qty		Time to Setup		Lang	juage		
	Min Prod Qty		Days to Produce			Closed		
Fix	ed Assembly Days		Hours to Produce		Minutes	Seconds		
	Res. mgr. Colour	Black	Number Produced					
	Standard Batch		Extra Prod Qty					
	Default Routing							
	Instructions							
_	Item	Specification	Description		Material	Recipe		
1		Specification 40 cm Steel Box Si	Description		Material WELDING	Recipe	~	A
1	80111	•	ection				~	A
-	80111 80112	40 cm Steel Box S	ection		WELDING	-		A
2	80111 80112 80140	40 cm Steel Box S 50 cm Steel Box S	ection		WELDING WELDING	-		1-
2 3	80111 80112 80140 80150	40 cm Steel Box S 50 cm Steel Box S Paint (litre)	ection		WELDING WELDING PAINTING	-		1-
2 3 4	80111 80112 80140 80150 80151 80155	40 cm Steel Box S 50 cm Steel Box S Paint (litre) Large Bolt Small Bolt Large Nut	ection		WELDING WELDING PAINTING NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS	- - - -		1-
2 3 4 5 6 7	80111 80112 80140 80150 80151 80155 80156	40 cm Steel Box S 50 cm Steel Box S Paint (litre) Large Bolt Small Bolt Large Nut Small Nut	iection		WELDING WELDING PAINTING NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS			1-
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	80111 80112 80140 80150 80151 80155 80156	40 cm Steel Box S 50 cm Steel Box S Paint (litre) Large Bolt Small Bolt Large Nut	iection		WELDING WELDING PAINTING NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS			1-
2 3 4 5 6 7	80111 80112 80140 80150 80151 80155 80156	40 cm Steel Box S 50 cm Steel Box S Paint (litre) Large Bolt Small Bolt Large Nut Small Nut	iection		WELDING WELDING PAINTING NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS NUTS_AND_BOLTS			1-

This Recipe will require three stages (i.e. three Operations): welding, painting and assembly. This is the Standard Operation for the assembly stage—

]0				New Duplicate	Cancel Save
	Code SHELF_ASSEMBLY Machine Group	Com Display (		nal Assembly	Ũ
		Materials	Time	Instructions	
	Material	Qty	Unit	Description	
1	NUTS_AND_BOLTS			Nuts and bolts	
2	FINAL_ITEM			Final Assembly	
3					
4					
5					
6					
7					
9					
10					
11					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					

The assembly stage will use the "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS" and "FINAL\_ASSEMBLY" Materials. The Input and Output Items with these Materials in the Recipe will therefore be assigned to this stage.

When you enter the Recipe in a Production and create Production Operations from that Production, this is the equivalent Production Operation—

	Operati	ons			Nev		Duplicate Cancel	Save
	No.	96	Prod. Order		Pro	d. No. 5	039	C
	Qty	1	Actual Qty				atus	
	Start Date	12/11/2009	End Date	12/11/2009		~	Created	
		Final Assembly				6	Cancelled	
	Sequence					2	) Started ) Finished	
	Dequence	3				2	Finished and Discarded	
							/ Inibilitia and Discardoa	
			Items Time C	Iomment	Instructi	ons		
	Item	Descr.		Objects	In	Out	Material	
1	80150	Large Bolt			12.00		NUTS_AND_BOLTS	🔨 A
2	80151	Small Bolt			8.00		NUTS_AND_BOLTS	В
3	80155	Large Nut			12.00		NUTS_AND_BOLTS	C
4	80156	Small Nut			8.00		NUTS_AND_BOLTS	C
4	80602	Set of Five Shelves				1.00	FINAL_ITEM	
5								
5 6								
5 6 7								
5 6 7 8								
5 6 7 8 9								
5 6 7 8 9 10								
5 6 7 8 9 10 11								
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12								
5 6 7 8 9 10 11								

This Production Operation allows you to remove the nuts and bolts from stock when you use them, and the final Item will be added to stock at the same time.

If you need to use any of the nuts and bolts at another time, e.g. during the welding stage, you will need to separate them in the Recipe (and therefore in the Production) by entering the "welding nuts and bolts" and the "assembly nuts and bolts" on separate rows even if they have the same Item Number, and you will need to mark them using a different Material. For example, you might need "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS\_A" and "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS\_B" as Materials, or, to be clearer, "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS\_WELD" and "NUTS\_AND\_BOLTS\_ASSEM". This will ensure the correct nuts and bolts in the correct quantities will be used and removed from stock at the appropriate stage in the process.

## The Routings setting

Having used Standard Operations to divide a Production process into stages, and Materials to assign the Input and Output Items to those stages, you can now use Routings to determine the order in which the Operations are to be carried out.

To work with the Routings setting, first ensure you are in the Production module, and then click the [Settings] button in the Master Control panel or use the Ctrl-S/#-S keyboard shortcut to open the 'Settings' list. Double-click 'Routings' in the list. The 'Routings: Browse' window lists the Routing records that have already been entered: double-click one to modify it or click [New] to create a new record. When the record is complete, click the [Save] button in the Button Bar to save changes and close it using the close box, or click the close box if you don't want to save changes.

😒 Rout	ing: Inspect								
				New	Duplicate	Cancel	S	iave	
1	Code	SHELVING	Comment						0
	Operations	Description				Sequence	Sub		
1	WELDING	Welding				1		~	A
2	PAINTING	Painting				2			в
3	SHELF_ASSEMI	Final Assembly				3		-	
4									
5									
6									
7									
8									
9									
10									
11									
12									
13									
14									
15									
16									
17									
18									
19									
20									
21									
22								*	
6									

#### Header

Code	Specify a unique identification Code for the Routing
	record.

**Comment** Enter a name for the Routing record.

A Routing record is a list of the Operations that make up a Production process. In effect, it's a schedule of the process. Use the grid that takes up the majority of the window to list those Operations, and to specify the order in which they are to be carried out.

## Flip A

Operations	Paste Special	Standard Operations setting, Production module
	•	dard Operation here, its Comment es will be brought in to the
Description	When you choose a sabove, its Comment will	Standard Operation in the field ll be placed here.
Sequence, Sub	Use the Sequence field Standard Operations are	to specify the order in which the e to be carried out.
	same time, give them to different Sub Sequence be possible to build two because the building of one already existing. If complete before they c	ration can be carried out at the the same Sequence numbers, and e numbers. For example, it might o sub-assemblies simultaneously, one does not depend on the other But both sub-assemblies must be an be brought together to make a bly stage should have a later

## Flip B

## Setup Time, Queue Time, Move Time, Run Time

	Default taken from	Standard Operation
	Used as default in	Production Operations
	Use these four fields to Operation, as follows-	o stipulate the time required for the
Setup	otherwise pro	ired to set up the Machine or epare for the Operation e.g. eplenishing fluids or consumables.

Queuethe time required to wait for parts to be ready<br/>from the previous Operation e.g. waiting for paint<br/>to dry or heated parts to cool. Queue time is also<br/>known as "non-instant availability".Movethe time required to move parts from stock or

from the previous Operation.

## **Run Time** the time required for the Operation itself.

These are the times required for the entire Operation, not to produce one unit. They will be copied from the Standard Operation record and from here onward to each Production Operation created using the Standard Operation as a template. You can adjust the times here if necessary (for example, the times in the Standard Operation may be sufficient to produce four units, but the particular application of the Operation in a particular Routing may produce five units).

If you are using the Fixed Time option in the Production Settings setting, the 'Items' card of each Production Operation will contain extra rows for each type of Time. The Item Numbers in these rows will be the Setup, Queue, Move and Labour Cost Items specified in the Production Settings setting, and the Unit Cost in each case will be the Work Cost per Hour in the same setting. The In Qty in each of these rows (number of hours) will, by default, be the times specified here. These extra rows allow you to account for the running costs of the Operation.

If you are using the Actual Time option in the Production Settings setting, you can still specify times here. In this case, these times will not be used to account for the running costs of the Operation, but you can use them as guides, to give an idea of how much time is required for the Operation (they will be copied to the 'Time' card of each Production Operation). Once you have entered a Routing record, the division of a Production process into stages is almost complete. The final task is to enter the Routing in the Default Routing field in the Recipe—

	Operation	15			New	Duplicate	Can	cel Sa	ive
	Code	80602	Comment	Set of Five She	lves				6
	Normal Prod Qty		Time to Setup			Langua	ge		
	Min Prod Qty		Days to Produce				Clos	sed	
Fix	ed Assembly Days		Hours to Produce		Minu	utes	Seco	nds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Black	Number Produced						
	Standard Batch		Extra Prod Qty						
	Default Routing	SHELVING							
	Instructions								
_	Item	Specification		In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	
1	80111	40 cm Steel Box Sec		8.00			5.00		^ A
2	80112	50 cm Steel Box Sec	tion	12.00			5.00		E
	80140	Paint (litre)		1.00			0.75		
3	80150	Large Bolt		12.00			0.50		
3 4		Small Bolt		8.00			0.25		
3 4 5	80151			12.00			0.25		
3 4 5 6	80151 80155	Large Nut					0.13		
3 4 5 6 7	80151 80155 80156	Small Nut		8.00	1.00				
3 4 5 6 7 8	80151 80155	-		8.00	1.00		112.79		
3 4 5 6 7	80151 80155 80156	Small Nut		8.00	1.00		112.79		~

Having done so, when you specify the Recipe in a Production, the Default Routing will be copied from that Recipe to the Production as well. You can then use the 'Create Production Operations' function on the Operations menu to create the Production Operations as instructed in the Routing and as described above on page 124. The Production Operation register is described below on page 243.

## **Number Series - Production Operations**

Use this setting to define the number sequences for Production Operations in a similar manner to that described for Productions immediately below.

## **Number Series - Production Orders**

Use this setting to define the number sequences for Production Orders in a similar manner to that described for Productions immediately below.

## **Number Series - Productions**

Each record in the Production register has its own unique identifying number, based on a sequential series. When you enter a new record, the next number in the series will be used. If required, you can have a number of such sequences running concurrently, perhaps representing different years or different departments.

Use this setting to define these sequences, or Number Series. The different series should not overlap. If you leave the setting empty, Production Numbers will start at 1 and continue consecutively.

When you enter a Production, the next number in the first valid Number Series entered to this setting will be used as a default; change to the first unused number in any other Number Series using 'Paste Special'.

For each number sequence, you have a measure of control over whether Nominal Ledger Transactions will be generated automatically when you approve Production records in that sequence. Using 'Paste Special' from the N/L field brings up a selection list containing two options: "GenTrans" and "Do Not GenTrans". Select the first option if Nominal Ledger Transactions are to be generated and the second if they are not. In effect, this feature is an exclusionary one in that you can only choose to not have Nominal Ledger Transactions created for a particular number sequence. If the overall preference (set in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger) is to not have such transactions created, you cannot decide to have them created for a single sequence.

						S	ave
	No.		Date				
	From	To	From	To	Comment	N/L	
1	5000	5999	1/1/2009	31/12/2009	London Office	GenTrans	~
2	50000	50999	1/1/2009	31/12/2009	Manchester Of	GenTrans	
3							
4							
5							
6							
7							
8							
9							
0							
11							~

When you double-click 'Number Series - Productions' in the Settings list, the following window appears—

Enter each required Number Series on the first blank line. The Comment will be shown in the 'Paste Special' list, so enter some text that will help you choose a number from the correct sequence. Then, click the [Save] button in the Button Bar to save the changes. To close the window without saving changes, click the close box.

## **Production Settings**

This setting contains some miscellaneous options controlling the behaviour of various aspects of the Production module.

#### **Options Card**

Save           Options         Cost Items           Buffer Days         3           Production Lines hold Actual Qty           Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned           Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production           Round odd Hours to One Day           Sequence of Production Operations           Allow to work with Next Sequence while current one is not finished           Complete Sequence before next one           Generate Planned           Productions           Production Orders	roduction Settings:	Inspect		
Buffer Days       3 <ul> <li>Production Lines hold Actual Qty</li> <li>Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned</li> <li>Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production</li> <li>Round odd Hours to One Day</li> </ul> Sequence of Production Operations				Save
Production Lines hold Actual Qty     Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned     Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production     Round odd Hours to One Day Sequence of Production Operations     Allow to work with Next Sequence while current one is not finished     Complete Sequence before next one Generate Planned Productions		Options	Cost Items	
Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned     Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production     Round odd Hours to One Day Sequence of Production Operations     Allow to work with Next Sequence while current one is not finished     Complete Sequence before next one Generate Planned Productions	Buffer Days 3			
O Productions	5equence of Production Allow to work with N	Always create Create Stock Round odd He Operations ext Sequence	e Normal Productio Depreciation from ours to One Day while current one	n Qty from Planned Discarded Production
Production Orders	O Productions			
	<ul> <li>Production Orders</li> </ul>			

#### **Buffer Days**

If the Machines that you use in the production process require some down time between jobs, perhaps for cleaning or calibration, specify the duration of that down time here, in days. This down time will apply to every Machine.

This information will be used by the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Sales Orders and Production modules, and by the 'Create Planned Records from Orders' function, also in the Sales Orders module. These functions create Production Orders or Productions for Stocked Items with Recipes that have been included in Sales Orders with future Planned Delivery Dates (i.e. for Items that you have sold and that you need to build or assemble). The dates of these Production Orders or Productions will be calculated from the Planned Delivery Dates of the Sales Orders, the various lead times in the appropriate Recipes (i.e. Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce, Time to Setup and Fixed Assembly Days), the number of Buffer Days specified here, and the working hours of the Machine recorded in the Machine Hours register. This ensures you will build or assemble the goods just before they are scheduled for delivery to the Customer.

The number of Buffer Days will also be used when calculating Start Dates in Production Plans in the MRP module. Please refer to the 'MRP' manual for more details.

## **Production Lines hold Actual Qty**

Use this option to specify whether the quantities shown in Production and Production Operation rows represent a single application of the Recipe or the total quantities required.

For example, a Recipe states that two components are required to produce one final Item. When you use this Recipe in a Production with the requirement to produce two final Items, you will enter "2" in the Qty field in the header of the Production record. If you are using this option, the In Qty of the component will change from "2" to "4", and the Out Qty of the final Item will change from "1" to "2". If you are not using this option, the In Qty of the component will stay at "2", and the Out Qty of the final Item will stay at "1".

This option does not apply to Production Orders. The quantities shown in Production Order rows will always represent a single application of the Recipe. When you create a Production from a Production Order using the 'Finish Batch' Operations menu function or the Production Time Entry interface, the calculation of the quantities in the new Production rows will depend on this option. Please refer to page 39 above for more details about the Production Time Entry interface.

#### **Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned**

This option affects the calculation of quantities in Production Orders and Productions created by the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Sales Orders and Production modules, and by the 'Create Planned Records from Orders' function, also in the Sales

Orders module. These functions create Production Orders or Productions for Stocked Items with Recipes that have been included in Sales Orders with future Planned Delivery Dates (i.e. for Items that you have sold and that you need to build or assemble).

If you do not use this option, these functions will create Production Orders or Productions for the exact quantity that you have sold. If you use this option, they will create Production Orders or Productions for the exact quantity or the Normal Prod Qty in the relevant Recipes, whichever is the larger. For example, if you have sold 10 of an Item but the Normal Prod Qty in its Recipe is 20, these functions will create a Production for Qty 10 if you are not using this option and Qty 20 if you are. If you have sold 21, then this option will have no effect and a Production for Qty 21 will be created in both situations.

#### **Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production**

If an operative uses the Production Time Entry interface to record that some of what has been produced has been discarded, a second Production will be created for the discarded quantity. This second Production will be marked as Finished but Discarded, thus removing the components from stock and updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. The two Productions will be connected to each other through the Attachments facility. The second Production will usually not add any final Items to stock. However, if you are using this option, the Discarded final Items will be added to stock, and an automatic Stock Depreciation will then remove them.

Please refer to page 39 above for more details about the Production Time Entry interface.

#### **Round odd Hours to One Day**

You can use the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Sales Orders and Production modules, and the 'Create Planned Records from Orders' function, also in the Sales Orders module to create Production Orders or Productions for Stocked Items with Recipes that have been included in Sales Orders with future Planned Delivery Dates (i.e. for Items that you have sold and that you need to build or assemble). The dates of these Production Orders or Productions will be calculated from the Planned Delivery Dates of the Sales Orders, the various lead times in the appropriate Recipes (i.e. Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce, Time to Setup and Fixed Assembly Days) and the number of Buffer Days specified above.

If the result of this calculation is not be a whole number of days, it will usually be rounded down, unless you are using this option.

For example, if the lead time is 4 days 23 hours and you are not using this option, then the date of the Production or Production Order will be four days before it is needed. If you are using this option, the date will be five days before it is needed.

This option is also used as described above in the MRP module to calculate the dates in Production Plans and, from there, in Productions or Production Orders.

#### **Sequence of Production Operations**

When you create a sequence of Production Operations from a Production, these options will control how strictly that sequence must be followed.

If you choose the first option, you will be able to mark the Production Operations as Started and Finished in any order.

If you choose the second option, you will be able to mark the Production Operations as Started in any order, but you will have to mark them as Finished in sequence order.

In both cases, you will be able to have more than one Production Operation marked as Started at any one time.

It is recommended that you choose the second option if you have chosen in the Account Usage Production setting to have Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations. In this case, the sequence in which you Finish each Production Operation becomes significant. In particular, the Transaction from the final Production Operation, which debits the value of the final Item to the Stock Account and credits this value to the Work In Progress Account, may not be correct if there

are earlier Operations in the sequence that you have not yet Finished. This option will ensure that you mark the Operations as Finished in the correct order.

**Generate Planned** There are various Maintenance functions that you can use to create Production Orders or Productions remotely.

For example, you can use the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Sales Orders and Production modules, and the 'Create Planned Records from Orders' function, also in the Sales Orders module to create Production Orders or Productions for Stocked Items with Recipes that have been included in Sales Orders with future Planned Delivery Dates (i.e. for Items that you have sold and that you need to build or assemble).

You can use the Sales Forecast register in the MRP module to predict the future monthly sales of Output Items. From a Sales Forecast record, you can create a Production Plan for each month, and from there you can use the 'Create Productions' Maintenance function to schedule the assembly of the Items that you expect to sell.

Use these options to specify whether these functions will create Productions or Production Orders for these Items.

Nachine Cost Item	Options	Cost Items		
Labour Cost Item	MACHINE			
Labour Cost Item I	ABOUR	Run Time Act.	Туре	MACHI
Setup Cost Item	5ETUP	Setup Act.	Туре	SETUP
Move Cost Item	MOVE	Move Act.	Туре	
Queue Cost Item	QUEUE	Queue Act.	Туре	
) Actual Time Fixed Time Auto Calculate Co: Add Work Cost Add Discarded Co:		ns Work Cost per	Hour	0.3

## **Cost Items Card**

## Machine Cost Item Paste Special

Item register

The Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items option below allows you to record the running costs of the Machines used in Productions. If you are using this option, you must also specify a Machine Cost Item here, you should specify Running Costs/hr in the Asset records for your Machines ('Costs' card) and you should specify such an Asset in the Machine field in each Production.

If you are using this feature, an extra row containing this Item will be added to each Production when you first save it. This row will record the running cost of the Machine used during the Production process. The running cost will be taken from the Running Costs/hr field in the relevant Asset record, and from the Start and End Time of the Production. When you mark the Production as Finished and save it, the running cost will be added to the value of the assembled Item (i.e. it will be debited to the Stock Account), and it will be credited to the Production W-cost Account.
The choice of the Production W-cost Account will depend on whether you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module. If you are, and you specify a Machine Cost Item here that belongs to an Item Group in which you have specified a Production W-cost Account, that Account will be used. If you are not using this option or the Item Group does not have a Production Wcost Account, the W-cost Account will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.

If a Production has a Routing, the extra row for the running cost will not be added to the Production but instead will be added to each Production Operation.

The Machine Cost Item must be a Service Item.

#### Labour Cost Item, Setup Cost Item, Move Cost Item, Queue Cost Item

	Paste Special	Item register
	calculated at Production	Routing, running costs will be Operation level. You can record nning costs, as follows—
Labour	The cost of labou	r.
Setup		g up the Machine e.g. calibration uids or consumables.
Move		ng parts either from stock to the on Operation or from one ation to the next.
Queue	e.g. waiting for	I in waiting for parts to be ready paint to dry or heated parts to e is also known as non-instant
	four fields (Labour Cos Cost Item and Queue of these costs when compl this case, you need to s four fields. Each Item m you create a Production extra rows: one for ea	xed Time option (below), these st Item, Setup Cost Item, Move Cost Item) allow you to record eting a Production Operation. In specify an Item in each of these sust be a Service Item. Each time in Operation, it will contain four ch of these Items. These rows various running costs incurred by

the Production Operation. The In Qty in each of these

rows (number of hours) will be taken from the Routing specified in the Production or from the Standard Operation record specified in the Routing. The Unit Cost will be the Work Cost per Hour (below).

If you are using the Actual Time option (below), you only need specify a Labour Cost Item. Again, this should be a Service Item. You will record the labour time required for the Production Operation first by creating Activities using the 'Create Activity' function on the Operations menu of the Production Operation. This Item will appear in the Item field of all Activities created in this way. You will then bring these Activities into the Production Operation using the 'Add Labour' function on the same menu. The 'Add Labour' function will add an extra row containing the Labour Cost Item to the Production Operation. The In Qty of this row (number of hours) will be the total Cost (Time) of these Activities (providing they have been marked as Done), and the Unit Cost will be the Work Cost per Hour (below).

In both cases (Fixed Time and Actual Time), when you mark a Production Operation as Finished, the choice of the Account(s) that will be credited with these running costs will depend on whether you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module. If you are, and you specify Items in these four fields that belong to Item Groups in which you have specified Production W-cost Accounts, those Accounts will be used. If you are not using this option or the Item Groups do not have Production Wcost Accounts, the W-cost Account will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.

These Items must all be Service Items.

#### **Run Time Act. Type**

# Paste Special Activity Types setting, CRM

module The Production Time Entry interface is a simple interface that allows you to work on a Production while automatically recording Labour and Setup Time. If you are using this interface, when you start work on a

Production, an Activity will be created automatically, with the time you started work as the Start Time. This

Activity is known as a "Run Time" Activity. When you finish working on the Production, the Run Time Activity will be updated automatically with the time when work stopped, and the Activity will be marked as Done.

Specify here the Activity Type that you want to be used in each Run Time Activity.

Please refer to page 39 above for more details about the Production Time Entry interface.

# Setup Act. Type Paste Special Activity Types setting, CRM module

Time

Actual

The Production Time Entry interface is a simple interface that allows you to work on a Production while automatically recording Labour and Setup Time. When you finish working on a Production, you will have the opportunity to enter a Setup Time (e.g. time spent calibrating the Machine or replenishing fluids before starting work on the Production). If you enter a Setup Time and if you are using the Add Work Cost option (below), an Activity will be created automatically to record this time. This Activity is known as a "Setup Activity" and will be marked as Done.

Specify here the Activity Type that you want to be used in each Setup Activity.

Please refer to page 39 above for more details about the Production Time Entry interface.

Use these options to specify whether you will record actual or fixed time against Production Operations.

Recording actual time against a Production Operation is a two-stage process. You should first create Activities using the 'Create Activity' function on the Operations menu of the Production Operation, and then bring these Activities into the Production Operation using the 'Add Labour' function on the same menu. This function will add an extra row containing the Labour Cost Item specified above to the Production Operation. The In Qty of this row (number of hours) will be the total Cost (Time) of these Activities (providing they have been marked as Done), and the Unit Cost will be the Work Cost per Hour (below).

Fixed If you are using this option, whenever you create a Production Operation record from a Production, it will contain extra rows for each of the cost types, using the Labour Cost Item, Setup Cost Item, Move Cost Item and Queue Cost Item specified above. The In Quantities of these rows (number of hours) will be taken from the Routing specified in the Production or from the Standard Operation record specified in the Routing. The Unit Cost in each case will be the Work Cost per Hour (below).

#### Auto Calculate Cost of produced Items

Please refer to the description of the Machine Cost Item above on page 144 for details of this option.

Add Work Cost This option is used for three purposes.

First, if you are using the Production Time Entry interface and you want an Activity to be created for Setup Time using the Setup Activity Type specified above, check this box. Run Time Activities will always be created.

Second, if you are using the Production Time Entry interface together with this option, a Work Cost will be added to each Production automatically. This will be calculated using the total Cost (Time) of the Setup and Run Time Activities and the Work Cost per Hour specified below. Since each Production will be marked as Finished automatically, you will not be able to change this Work Cost. If you have specified a Number Produced in the Recipe, the Cost (Time) of the Setup Activity will be divided by this figure before being added into the calculation.

Finally, use this option if you would like a Work Cost to be added to each new Recipe automatically. This Work Cost will be calculated using the Work Cost per Hour specified below and the time required for the Recipe (the total of the Time to Setup and the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce). The Work Cost will be placed in the W-cost field in the last Input row in the Recipe. If

the Recipe has a Number Produced, this will be used to calculate a Work Cost per unit. You cannot change this calculated Work Cost figure, but you can in effect adjust it by specifying another Work Cost (which can be negative if necessary) in one of the other Input rows. This feature does not apply to Recipes with Routings.

Please refer to page 39 above for more details about the Production Time Entry interface.

#### Work Cost per Hour

The Work Cost per Hour is used for four purposes.

First, if you are using the Fixed Time option above, this will be the hourly rate for Labour, Setup Time, Move Time and Queue Time that will be added automatically to Production Operations when you create them from Productions.

Second, if you are using the Actual Time option above and you use the 'Add Labour' Operations menu function to add time to Production Operations from Activities, this will be the hourly rate.

Third, if you record time against a Production using the Production Time Entry interface and you are using the Add Work Cost option above, then this time will be added automatically to the Production as a Work Cost using the hourly rate specified here.

Finally, if you are using the Add Work Cost option above, a Work Cost will be added to each new Recipe automatically. This Work Cost will be calculated using the Work Cost per Hour specified here and the time required for the Recipe (the total of the Time to Setup and the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce). The Work Cost will be placed in the W-cost field in the last Input row in the Recipe. If the Recipe has a Number Produced, this will be used to calculate a Work Cost per unit. This feature does not apply to Recipes with Routings.

Please refer to page 39 above for more details about the Production Time Entry interface.

#### **Add Discarded Cost**

If an operative uses the Production Time Entry interface to record that some of what has been produced has been discarded, a second Production will be created for the discarded quantity. This second Production will be marked as Finished but Discarded, thus removing the components from stock and updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. The two Productions will be connected to each other through the Attachments facility. If you are using this option, the value of the second (Discarded) Production will be added to the first (Finished) Production as a Work Cost, and therefore this value will be included in the stock value of the "good" Items.

Please refer to page 39 above for more details about the Production Time Entry interface.

## Routings

Please refer to page 133 above for details of this setting.

### Standard Operations

Please refer to page 124 above for details of this setting.

# **Standard Problems**

Use this setting to record reasons for discarding finished Productions. Please refer to the 'Service Orders' manual for full details.

## Work Shifts

If you define your Work Shifts in this setting, you can then use the Production Journal report to list the Productions worked on during a particular Work Shift. A Production will satisfy this requirement if its Start Time and End Date comply with the specified Work Shift record. If a Production has an End Date that complies with the Work Shift record but its Start Time is blank, it will not be included in the report.

To work with this setting, first ensure you are in the Production module, and then click the [Settings] button in the Master Control panel or use the Ctrl-S/ $\Re$ -S keyboard shortcut to open the 'Settings' list. Double-click 'Work [New] to create a new record. When the record is complete, click the [Save] button in the Button Bar to save changes and close it using the close box, or click the close box if you don't want to save changes.

😂 Work Shif	it: Inspec	t		×
		New	Duplicate Cancel Save	
Code Start Time			Monday @	
	Monday Tuesda Wedne Thursda Friday	y sday	<ul> <li>Saturday</li> <li>Sunday or Bank Holidays</li> </ul>	

Enter a Code and Comment for the Work Shift, and specify the Start and End Time. Click the check box(es) as appropriate: you could, for example, have a single Work Shift record for standard time during the week, and a separate one for overtime, in which case you would click all five week day check boxes in both records.

A Work Shift marked as Sunday will include work on bank holidays. For example this would include work on Christmas Day, even if Christmas Day is not a Sunday. If Christmas Day is a Monday, work on Christmas Day will not be included in a Work Shift marked as Monday.

			New Duplicate Cancel Save
ntry UK C	omment Bar	nk and Public Holid	lays in England and Wales
		Date	Special Day
Monday	1	1/1/2009	NYD
Tuesday	2 3	2/1/2009	NYD2
📃 Wednesday	3	10/4/2009	GF
Thursday	4	13/4/2009	EM
Friday	5	4/5/2009	EMBH
Saturday	6	25/5/2009	SPBH
🗹 Sunday	7	31/8/2009	SUBH
	8	25/12/2009	CD
	9	26/12/2009	BD
	10	1/1/2010	NYD
	11	2/4/2010	GF
	12	5/4/2010	EM
	13	3/5/2010	EMBH
	14	31/5/2010	SPBH
	15	30/8/2010	SUBH
		27/12/2010	CD
	17	28/12/2010	BD
	18		
	19		
	20		
	21		
	22		

To use the bank holiday feature, you must list the holidays in your country in the Bank Holidays setting in the System module.

Every date listed in the matrix in the Bank Holidays setting will count as a bank holiday as far as Work Shifts are concerned. Also if you click one of the check boxes in the Bank Holidays setting (e.g. the Monday check box), every Monday in the year will then count as a bank holiday, so work on Mondays will be included in Work Shifts marked as Sundays.

# The Item Register

This register is fully described in the 'Items and Pricing' manual.

When entering assembled Items, a distinction should be made between Items that are assembled at the moment of delivery and those that are assembled in advance of delivery and held in stock. This distinction is made using the Item Type options on the 'Pricing' card. In both cases, the assembly process (the components used, and the quantities required) is governed by a Recipe. Recipes are described below on page 155.

😒 ltem: Inspect									
Operations						New	Duplicate C	ancel Sav	e
	10125 Video Starter Kit (10	× DVD-R, So	Grou CART cable)	)	ot For Sales				0
Pricing Stock	Warehouse	Costs	Recipe	A/C	Varieties	Texts	Cost Model	User Values	
Unit Base Price Base Price Change Price Factor Item Formulae Markup % Bonus % Objects Classification	15.00 10/12/2008	(	Item Type _ Plain Stocked Structuri Service Treat Ite	ed Item	erial on Projec	t			

# **Stocked Items**

Use this option for Items which are assembled in advance of delivery and which are to be held in stock. Assembly of such Items is carried out using the Production register (described below on page 196). When a Production record is marked as "Finished", the stock levels of the Input Items (the

components) are reduced, and the stock of the Output Item (the assembled Item) is increased.

A component can itself be an assembled Item. This must be a Stocked Item, itself produced using a Production record. When such a sub-assembly is produced, its stock will be increased. When it is used as a component, its stock will be decreased. An assembled Item can be made up of several levels of sub-assemblies.

# Structured Items

Use this option for Items that are assembled at the moment the delivery is made. Structured Items are never held in stock: when they are delivered to Customers, stock levels of their components are reduced.

# **Phantom Items**

A "Phantom Item" is a Plain Item with a Recipe. This is an Item that only exists momentarily during a complex Production process. If the Recipe representing the Production process has a Routing, the various stages or Operations in the Routing can produce sub-assemblies to be used later in the process. These sub-assemblies can be Phantom Items. The components used to produce a Phantom Item will be removed from stock at the relevant point but, being a Plain Item, the Phantom Item will never be held in stock. Please refer to page 86 above for more details and an example.

# The Recipe Register

A Recipe is the list of the components (including quantities) needed to build an assembled Item. The Recipe is therefore the Bill of Materials for that Item.

Before you can enter a Recipe, you should enter the result of the Recipe (the assembled Item) in the Item register as described above on page 153. After defining the Recipe using the Recipe register as described here, return to the Item record for the assembled Item and specify the Recipe on the 'Recipe' card.

If you specify that the assembled Item is a Structured Item using the options on the 'Pricing' card of the Item record, the Recipe will be applied at the moment of delivery. Enter the Item Number of the assembled Item in an Order and create a Delivery as usual. Stock levels for each of the components will be reduced according to the Recipe when you approve the Delivery. The Structured Item itself will never be held in stock.

If the assembled Item is a Stocked Item, you must build it prior to delivery using the Production register and hold it in stock. When you mark the Production record as Finished and save it, stock levels for the components will be decreased as appropriate and those for the assembled Item increased.

To work with Recipes, ensure you are in the Production module and click the [Recipes] button in the Master Control panel to open the Recipe register. Alternatively, if you are in the Stock module, click the [Settings] button in the Master Control panel and double-click 'Recipes' in the subsequent list. In both cases, click the [New] button in the Button Bar to create a new Recipe record.

	Operation	ns				New	Duplicate	Can	cel S	ave
	Code	80601		Comment	HiFi Rack					
	Normal Prod Qty		1	Time to Setup			Languag	je		
	Min Prod Qty			Days to Produce				Clos	sed	
Fix	ed Assembly Days			Hours to Produce	3.0	0 Minu	utes	Seco	nds	
	Res. mgr. Colour	Red		Number Produced		1				
	Standard Batch		2	Extra Prod Oty						
	Default Routing		-	2.0.2.1.0.2.407						
	Instructions									
	Item	Specificatio			In	Out	Rel.	(-cost	W-cost	
1	80110	Glass Shelf			5.00			5.00		^
2	80111	40 cm Stee			10.00			0.50		
3	80112	50 cm Stee		n	10.00			0.50		
	80113	90 cm Stee			2.00			0.75		
4	80114	36 cm Stee			2.00			0.50		
5		Hex Screw Spiked Fee			20.00			0.10		
5 6	00117	Spiked Fee Rubber She			20.00			0.10		
5 6 7	80116		ali peac		4.00			0.10	0.00	
5 6 7 8	80117							0.20	0.00	
5 6 7	80117 80118	End Cap HiFi Rack			1.00	1.00		46.30		V

Code

The Code for the Recipe can be up to 20 characters long. It is recommended that you use a Code that is similar to the Item Number of the assembled Item.

**Comment** A description of the assembly.

Normal Prod Qty This field is only used if the result of the Recipe is a Stocked Item. If this is the case, specify here how many times the Recipe will usually be used in a single Production or Production Order record.

> When you specify the Recipe in a Production or Production Order, this figure will be placed in the Qty field in the header of the Production or Production Order as a default.

> If you create a Production or Production Order from a Sales Order with a Planned Delivery Date using the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' Maintenance function, this figure will be

placed in the Qty field in the header of the new Production or Production Order as a default if it is larger than the quantity in the Sales Order and if you are using the Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned option in the Production Settings setting.

The Qty field in the header of a Production or Production Order is the number of applications of the Recipe. For example, if the Out quantity of the Recipe is "2" (entered in the row containing the Output Item) and the Recipe is applied five times in a Production record (i.e. the Qty in the Production header is "5"), the result will be ten units of the Output Item being added to stock.

Take care with the Normal Prod Qty if the Output Item or any of the components are Serial Numbered at unit level. For example, a Recipe contains a Serial Numbered component with an In Qty of two and the Normal Prod Qty is also two. When you use the Recipe in a Production, the Production will contain four rows each with a In Qty of one, allowing you to enter Serial Numbers individually (In Qty \* Normal Prod Qty). Therefore, you must specify a Normal Prod Qty if any of the Items are Serial Numbered. If you do not, the Serial Numbered Item will not be copied to the Production because you are effectively multplying by zero. In addition, if you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, you must enter "1" here. If the Normal Prod Qty should in reality be greater than one, make the adjustment by increasing the In and Out Quantities of each Item.

Language	Paste Special	Languages setting, System module		
	Used as default in	Production Orders and Productions		

The Language specified here will be copied to all Production Orders and Productions that use the Recipe, where it will determine the Form that will be used when you print documents from those records, and the printer that will be used to print them. Please refer to the section describing documents in the 'Working Environment' chapter in the 'Introduction to HansaWorld Enterprise' manual for more details. **Min Prod Qty** If you create a Production or Production Order from a Sales Order with a Planned Delivery Date using the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' Maintenance function, this figure will be placed in the Qty field in the header of the new Production or Production Order as a default if it is larger than the quantity in the Sales Order. However, if you are using the Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned option in the Production Settings setting and the Normal Prod Qty immediately above is larger than this minimum, the Normal Prod Qty will be used instead.

# Time to Setup, Fixed Assembly Days, Days to Produce, Hours to Produce, Minutes, Seconds

These fields are only used if the result of the Recipe is a Stocked Item, as follows—

- **Days to Produce** The number of days required to build a single application of the Recipe (i.e. the number of days required to build the Out Qty). One day is 24 hours.
- **Hours to Produce** The number of hours required to build a single application of the Recipe.
- MinutesThe number of minutes required to build a single<br/>application of the Recipe.SecondsThe number of seconds required to build a single<br/>application of the Recipe.

If you specify any combination of Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds, they will be added together.

#### **Fixed Assembly Days**

This is a constant figure irrespective of the quantity being built (i.e. it is for work that is carried out once per production run, and so will be the same irrespective of the number of applications of the Recipe). Again, one day is 24 hours.

**Time to Setup** This is a constant figure irrespective of the quantity being built (i.e. it is for work that is carried out once per production run, and so will

be the same irrespective of the number of applications of the Recipe).

This field uses a time format. For example, if the Time to Setup is two hours, enter "02:00:00". The maximum time is 23:59:59.

For example, the Recipe might represent the assembly of an Item from moulded plastic components. The time taken to retrieve the set of moulds from the store, order the raw materials and set up the assembly line is the same irrespective of the quantity being built. Enter this time to the Fixed Assembly Days or the Time to Setup fields, depending on its duration and on whether you need to account for the costs. The remainder of the production time is taken up by pouring the plastic into the moulds, letting it cool, assembling the components and packaging them. If there is only one set of moulds, this can only be done for one unit at a time and therefore you should record this time in the Days, Hours, Minutes or Seconds to Produce fields, again depending on the duration.

These fields will be used together with the number of Buffer Days specified in the Production Settings setting to schedule the building of assembled Items as required. With the exception of the Fixed Assembly Days field, these fields can also be used to calculate Work Costs. These two features are now described.

The scheduling feature begins with the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Sales Orders and Production modules, and with the 'Create Planned Records from Orders' function, also in the Sales Orders module. These functions create Production Orders or Productions for Stocked Items with Recipes that have been included in Sales Orders with future Planned Delivery Dates (i.e. for Items that you have sold and that you need to build or assemble). The dates of these Production Orders or Productions will be calculated using the Planned Delivery Dates of the Sales Orders, these lead times in the appropriate Recipes, the number of Buffer Days specified in the Production Settings setting, and the working hours of the Machine recorded in the Machine Hours register. This ensures you will build or assemble the goods just before they are scheduled for delivery to the Customer.

For example-

Planned Delivery Date of Sales Order (qty 2)	January 25
Days to Produce for the first unit (from Recipe)	2
Days to Produce for the second unit (from Recipe)	2
Fixed Assembly Days (from Recipe)	1
Buffer Days (from Production Settings)	5

Date of Production or Production Order January 15

If the total lead time calculated in this way is not be a whole number of days, it will usually be rounded down, unless you are using the Round odd Hours to One Day option in the Production Settings setting. For example, if the lead time is 4 days 23 hours and you are not using this option, then the date of the Production or Production Order will be four days before it is needed. If you are using this option, the date will be five days before it is needed. The lead time may not be a whole number of days if you have specified a number of Hours, Minutes or Seconds to Produce (depending on the quantity to be produced), and will not be a whole number of days if you have specified a Time to Setup.

Please refer to page 274 below for details about how the Machine's working hours (recorded in the Machine Hours register) will affect the calculation of the lead time.

If you have specified a Number Produced in the Recipe (below), the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce will be divided by this figure before being included in the calculation.

These times will also be used when calculating Start Dates in Production Plans in the MRP module. Please refer to the 'MRP' manual for more details.

The 'Create Planned Records' functions will also create any necessary Purchase Orders for the components. These will be dated using the Delivery Days from the Default Purchase Items for the components, ensuring they arrive in time for the assembly process to be completed.

The costing feature begins with the Add Work Cost option in the Production Settings setting. If you are using this option, a Work Cost will be added to each new Recipe automatically. This Work Cost will be calculated using the Work Cost per Hour specified in the same setting and the time required for the Recipe (the total of the Time to Setup and the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce: the Fixed Assembly Days is not included). The Work Cost will be placed in the W-cost field in the last Input row in the Recipe.

#### For example-

Closed

Days to Produce (1 day, converted to hours)	24
Hours to Produce	3
Time to Setup (Hours)	<u>3</u>
Total Hours	30
Work Cost per Hour	0.10

Total Work Cost (for one application of the Recipe, placed in the W-<br/>cost field in the last Input row)3.00

The calculation of this Work Cost figure is also affected by the Number Produced. Please refer to the description of this field below on page 162 for details.

You cannot change this calculated Work Cost figure, but you can in effect adjust it by specifying another Work Cost (which can be negative if necessary) in one of the other Input rows.

This feature does not apply to Recipes with Routings.

Check this box if the Recipe can no longer be used. Closed Recipes will appear in the 'Recipes: Browse' window but not in the Recipes 'Paste Special' list.

If the result of a Closed Recipe is a Structured Item and you use that Item in an Order, Invoice or other sales or stock transaction, you will not be able to save the transaction. It is therefore recommended that you mark the Structured Item as Closed as well, to remove it from the Item 'Paste Special' list so that you do not use it by mistake in sales transactions.

#### Res. mgr. Colour Paste Special

Choices of possible entries

All Accepted and Started Production Orders with a particular Recipe will appear in the same colour in the Resource Planner. Choose that colour using this field.

#### Number Produced

The Time to Setup, the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce and the Fixed Assembly Days fields above usually refer to one application of the Recipe i.e. they are the times required to produce the Out Qty of the Output Item. If this is not the case, specify here the number of applications of the Recipe to which these times refer.

First, the Number Produced will affect the calculation of lead times when you use the 'Create Planned Records' and 'Create Planned Records from Orders' functions to create Productions or Production Orders, and also when you create Productions or Production Orders from the MRP module. If you have specified a Number Produced, the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce will be divided by this figure before being included in the calculation. To repeat the example previously used in the section describing the various time fields above but with a Number Produced of two—

Planned Delivery Date of Sales Order (qty 2)	January 25
Days to Produce for the first unit (from Recipe, divided by	2) 1
Days to Produce for the second unit (from Recipe, divided	by 2) 1
Fixed Assembly Days (from Recipe)	1
Buffer Days (from Production Settings)	5
Date of Production or Production Order	January 17

Second, if you are using the Add Work Cost option in the Production Settings setting to have a Work Cost added to each new Recipe automatically, entering a Number Produced will change the calculation of the Work Cost. Again, repeating the example used in the description of the various time fields above, the effect will be as follows—

Days to Produce (1 day, converted to hours)	24
Hours to Produce	3
Time to Setup (Hours)	<u>3</u>
Total Hours	30
Work Cost per Hour	0.10
Total Work Cost (for one application of the Recipe)	3.00
Number Produced	2

Work Cost per Unit (placed in W-cost field in last Input row) 1.50

This field is also used together with the Production Time Entry interface and the Add Work Cost option. The Add Work Cost option means that Setup and Run Time Activities will both be created for each Production that you work on, and a Work Cost will be added to each Production automatically. This will be calculated using the total Cost (Time) of the Setup and Run Time Activities and the Work Cost per Hour (also specified in the Production Settings setting). If you have specified a Number Produced in the Recipe, the Cost (Time) of the Setup Activity will be divided by this figure before being added into the calculation.

Standard Batch Specify here the number of applications of the Recipe that the Machine will usually build. For example, if you need to fill the Machine with enough raw materials to produce four applications of the Recipe each time you use it, enter "4" in this field. When you create a Production from a Production Order using the 'Finish Batch' function on the Operations menu, this figure will be copied to the Qty field in the header of that Production (irrespective of the Qty in the Production Order).

Take care with the Standard Batch if the Output Item or any of the components are Serial Numbered at unit level. For example, a Recipe contains a Serial Numbered

component with an In Qty of two and the Standard Batch is also two. When you create a Production from a Production Order that uses the Recipe, the Production will contain four rows each with a In Qty of one, allowing you to enter Serial Numbers individually (In Qty \* Standard Batch). Therefore, you must specify a Standard Batch if any of the Items are Serial Numbered. If you do not, the Serial Numbered Item will not be copied to the Production because you are effectively multplying by zero. In addition, if you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, you must enter "1" here. If the Standard Batch should in reality be greater than one, make the adjustment by increasing the In and Out Quantities of each Item. **Default Routing Paste Special** Routings setting, Production module If the Recipe represents a Production process that has been divided into stages, specify a Routing here. This is effectively a schedule of the process, specifying the stages and the order in which they should be carried out. If the Recipe has a Routing, you should assign a Material to each of the Input and Output Items (on flip B). Materials will connect the Items to the relevant stages in the process. You cannot enter a Work Cost in any of the Input rows if the Recipe has a Routing. Instead, you should record the Work Costs either by specifying times in each Standard Operation or using Activities. Please refer to the description above on page 147 of the Time options (Actual and Fixed) in the Productions Settings setting for more details. Note that if you use a Recipe with a Routing in a Production Order, you cannot then work on the resulting Productions using the Production Time Entry interface.

**Instructions** Use these three lines to record instructions about how the Recipe should be used. These instructions will be copied to Production Orders.

Use the grid area that takes up most of the screen to list the Input Items (i.e. the components that will be used to build the final assembly) and to specify

the Item Number of the assembly or the finished product (i.e. the result of the Recipe). This must be a Structured Item or a Stocked Item. If you will use the Production register to build the Item, or if the result of the Recipe will itself be used as a component in another Recipe, it must be a Stocked Item. A Recipe can result in more than one assembly or finished product: if so, they should all be the same Type (i.e. all Structured Items or all Stocked Items).

Flip A Item

Paste Special

Item register

Enter the Item Numbers of each of the Input Items (i.e. the components) and of the Output Item(s) (i.e. the finished product). You can list the Items in any order.

You cannot use Structured Items as components. With one exception, you also cannot use Plain Items as components or as assembled Items. If you need a Recipe to contain costs such as electricity, labour, etc as components, these costs should be Service Items, not Plain Items. You will not be able to use the 'Disassemble' function to dismantle a Production that contains a component that is a Plain Item. The exception is that a Plain Item with a Recipe (a "Phantom" Item) can be a component in a Recipe that has a Default Routing. Please refer to page 86 above for more details of Phantom Items and an example.

You can use an Item with Varieties as a component or as a finished Item. You must enter the combined Item/Variety Number (i.e. you must choose a specific Variety). Use 'Paste Special' from this field or from the In or Out Qty fields to ensure the combined Number is correct. Please refer to the 'Items and Pricing' manual for more details about Varieties.

In addition to the 'Paste Special' feature, you can use the 'Item Search' function on the Operations menu to add Items to the Recipe. This function is described below on page 171.

If the Recipe is one you will use in a Production Order and you will work on the resulting Productions using the Production Time Entry interface, the Recipe cannot contain any Serial Numbered Items. The Production Time Entry interface is simplified to the extent that Serial Numbers cannot be registered.

Specification	The Item Name from the Item register will be placed here when you enter the Item Number.
In	Enter the quantity of each component required to make or build the finished product. Do not enter an In Qty for the assembled Item(s).
	If an Item is Serial Numbered at unit level, you can enter the full required In Quantity. When you use the Recipe in a Production, the Production will contain the appropriate number of rows each with a In Qty of one, allowing you to enter Serial Numbers individually.
	In any Nominal Ledger Transactions arising from Production records using this Recipe, the credit amount will be taken from the rows with an In Qty (i.e. Input Items).
Out	This field contains the quantity of assembled Items that can be made from the components listed above. Usually, this will be just one, and it must be one if the Out Item is a Structured Item.
	If an Item is Serial Numbered at unit level, you can enter the full required Out Quantity. When you use the Recipe in a Production, the Production will contain the appropriate number of rows each with a Out Qty of one, allowing you to enter Serial Numbers individually.
	In any Nominal Ledger Transactions arising from Production records using this Recipe, the debit amount will be taken from the rows with an Out Qty (i.e. Output Items).
Rel.	Relativity. You must use this field if the result of the Recipe is that more than one Item will be assembled (i.e. there is more than one row in the Recipe with an Output Item). Enter a figure in each row representing an Output Item. When you mark a Production using this Recipe as Finished, the total stock value of the Input Items will be calculated using the appropriate Cost Models. The stock values of the Output Items will then be calculated from that total using the ratio that you enter here.
	The Relativity figures are not percentages but ratios. For example, the total stock value of the Input Items is 103 and there are two Output Items with Relativities of 30 and 60 respectively. The stock value of the first Output

166

Item will be 103 \* 30/(30 + 60), and the stock value of the second Output Item will be 103 \* 60/(30 + 60). If the Out Qty of the first Output Item is two, then the unit stock value of the first Output Item will be 103 \* 30/((2\*30) + 60), and the stock value of the second Output Item will be 103 \* 60/((2\*30) + 60).

If the Recipe has more than one Output Item, you will not be able to save it if you have not specified a Relativity figure in every row with an Output Item.

Input Cost value (per unit). If the row contains an Input Item, enter the unit Cost Price for the Item. The default will be the Cost Price of the Item. The cost shown in this field is NOT the same as the stock value calculated using the usual Cost Model. You can update this figure to the latest Cost Price in the Item record using the 'Update Recipes' Maintenance function.

If the row contains an Output Item (i.e. the assembled Item), enter the unit cost value of that Item. This will usually be the sum of the Cost Prices of the Input Items, taking quantities into account. Again, the default will be the Cost Price of the Item, and again you can update the figure using the 'Update Recipes' function. In this case, however, 'Update Recipes' will change the figure to the latest sum of the Cost Prices of the Input Items, and optionally will copy this new sum figure to the Cost Price field in the Item record for the assembled Item.

The total Input Costs are shown in the Cost of In-Items field in the footer, while the total Output Costs are shown in the Value of Out-Items field.

The W-cost is the Work Cost incurred in building or assembling the Recipe. Usually, this will be cost of the labour required to build the assembled Item.

You should only specify a Work Cost if the result of the Recipe is a Stocked Item that you will build using the Production register. If the result is a Structured Item, the Work Cost will be ignored.

You should enter the Work Cost in a row featuring an Input Item, as shown in the illustration above. This ensures the Work Cost will correctly be credited to the Production W-cost Account in any Nominal Ledger

#### I-cost

W-cost

Transactions arising from Production records using this Recipe. If you enter the Work Cost in an Output row, the Work Cost will incorrectly be debited (not credited) to the Production W-cost Account.

You can usually place the Work Cost in any Input row except the last one. The exception is when you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module and you have specified Production W-cost Accounts in your Item Groups. If so, the Production W-cost Account will be taken from the Item Group to which the Item in the row with the Work Cost belongs. In this case, therefore, you should be sure to enter the Work Cost in the correct row in the Recipe, so that the correct Account is credited. If you are not using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option or you have not specified a W-cost Account in the relevant Item Group, the Production Wcost Account will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.

Although you should enter the Work Cost in an Input row, the figure is independent of the In Qty in that row. For example, if the Work Cost is 10.00, enter 10.00: do not enter 5.00 if the In Qty is 2.

The Work Cost should be the total cost incurred through one application of the Recipe. For example, if the Out Qty of the assembled Item is 2, this means that one application of the Recipe will add two assembled Items to stock. If the cost incurred in assembling these two Items is 10.00, enter 10.00 as the Work Cost. Do not enter the cost per unit, 5.00.

If you are using the Add Work Cost option in the Production Settings setting, a Work Cost will be added to the Recipe automatically. This Work Cost will be calculated using the Work Cost per Hour specified in the same setting and the time required for the Recipe (the total of the Time to Setup and the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce). The Work Cost will be placed in the W-cost field in the last Input row in the Recipe. You cannot change this Work Cost figure itself, but you can in effect adjust it by specifying another Work Cost (which can be negative if necessary) in one of the other Input rows.

Work Cost values are included in both the Cost of In-Items and Value of Out-Items fields in the footer.

You cannot enter a Work Cost if the Recipe has a Routing (the automatic addition of a Work Cost controlled by the Add Work Cost option will not occur in this situation). If a Recipe has a Routing, you should record the Work Costs either by specifying times in each Standard Operation or using Activities. Please refer to the description above on page 147 of the Time options (Actual and Fixed) in the Productions Settings setting for more details.

Flip B

Description

Use this field to record notes about the Item and its use in the Recipe.

 Material
 Paste Special
 Materials setting, Production module

If the Recipe has a Routing (i.e. it represents a Production process that has been divided into stages), you should assign a Material to each Input and Output Item (unless an Input Item is a Plain Item with its own Recipe, in which case you should leave this field empty and assign Materials in that Recipe).

The Material is the mechanism that connects each Item to a stage (i.e. to an Operation) in the process. In the case of an Input Item, the Material determines the stage in the process when it will be removed from stock. In the case of an Output Item, the Material determines when the completed Item will be added to stock.

Please refer to page 128 above for more details and an example.

This field shows whether the Item is an assembly (i.e. it has a Recipe specified on its 'Recipe' card). This is updated automatically and can't be changed.

Footer

Recipe

Locked

Once you are certain the Recipe is correct, you should check this box to prevent further changes. Once you have used a Recipe in a transaction (e.g. Delivery or Production), you should not change it, especially if the result of the Recipe is a Structured Item whose Paste Components During Entry box is not checked. In this case, changing the Recipe will introduce inaccuracies into the stock records, so the Recipe will be marked as Locked automatically when you use it in a Delivery for the first time. However, before the Delivery stage is reached and before even using such a Structured Item in a Sales Order, it is recommended that you lock its Recipe yourself. Otherwise, if you include the Item in a Sales Order and then change the Recipe, the 'Order' figures (quantities on unfulfilled Sales Orders) for the components in the 'Item Status' window (and many reports) will become incorrect. Please refer to the 'Items and Pricing' manual for full details about the 'Item Status' window.

If it subsequently becomes necessary to change a Recipe, you should not do so. Instead you should create a new one (and attach it to a new Stocked or Structured Item).

# Do not change a Recipe once it has been used in a stock transaction.

**Costof In-Items** 

This field contains the sum of the costs of the Input Items (W-cost + (I-cost \* In Qty)). If the assembled Item is a Stocked Item, you should transfer this value to the Cost Price field on the 'Costs' card of the Item record for the assembled Item, either manually or using the 'Update Recipes' Maintenance function in the Production module (described below on page 279). This will ensure that gross margin calculations are correct when you sell the assembled Item.

#### Value of Out-Items

This field contains the sum of the costs of the Output Items.

### **Operations Menu**

Operations				
Open Production Item Alternative				
Item Search	Shift+Ctrl+F			

The Operations menu for the 'Recipe: New' and 'Recipe: Inspect' windows is shown above. There is no Operations menu for the 'Recipes: Browse' window.

#### **Open Production Item Alternative**

This function creates and opens a new record in the Production Item Alternative register for the Output Item in the Recipe. This register connects Output Items, Machines and Recipes, allowing you to specify the Machines that you can use to produce the Output Item, and the Recipes that you will use with each Machine. Please refer to page 239 below for more details.

#### **Item Search**

You can use this function to search for Items that you can then add to the Recipe. This function is therefore an alternative to the 'Paste Special' feature. Place the insertion point in the Item field in any row and then select 'Search' from the Operations menu. The following window opens—

			Rur
Search for			
Classification			
	Search In Description No Group Alt. Code Base Price Any		
Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax		Pdf Html as Attachment Excel Print Dialog I grore Timeout Limit	

Search for

Enter here the string (e.g. part of an Item Number or Name) that you are looking for. You must make an entry in this field, otherwise no search will be carried out.

Classification	Paste Special	Item Classifications setting, Sales Ledger		
	the string that you spe	Classification here, the search for ecified in the field above will be nging to that Classification.		
Search In	Specify the field in whi	ch you want to search.		
Press [Run] to acti	vate the search. A report	t will be printed to screen, listing		

Press [Run] to activate the search. A report will be printed to screen, listing the Items found. If you click on an Item Number in the report, the Item will be added to the Recipe in the first empty row.

# The Production Order Register

The Production Order is a tool you can use to help schedule work on Productions.

You will usually need to use Production Orders in two circumstances-

- 1. You sell assembled or built Items in advance (in Sales Orders with future Planned Delivery Dates) and you need to schedule the assembly or building of those Items so that you can deliver them on time; and/or
- 2. You use the MRP module to forecast sales of assembled or built Items, and you need to schedule the assembly or building of the forecast quantities of those Items.

Maintenance functions exist that you can use to create Production Orders from Sales Orders with Planned Delivery Dates and from Sales Forecasts. You can also create Production Orders yourself. When you mark a Production Order as Accepted, it will be placed in a queue for the relevant Machine. Each Machine has its own queue. You can then monitor the queue for each Machine, and change the position of individual Production Orders in that queue. The main tools that you can use to monitor queues are the Resource Planner and the Production Queue report.

When a Production Order reaches the front of the queue, you should create a Production from it, to begin the Production process. Creating a Production from a Production Order is necessary because the purpose of Production Orders is solely to organise and schedule Productions, including allocating the work to the appropriate Machines. Production Orders do not control the assembly process itself, and nor do they update stock levels of the Input and Output Items or the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger.

You can create a Production from a Production Order using two methods-

- i. Open the Production Order and choose 'Finish Batch' from the Operations menu; and
- ii. If you are using the Production Time Entry interface, a Production will be created automatically from a Production Order when you begin work on it. This interface will be useful if you have a Production Manager administering Production Orders, and where Production Operatives working on each Production only need to record the times they begin and end work and the quantities they produce. The Production Manager can instruct an Operative to work on a particular Production Order, and the corresponding Production will be created automatically when the

Operative begins work. The Production Time Entry interface is described above on page 39.

The Production Order will remain in the queue until you mark it as Finished.

For details about the preparation steps you need to follow in order to use the Resource Planner to manage Production Orders, and for an example work flow with illustrations, please refer to page 23 above.

## **Entering a Production Order**

You will probably create Production Orders in three ways-

- 1. The 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Production and Sales Orders modules will create Production Orders to schedule the assembly of Output Items that you have sold in advance. To be sold in advance, the Output Item must be included in a Sales Order with a Planned Delivery Date.
- 2. You can use the Sales Forecast register in the MRP module to predict the future monthly sales of Output Items. From a Sales Forecast record, you can create a Production Plan for each month, and from there you can use the 'Create Productions' Maintenance function to schedule the assembly of the Items that you expect to sell.
- 3. You can enter Production Orders yourself.

You can decide whether the Maintenance functions mentioned in points 1 and 2 will create Productions or Production Orders, using the Generate Planned options in the Production Settings setting.

To open the Production Order register, ensure you are in the Production module and click the [Production Orders] button in the Master Control panel. The 'Production Orders: Browse' window is opened, showing Production Orders already entered.

		New	Duplicat	e	Sea	rch
No.		Due Date	Should Start	Recipe	Name	
1	1	19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	-
2		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	
3		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	_
4		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	
5		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	
6		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	
7		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	
8		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	
9				80501	Table, stainless steel	
10				80501	Table, stainless steel	
11		19/3/2009	15/3/2009	PLAS1	Grade 1 Plastic Bag	~

The Status column shows " $\sqrt{}$ " for Cancelled and Finished Production Orders and blank for other Production Orders. You can set this Status for each Production Order using the options in the header of the Production Order screen.

As in all browse windows you may sort the list by clicking on the column headings. To reverse any sort, simply click once again on the column heading. You can also scroll the list with the scroll bars. Finally, you can search for a record by entering a keyword in the field in the top right-hand corner. When you press the Return or Enter key, the first record with a match for the keyword in the current sort column will be highlighted.

To enter a new Production Order, click [New] in the Button Bar or use the Ctrl-N (Windows and Linux) or  $\Re$ -N (Mac OS X) keyboard shortcut. Alternatively, highlight a Production Order similar to the one you want to enter and click [Duplicate] on the Button Bar.

The 'Production Order: New' window is opened, empty if you clicked [New] or containing a duplicate of the highlighted Production Order.

	Opera	tions				New	Duplicate	Cancel Sa	ave
	No. 14	ł	Name	HiFi Rack				Status	
Re	ipe 80	0601	Qty	10	)			Cancelled	
Due D	ate 30	)/11/2009	Should Start	22/11/2009				Accepted	
Loca	ion PF	ROD	Person					Started	
Mac	nine W	ELD1	Queue Pos					🔘 Finished	
Langu	age		Extra Prod Qty					Reserved	
Rou	ing 👘								
			Comment	Items F	lanned Time	Actual Tir	ne		
	ion:								
Comn	ent								
Comn Obj	ent								
	ent	Descr.		In	Out	Objects			
Obj Item 1 80110	ent	Glass Shelf		In 5.00	Out	Objects			
Obj Item 1 80110 2 80111	ent	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel	Box Section	5.00 10.00	Out	Objects			
Obj Item 1 80110	ent	Glass Shelf 40 cm Steel	Box Section	5.00	Out	Objects			-

Since the amount of information stored about each Production Order will not fit on a single screen, the Production Order window has been divided into four cards. At the top of each is the header. There are four named buttons ('tabs') in the header.

 Comment	Items	Planned Time	Actual Time

By clicking the tabs you can navigate between cards. The header is always visible, as a reminder of the Production Order you are working with.

Second Se								
	erations				New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
No.	14	Name	HiFi Rack				Status 🔿 Create	ed
Recipe	80601	Qty	10				O Cancel	
Due Date	30/11/2009	Should Start	22/11/2009				Accept	
Location	PROD	Person					<ul> <li>Starte</li> </ul>	
Machine	WELD1	Queue Pos	3				🔘 Finishe	d
Language		Extra Prod Qty					Reserv	/ed
Routing								
		Comment	Items Pla	nned Time	Actual Tir	ne		

No.

No.	Paste Special	Select from another Number Series
	is the first unused num first valid row in the N setting. You may chang has already been used. system, the Production you first save the Pro	duction Order record. The default ber in the number sequence in the fumber Series - Production Orders ge this number, but not to one that If you are working in a multi-user order Number is assigned when duction Order. After you save a u can still change the Number, the Order is Created.
Name	The name of the Recip Recipe in the field belo	e appears here after you specify a w.
Status	-	tion Order can be in one of five he work flow and for reporting are as follows—
Created	Order register, Created Product blank in the St Orders: Browse of Created Pro Orders that are	enter a record in the Production it will be marked as Created. ction Orders are marked with a tatus column in the 'Production 'window. If you need to see a list duction Orders (i.e. Production e not yet in the queue for the hine), produce a Production
Cancelled		re you raise a Production Order in b is cancelled before work has

started, you should change the Status of the Production Order to Cancelled to signify that no work should be carried out and that no Productions are to be created from it. When you save the record, the End Date and Time (on the 'Actual Time' card) will be updated. Once a Production Order has been marked as Cancelled and saved, it can no longer be modified. Cancelled Production Orders are marked with a " $\sqrt{}^{h}$ " in the 'Production Orders: Browse' window.

Accepted When you need to place the Production Order in the queue for the Machine, mark it as Accepted and save it. Its position in the queue will be shown in the Queue Pos field. You must mark a Production Order as Accepted and save it before you can create Productions from it. Accepted Production Orders are marked with a blank in the Status column in the 'Production Orders: Browse' window.

Started As soon as work starts, you should change the Status of the Production Order to Started. When you save the record, the Start Date and Time (on the 'Actual Time' card) will be updated. The Production Order will be placed in the queue for the Machine if it is not already there (i.e. if the Queue Pos field is empty and the previous Status was Started).

> If you have created a Production from a Production Order and marked that Production as Started, the Status of the Production Order will be upgraded to Started automatically, if it is not already Started.

> The Production Order must have a Machine before you can mark it as Started, and that Machine must be one that is capable of producing the Output Item. This is controlled using the Production Item Alternative register.

> A Production Order must be Accepted or Started before you can create Productions from it.

Started Production Orders are marked with a blank in the Status column in the 'Production Orders: Browse' window.

**Finished** Check this box to confirm that the Production work instructed by the Production Order has been completed. The End Date and Time will be updated. Once you have marked a Production Order as Finished and saved it, you will no longer be able to modify it. Finished Production Orders are marked with a " $\sqrt{}$ " in the 'Production Orders: Browse' window.

 Recipe
 Paste Special
 Recipe register, Production module

Qty

#### **Used as default in** Productions

Specify the Recipe whose Production you are planning. The appropriate Input and Output Items together with quantities will be listed in the grid below.

When you enter the Recipe, if there is a record in the Production Item Alternative register for the Output Item, a Machine will be brought in to the field below. If you change the Machine, the Recipe and Input and Output Item may change as well, again depending on the Production Item Alternative record.

The number of applications of the Recipe required by the Production Order.

This field is not affected by the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting. Therefore the In and Out Quantities in the Production Order rows will always be the relevant quantities for one application of the Recipe. For example, a Recipe states that two components are required to produce one final Item. When you use this Recipe in a Production Order representing the eventual requirement to produce two final Items, you will enter "2" in this field. The In Qty of the component will stay at "2", and the Out Qty of the final Item will stay at "1". When you create a Production from the Production Order using the 'Finish Batch' function on the Operations menu or through the Production Time Entry interface, the In and Out Quantities in the new Production will take the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option into account. In the example, the In Qty in the Production will be "4" and the Out Qty will be "2" if you are using this option, and "2" and "1" respectively if not.

In a new Production Order, the default will be as follows—

# Production Order entered directly to the Production Order register

The default Qty will be the Normal Prod. Qty from the Recipe.

Production Order created from a Sales Order using the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' Maintenance functions

> The default Qty will be the Sales Order quantity (or the Min Prod. Qty in the Recipe if this is greater). If this default is less than the Normal Prod. Qty in the Recipe and you are using the Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned option in the Production Settings setting, the Normal Prod. Qty will be the default.

#### Due DatePaste SpecialChoose date

The Due Date is the date when the Production Order should be completed (i.e. the date by when the Qty above should have been assembled or built and received into stock).

If you created the Production Order from a Sales Order using the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' Maintenance functions, the Planned Delivery Date from the Sales Order will be copied here.

#### Should Start Paste Special Choose date

The date when work should begin, in order for it to be completed by the Due Date above.

If you created the Production Order from a Sales Order using the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' Maintenance functions, the Should Start date will be calculated from the Due Date, taking into account the Fixed Assembly Days, the Days,
Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce and the Time to Setup recorded in the Recipe, the Buffer Days and the Round Odd Hours To One Day option in the Production Settings setting, and the working hours of the Machine, specified in the Machine Hours register. The Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce together are the time required to produce a single unit, while the Fixed Assembly Days and the Time to Setup are independent of the quantity being produced. For example—

Planned Delivery Date of Sales Order (qty 2)	January 25
Days to Produce for the first unit (from Recipe)	2
Days to Produce for the second unit (from Recipe)	2
Fixed Assembly Days (from Recipe)	1
Buffer Days (from Production Settings)	5

Should Start Date

January 15

If you have specified a Number Produced in the Recipe, the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce will be divided by this figure before being included in the calculation.

If you created the Production Order from a Production Plan using the 'Create Productions' Maintenance function in the MRP module, the Should Start and Due Dates in the Production Order will be copied from the Start and Needed Dates respectively in the relevant row in the Production Plan. In this Production Plan row, the Start Date will have been calculated from the Needed Date using the formula described in the previous paragraph. So, the Should Start date in a Production Order will be calculated using the same formula, irrespective of whether that Production Order was created from a Sales Order or a Production Plan.

If you enter a Production Order yourself directly to the Production Order register, no default will be offered to the Should Start field, even after you specify the Recipe, Machine and Qty.

Ŧ.		
Location	Paste Special	Locations setting, Stock module
	Default taken from	Person record for current user
	Used as default in	Productions
		om where the components will be bled Items are to be stored.
	Require Location optic the Stock module. He one in all Production Order. Bear in mind, specify one in all Production Order. Se created through the F you should specify the	d empty, even if you are using the on in the Stock Settings setting in owever, you will have to specify as resulting from the Production however, that you will have to Productions resulting from the o, if those Productions will be Production Time Entry interface, e Location here because you will ty to do so in the Productions.
Person	Paste Special	Person register, System module
	Used as default in	Productions
		to record the Person responsible der or the Person carrying out the
Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
	Used as default in	Productions
	Specify the Machine of the work.	r tool that you will use to carry out
	on a Production, placi You must therefore s mark the Production C allows you to see the the relevant Machine Production Queue repor Machine in a Production Production from it,	luction Order is to schedule work ng it in the queue for a Machine. pecify a Machine before you can Order as Accepted or Started. This Production Order in the queue for in the Resource Planner and the ort. You must also have specified a on Order before you can create a either using the 'Finish Batch' ction or through the Production
		ecipe in the field above and if you in the Production Item Alternative

register for the Output Item in that Recipe, the Default

Machine from that record will be copied here. If that Production Item Alternative record does not have a Default Machine, the Machine in the first row with the Recipe will be used. If you need to change to another Machine, it must be to a Machine that is listed in that Production Item Alternative record. Changing the Machine may cause the Recipe and Input and Output Item to change as well. Again, this is controlled by the Production Item Alternative record.

If the Machine is an Asset that has Production Objects specified on its 'Costs' card, those Objects will be copied to the field on the 'Comment' card below and also to the 'Comment' card of all Productions created from the Production Order.

**Queue Pos** This field shows the position of the Production Order in the queue for the Machine.

You cannot type an entry into this field. It will be given an entry automatically when you mark the Production Order as Accepted or Started and save it. This automatic entry will place the Production Order at the end of the queue for the Machine. If you need to move it to a different position in the queue, use the 'Move in Queue' function on the Operations menu.

When you Finish a Production Order, this field will be made blank, thus removing it from the queue. The Queue Positions of the later Production Orders in the queue will not be updated (e.g. number two in the queue will remain number two, even though there is no longer a number one). Therefore it is recommended that you produce a Production Queue report for the Machine before using the 'Move in Queue' function, to ascertain the Queue Positions of all Production Orders in the queue. This will allow you to move the Production Order to the correct position in the queue.

# Language Paste Special Languages setting, System module

### **Default taken from** Recipe

You can use the Language to determine the Form that will be used when you print the Production Order, and the printer that will be used to print it. This can include sending the document to a fax machine, if your hardware can support this feature. Do this in the 'Define Document' window for the Production Order and Routing Production Order documents, as described in the 'Working Environment' chapter in the 'Introduction to HansaWorld Enterprise' manual.

Routing	Paste Special	Routings setting, Production module
	Default taken from	Recipe
	Used as default in	Productions
	been divided into stage in that Routing will be	ts a Production process that has es, the Default Routing specified copied here. This is effectively a ss, specifying the stages and the uld be carried out.
	and Output Items will a Recipe row (visible on The Material is the me to a stage (i.e. to an Ope of an Input Item, the M process when it will be	take a Material from the relevant flip B of the Production Order). the chanism that connects each Item eration) in the process. In the case aterial determines the stage in the eration of the from stock. In the case e Material determines when the added to stock.
	10	28 above for more details about n Operations and an example.
		tion Order has a Routing, you the resulting Productions using the interface.
Reserved	Items for this Product similar Items, Hansal sufficient stock for t	want to reserve stock of the In etion Order. When you deliver World Enterprise will maintain his Production Order until its as are marked as Finished or

#### **Comment Card**

	Comm	ent Items	Planned Time	Actual Time	_
Instruction					
Comment					
Objects					

Instructions	Use these three lines to record instructions about the Production Order. These instructions will be copied from the Recipe.
Comment	Any comment entered here will be copied to the 'Comment' card of Productions created from the Production Order.
Objects	Paste SpecialObject register, NominalLedger/System module
	<b>Default taken from</b> Machine (Asset)
	You can assign up to 20 Objects, separated by commas, to each Production Order. You might define separate Objects to represent different departments, cost centres or product types. This provides a flexible method of analysis that can be used in Nominal Ledger reports. Usually the Objects specified here will represent the Machine.
	If you have specified as the Machine an Asset that has Production Objects specified on its 'Costs' card, those Objects will be copied here as defaults.
	The Objects shown here are for information only. When you create a Production from the Production Order, the Objects on the 'Comment' card of that Production will once again be taken from the Asset record for the Machine. So, if you change this field, that change will not be carried through to the Production.

#### **Items Card**

When you specify a Recipe in the header, the appropriate Input and Output Items together with quantities will be listed in the grid. Any modifications that you make will apply to the particular Production Order only. If you have not specified a Recipe, you can use the grid to build up an *ad hoc* recipe. The Items listed here will be copied to all Productions that you create from the Production Order.

	Op	erations				New Duplicate	Cancel Save
	No.	14	Name	HiFi Rack			Status@
	Recipe 80601 Qty		10	)		Created	
	Due Date	30/11/2009	Should Start	22/11/2009			
			Person				<ul> <li>Started</li> </ul>
	Machine		Queue Pos	3	2		🔘 Finished
		WELDI		-	,		_
	Language		Extra Prod Qty				Reserved
	Routing						
			Comment	Items P	lanned Time	Actual Time	
	Item	Descr.		In	Out	Objects	
1	80110	Glass Shel		5.00			<u>~</u> 4
2	80111		el Box Section	10.00			🔳 в
3	80112		el Box Section	10.00			
4	80113	90 cm Ste		2.00			
5	80114	36 cm Ste		2.00			
6	80115	Hex Screw		20.00			
7	80116	Spiked Fee		4.00			
8	80117	Rubber Sh	nelf Seat	20.00			
9	80118	End Cap		4.00			
10	80601	HiFi Rack			1.00		
11							
12 13							
	1						~

Flip A

Item

Paste Special

Item register

Default taken from Recipe

Enter the Item Number of each of the Input Items (i.e. of the components) and of the Output Item (i.e. the assembled Item). You can list the Items in any order.

Each Production Order is responsible for a single level of assembly: it will not create sub-assemblies as well (unless the Production Order has a Routing, in which case the eventual Production Operations will include sub-assemblies if appropriate).

The Output Item (i.e. the result of the Production Order) must be a Stocked Item. More than one Stocked Item can result from a single Production Order.

With one exception, you cannot use Plain Items as components or as assembled Items. If you need the Production Order to contain costs such as electricity, labour, etc as components, these costs should be Service Items, not Plain Items. You will not be able to use the 'Disassemble' function to dismantle a resulting Production if it contains a component that is a Plain Item. The exception is that a Plain Item with a Recipe (a "Phantom" Item) can be a component in a Production Order that has a Routing. Please refer to page 86 above for more details of Phantom Items and an example.

You can use an Item with Varieties as a component or as a finished Item. You do not need to enter a combined Item/Variety Number (i.e. you do not need to choose a specific Variety) if the Status of the Production Order is Created, but you will need to do so if the Status is Accepted or Started. Use 'Paste Special' from this field or from the In or Out Qty fields to ensure the combined Number is correct. Please refer to the 'Items and Pricing' manual for more details about Varieties.

If you will process the Production Order using the Production Time Entry interface, the Production Order cannot contain any Serial Numbered Items. The Production Time Entry interface is simplified to the extent that Serial Numbers cannot be registered.

Item description from the Recipe or Item record.

#### **Default taken from** Recipe

Enter the quantity of each component required to make or build the finished product. Do not enter an In Qty for the assembled Item(s).

The Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting does not apply to Production Orders. Therefore, this figure should always be the quantity of the component required to complete one application of the Recipe. This figure will therefore remain unchanged if you change the Qty in the header.

Descr.

In

When you create a Production from the Production Order using the 'Finish Batch' function on the Operations menu or through the Production Time Entry interface, the In and Out Quantities in the new Production will take the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option into account.

You can change this figure in a particular Production Order if necessary.

#### Out Default taken from Recipe

This field contains the quantity of assembled Items that can be made from the components listed above.

The Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting does not apply to Production Orders. Therefore, this figure will be the quantity of the final Item that will be built by one application of the Recipe. This figure will therefore remain unchanged if you change the Qty in the header.

When you create a Production from the Production Order using the 'Finish Batch' function on the Operations menu or through the Production Time Entry interface, the In and Out Quantities in the new Production will take the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option into account.

You can change this figure in a particular Production Order if necessary.

Objects	Paste Special	Object register, Nominal Ledger/System module
	Default taken from	Item

#### Default taken from

You can assign up to 20 Objects, separated by commas, to each row. You might define separate Objects to represent different departments, cost centres or product types. This provides a flexible method of analysis that can be used in Nominal Ledger reports. Usually the Objects specified here will represent the Item.

The Objects shown here are for information only. When you create a Production from the Production Order, the Objects in the rows of that Production will once again be taken from the Item records. So, any changes to this field will not be carried through to the Production row.

#### Flip B

Material

Paste Special		Materials setting, Production nodule
Default taken	from F	Recipe
Production pro you should as Item (unless a	ocess that sign a Mat n Input Ite ch case yo	as a Routing (i.e. it represents a has been divided into stages), erial to each Input and Output m is a Plain Item with its own u should leave this field empty at Recipe).
to a stage (i.e.	to an Opera	nanism that connects each Item ation) in the process. In the case erial determines the stage in the

of an Input Item, the Material determines the stage in the process when it will be removed from stock. In the case of an Output Item, the Material determines when the completed Item will be added to stock.

Please refer to page 128 above for more details and an example.

#### Width, Height, Depth

#### Default taken from Item

These fields contain the dimensions of the Item.

If the Item is one that is built by area or volume, you can have the In or Out quantities calculated by multiplying the dimensions together. If you would like to use this feature, first check the Enable Quantity Calculation box in the Item Settings setting in the Sales Ledger. Then, check the Calculate Quantity box for the Unit that has been assigned to the Item. If the Item is built by area, choose the Two Dimensions option in the Unit record, and the In or Out quantities will be calculated from the Width and Height. If the Item is built by volume, choose the Three Dimensions option in the Unit record, and the In or Out quantities will be calculated from the Width, Height and Depth. Please refer to the description of the Units setting in the 'Sales Ledger' manual for details and an example.

#### **Planned Time Card**

	Comment	Items	Planned Time	Actual Time
Days duration 1	Time duration	00:00:00		

#### Days duration, Time duration

These fields show how much time will be needed to complete the Production Order. This information is calculated from the Fixed Assembly Days, the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce and the Time to Setup recorded in the Recipe.

The Buffer Days in the Production Settings setting and the relevant record in the Machine Hours register are not included when calculating the Days duration and the Time duration. Therefore, these fields show the actual work time required. The required calendar time including breaks could be longer.

These fields will be updated each time you change the Qty in the header. You cannot change these fields.

#### **Actual Time Card**

	Comment	Items	Planned Time	Actual Time
Start Date 5/11/2009	End Date	5/11/2009		
Start Time	End Time	16:55:00		

#### Start Date, Start Time

The current date and time will be placed here when you mark the Production Order as Started and save it. If they are blank, they will also be updated when you first mark a Production connected to the Production Order as Started. You cannot change these fields.

#### End Date, End Time

The current date and time will be placed here when you mark the Production Order as Finished or Cancelled and save it. If they are blank, they will also be updated when you first mark a Production connected to the Production Order as Finished. You cannot change these fields.

#### **Operations Menu**



The Operations menu for the 'Production Order: New' and 'Production Order: Inspect' windows is shown above. There is no Operations menu for the 'Production Orders: Browse' window.

#### Move in Queue

When you mark a Production Order as Accepted or Started and save it, it will be placed at the end of the queue for the Machine. Use this function if you need to move it to a different position in the queue.

When you choose this function, the 'Specify Move in Queue' window will appear, showing the existing Queue Position—

Specify Move in Queue	
	Run
New Position 3	

Enter the new Queue Position and click the [Run] button. The Production Order will be moved to the new position, which will be shown in the Queue Pos field.

When you Finish a Production Order, the Queue Pos field will be made blank, thus removing the Production Order from the queue. The Queue Positions of the later Production Orders in the queue will not be updated (e.g. number two in the queue will remain number two, even though there is no longer a number one). Therefore it is recommended that you produce a Production Queue report for the Machine before using the 'Move in Queue' function, to ascertain the Queue Positions of all Production Orders in the queue. This will allow you to move the Production Order to the correct position in the queue. If the function does not update the Queue Position when expected, the probable reasons are—

- 1. The Status of the Production Order is not Accepted or Started.
- 2. Changes to the Production Order have not been saved.

#### **Finish Batch**

The purpose of a Production Order is solely to organise and schedule Productions, including allocating the work to the appropriate Machines. Production Orders do not control the assembly process itself, and nor do they update stock levels of the Input and Output Items or the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger. These tasks belong to Productions. So, when a Production Order reaches the front of the queue for a Machine and it is time for work to begin, you should use this function to create a Production from it.

When you select the function, a new record will be created in the Production register. It is opened in a new window, entitled 'Production: New'. This means that it has not yet been saved. After amendment if necessary, save the record by clicking the [Save] button in the Button Bar. Alternatively, if you no longer require the Production, click [Cancel].

		Operat	tions					Ne	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	S	ave
	No.		Name HilFi Rack					Status			0		
Re	ecipe	80601		Start Date		En	d Date 6	/11/2009		Createu Cancelled			
Qty 2		Start Time		Er	nd Time			O Started					
Location PROD		M	1achine V	/ELD1		<ul> <li>Finished</li> </ul>							
Inspe	ector						Person			🔘 Finished b	ut Discarded		
	Ord.	14				Discarded F	Reason						
Actual Qty				louting									
Accaa	1.50					_							
						Items	Comme	nt					
	Item		Desc	r.		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	8011	10		s Shelf			5.00			5.00			^ A
2	8011			m Steel Box Sec			10.00						В
3	8011			m Steel Box Sec	tion		10.00						
4	8011			m Steel Sheet			2.00						-
5	8011			m Steel Sheet			2.00						C D E
6	8011			Screw			20.00			0.10			E
7	8011			ed Feet			4.00			1.00			
8	8011		End	ber Shelf Seat			20.00			0.10	0.00		
10	8060		HiFi I				4.00	1.00		46.30	0.00		
11	0000		1.00.11					1.00		10.30			
12													
13													~

Virtually all the information entered for the Production Order is transferred to the appropriate fields of the Production, reducing the typing load and minimising the risk of error. The End Date in the new Production will be the current date, while the Start Date and the Start and End Times will be empty. The Qty in the header of the Production will be the Standard Batch quantity from the Recipe (if the Standard Batch is blank, the Qty in the header of the Production will also be blank). If the Production Order does not have a Recipe, the Qty in the Production header will be one. If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, the In and Out Quantities in the Production rows will be recalculated (Qty in the header \* In or Out Quantity from the Recipe row), as the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option does not apply to Production Orders.

If the Production Order Qty is greater than the Standard Batch quantity in the Recipe, you will need to create more than one Production from the Production Order. There is no control over how many Productions you can create from an individual Production Order. You will therefore need to monitor progress of the Production Order carefully. One tool you can use is the 'Production Order Status' function described immediately below. When

the assembly process is complete (i.e. when there is a sufficient number of Productions for the Qty in the header of the Production Order, and these Productions are all Finished), mark the Production Order as Finished and save it. This will remove the Production Order from the queue, and will also prevent the creation of further Productions.

If the function does not create a Production when expected, the probable reasons are -

- 1. The Status of the Production Order is not Accepted or Started.
- 2. You have not specified a Machine in the Production Order.
- 3. There is no valid record in the Number Series Productions setting. This problem will usually occur at the beginning of a new year.

If the In and Out Quantities in the new Production are all zero, the probable cause is that the Standard Batch in the Recipe is blank and therefore the Qty in the Production header will also be blank. If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, this will cause the In and Out Quantities all to be zero.

Please refer to the description of the Production register below on page 196 for more details about Productions.

#### **Production Order Status**

This function produces a Production Order Journal report for the Production Order currently open in a record window. This report contains full details of the selected Production Order, and lists all connected Productions.

😂 Production (	Order Journa	l						×
Operation	s 💧	0					Search	
Production Ord Radio Import/E					Hansa₩or	ld, Print date: 5/ Produ	11/2009 11:26 ction Order 14	
Number	Due Date	Queue	Machine	Recipe	Comment		Prod. Qty	^
14	30/11/2009	3	WELD1	80601	HiFi Rack		10	
					Produced:		2	
					Discarded:			
Production	Date		Person		Left to Produce:	Weight	8 Prod Qty	
5028	5/11/2009		Person			80	2	
								~

If the Production Order Qty is greater than the Standard Batch quantity in the Recipe, you will need to create more than one Production from the Production Order. As you can open an individual Production record by clicking on a Production Number in the report, you can use this report as a starting point to monitor progress both of the Production Order and of the connected Productions.

### The Production Register

You should use this register to produce Stocked Items using Recipes i.e. to build them from components for holding in stock. Such "Productions" are normally the result of a Production Order. When you mark a Production as "Finished" and save it, the stock levels of the Input Items will be reduced, and the stock of the Output Item(s) will be increased. A Nominal Ledger Transaction can be generated if required (i.e. if you are maintaining a stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger). To ensure this happens, all Output Items should be Stocked Items.

#### **Entering a Production record**

You can enter records to the Production register using the following methods-

- 1. You can enter Productions directly to the Production register.
- 2. You can create Productions in batches for Output Items whose stock levels have fallen below Minimum Levels. To do this, open the 'Productions: Browse' window and choose 'Create Productions' from the Operations menu.
- 3. You can create Productions from Production Orders, using the 'Finish Batch' Operations menu function.
- 4. The 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Production and Sales Orders modules will create Productions to schedule the assembly of Output Items that you have sold in advance. To be sold in advance, the Output Item must be included in a Sales Order with a Planned Delivery Date.
- 5. You can use the Sales Forecast register in the MRP module to predict the future monthly sales of Output Items. From a Sales Forecast record, you can create a Production Plan for each month, and from there you can use the 'Create Productions' Maintenance function to schedule the assembly of the Items that you expect to sell.

You can decide whether the Maintenance functions mentioned in points 4 and 5 will create Productions or Production Orders, using the Generate Planned options in the Production Settings setting.

The use of the Production register is now described in detail. To open the Production register, ensure you are in the Production module and click the [Productions] button in the Master Control panel. The 'Productions: Browse' window is opened, showing Productions already entered.

C	Operations	Ne	w Du	plicate	Search
NI-	▲ Status	Start Date	Prod.Date	Comment	
		Start Date		Comment	
5000	ž		5/6/2008		1
5001	•		5/6/2008		
5002	-		12/6/2008		
5003	~		25/6/2008		
5004	~		25/6/2008		
5005	~		25/6/2008		
5006	~		25/6/2008		
5007	~	27/10/2008	27/10/2008		
5008	-	27/10/2008	27/10/2008		
5009			2/11/2008		
5010	~	24/11/2008	24/11/2008		

The Status column is blank for Created Productions or shows " $\sqrt{}$ " for Cancelled and Finished Productions and "-" for Started Productions. You can set this Status for each Production using the options in the header of the Production screen.

As in all browse windows you may sort the list by clicking on the column headings. To reverse any sort, simply click once again on the column heading. You can also scroll the list with the scroll bars. Finally, you can search for a record by entering a keyword in the field in the top right-hand corner. When you press the Return or Enter key, the first record with a match for the keyword in the current sort column will be highlighted.

To enter a new Production, click [New] in the Button Bar or use the Ctrl-N (Windows and Linux) or  $\Re$ -N (Mac OS X) keyboard shortcut. Alternatively, highlight a Production record similar to the one you want to enter and click [Duplicate] on the Button Bar.

The 'Production: New' window is opened, empty if you clicked [New] or containing a duplicate of the highlighted Production.

		Opera	tions		Image: A start of the start			N	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	Sa	ve
	No.	5026		Name	HiFi Rack					Status			0
R	ecipe	80601		Start Date	5/11/2009	Er	nd Date	5/11/2009					
	Qty		1	Start Time	19:23:00	E	nd Time	19:24:26		O Started			
Loc	ation	PROD				P	4achine			<ol> <li>Finished</li> </ol>			
Insp	ector						Person			O Finished b	ut Discarded		
Prod.						Discarded	Reason						
Actua							Routing						
Hecoo	1.50												
						Items	Comr	hent					
	Item		Desc	r.		Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	8011	0	Glass	s Shelf			5.	00		5.00	10.00	1	^ A
2	8011			m Steel Box Sec			10.			0.50			в
3	8011			m Steel Box Sec	tion		10.			0.50			
4	8011	-		m Steel Sheet			2.			0.75			-
5	8011			m Steel Sheet			2.			0.50			C D E
6	8011	-		Screw			20.			0.10			E
7	8011	-		ed Feet			4.			1.00			
8	8011		End	ber Shelf Seat			20.			0.10	0.00		
10	8060			Cap Rack			4.	1.00		56.30	0.00		
11	0000		FIIP'	NOUK				1.00		30,30			
12													
13													~

Since the amount of information stored about each Production will not fit on a single screen, the Production window has been divided into two cards. At the top of each is the header. There are two named buttons ('tabs') in the header.

By clicking the tabs you can navigate between cards. The header is always visible, as a reminder of the Production you are working with.

#### Header

	Operations		<b>b</b>		New	Duplicate	ncel Save
No.	5026	Name	HiFi Rack			Status	0
Recipe	80601	Start Date	5/11/2009	End Date	5/11/2009	Created Cancelled	
Qty	1	Start Time	19:23:00	End Time	19:24:26	O Started	
Location	PROD			Machine		<ul> <li>Finished</li> </ul>	
Inspector				Person		O Finished but Disc.	arded
Prod. Ord.			Di	scarded Reason			
Actual Qty				Routing			

No.	Paste Special	Select from another Number Series
	first unused number in valid row in the Num You may change this already been used. If	duction record. The default is the the number sequence in the first ber Series - Productions setting. number, but not to one that has you are working in a multi-user n Number is assigned when you n record.
Name	The name of the Recip Recipe in the field belo	e appears here after you specify a w.
Status	-	ion record can be in one of five ne work flow and for reporting are as follows—
Created	register, it will Productions are	enter a record in the Production be marked as Created. Created marked with a blank in the Status roductions: Browse' window.
Cancelled	error or the jol started, you sh Production to C should be carrie has been marke no longer be r	e you raise a Production record in b is cancelled before work has ould change the Status of the cancelled to signify that no work of out. Once a Production record d as Cancelled and saved, it can nodified. Cancelled Production marked with a " $$ " in the powse' window.

If the Production has a Routing, you must mark all connected Production Operations as Cancelled before you can Cancel the Production itself.

Started As soon as work starts, you should change the Status of the Production record to Started. When you save the record, the Start Date and Time (below) will be updated, if they are blank. Started Production records are marked with a "-" in the 'Productions: Browse' window.

> If you are accounting for the running costs of the Machine used for the Production (i.e. you have a record in the Asset register in the Assets module representing the Machine in which you have entered a Running Cost per Hour, you are using the Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items option in the Production Settings setting and you have specified a Machine Cost Item in the same setting), you should take care to mark each Production as Started when you start work, to update the Start Date and Time. This will help ensure the duration of the Production and therefore the running costs of the Machine are correct.

**Finished** Check this box to confirm that the Production work has been completed and the assembled Items delivered to stock. The stock levels of the assembled Items and the components will be updated when the record is saved. The Start and End Times will be updated, if they are blank. Once you have marked a Production record as Finished and saved it, you will no longer be able to modify it. Finished Production records are marked with a " $\sqrt{}$ " in the 'Productions: Browse' window.

> Switch on the Do Not Allow Over Delivery option in the Stock Settings setting if you do not want to be able to create negative stock of the components. If you are using this option, you will not be able to save a Production record marked as Finished if there is not enough stock of any of the components to carry out the assembly.

If you have so determined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger, a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be created in the Transaction register when a Production record is marked as Finished and saved. The nature of this Transaction is described in the section entitled 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records', below on page 218.

When you mark the Production record as Finished and save it, the I-cost of each Input Item will be updated with the appropriate unit stock value and the cost of the Output Item(s) will be recalculated accordingly, taking the Rel. field into account if appropriate. These figures will be used in the resulting Nominal Ledger Transaction to update the Nominal Ledger stock valuation of each Item. The unit stock value of each Input Item will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used.

If you are accounting for the running costs of the Machine used for the Production as described in the Started section immediately above, be sure to check the End Date is correct before marking the Production as Finished. This will ensure the correct running cost will be posted.

If the Production has a Routing, you must mark all connected Production Operations as Finished before you can Finish the Production itself.

#### **Finished but Discarded**

Check this box to confirm that the Production work has been completed, and that for some reason the assembled Items were discarded. The stock levels of the components will be updated when the record is saved, but not those of the assembled Items. The Out Qty in the Production will be set to zero. The End Time (below) will be updated, as will the Start Time if it is empty. You must also specify a Reason for Discarding before you can save the Production. Once a Production record has been marked as Finished but Discarded and saved, it can no longer be modified. Discarded Production records are marked with a " $\sqrt{7}$ " in the 'Productions: Browse' window.

In other respects, this option is similar to Finished, described above. For details about the resulting Nominal Ledger Transaction, please refer to the section entitled 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records', below on page 218.

## Recipe Paste Special Recipe register, Production module

When you specify the Recipe to be used by the Production record, the appropriate Input and Output Items together with quantities and Cost Prices will be listed in the grid below.

#### Start Date, End Date

#### Paste SpecialChoose date

These dates represent the period when the work represented by this Production record is to be carried out.

These fields are important in Production records created by the 'Create Planned Records' Maintenance function in the Sales Orders module. This function schedules Productions for Items on Sales Orders, so that the assembly work is carried out just before the Items are scheduled for delivery to the Customer. The Start and End Dates are calculated from the Planned Delivery Date of Sales Orders and the Fixed Assembly Days and Days to Assemble Each Unit from the Recipe. If it is necessary to create Purchase Orders for any components, these will be dated using the Delivery Days from the Default Purchase Items for the components, ensuring they arrive in time for the assembly process to be completed.

In Production records that you enter directly to the Production register, by default the Start Date will be blank and the End Date will be the current date. If the

Start Date field is still empty, the current date will be placed there automatically when you mark a Production as Started and save it.

You can use these dates to calculate the running cost of the Machine used in the Production: please refer to the description of the Machine field below on page 206 for details.

The number of applications of the Recipe required by the Production.

The way this field interacts with the In and Out Quantities in the rows depends on the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting. For example, a Recipe states that two components are required to produce one final Item. When you use this Recipe in a Production with the requirement to produce two final Items, you will enter "2" in this field. If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, the In Qty of the component will change from "2" to "4", and the Out Qty of the final Item will change from "1" to "2". If you are not using this option, the In Qty of the component will stay at "2", and the Out Qty of the final Item will stay at "1". In both cases, when you Finish the Production, four components will be removed from stock, and two final Items will be added.

In a new Production, the default will be as follows-

#### Production entered directly to the Production register

The default Qty will be the Normal Prod. Qty from the Recipe.

#### **Production created from a Production Order**

The default Qty will be the Standard Batch quantity from the Recipe. If the Standard Batch is blank, the Qty in the Production will also be blank by default.

Production created from a Sales Order using the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' Maintenance functions

> The default Qty will be the Sales Order quantity (or the Min Prod. Qty. in the Recipe if this is

> > 203

#### Qty

greater). If this default is less than the Normal Prod. Qty in the Recipe and you are using the Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned option in the Production Settings setting, the Normal Prod. Qty will be the default.

### Production created from a Production Order using the Production Time Entry interface

The default Qty will be the Qty from the Production Order, less any quantity that has already been produced. When work on the Production finishes, this Qty will be updated to the quantity produced, as entered in the 'Specify Produced Quantities' window.

If you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, you must set this field to "1" if the Output Item or any of the components are Serial Numbered at unit level. If you need several applications of the Recipe, increase the number of rows containing the Serial Numbered Items (each should have an In or Out Qty of one), and multiply the In and Out Quantities of the non-Serial Numbered Items appropriately. If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option and at least one of the Items is Serial Numbered at unit level, you can enter any quantity in this field. The In and Out Quantities in each row will be updated. Then, list the Serial Numbered Items individually in the grid: do not do this before changing the Qty in the header because then the In and Out Quantities in the individual rows will be updated incorrectly.

You cannot enter a negative quantity here. If you need to dismantle an assembled Item, you should find the original Production and use the 'Disassemble' function on the Operations menu. This will ensure the assembled Item is correctly removed from stock and the components are put back into stock.

If the Production has a Routing and you create Production Operations from it, this Qty will be copied to each Production Operation. Afterwards, you will not be able to change this figure, in the Production or in the Production Operations.

Start Time	Paste Special Current Time
	The time when the work represented by this Production record began. If this field is empty, the current time will be placed here automatically when you mark a Production as Started and save it.
	You can use this Start Time to calculate the running cost of the Machine used in the Production: please refer to the description of the Machine field below on page 206 for details.
End Time	Paste Special         Current Time
	The time when the work represented by this Production record finished. If this field is empty, the current time will be placed here automatically when you mark a Production as Finished and save it.
	You can use this End Time to calculate the running cost of the Machine used in the Production: please refer to the description of the Machine field below on page 206 for details.
Location	Paste Special         Locations setting, Stock module
	Default taken fromProduction Order or Personrecord for current user
	The stock Location from where the components are taken and where assembled Items are to be stored. If you leave the field empty, stock from all Locations will be available.
	If you have specified a Main Location in the Stock Settings setting, leaving this field blank means that stock from the Main Location will be used. However, if you are using the Require Location option in the same setting, you must enter a Location before you can mark the Production as Finished and save it. If the Production has a Routing and you are using the Require Location option, you must enter a Location before you can mark

the Production as Started: this Location will be copied to

the Production Operations when you create them.

Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
	The Machine or tool th	at you used to carry out the work.
	Items option in the Pro- specified a Machine C you have specified a R for the Machine ('Cost added to the Productio will use the Start an (above) to record the ru- you approve the Proo Finished but Discarded be added to the value debited to the Stock A Production W-cost A feature, you should ma the relevant moment (for are correct) and also	Auto Calculate Cost of Produced duction Settings setting, you have cost Item in the same setting, and unning Cost/hr in the Asset record s' card), then an extra row will be n when you first save it. This row d End Time of the Production unning cost of the Machine. When duction (mark it as Finished, or and save it, the running cost will of the final Item and so will be eccount, and will be credited to the account. If you are using this ark every Production as Started at to ensure the Start Date and Time check the End Date is correct Production, as this field will not ly.
	specified on its 'Cos	Asset that has Production Objects its' card, those Objects will be the 'Comment' card (described
Inspector	Paste Special	Person register, System module
		duction is to be inspected before can be marked as Finished, specify ctor here.
Person	Paste Special	Person register, System module
		to record the Person responsible he Person carrying out the work.
Prod. Ord.		created from a Production Order, Number will appear here. This d.

Standard Problems setting, Production/Service Orders modules

If you have marked the Production as Finished but Discarded, specify here the reason for the discarding. You must specify a Reason in a Discarded Production before you can save it.

Routing Paste Special Routings setting, Production module

**Default taken from** Recipe or Production Order

If the Recipe represents a Production process that has been divided into stages, the Default Routing specified in that Routing will be copied here. This is effectively a schedule of the process, specifying the stages and the order in which they should be carried out.

If the Production has a Routing, each of the Input and Output Items will take a Material from the relevant Recipe row (visible on flip B of the Production). The Material is the mechanism that connects each Item to a stage (i.e. to an Operation) in the process. In the case of an Input Item, the Material determines the stage in the process when it will be removed from stock. In the case of an Output Item, the Material determines when the completed Item will be added to stock.

If the Production has a Routing, you cannot simply mark the Production as Finished in order to remove the components from stock and add the assembled Item to stock. Instead, you need to use the 'Create Production Operations' Operations menu function described below on page 236 to create the Production Operations that represent each stage in the process, and then mark each Operation as Finished in turn. Only once you have done this can you return to the Production to mark it as Finished.

When you enter a new Production, the Routing will usually be copied from the Recipe or originating Production Order. You can change to another Routing, and, in the case of an *ad hoc* Production that does not have a Recipe, you can specify the Routing yourself. However, you can only do this before you have saved the Production for the first time and, after saving, if the Status is Created. After changing the Status to Started and saving, you will no longer be able to change the Routing.

Please refer to page 128 above for more details about Routings and Production Operations and an example.

#### **Items Card**

When you specify a Recipe in the header, the appropriate Input and Output Items together with quantities and Cost Prices will be listed in the grid. Any modifications that you make will apply to the particular Production record only. If you have not specified a Recipe, you can use the grid to build up an *ad hoc* recipe. If the Production was created from a Production Order, the Input and Output Items will be taken from that Production Order.

	Item	Descr.	Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	80110	Glass Shelf		5.00			5.00	10.00		^
2	80111	40 cm Steel Box Section		10.00			0.50			
З	80112	50 cm Steel Box Section		10.00			0.50			
4	80113	90 cm Steel Sheet		2.00			0.75			
5	80114	36 cm Steel Sheet		2.00			0.50			
6	80115	Hex Screw		20.00			0.10			
7	80116	Spiked Feet		4.00			1.00			
8	80117	Rubber Shelf Seat		20.00			0.10			
9	80118	End Cap		4.00			0.20	0.00		
10	80601	HiFi Rack			1.00		56.30			
11										
12										
13										¥
										_

#### Flip A

Item

Paste Special Item register

Default taken from

Recipe or Production Order row

Enter the Item Number of each of the Input Items (i.e. of the components) and of the Output Item (i.e. the assembled Item). You can list the Items in any order.

If a component is itself an assembly, you should first build sufficient stock using other Production records. Each Production record is responsible for a single level of assembly: it will not create sub-assemblies as well (unless the Production has a Routing, in which case the

resulting Production Operations will include subassemblies if appropriate).

The Output Item (i.e. the result of the Production) must be a Stocked Item. More than one Stocked Item can result from a single Production record.

With one exception, you cannot use Plain Items as components or as assembled Items. If you need the Production to contain costs such as electricity, labour, etc as components, these costs should be Service Items, not Plain Items. You will not be able to use the 'Disassemble' function to dismantle the Production if it contains a component that is a Plain Item. The exception is that a Plain Item with a Recipe (a "Phantom" Item) can be a component in a Production that has a Routing. Please refer to page 86 above for more details of Phantom Items and an example.

You can use an Item with Varieties as a component or as a finished Item. You must enter the combined Item/Variety Number (i.e. you must choose a specific Variety). Use 'Paste Special' from this field or from the In or Out Qty fields to ensure the combined Number is correct. Please refer to the 'Items and Pricing' manual for more details about Varieties.

In addition to the 'Paste Special' feature, you can use the 'Item Search' function on the Operations menu to add Items to the Production. This function is described below on page 228.

Item description from the Recipe, Production Order row or Item record.

## Serial No. Paste Special Serial Numbers of Items in stock

Descr.

In the case of an Input Item, if necessary enter the Serial Number of the Item you use in the assembly process. In the case of an Output Item, enter the Serial Number you give to the assembly.

You must use separate rows for Items that are Serial Numbered at unit level, each with an In or Out Quantity of one. This allows you to record separate Serial Numbers and enables their correct removal from stock. If you use a single Production record to assemble a large quantity of a Serial Numbered Item, you can use the 'Generate Serial Nos for Out Items' function on the Operations menu to help enter consecutive Serial Numbers. Enter the appropriate number of rows with Output Items and specify the lowest Serial Number for the first one. Then select the function: the remaining rows will gain a Serial Number, each incremented by one.

If you have not specified a Location in the header, the 'Paste Special' list will show the Serial Numbers of Items in all Locations, with an indication of the Location in which each Item is stored. However, if you have specified a Location, only those Serial Numbers stored in that Location will be shown.

By default, if an Input or Output Item uses Serial Numbers, you must specify a Serial Number here before you can Finish the Production. If you do not assign Serial Numbers to Output Items immediately, you should use the No Serial No. on Goods Receipts option in the Stock Settings setting. This will allow you to Finish Productions without Output Item Serial Numbers. You will still have to specify Input Item Serial Numbers, but in this case there will be no 'Paste Special' list, and no check will be carried out that the Serial Number you have used is valid (i.e. one that is currently in stock).

#### **Default taken from** Recipe or Production Order row

Enter the quantity of each component required to make or build the finished product. Do not enter an In Qty for the assembled Item(s). This quantity must be one if the Input Item is Serial Numbered at unit level.

If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, this figure will be the quantity of the component required to complete the Production (i.e. to build the Quantity specified in the header). This figure will be recalculated automatically each time you change the Qty in the header. If you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, this figure will be the quantity of the component required to complete one application of the Recipe. This figure will therefore remain unchanged if you change the Qty

In

in the header. In both cases, you can change this figure in a particular Production if necessary.

If a Nominal Ledger Transaction is generated from this Production record, its credit amount will be taken from the total I-cost of rows with an In Qty (i.e. Input Items).

#### Default taken from Recipe or Production Order row

This field contains the quantity of assembled Items that can be made from the components listed above. Usually, this will be just one, and it must be one if the Out Item is Serial Numbered at unit level.

If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, this figure will be the quantity of the final Item that will be built by the number of applications of the Recipe specified in the Quantity field in the header. This figure will be recalculated automatically each time you change the Qty in the header. If you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, this figure will be the quantity of the final Item that will be built by one application of the Recipe. This figure will therefore remain unchanged if you change the Qty in the header. In both cases, you can change this figure in a particular Production if necessary.

If a Nominal Ledger Transaction is generated from this Production record, its debit amount will be taken from the total I-cost of rows with an Out Qty (i.e. Output Items).

#### Default taken from Recipe

Relativity. You must use this field if the result of the Production is that more than one Item will be assembled (i.e. there is more than one row in the Production with an Output Item). The Production might produce different Items (with different Item Numbers) or it might produce more than one of the same Item with Serial Numbers. Enter a figure in each row representing an Output Item. When you mark the Production as Finished, the total stock value of the components will be calculated using the appropriate Cost Models. The stock values of the Output Items will then be calculated from that total using the ratio that you enter here.

Out

Rel.

I-cost

The Relativity figures are not percentages but ratios. For example, the total stock value of the Input Items is 103 and there are two Output Items with Relativities of 30 and 60 respectively. The stock value of the first Output Item will be 103 \* 30/(30 + 60), and the stock value of the second Output Item will be 103 \* 60/(30 + 60). If the Out Qty of the first Output Item is two, then the unit stock value of the first Output Item will be 103 \* 30/((2\*30) + 60), and the stock value of the second Output Item will be 103 \* 60/((2\*30) + 60).

If the Production has more than one Output Item and you have marked it as Finished, you will not be able to save it if you have not specified a Relativity figure in every row with an Output Item.

The cost value (per unit) of the component or assembled Item. When you specify a Recipe in a Production, the Icost from the relevant row in the Recipe will be placed here. However, when you save the Production for the first time, this figure will be replaced by the Item's unit stock value (if the row contains an Input Item) or by a unit value calculated from the total value of the components (if the row contains an Output Item). This figure will be used in the Nominal Ledger Transaction generated when you mark the Production as Finished or Discarded and save it. If the Input or Output quantity is greater than one, this field will show the average unit stock value.

> If you change the Item Number or change the Input or Output quantity, the I-cost is not always updated immediately. If you need to update the figure, use the 'Calculate Cost' function on the Operations menu. In any case, the figure will be updated as described in the previous paragraph each time you save the Production, up to and including the time when you mark it as Finished or Discarded.

> If the row contains an Input Item, this figure (i.e. the Item's unit stock value) will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used.

If the row contains an Output Item, this figure will usually be the sum of the I-costs of the Input Items plus the W-cost, taking quantities into account. If there is more than one Output Item, this total will be distributed according to the ratios entered in the Rel. column. This figure will become the new stock value of the Output Item(s).

#### **Default taken from** Recipe

The W-cost is the Work Cost incurred in finishing the Production. Usually, this will be cost of the labour required to build the assembled Item.

You should enter the Work cost in one of the rows featuring an Input Item, as shown in the sample illustration above. This ensures the Work Cost will correctly be credited to the Production W-cost Account in the Nominal Ledger Transaction generated from the Production record. If you enter the Work Cost in an Output row, the Work Cost will incorrectly be debited (not credited) to the Production W-cost Account.

You can usually place the Work Cost in any Input row except the last one. The exception is when you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module and you have specified Production W-cost Accounts in your Item Groups. If so, the Production W-cost Account will be taken from the Item Group to which the Item in the row with the Work Cost belongs. In this case, therefore, you should be sure to enter the Work Cost in the correct row in the Production, so that the correct Account is credited. If you are not using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option or you have not specified a W-cost Account in the relevant Item Group, the Production Wcost Account will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.

Although you should enter the Work Cost in an Input row, the figure is independent of the In Qty in that row. For example, if the Work Cost is 10.00, enter 10.00: do not enter 5.00 if the In Qty is 2.

The Work Cost should be the total cost incurred through one application of the Recipe. For example, if the Out Qty of the assembled Item is 2, this means that one

#### W-cost

application of the Recipe will add two assembled Items to stock. If the cost incurred in assembling these two Items is 10.00, enter 10.00 as the Work Cost. Do not enter the cost per unit, 5.00.

You cannot enter a Work Cost if the Production has a Routing. If a Production has a Routing, you should record the Work Costs either by specifying times in each Standard Operation or using Activities. Please refer to the description above on page 147 of the Time options (Actual and Fixed) in the Productions Settings setting for more details.

#### Coeff Default taken from Item

The Unit Coefficient of the Item is shown here, taken from the 'Stock' card of the Item. If you are maintaining stock quantities using different units of measurement, this coefficient is the ratio between those units of measurement.

### Flip B

Objects	Paste Special	Object register, Nominal
		Ledger/System module

#### Default taken from Item

You can assign up to 20 Objects, separated by commas, to each row. You might define separate Objects to represent different departments, cost centres or product types. This provides a flexible method of analysis that can be used in Nominal Ledger reports. Usually the Objects specified here will represent the Item.

In any Nominal Ledger Transactions generated from a Production record, any Objects specified here will be assigned to the credit posting for the Item (if the Item is an Input Item) or to the debit posting (if it is an Output Item). This assignment will merge these Objects with those of the parent Production record (shown on the 'Comment' card).

Material	Paste Special	Materials setting, Production module
	Default taken from	Recipe or Production Order row
	Production process th you should assign a M Item (unless an Input	s a Routing (i.e. it represents a lat has been divided into stages), Material to each Input and Output Item is a Plain Item with its own you should leave this field empty that Recipe).
	to a stage (i.e. to an Op of an Input Item, the M process when it will b	echanism that connects each Item peration) in the process. In the case faterial determines the stage in the e removed from stock. In the case he Material determines when the e added to stock.
	Please refer to page 1 example.	28 above for more details and an
Flip C		
Best Before	Paste Special	Choose date
	If an Output Item is pe here.	erishable, enter a Best Before date
	when you mark the Pro record will be created	Serial or Batch Number as well, oduction as Finished and save it, a in the Batch Specifications setting recording the Best Before date of
	brought in to the Deli printed on delivery d Before Date" field in prevent the sale of It Before date, use the	em, the Best Before date will be ivery record. If you want it to be occumentation, include the "Best your Form design. If you want to tems that have passed their Best Batch Status and Batch Quality Service Orders module, described manual.
Flip D	brought in to the Deli printed on delivery d Before Date" field in prevent the sale of It Before date, use the Control settings in the	ivery record. If you want it to be occumentation, include the "Best your Form design. If you want to tems that have passed their Best Batch Status and Batch Quality Service Orders module, described
	brought in to the Deli printed on delivery d Before Date" field in prevent the sale of It Before date, use the Control settings in the	ivery record. If you want it to be locumentation, include the "Best your Form design. If you want to tems that have passed their Best Batch Status and Batch Quality Service Orders module, described manual.
Flip D Weight	brought in to the Deli printed on delivery d Before Date" field in prevent the sale of It Before date, use the Control settings in the in the 'Service Orders' <b>Default taken from</b> In	ivery record. If you want it to be locumentation, include the "Best your Form design. If you want to tems that have passed their Best Batch Status and Batch Quality Service Orders module, described manual.

#### Width, Height, Depth

#### Default taken from Item

These fields contain the dimensions of the Item.

	If the Item is one that is built by area or volume, you can have the In or Out quantities calculated by multiplying the dimensions together. If you would like to use this feature, first check the Enable Quantity Calculation box in the Item Settings setting in the Sales Ledger. Then, check the Calculate Quantity box for the Unit that has been assigned to the Item. If the Item is built by area, choose the Two Dimensions option in the Unit record, and the In or Out quantities will be calculated from the Width and Height. If the Item is built by volume, choose the Three Dimensions option in the Unit record, and the In or Out quantities will be calculated from the Width, Height and Depth. Please refer to the description of the Units setting in the 'Sales Ledger' manual for details and an example.
Flip E	
Dis. Row FIFO	If the Production is disassembling a previous Production, the final I cost values from that Production will be

#### the final I-cost values from that Production will be placed in these fields. Please refer to page 225 below for more details about disassembly. Footer In Weight This field contains the sum of the Weights of the Input Items. Individual Item Weights (per unit) are shown on flip D. **Out Weight** This field contains the sum of the Weights of the Output Items.

#### **Comment Card**

_				Items Comment			
Comment							
Objects							
Start Time	19:23:00	End Time	19:24:26	Break Time	Language		
Comment	Any comment to descri	ibe the record.					
-----------------	--	---	--	--	--	--	--
Objects	Paste Special	Object register, Nominal Ledger/System module					
	Default taken from	Machine (Asset)					
	You can assign up to 20 Objects, separated by commas, to each Production record. You might define separate Objects to represent different departments, cost centres or product types. This provides a flexible method of analysis that can be used in Nominal Ledger reports. Usually the Objects specified here will represent the Machine.						
	In any Nominal Ledger Transactions generated from this Production record, any Objects specified here will be assigned to both the debit and the credit postings.						
	If you have specified as the Machine an Asset that has Production Objects specified on its 'Costs' card, those Objects will be copied here as defaults.						
Start Time, End	ſime						
	Paste SpecialCurrent Time						
	The time when the work represented by this Production record started and ended.						
Break Time		cord the total duration of any work between the Start and End					
Language	Paste Special	Languages setting, System module					
	Default taken from Recipe						
	will be used when yo printer that will be used sending the document to can support this fea Document' window Picking List and Roo described in the 'Wor	guage to determine the Form that ou print the Production, and the sed to print it. This can include to a fax machine, if your hardware ature. Do this in the 'Define for the Production, Production uting Production documents, as king Environment' chapter in the World Enterprise' manual.					

# Inspecting and Approving Production Records

When you have completed the assembly process, you should check and approve the instructing Production record. When you approve and save it, stock levels of the components will be reduced and that of the Output Item will be increased. There are two ways to approve a Production record—

- 1. With the Production record on screen, click the Finished check box (assuming the Production was completed successfully), or the Finished but Discarded check box (if there was a failure) and save.
- 2. Select a Production record by clicking on it in the 'Productions: Browse' window, and select 'Finish' from the Operations menu. By holding down the Shift key you can highlight a batch of Production records to approve at a single stroke using this method.

On approval, if so defined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and in the Number Series - Productions setting, a cost accounting Transaction will be created in the Nominal Ledger. Please refer to the section below on page 218 entitled 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records' for details of the Accounts used by this Transaction.

# Once you have marked a Production record as Finished or Finished but Discarded, you will no longer be able to change it.

If you have marked a Production record as Finished and saved it, you can reverse this action using the 'Disassemble' function on the Operation menu, described below on page 225.

## Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Records

When you mark a Production record as Finished and save it, a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be generated automatically if you have so determined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and in the Number Series - Productions setting. This Transaction will contain two sets of credit postings, one for the Input Costs and one for the Work Cost—

- 1. The Input Costs will be credited to the Stock Account from the Location.
- 2. If the Location does not have a Stock Account, or you have not specified a Location, and if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module, the Input

Costs will be credited in the appropriate proportions to the Stock Accounts of the Item Groups to which the Input Items belong.

3. In all other circumstances (i.e. if you are not using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option or an Input Item does not belong to an Item Group), the Production I-cost Account, as specified on the 'Stock' card of the Account Usage Stock setting in the Stock module, will be credited.

If you have specified Objects in any of the rows, separate credit postings will be made for each Object/Account combination. If you have specified Objects on the 'Comment' card, they will be assigned to all credit postings.

The choice of Stock Account described in steps 1 and 2 above means that it will not be possible to distinguish the value of Items removed from stock to be used in Productions from the value of the same Items removed from stock for other purposes (e.g. Delivery or Stock Depreciation). If you need to make such a distinction, specify Components Usage and Production Control Accounts in the Account Usage Stock setting, in the Item records for the components and/or in the Item Groups to which the components belong. If you do so (i.e. if you specify both a Components Usage Account and a Production Control Account), the Transaction will contain additional postings, debiting the value of the components to the Components Usage Account.

If you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option, the Work Cost will be credited to a W-cost Account chosen as follows—

- 1. The W-cost Account will be the Production W-cost Account specified in the Item Group to which the Item in the row with the Work Cost belongs.
- 2. If this Item Group does not have a Production W-cost Account, the W-cost Account will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.
- 3. If there is no W-cost Account in the Account Usage Stock setting, the Stock Account in the Item Group to which the Item in the row with the Work Cost belongs will be used as the W-cost Account.

Therefore, if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option and you have specified Production W-cost Accounts in your Item Groups, be sure to enter the Work Cost in the appropriate row in the Production before marking it as Finished, so that the correct Account is credited.

If you are not using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option, the Work Cost will always be posted to the W-cost Account in the Account Usage Stock setting. In this case, you will not be able to save a Finished Production with a Work Cost if you have not specified a W-cost Account in the Account Usage Stock setting.

If any components in the Production are Service Items, they will be treated as Work Cost. Their value will be credited to a W-cost Account chosen as described above, using if appropriate the Production W-cost Account in the Item Groups to which the Service Items belong.

If the Production contains a row for Machine Cost (i.e. you are using the Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items option in the Production Settings setting, you have specified a Machine Cost Item in the same setting, and you have specified a Running Cost/hr in the Asset record for the Machine specified in the Production), the Machine Cost will also be credited to a W-cost Account. This will be chosen as described above, using if appropriate the Production W-cost Account in the Item Group to which the Machine Cost Item belongs.

The value of the Output Item(s) will be debited to an Account chosen as follows-

- 1. The value of the Output Item(s) will be debited to the Stock Account from the Location.
- 2. If the Location does not have a Stock Account, or no Location has been specified, and if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting, the Stock Account of the Item Group to which the Output Item belongs will be debited.
- 3. In all other cases, the Production I-cost Account on the 'Stock' card of the Account Usage Stock setting will be debited.

If you have specified Objects on the 'Comment' card, they will be assigned to all debit postings.

When you first specify a Recipe in a Production record, the Input and Output Costs in each row will be taken from that Recipe. Each time you save the Production, these figures will be updated with the Item's unit stock value (if the row contains an Input Item) or by a unit value calculated from the total value of the components including the Work Cost (if the row contains an Output Item). The unit stock value of each Input Item will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used.

If you have marked the Production as Finished but Discarded, there will be no Output Costs because the Out Qty in the Production will be zero. Therefore in this case the Input and Work Costs will be balanced by a debit posting of the same value to the Discarded Production Cost Account, again as specified in the Account Usage Stock setting. Illustrated below is an example of a Nominal Ledger Production Transaction-

		erations		Ne	w Duplicat	e Cancel	Sa	ave
	No. 50	26 Trans. I	Date 5/11/2009 Reference					C
	Text							
	Account	Objects	Description		Base 1 Debit	Base 1 Credit	V-Cd	
1	740		Stock Valuation			46.30		^ A
2	231		Production Work Cost			10.00		в
3	740		Stock Valuation		56.30			
4	468		Base Currency Round Off			0.00		C D E F G
5								-
6								E
7								F
8								G
9								
10 11								
12								
13								
14								
15								
16								
17								
18								
19								
20								~

In practice, one possible way to operate is as follows-

- 1. Place each component in an Item Group where the Stock Account is a Components Stock Account;
- 2. Place each assembled Item in an Item Group where the Stock Account is a Finished Goods Stock Account;
- 3. The Locations where components and assembled Items are stored do not have their own Stock Account; and
- 4. The Production Location has a Work in Progress Account as its Stock Account.

When using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option, the result will be—

- 1. When you receive the components into stock using a Goods Receipt, the Components Stock Account will be debited;
- 2. When you move the components to the Production Location using a Stock Movement, the Components Stock Account will be credited and the Work in Progress Account debited;
- 3. The Production will both debit and credit the Work in Progress Account. Any Work Cost will be included in the debit posting to the Work in Progress Account and credited to a Work Cost Account;
- 4. When you move the assembled Item to its Location using a Stock Movement, the Work in Progress Account will be credited and the Finished Goods Stock Account debited.

If a Production has a Routing, you have a choice about how to update the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger, as follows—

- You can update the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger each time you Finish a Production Operation. In this case, the value of the Production so far will be posted to a Work In Progress Account.
- You can wait until Finishing the Production before updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger, posting every removal and addition to stock at once. All Production Operations must be Finished before you can Finish the Production.

You should make this choice using the Generate Transaction options in the Account Usage Production setting. If you choose the second option, the Transaction will be as described above. Please refer to the 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations' section below on page 265 for details of the first option.

Once the Transaction has been generated, you can look at it straight away using the 'Open NL Transaction' function on the Operations menu.

## **Operations Menu**

	Operations	
	Calculate Cost	
	Generate Serial Nos for Out I	ems
	Disassemble	
	Item Status	Ctrl+I
	Item Search	Shift+Ctrl+F
	Production Status	Shift+Ctrl+R
	Open NL Transaction	Shift+Ctrl+T
	Backflush	
	Create Activity	Shift+Ctrl+C
Operations	Create Stock Movement	
Finish	Create Production Operations	:
Create Productions	Quality Control	Shift+Ctrl+U

The Operations menus for the Production register are shown above. On the left is that for the 'Productions: Browse' window: highlight one or more Production records (hold down the Shift key while clicking) in the list before selecting the function. On the right is that for the 'Production: New' and 'Production: Inspect' windows.

## Finish

This command is available on the Operations menu only from the 'Productions: Browse' window. It permits the marking of a Production record as Finished and is therefore the equivalent of checking the Finished box in the Production record. You can also select several Production records in the 'Productions: Browse' window (hold down the Shift key to select a range of Production records in the list) and approve them all at once. Remember that this action causes stock levels to be changed and that therefore once it has been carried out you will no longer be able to modify those Production records.

## **Create Productions**

This function creates Production records by comparing stock levels with minimum stock quantities for each Stocked Item that has a Recipe. The Production records will be saved in an unapproved state. You can print the Production records in a single batch, using the [Documents] button in the Master Control panel or the Ctrl-D/#-D keyboard shortcut. Approving Productions is described above on page 218, while printing is covered below on page 303.

In comparing stock levels with the Minimum Level (shown on the 'Stock' card of the Item), unfulfilled Sales Orders and unapproved Production records are taken into account. So, for example, a new Production record will not be created for a Stocked Item with a Minimum Level of 1 if there is already an unapproved Production record.

Since the Production records created by this function are unapproved, no account is taken of the stock levels of the components or of any Serial Number requirements. The Quantity in each Production record is taken from the Normal Prod Qty of the corresponding Recipe: it is not determined by the stock shortfall.

Selecting 'Create Productions' opens the following dialogue box-

Specify Create Produ	ictions	
	Cancel	Run
Item No.		
Group		
Paste Special	Item register	
ange Reporting	Alpha	

Use this field to ensure the function considers the stock position of a particular Item or range of Items.

Group	Paste Special	Item Group register, Sales Ledger
	Range Reporting	Alpha

Use this field to ensure the function considers the stock position of the Items of a particular Item Group.

Press the [Run] button to start the generation of Production records. When the process is finished, the new records will be available for viewing, modifying and approval in the Production register.

#### **Calculate Cost**

Item No.

If you change the Item Number or change the Input or Output quantity in a Production row, the I-cost is not always updated immediately. If you need to update these figures using the relevant Cost Model (in the case of Input Items) or to a unit value calculated from the total value of the components and the W-cost (in the case of Output Items), use this function. In any case, these figures will always be updated when you save the Production, up to and including the time when you mark it as Finished or Discarded.

The function has no effect once the Production has been marked as Finished or Discarded and saved.

## **Generate Serial Nos for Out Items**

This function can be useful when you assemble a large quantity of a Serial Numbered Item and you need to enter many consecutive Serial Numbers.

Enter the appropriate number of rows with Output Items in the Production record and specify the lowest Serial Number for the first one. Then select the function: the remaining rows will gain a Serial Number, each incremented by one.

The Status of the Production must be Created or Started, otherwise the function will not generate Serial Numbers.

## Disassemble

Use this function when you need to reverse the effects of a Production record. This may be because you disassembled an assembled Item and returned its components to stock, because you marked a Production record as Finished incorrectly, or because a Finished Production record contained an error.

Find and open the Production record that is to be reversed, and select 'Disassemble' from the Operations menu. The function will create and open a new Production record that is the reverse of the original (i.e. the Input Items in the original Production will be Output Items in the new record, and the original Output Item will now be an Input Item).

Deperations							Ne	ew	Duplicate	Cancel	S	ave		
	No. S	5040		Name	HiFi Rack					_	tatus Created			đ
R	ecipe 8	80601		Start Date	5/11/2009	E	nd Date	6/11/2	2009					
	Qty		1	Start Time	19:23:00	E	nd Time	19:24	:26	Č	) Started			
Loc	ation	PROD					Machine				) Finished			
Insp	ector						Person			C	) Finished b	ut Discarded		
Prod.	Ord.					Discarded	Reason							
Actua	l Qty						Routing							
						Items	Comr	nont						
				_			_							
	Item		Desc			Serial No.	In	0	ut	Rel.	I-cost	W-cost	Coeff	
1	80601		HiFi F	Rack Shelf			1.	00			56.30			<u>^</u> A
2	80110			s oneir m Steel Box Sec					5.00	0.54	5.00 0.50			В
4	80112			n Steel Box Sec n Steel Box Sec					10.00	0.108	0.50			С
5	80113			n Steel Sheet	don				2.00	0.032	0.30			C D E
6	80114			n Steel Sheet					2.00	0.022	0.50			Е
7	80115	5	Hex	Screw					20.00	0.043	0.10			
8	80116	j	Spike	ed Feet					4.00	0.086	1.00			
9	80117	,	Rubb	er Shelf Seat					20.00	0.043	0.10			
10	80118	3	End	Cap					4.00	0.017	0.20			
11														
12														
13														~

The new Production record will be opened in a window entitled 'Production: Inspect'. This means that it has already been saved, and is being opened for checking.

When you mark the record as Finished and save it, the Input Costs of each Item will be updated, a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be generated, reversing the one created by the original Production record, and the stock levels of the assembled Items and the components will be updated. The assembled Item will be removed from stock, and the components will be returned to stock.

Each component will be returned to stock with the cost that was deducted from stock when you used it in the assembly process i.e. the cost of each component will be copied from the Production that you are disassembling.

The assembled Item will be removed from stock with a cost that will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used. Disassembly will therefore be treated as a normal removal from stock.

226

There may be a difference in the value of the assembled Item in the original Production and in the disassembling Production. There can be two reasons for this. First, the original Production may include a Work Cost. If so, the value of this Work Cost will be debited to the Stock Gain Account from the disassembling Production. Second, the calculated value of the assembled Item may have changed between assembly and disassembly. For example, other examples of the assembled Item may have been assembled or otherwise received into stock in the intervening time, changing the weighted average value of that Item. If this is the case, the difference will be debited (if the value has increased) or credited (if it has decreased) to the Disassemble Variance Account. The calculated value of the assembled Item at the time of disassembly will be shown in the I-Cost field on flip A of the 'Items' card in the disassembly Production, while the value at the time of assemble Variance Accounts will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.

The two Production records will be connected to each other through the Attachments facility. This allows you to open the original Production quickly and easily from the disassembly record, or to open the disassembly from the original Production.

You will not be able to disassemble a Production if any of the components are Plain Items. For this reason, you should not use Plain Items as components in Recipes or Productions. If you need a Recipe or Production to contain costs such as electricity, labour, etc as components, these costs should be Service Items, not Plain Items.

## **Item Status**

This function provides instant feedback for the Item shown in the Production row containing the cursor or highlighted in the 'Paste Special' window listing Items. Information displayed in a new window includes the quantity in stock, the quantity on order and the quantity shippable.

Please refer to the 'Items and Pricing' manual for full details of this function.

## **Item Search**

You can use this function to search for Items that you can then add to the Production. This function is therefore an alternative to the 'Paste Special' feature. Place the insertion point in the Item field in any row and then select 'Search' from the Operations menu. The following window opens—

Search for	
Classification Search In Description O Description O No Group Alt. Code Base Price O Any Media O Screen Pdf	
Search In Description No Group Alt. Code Base Price Any Media Screen Pdf	
Description     No     Group     Alt. Code     Base Price     Any  Media  Screen     Pdf	
Screen ○ Pdf	
🔘 Printer 💫 🔘 Html as Attachment	
O File O Excel	
Clipboard Print Dialog	
O Fax Ignore Timeout Limit	

Search for Enter here the string (e.g. part of an Item Number or Name) that you are looking for. You must make an entry in this field, otherwise no search will be carried out.

Classification	Paste Special	Item Classifications setting,
		Sales Ledger
	If you enter an Ite	m Classification here, the search
	the string that you	specified in the field above will

If you enter an Item Classification here, the search for the string that you specified in the field above will be restricted to Items belonging to that Classification.

**Search In** Specify the field in which you want to search.

Press [Run] to activate the search. A report will be printed to screen, listing the Items found. If you click on an Item Number in the report, the Item will be added to the Production in the first empty row.

## **Production Status**

This function produces a Production Status report for the Production currently open in a record window. This report contains full details of the selected Production, and lists all connected Production Operations and Stock Movements.

Operations 📄 🖉						_
					Search	)
Production Status Radio Import/Export Ltd			HHansaWorld, Prin	Producti		
Comment	Sequence	Status	In	Out	Cost	^
Production 5033				Created		=
Making Shelf Frames	1	Created	1.00		10.00	
Make Supports	2	Created	1.00		2.50	
Drill Holes in Frames	3	Created	1.00			
Painting Hifi Rack Components	4	Created	1.00			
Screw Rubber Seats into Shelf Mounts	5	Created	1.00		2.00	
Screw Spiked Feet into Supports	6	Created	1.00		4.00	
Final assembly	7	Created	1.00		27.80	
Stock Mov. 31						
					ŀ	v

As you can open an individual Production Operation record by clicking on a Production Operation Number in the report, you can use this report as a starting point to monitor progress both of the Production and of the connected Production Operations. You can also open a Stock Movement record by clicking on a Stock Movement Number in the report.

If a report is not produced when you select the function, the probable cause is that the Production does not have a Routing.

## **Open NL Transaction**

When you mark a Production record as Finished and save it, if so defined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and in the Number Series -Productions setting, a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be created. This function allows you to view that Transaction.

Select this function to open the Transaction in a new window.

## Backflush

This function can be useful if the Production is a complex one with several assembly stages (i.e. if the Production has a Routing) and you have created the Production Operations representing those stages using the 'Create Production Operations' function (described below on page 236). You must mark all these Production Operations as Finished before you can Finish the parent Production itself. Usually you will do this in each Production Operation as Finished at once, you can do so using this function. In every Production Operation Coperation connected to the Production, the Qty will be copied to the Actual Qty, the Status will be changed to Finished, stock levels will be updated and, if appropriate, the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger will also be updated.

## **Create Activity**

You can use this function to create records in the Activity register in the System module. This can be useful for technicians who like to use the Activity register and Calendar to schedule their work. No default Activity Type will be offered. The Task Type of the new Activities will be Calendar, and the Symbol will be Other.

When you select the function, the following screen appears, where you can create a new Activity—

	Operations				New	Duplicate	Cancel	Save
	Text							e
	Туре		Persons	AM				
	Language		Cc					
	Priority		Supervisor		Result		Private	Done
	Time	Custome	r Text Su	b Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined	
	Start Time End Time Cost (Time)	19:24:26	Start Date End Date Time Class	5/11/2009 5/11/2009	Task Type Calence To Do Timed Work H	lar To Do	Calendar Time Profile Don't S	how
	Project		Name					_
	Customer		Telephone					
]	Invoice Item		Contact					
	Code 1	ext						
								1
•								
;								

A new record is opened in a window entitled 'Activity: Inspect'. This means that it has already been saved, and is being opened for checking. The Start Date of the Activity will be the Start Date of the Production, and its End Date will also be copied from the Production. The Person of the Activity will be the Person from the Production, while the current user's initials will appear in the Cc field. The Production Number will be copied to the Production Number field on the 'Service' card of the Activity. After amendment if necessary, save the record in the Activity register by clicking the [Save] button in the Button Bar and close it using the close box. Alternatively, if you no longer require the Activity, remove it using the 'Delete' function on the Record menu. In either case, you will be returned to the Production window.

The Production record and the Activity will remain connected to each other through the Attachments facility. This allows you to open the Production quickly and easily when reviewing the Activity, or to open the Activity from the Production. When viewing the Activity or Production, click the button with the paper clip image to open a list of attachments. Then double-click an item in this list to open it.

The Production does not have to be saved before you can create an Activity.

Please refer to the 'CRM' manual for full details of the 'Activity: Inspect' window.

## **Create Stock Movement**

If there is insufficient stock of components in the Location specified in the header to complete the Production (you can ascertain this information using the 'Item Status' function described above on page 227), you can use this function to move any stock that might exist elsewhere into that Location. You can also use this function when the Production is Finished, to move the assembled Item out of the assembly area to another Location. In both cases, you must save the Production before you can use the function, and there must be a Location specified in the header of the Production (unless you have specified a Main Location in the Stock Settings setting, in which case that Location will be used).

When you select the function, a new record will be created in the Stock Movement register (in the Stock module). It is opened in a new window, entitled 'Stock Movement: Inspect'. This means that it has been created and saved and is being opened for amendment and approval.

	Ope	rations				New	Duplicate	Cancel S	ave
	No	25			Reserved	Reason			C
	Ord. Date	5/11/200	09	Sent Da	te	Received Date			
	From Location	WHS		Via Locatio	n	To Location	PROD		
			Positions	Objects	Items Currency	/ Durations	Freight		
	From Position			To Positi	n	For Production	5026		
		📃 Manu	ial Pick		📃 Send To Forklift Q	leue			
	Objects	;							
	Comment	:							
	Item F	leq. Qty	Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	Description	R. Old Unit Pr.	R. Extra Cost	R. New Unit Pr.	
1	80110	5			Glass Shelf	0.00	1	0.00	<b>^</b> A
-	80111	10			40 cm Steel Box Section	0.00	l l	0.00	В
2	80112	10			50 cm Steel Box Section	0.00	1	0.00	c
2 3		_			90 cm Steel Sheet	0.00	1	0.00	D
	80113	2			and the second second			0.00	-
3	80113 80114	2			36 cm Steel Sheet	0.00			
3 4					36 cm Steel Sheet Hex Screw	0.00		0.00	E
3 4 5	80114	2					I	0.00	E
3 4 5 6	80114 80115	2 20			Hex Screw	0.00			
3 4 5 6 7	80114 80115 80116	2 20 4			Hex Screw Spiked Feet	0.00		0.00	
3 4 5 6 7 8	80114 80115 80116 80117	2 20 4 20			Hex Screw Spiked Feet Rubber Shelf Seat	0.00 0.00 0.00		0.00	~

The contents of the Stock Movement will depend on the Status of the originating Production record. The Stock Movement illustrated above is an example of a Stock Movement created from a Production where the Status is Created or Started. In this case, the Location from the header of the Production (or, if this is blank, the Main Location if there is one) is copied to the To Location field of the Stock Movement to enable you to move the components to that Location. The Main Location specified in the Stock Settings setting will be copied to the From Location field (the Location from which the stock is to be moved). The Text and For Production fields of the Stock Movement will both contain a reference to the Production from which it was created. All Input rows with Stocked Items from the Production will be transferred to the Stock Movement. The Requested Quantity in each Stock Movement row will be the exact Quantity needed to complete the Production. This will be the In Qty in each Production row, less any quantity that has been moved in a previous Stock Movement (i.e. one of any status with the same Production Number in the For Production field). There will be no attempt to calculate the existing stock level in the Production Location and to move in the balance.

Change the From Location if necessary, enter the Received Quantities, check the Received box and click the [Save] button to save.

The components will be moved into the To Location. If you are using the Do Not Allow Over Delivery option in the Stock Settings setting, you will not be able to approve and save the Stock Movement if there is insufficient stock in the From Location for the transfer. If you would like to ascertain whether the From Location has sufficient stock for the transfer before approving and saving the Stock Movement, use the 'Item Status' function on the Operations menu or produce a Stock List report.

When you save the Stock Movement, the R. Old Unit Price and R. New Unit Price will be changed to an actual stock value, providing there is a Received Quantity. If you have entered an R. Extra Cost, this will be included in the R. New Price. These figures will be recalculated each time you save the Stock Movement, and when you approve it. If you have specified a Via Location and a Sent Quantity, the S. Old Unit Price and S. New Unit Price on flip B will similarly be recalculated, taking any S. Extra Cost into account. The Old Unit Price(s) will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used. If you specify an Extra Cost, the value of the Item in the FIFO/LIFO queue will be adjusted to include the Extra Cost, as will the overall Weighted Average figure for the Item, shown on the 'Costs' card of the Item record. If you are using the Weighted Average per Location option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module, the Extra Cost will also be included in the Weighted Average figure for the Item in the To Location.

If the Status of the originating	g Production	is	Finished,	the	new	Stock
Movement will appear as follows						

	Ope	rations		20				New	Duplicate	Cancel 9	ave
	No.	35			📃 Reser	ved		Reason			l
	Ord. Date 7/11/200 From Location PROD		Ord. Date 7/11/2009		te		Re	eceived Date			
	From Location	PROD		Via Locati	n			To Location			
		_	Positions	Objects	Items	Currency		Durations	Freight		
	From Position			To Positi	on		Fo	or Production	5026	1	
		Manu	ual Pick		Send 1	To Forklift Qu	leue				
_	Item R	ea. Otv	Sept Otv	Revd. Otv	Description		R. O	ld Linit Pr.	R. Extra Cost	R. New Unit Pr.	_
1		eq. Qty 1	Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	Description HiEi Rack		R. 0	ld Unit Pr. 56.30	R. Extra Cost	R. New Unit Pr. 56.30	_
1	Item R 80601	leq, Qty 1	Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	Description HiFi Rack		R. 0	ld Unit Pr. 56.30		R. New Unit Pr. 56.30	<b>^</b> A
1 2 3			Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	•		R. 0				A B
2			Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	•		R. 0				A B
2 3			Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	•		R. C				A B
2 3 4 5 6			Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	•		R. C				<b>^</b> A
2 3 4 5 6 7			Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	•		R. C				A B
2 3 4 5 6 7 8			Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	•		R. C				A B
2 3 4 5 6 7			Sent Qty	Rcvd. Qty	•		R. O				A B

In this case, the Location from the header of the Production (or, if this is blank, the Main Location if there is one) will be copied to the From Location field of the Stock Movement, to enable the moving of the assembled Item(s) from that Location. All Output rows with Stocked Items from the Production will be transferred to the Stock Movement. The Quantity in each Stock Movement row will be the exact Quantity built by the Production. The R. Old and R. New Unit Prices will be the Input Cost from the Production row.

Enter a To Location (the Location to which the stock is to be moved), check the Received box and click the [Save] button to save.

No Stock Movement will be created if you use this function from a Production whose Status is Cancelled.

You can use Access Groups to control who can create Stock Movements from Productions. To do this, deny access to the 'Stock Movement from Production' Action. Access Groups are described in the 'System Module' manual. You can also create Stock Movements from Productions using the Production Picking List document. As well as creating the relevant Stock Movements, this document will also print picking lists that warehouse staff can use to transfer components from the warehouse to the production area and, when Productions have Finished, to transfer assembled Items from the production area to the warehouse. This document is described below on page 297.

Please refer to the 'Stock Module' manual for full details of the 'Stock Movement: Inspect' window.

#### **Create Production Operations**

If the Production is a complex one with several assembly stages (i.e. if the Production has a Routing), you cannot simply mark the Production as Finished in order to remove the components from stock and add the assembled Item to stock. Instead, you need to use this function to create the Production Operations that represent each stage in the process, and then mark each Operation as Finished in turn.

Selecting this function opens the 'Specify Create Production Operations' window shown below. If the window does not open and the Production has a Routing, the probable reason is that the Qty field in the header of the Production is empty.

Specify Create Production Operations	
	Run
Production 5033	

Click the [Run] button in the Button Bar to confirm that you want to create Production Operations. The function will create Production Operations specific to the Production, as follows—

- 1. The function will refer to the Routing specified in the Production to obtain the sequence of Standard Operations.
- 2. The function will then refer to the first Standard Operation in the sequence to obtain a list of Materials.

3. The function will then look in the Production to find the Input and Output Items that share the first Material in the list in step 2.

If an Input Item in the Production has a Recipe (i.e. the Input Item is a sub-assembly), the function will also look in the sub-assembly Recipe for Input and Output Items with the Material in question.

- 4. A Production Operation will be created, containing the Input and Output Items found in step 3.
- 5. Step 3 is repeated for each Material in the Standard Operation, and the Input and Output Items that share those Materials will be added to the Production Operation created in step 4.
- 6. Steps 2-5 are repeated for each Standard Operation in the Routing.

If any of the Input Items in the Production are Phantom Items (Plain Items with Recipes) whose Recipes contain Routings, the sequence described above will be carried out for those Routings first, before being carried out for the Routing in the Production itself.

You can produce a Create Production Operations report before using this function to preview the Production Operations that will be created.

If the 'Specify Create Production Operations' window illustrated above appears but no Production Operations are created, the probable reason is that there is no valid record in the Number Series - Production Operations setting. This problem will usually occur at the beginning of a new year.

More details about the Production Operation register can be found below on page 243.

## **Quality Control**

This function will be useful in cases where the assembled Item produced by the Production is one that should be subject to a quality control cycle. For example, the Item might be perishable. Place the insertion point in a row containing an assembled Item (which must be Serial Numbered at unit or batch level) and select this function. A new record will be created in the Batch Quality Control setting in the Service Orders module.

•]	•	Operati	ons	[	New D	uplica	ate Ca	ancel Sa	ve
		Item	80601						0
	Batch/Se	erial No.	091113						
	Analy	se Date	13/11/2009		R	esult			
Ν	lext Analy	se Date			New Best Be	efore			
	Te	ested By	AM						
	C	omment	HiFi Rack						
	1	Register	Production			No.	5041		
	т	emplate	RACK						
	Test	Comme	nt	Unit	From		То	Result	
1	PAINT	Check	Paint Quality		0.00		0.00		~
2	TOL	Check	Tolerances 🔿		0.00		0.00		
3	WELD	Check	Welding		0.00		0.00		
4									
5									
6									~

The new Batch Quality Control record will be opened in a window entitled 'Batch Quality Control: New'. This means that it has not yet been saved. The Item Number, Serial Number and Comment will be taken from the Production row, the Analyse Date will be the current date, and your Signature as the current user will be placed in the Tested By field. The Production Number will also be copied to the Batch Quality Control record. If you have configured a Batch Quality Control Template for the Item containing a list of the Tests that should be carried out to ensure the Item meets quality standards, it will appear in the Template field and the Tests will be listed in the matrix. Save the record to bring the Item into the quality control cycle.

If the function does not create a Batch Quality Control record when expected, the probable causes are -

- 1. You did not place the insertion point in a Production row before selecting the function.
- 2. The row containing the insertion point does not have an Out Qty.
- 3. The Item in the row containing the insertion point is not Serial Numbered at unit or batch level.

Please refer to the 'Service Orders' manual for more details about the Batch Quality Control setting.

# The Production Item Alternative Register

The Production Item Alternative register connects Output Items, Machines and Recipes. You should enter a separate record in this register for each Output Item that you produce. Use this record to list the Machines that you can use to produce the Output Item, and the Recipes that you will use with each Machine.

The information in Production Item Alternative register will be used in the following situations—

- When you specify a Recipe in a Production Order and if you have entered a record in the Production Item Alternative register for the Output Item in that Recipe, the Default Machine from that record will be copied to the Production Order. If that Production Item Alternative record does not have a Default Machine, the Machine in the first row with the Recipe will be used.
- If you create a Production Order using the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' Maintenance functions in the Sales Orders module or the 'Create Productions' Maintenance function in the MRP module, the Machine in that Production Order will be chosen as described in the previous point.
- If you change the Machine in a Production Order, you must do so to a Machine that is listed in the Production Item Alternative record for the Output Item (i.e. to a Machine that can produce the Item). You can change the Machine in a Production Order itself or by dragging and dropping the Production Order from one Machine to another in the Resource Planner. If the new Machine uses a different Recipe, that Recipe will be copied to the Production Order, and the Input and Output Items will be changed accordingly.

To work with Production Item Alternatives, ensure you are in the Production module and click the [Prod. Item Alternatives] button in the Master Control panel to open the Production Item Alternative register. Click the [New] button in the Button Bar to enter a new record to the register.

#### HansaWorld Enterprise

►				New	Duplicate	I Save
	Item No.	80601	Start Date		End Date	6
Default Machine		WELD1	Recipe		Routing	
	Machine	Default Recipe	Alternate Recipe	Alternate Routing		
1	WELD2	80601				
2	WELD3	80601				
3						
4						
5						
6						
7						
8						
9						
10 11						
11						
12						
13						
15						
16						
17						
18						
19						
20						~

## Item No. Paste Special Item register

You should enter one record to the Production Item Alternative register for each Output Item. Specify the Output Item here. The Production Item Alternative record should be a list of the Machines that you can use to produce the Output Item, and the Recipes that you will use together with those Machines.

#### Start Date, End Date

## Paste Special Choose date

If the Production Item Alternative record can only be used for a certain period, specify that period using these fields.

This period is only used by Production Plans. If you have entered Start and End Dates in a Production Item Alternative record and you enter the Item specified above in a Production Plan that falls between those

dates, the Recipe in that Production Item Alternative record will be copied to flip C of the Production Plan row. Otherwise (i.e. if the relevant Production Item Alternative record does not have Start and End Dates), the Recipe on flip C of a Production Plan row will be taken from the relevant Item record.

#### Default Machine, Machine

#### Paste Special Asset module, Assets module

The Default Machine should be the Machine that you will usually use to produce the Item in the field above. Use the grid to list the other Machines that can produce the Item together with the Recipes that those Machines will use.

The Default Machine will be copied to all Production Orders where the Item is the Output Item.

If you do not specify a Default Machine, the Machine copied to Production Orders that you enter yourself will be the Machine in the row containing the Recipe that you enter in the Production Order. Production Orders that you create using the various Maintenance functions will use the Machine in the row containing the Recipe specified in the Item record. Therefore, if you do not specify a Default Machine, be sure to enter a row with the Recipe used in the Item record and appropriate Machine.

If you change the Machine in an existing Production Order, the Recipe in that Production Order will be changed as well, to the Recipe in the row with that Machine. The Input and Output Items will be changed accordingly.

When you save a Production Order, a check will be made that the Machine can produce the Item (i.e. the Machine is listed in the Production Item Alternative record for the Item).

#### **Recipe, Default Recipe**

Paste Special	Recipe register, Production
	module

Having entered a Default Machine in the header and listed alternative Machines in the rows, you should also

specify the Recipes that those various Machines will use. You can use the same Recipe with several Machines.

The Recipe in the header will be used as a default in only one circumstance. If you have entered Start and End Dates in a Production Item Alternative record and you enter the Item in a Production Plan that falls between those dates, this Recipe will be copied to flip C of the Production Plan row. Otherwise (i.e. if the relevant Production Item Alternative record does not have Start and End Dates), the Recipe on flip C of a Production Plan row will be taken from the relevant Item record.

If you change the Machine in an existing Production Order, the Recipe in that Production Order will be changed as well, to the Recipe in the row with that Machine. The Input and Output Items will be changed accordingly.

# The Production Operation Register

A single Production record represents the process of removing components from stock and assembling them into the final Item. The removing of components from stock, the adding of the final Item to stock and the updating of the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger all occur at the same moment. A single Production record cannot therefore represent a complex Production process with several assembly stages, where components are not all removed from stock at the same time. To meet this requirement, you can use Routings and Production Operations to divide a Production into stages, with the following benefits—

- You can record each stage of the Production process separately, so you will always know exactly how each Production is progressing;
- Components will be removed from stock as you use them, not at the end of the entire Production process; and
- You can record Work in Progress in the Nominal Ledger.

The term given to a stage in the Production process is "Operation". There are two types of Operation—

- When you divide a Production process into stages, you will first create generic Operations, known as "Standard Operations". These should contain the average specifications for each stage or Operation.
- When you implement a Production process, you will create a Production record in the normal way and choose the Recipe. You will then create Operations specific to that Production, using the relevant Standard Operations as templates. The Operations that are specific to a particular Production are known as "Production Operations".

For details about configuring a complex Production process with several assembly stages, please refer to the description of the Materials, Standard Operations and Routings settings beginning above on page 128. An illustrated example can be found above on page 54.

# **Entering a Production Operation**

You must create new Production Operations from Productions, and you can only do so from a Production that has a Routing and a Qty specified in the header. With such a Production open, select the 'Create Production Operations' function from the Operations menu. The 'Specify Create Production Operations' window will open: click the [Run] button to confirm that you want to create Production Operations. The appropriate Production Operations will be created, using the Standard Operations specified in the Routing as templates. Please refer to the description of the 'Create Production Operations' function above on page 236 for more details about how the function will use Materials, Standard Operations and the Routing to create Production Operations. You cannot enter Production Operations directly to the Production Operation register.

In effect, each Production Operation is a Production in miniature. After creating them, you should work through them in turn, marking each as Finished until the process is complete. As you Finish each Production Operation, the relevant components will be removed from stock. When you Finish the last one, the final assembled Item will be added to stock. You will then be able to return to the Production and mark this as Finished as well.

You can find the Production Operations that are connected to a particular Production in two ways—

- 1. Open the Production and choose 'Production Status' from the Operations menu. A report will be printed to screen, listing the Production Operations that are connected to the Production. You can open a Production Operation by drilling down on the Comment of a Production Operation in the report.
- 2. Ensure you are in the Production module and open the Production Operation register by clicking the [Production Operations] button in the Master Control panel. The 'Production Operations: Browse' window is opened, showing Production Operations already entered.

	New Duplicate								
No.	▲ Status	Prod. No.	Sequence	Sub-Seq.	Start Date	Comment			
1	~	5007	1		27/10/2008	Painting	^		
2	~	5007	2		27/10/2008	Table assembly	E		
3	~	5008	1		27/10/2008	Painting	_		
4	~	5008	2		27/10/2008	Table assembly			
5	~	5008	1		31/10/2008	Painting			
6	~	5008	1		31/10/2008	Painting			
7	~	5009	1		2/11/2008	Painting			
8	-	5009	2		2/11/2008	polish			
9		5009	3		2/11/2008	Table assembly			
10	~	5010	1		24/11/2008	Painting			
11	~	5010	2		24/11/2008	Varnish	~		

Sort the list by Production Number (click on the Prod. No. column heading) and then search for the Production that you need by entering its Number in the field in the top right-hand corner and pressing the Enter key. Open a Production Operation by double-clicking.

In both cases, the Production Operation will be opened, in a window entitled 'Production Operation: Inspect'.

💙 Prodi	uction Opera	tion: Inspect								(		
	Operati	ons				Nev	•	Duplicate	Cancel	] []s	ave	
		1 6/11/2009 Making Shelf Frame	s	Prod. Order Actual Qty End Date	6/11/2009	Pro	d. No.	Status Created Cancelled Started Finished	nd Discardeo	1	(	0
_			Items	Time C	Comment	Instructi	ons					
	Item	Descr.			Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	Unit Cost	Coeff		_
1	80111	40 cm Steel Box Se	ction			10.00			0.50		~	۹.
2	80112	50 cm Steel Box Se	ction			10.00			0.50			3
3												c
4											-	
5											-	
6												
7												
8												
9												
10												
11												
12												
13												
15											~	

Since the amount of information stored about each Production Operation will not fit on a single screen, the Production Operation window has been divided into four cards. At the top of each is the header. There are four named buttons ('tabs') in the header.

Items Time Comment Instructions

By clicking the tabs you can navigate between cards. The header is always visible, as a reminder of the Production Operation you are working with.

## Header

SProduction Opera	tion: Inspect							
Operati		Save						
					Prod. No.			0
			id Date	6/11/2009		<u> </u>		
Comment	Making Shelf Fra	mes				🔘 Started		
Sequence	1					~		
						<ul> <li>Finished an</li> </ul>	d Discarded	
		Items Time	(	Iomment	Instructions			

No. The number of the current Production Operation. The default is the first unused number in the number sequence in the first valid row in the Number Series - Production Operations setting. You cannot change this number.

#### Prod. Order **Default taken from** Production If you created the Production Operation from a Production that was itself created from a Production Order, the Production Order Number will appear here. You cannot change this field. Prod. No. Production **Default taken from** The Number of the Production from which you created the Production will appear here. You cannot change this field. Default taken from Production Qty The number of applications of the stage of the Recipe required by the Production Operation. The way this field interacts with the In and Out Quantities in the rows depends on the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting. For example, a stage of a Recipe states that two

components are required to produce one final Item. When you create a Production Operation that represents two applications of this Recipe stage, this field will contain "2". If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, the In Qty of the component will contain "4", and the Out Qty of the final Item will

246

contain "2". If you are not using this option, the In Qty of the component will contain "2", and the Out Qty of the final Item will contain "1".

You cannot change this Qty. Creating the Production Operation will also mean you will no longer be able to change the Qty in the parent Production.

Actual Qty The number of applications of the stage of the Recipe actually carried out in completing the Production Operation. You must enter a figure here before you can mark the Production Operation as Finished, or Finished and Discarded.

> This field interacts with the In and Out Quantities in the rows in the same way as described above for the Qty field. When you create the Production Operation, the Qty in the header and the In and Out Quantities in the rows will be copied from the Production, with the In and Out Quantities depending on the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting. If you then enter an Actual Qty that is different to the Qty and if you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, the In and Out Quantities in the rows will be changed accordingly.

> If you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, you must set this field to "1" if the Output Item or any of the components are Serial Numbered at unit level. If you need several applications of the Recipe, increase the number of rows containing the Serial Numbered Items (each should have an In or Out Qty of one), and multiply the In and Out Quantities of the non-Serial Numbered Items appropriately. If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option and at least one of the Items is Serial Numbered at unit level, you can enter any quantity in this field. The In and Out Quantities in each row will be updated. Then, list the Serial Numbered Items individually in the grid: do not do this before changing the Qty in the header because then the In and Out Quantities in the individual rows will be updated incorrectly.

Start Date	Paste Special         Choose date
	The date when work on the Production Operation is to start, or did start. The default is the Start Date from the Production or, if that is blank, its End Date.
	If the Start Date is blank when you mark the Production Operation as Started and save it, the current date will be placed here automatically.
	If you have used the Time options in the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Actual Time against Production Operations, you will record that time using Activities. It is recommended you specify Start and End Dates and Times before creating an Activity from an Operation, as they will be transferred to the Activity. This will help ensure time recording and the recording of costs associated with that time in the Nominal Ledger are both accurate.
	You can use this date together with the End Date below to calculate the running cost of the Machine used in the Production: please refer to the description of the Actual Machine field below on page 262 for details.
End Date	Paste Special         Choose date
	The date when work on the Production Operation is to end, or did end. The default is the Start Date from the Production or, if that is blank, its End Date.
Comment	Enter a comment describing the Production Operation. The default is the Description in the Routing row that generated the Production Operation. This Description in turn will by default be the Comment in the relevant Standard Operation.
Sequence, Sub S	Sequence
	These fields show the position of the Production Operation in the Production process. They are copied

Operation in the Production process. They are copied from the Routing row that generated the Production Operation. You cannot change these fields.

If you are using the Complete Sequence Before Next One option in the Production Settings setting, you must Finish the Production Operations connected to a particular Production in the correct order, as determined by these fields. At any time a Production Operation can be in one of five states, to help with the work flow and for reporting purposes. These states are as follows—

Created When you first create a Production Operation, it will be marked as Created. Created Production Operations are marked with a blank in the Status column in the 'Production Operations: Browse' window.

Status

CancelledIn the case where the job is cancelled before work<br/>has started, you should change the Status of each<br/>Production Operation to Cancelled to signify that<br/>no work should be carried out. Once a Production<br/>Operation has been marked as Cancelled and<br/>saved, it can no longer be modified. Cancelled<br/>Production Operations are marked with a " $\sqrt{7}$ " in<br/>the 'Production Operations: Browse' window.

Started As soon as work starts, you should change the Status of the Production Operation to Started. When you save the record, the Start Date and Time will be updated, if they are blank. The Start Time is visible on the 'Time' card. Started Production Operations are marked with a "-" in the 'Production Operations: Browse' window.

> If you are accounting for the running costs of the Actual Machine used for the Production Operation (i.e. you have a record in the Asset register in the Assets module representing the Machine in which you have entered a Running Cost per Hour, you are using the Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items option in the Production Settings setting and you have specified a Machine Cost Item in the same setting), you should take care to mark each Production Operation as Started when you start work, to update the Start Time. This will help ensure the duration of the Production Operation and therefore the running costs of the Machine are correct.

**Finished** Check this box to confirm that you have completed the Production Operation. The stock levels of components and the assembled Items (if any) will be updated when you save the record.

The Start and End Times (on the 'Time' card) will be updated, if they are blank. Once you have marked a Production Operation as Finished and saved it, you will no longer be able to modify it. Finished Production Operations are marked with a " $\sqrt{}$ " in the 'Production Operations: Browse' window.

You must enter an Actual Qty in the header before you can mark a Production Operation as Finished.

Switch on the Do Not Allow Over Delivery option in the Stock Settings setting if you do not want to be able to create negative stock of the components. If you are using this option, you will not be able to save a Production Operation marked as Finished if there is not enough stock of any of the components to carry out the assembly.

If you have so determined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and depending on which Generate Transaction option you have chosen in the Account Usage Production setting, a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be created in the Transaction register when a Production Operation is marked as Finished and saved. The nature of this Transaction is described in the section entitled 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations', below on page 265.

When you mark the Production Operation as Finished and save it, the Unit Cost of each Input Item will be updated with the appropriate unit stock value and the cost of any Output Item(s) will be recalculated accordingly, taking the Rel. field into account if appropriate. These figures will be used in the resulting Nominal Ledger Transaction to update the Nominal Ledger stock valuation of each Input Item. The unit stock value of each Input Item will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used.

If you have used the Time options in the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Actual Time against Production Operations, you will record that time using Activities. Remember to bring these Activities into the Production Operation using the 'Add Labour' function on the same menu before marking the Production Operation as Finished, to ensure the correct time is registered for the Production Operation.

If you are accounting for the running costs of the Actual Machine used for the Production Operation as described in the Started section above, be sure to check the End Date is correct before marking the Production Operation as Finished. This will ensure the correct running cost will be posted.

You must mark all Production Operations as Finished before you can Finish the parent Production itself. If you are using the Complete Sequence Before Next One option in the Production Settings setting, you must Finish the Production Operations connected to a particular Production in the correct order, as determined by the Sequence and Sub Sequence fields above.

Usually you will mark each Production Operation as Finished individually. However, you can also open the parent Production and use the 'Backflush' Operations menu function to mark all connected Production Operations as Finished at one stroke.

## **Finished but Discarded**

Check this box to confirm that the Production Operation has been completed, and that for some reason the result of the work has been discarded. The stock levels of the components will be updated when the record is saved, but not those of the assembled Items. The End Time (below) will be updated, as will the Start Time if it is empty. Once a Production record has been marked as Finished but Discarded and saved, it can no longer be modified. Discarded Production records are marked with a " $\sqrt{}$ " in the 'Productions: Browse' window.

In other respects, this option is similar to Finished, described above. For details about the resulting Nominal Ledger Transaction, please refer to the section entitled 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations', below on page 265.

#### **Items Card**

	Item	Descr.	Serial No.	In	Out	Rel.	Unit Cost	Coeff	
1	80111	40 cm Steel Box Section		10.00			0.50	~	
2	80112	50 cm Steel Box Section		10.00			0.50		F
3									(
4									E
5									÷
6									
7									
8									
9									
10									
11									
12									
13									
14									
15								~	

The Items card lists the Input Items that will be used by the Production Operation. When you Finish the Production Operation, these Items will be removed from stock. If the result of the Production Operation is a Phantom or Stocked Item, it will be included in the list as an Output Item. However, it is not necessary for a Production Operation to contain an Output Item.

The function that creates the Production Operation will do so following the instructions in the Routing specified in the parent Production. It will use the Standard Operations listed in the Routing as templates to create Production Operations specific to the Production. From each Standard Operation listed in the Routing, the function will obtain a list of Materials. It will then look in the Production for Input and Output Items with the Materials in the list, and copy these Items to the corresponding Production Operation. If an Input Item in the Production has a Recipe (i.e. the Input Item is a sub-assembly), the function will also look in that Recipe for the relevant Materials and copy any such Items to the relevant Production Operation.
In a particular Production Operation, you are free to add or remove Items, or to change quantities.

If you have used the Time options on the 'Cost Items' card of the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Fixed Time against Production Operations, the list will include four extra rows for each of the cost types, using the Labour Cost Item, Setup Cost Item, Move Cost Item and Queue Cost Item specified in the same setting. The In Quantities of these rows (number of hours) will be taken from the Routing specified in the parent Production or from the Standard Operation record specified in the Routing. The Unit Cost in each case will be the Work Cost per Hour (also specified in the Production Settings setting).

If, however, you have used the Time options in the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Actual Time against Production Operations, you will record that time using Activities. You will then bring these Activities into the Production Operation using the 'Add Labour' function on the Operations menu. This function will add an extra row containing the Labour Cost Item specified in the Production Settings setting to the Production Operation. The In Qty of this row (number of hours) will be the total Cost (Time) of these Activities (providing they have been marked as Done), and the Unit Cost will be the Work Cost per Hour.

### Flip A

Item	Paste Special	Item register
	parent Production (and	roduction Operation, Items in the d in any sub-assembly Recipes) I with the template Standard d here.
Descr.	Item description from the	he corresponding Production row.
Serial No.	Serial Numbers of Items in stock	
	Number of the Item yo	Item, if necessary enter the Serial u use in the assembly process. In tem, enter the Serial Number you
	e rows for Items that are Serial , each with an In or Out Quantity you to record separate Serial heir correct removal from stock.	
	If you have not specifi	ed a Location on the 'Comment'

If you have not specified a Location on the 'Comment' card, the 'Paste Special' list will show the Serial Numbers of Items in all Locations, with an indication of the Location in which each Item is stored. However, if you have specified a Location, only those Serial Numbers stored in that Location will be shown.

By default, if an Input or Output Item uses Serial Numbers, you must specify a Serial Number here before you can Finish the Production Operation. If you do not assign Serial Numbers to Output Items immediately, you should use the No Serial No. on Goods Receipts option in the Stock Settings setting. This will allow you to Finish Production Operations without Output Item Serial Numbers. You will still have to specify Input Item Serial Numbers, but in this case there will be no 'Paste Special' list, and no check will be carried out that the Serial Number you have used is valid (i.e. one that is currently in stock).

Enter the quantity of each component required to make or build the finished product. Do not enter an In Qty for the assembled Item(s). This quantity must be one if the Input Item is Serial Numbered at unit level.

When you create a Production Operation from a Production, the In Qty or Out Qty as appropriate will usually be copied from the Production row to the corresponding Production Operation row. However, if you enter a Quantity in the relevant row in the template Standard Operation, this Quantity will be copied to the Production Operation row instead. If the Production row has an In Qty, the Quantity in the Standard Operation row will be copied to the In Qty field in the Production Operation row. Otherwise, it will be copied to the Out Qty field. The Quantity in the Standard Operation row will therefore take priority over the In and Out Quantities in the Production (which themselves will have been taken from the Recipe).

If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, this figure will at first be the quantity of the component required to complete the Production Operation (i.e. to build the Quantity specified in the header). This figure will be recalculated automatically when you enter an Actual Qty in the header, and each time you change this figure. If you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty

In

option, this figure will be the quantity of the component required to complete one application of the Recipe. This figure will therefore remain unchanged when you enter or change the Actual Qty in the header. In both cases, you can change this figure in a particular Production Operation if necessary.

If a Nominal Ledger Transaction is generated from this Production Operation record, its credit amount will be taken from the total Unit Cost of rows with an In Qty (i.e. Input Items).

If the Production Operation has an Output Item, this field should contain the quantity of Output Items that can be made from the components listed above. Usually, this will be just one, and it must be one if the Output Item is Serial Numbered at unit level.

When you create a Production Operation from a Production, the In Qty or Out Qty as appropriate will usually be copied from the Production row to the corresponding Production Operation row. However, if you enter a Quantity in the relevant row in the template Standard Operation, this Quantity will be copied to the Production Operation row instead. If the Production row has an In Qty, the Quantity in the Standard Operation row will be copied to the In Qty field in the Production Operation row. Otherwise, it will be copied to the Out Qty field. The Quantity in the Standard Operation row will therefore take priority over the In and Out Quantities in the Production (which themselves will have been taken from the Recipe).

If you are using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option in the Production Settings setting, this figure will be the quantity of the final Item that will be built by the number of applications of the Recipe specified in the Quantity field in the header. This figure will be recalculated automatically when you enter an Actual Qty in the header, and each time you change this figure. If you are not using the Production Lines hold Actual Qty option, this figure will be the quantity of the final Item that will be built by one application of the Recipe. This figure will therefore remain unchanged when you enter or change the Actual Qty in the header. In both cases,

Out

Rel.

you can change this figure in a particular Production Operation if necessary.

If a Nominal Ledger Transaction is generated from this Production Operation, its debit amount will be taken from the total Unit Cost of rows with an Out Qty (i.e. Output Items).

### **Default taken from** Production row

Relativity. You must use this field if the result of the Production Operation is that more than one Item will be assembled (i.e. there is more than one row in the Production Operation with an Output Item). The Production Operation might produce different Items (with different Item Numbers) or it might produce more than one of the same Item with Serial Numbers. Enter a figure in each row representing an Output Item. When you mark the Production Operation as Finished, the total stock value of the components will be calculated using the appropriate Cost Models. The stock values of the Output Items will then be calculated from that total using the ratio that you enter here.

The Relativity figures are not percentages but ratios. For example, the total stock value of the Input Items is 103 and there are two Output Items with Relativities of 30 and 60 respectively. The stock value of the first Output Item will be 103 \* 30/(30 + 60), and the stock value of the second Output Item will be 103 \* 60/(30 + 60). If the Out Qty of the first Output Item is two, then the unit stock value of the first Output Item will be 103 \* 30/((2\*30) + 60), and the stock value of the second Output Item will be 103 \* 60/((2\*30) + 60).

Unit Cost The cost value (per unit) of the component or assembled Item. When you first create a Production Operation, the I-cost from the relevant row in the parent Production will be placed here. However, when you change and save the Production Operation for the first time, this figure will be replaced by the Item's unit stock value (if the row contains an Input Item) or by a unit value calculated from the total value of the components (if the row contains an Output Item). This figure will be used in the Nominal Ledger Transaction generated when you mark the Production Operation as Finished or Discarded and

save it. If the Input or Output quantity is greater than one, this field will show the average unit stock value.

If the row contains an Input Item, this figure (i.e. the Item's unit stock value) will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used.

If the row contains an Output Item, this figure will usually be the sum of the Unit Costs of the Input Items, taking quantities into account. If there is more than one Output Item, this total will be distributed according to the ratios entered in the Rel. column. This figure will become the new stock value of the Output Item(s), if that Item is a Stocked Item.

#### **Default taken from** Production row

The Unit Coefficient of the Item is shown here, taken from the relevant Production row, which in turn takes it from the 'Stock' card of the Item. If you are maintaining stock quantities using different units of measurement, this coefficient is the ratio between those units of measurement.

### Flip B

Coeff

Objects

Paste SpecialObject register, Nominal<br/>Ledger/System module

### **Default taken from** Production row or Item

You can assign up to 20 Objects, separated by commas, to each row. You might define separate Objects to represent different departments, cost centres or product types. This provides a flexible method of analysis that can be used in Nominal Ledger reports. Usually the Objects specified here will represent the Item.

These Objects will be taken from the originating Production row. If the originating Production row contains a Phantom Item, one of whose components is in the Production Operation row, then the Objects will be taken from the relevant Item record.

In any Nominal Ledger Transactions generated from a Production Operation, any Objects specified here will be assigned to the credit posting for the Item (if the Item is an Input Item) or to the debit posting (if it is an Output Item).

Material	Paste Special	Materials setting, Production module
	Default taken from	Standard Operation row
	do so following the ins in the parent Product Operations listed in the Production Operations each Standard Opera function will obtain a in the Production for Materials in the list corresponding Product the Production has a R assembly), the function the relevant Materials	tes the Production Operation will structions in the Routing specified ction. It will use the Standard ne Routing as templates to create specific to the Production. From tion listed in the Routing, the list of Materials. It will then look Input and Output Items with the , and copy these Items to the ion Operation. If an Input Item in ecipe (i.e. the Input Item is a sub- n will also look in that Recipe for and copy any such Items to the Operation. The Material will be onfirmation.
Flip D		
FIFO	<b>FO</b> This field shows the unit stock value of the updated each time you save the Production of The Item's unit stock value is also shown in Cost field on flip A: please refer to the described that field above on page 256 for more details.	
Row FIFO		otal stock value of the row, In Qty ase of Input Items) or Out Qty * of Output Items).

## **Time Card**

		Items	Time	Comment	Instructions
Setup Time	00:15:00	Queue Ti	ime 00	15:00	
Move Time		Run Ti	ime 01	:00:00	
Start Time	19:23:00	End Ti	ime 19	24:14	

## Setup Time, Queue Time, Move Time, Run Time

	Default taken from	Routing row or Standard Operation
	Use these four fields to Operation, as follows—	stipulate the time required for the
Setup	otherwise pre	red to set up the Machine or pare for the Operation e.g. plenishing fluids or consumables.
Queue	from the previou to dry or heated	ed to wait for parts to be ready as Operation e.g. waiting for paint parts to cool. Queue time is also instant availability".
Move	the time require from the previou	ed to move parts from stock or as Operation.
Run Time	the time required	d for the Operation itself.
		uired for the entire Operation, not They will be copied from the
	Settings setting, the ' Operation will contain The Item Numbers in Queue, Move and Lal Production Settings se case will be the Work ( The In Qty in each of the be the times specified	ted Time option in the Production Items' card of each Production extra rows for each type of Time. In these rows will be the Setup, pour Cost Items specified in the etting, and the Unit Cost in each Cost per Hour in the same setting. These rows (number of hours) will in the relevant Routing row or These extra rows allow you to costs of the Operation.
	Standard Operation with	in the relevant Routing row or ill also be copied to these fields. are for information only: if you

need to make a change that you want to be reflected in the posting to the Work Cost Account, make that change in the relevant row.

If you are using the Actual Time option in the Production Settings setting, these times will not be used to account for the running costs of the Operation, but you can use them as guides, to give an idea of how much time is required for the Operation.

Start Time	Paste Special	Current Time
	Default taken from	Production
	Operation began. If thi	rk represented by the Production s field is empty, the current time utomatically when you mark a s Started and save it.
	of the Actual Machine	Fime to calculate the running cost used in the Production Operation: scription of the Actual Machine 2 for details.
	Settings setting to cho Time against Productio time using Activities. Start and End Dates Activity from an Opera the Activity. This will	Time options in the Production pose that you will record Actual n Operations, you will record that It is recommended you specify and Times before creating an tion, as they will be transferred to help ensure time recording and associated with that time in the th accurate.
End Time	Paste Special	Current Time
	Operation finished. If the	rk represented by the Production his field is empty, the current time utomatically when you mark a s Finished and save it.
	Vou can use this End 7	Time to colculate the running cost

You can use this End Time to calculate the running cost of the Actual Machine used in the Production Operation: please refer to the description of the Actual Machine field below on page 262 for details.

### **Comment Card**

		Items Tim	ie C	Comment	Instructions		_
Location	PROD	Discarded Reason					
Language							
Machine Group	WELD	Actual Machine	WELD1				
Display Group		Actual Person					
Comment	Making Shelf I	Frames					

**Paste Special** 

Location

Locations setting, Stock module

### Default taken from Production

The stock Location from where the components are taken and where assembled Items are to be stored. If you leave this field empty, stock from all Locations will be available.

If you have specified a Main Location in the Stock Settings setting, leaving this field blank means that stock from the Main Location will be used. However, if you are using the Require Location option in the same setting, you must enter a Location before you can mark the Production Operation as Finished and save it.

## **Discarded Reason Paste Special**

Standard Problems setting, Production/Service Orders modules

If you have marked the Production Operation as Finished but Discarded, specify here the reason for the discarding.

# Language Paste Special Languages setting, System module

You can use the Language to determine the Form that will be used when you print the Production Operation, and the printer that will be used to print it. This can include sending the document to a fax machine, if your hardware can support this feature. Do this in the 'Define Document' window for the Production Operation Picking List document, as described in the 'Working Environment' chapter in the 'Introduction to HansaWorld Enterprise' manual.

Machine Group	Paste Special	Machine Groups setting, Production module
	Default taken from	Standard Operation
	Machines that you c represented by the Pro	chine Group that contains the can use to carry out the work duction Operation. A default will late Standard Operation.
Actual Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
		at you used to carry out the work. Machine Group specified above.
	Items option in the Pro specified a Machine C you have specified a Ru for the Machine ('Cost added to the Production This row will use th Production Operation ( running cost of the M Production Operation but Discarded) and sa added to the value of debited to the Stock Ad Production W-cost A feature, you should ma Started at the relevant is correct) and also che	Auto Calculate Cost of Produced duction Settings setting, you have lost Item in the same setting, and unning Cost/hr in the Asset record s' card), then an extra row will be n Operation when you first save it. he Start and End Time of the (on the 'Time' card) to record the Machine. When you approve the (mark it as Finished, or Finished ave it, the running cost will be f the final Item and so will be ccount, and will be credited to the Account. If you are using this irk every Production Operation as moment (to ensure the Start Time eck the End Date is correct before ction Operation, as this field will ically.
Display Group	Paste Special	Display Groups setting, System module
	Default taken from	Standard Operation
	that can carry out	by Group that contains the Persons the work represented by the A default will be taken from the ration.

Actual Person	Paste Special	Person register, System module
		ield to record the Person responsible Operation or the Person carrying out
	using the 'Create A menu, the Person th	vities from the Production Operation Activity' function on the Operations hat you specify here will be copied to the Activity, while the current user if bied to the Cc field.
Comment	This is a duplicate Production Operation	te of the Comment field in the on header.

## Instructions Card

-	Items Time Comment Instructions	
	Text	
		_

Text

## Default taken from Standard Operation

Use this field to record details about how to carry out the Standard Operation.

## Inspecting and Approving Production Operations

When you have completed the assembly process, you should check and approve the instructing Production Operation. When you approve and save it, stock levels of the components will be reduced and that of the Output Item will be increased.

Before you can approve a Production Operation, you must specify an Actual Qty in its header. This should be the number of applications of the Recipe stage that you completed.

If you have used the Time options in the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Actual Time against Production Operations, you will record that time using Activities. Before approving a Production Operation, remember to bring these Activities into the Production Operation using the 'Add Labour' function on the same menu, to ensure the correct time is registered for the Production Operation.

After carrying out these checks, approve the Production Operation by clicking the Finished check box (assuming the Production Operation was completed successfully), or the Finished but Discarded check box (if there was a failure) and saving.

On approval, if so defined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and in the Number Series - Productions and Account Usage Production settings, a cost accounting Transaction will be created in the Nominal Ledger. Please refer to the section immediately below entitled 'Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations' for details of the Accounts used by this Transaction.



## Once you have marked a Production Operation as Finished or Finished but Discarded, you will no longer be able to change it.

You must mark all Production Operations as Finished before you can Finish the parent Production itself. If you are using the Complete Sequence Before Next One option in the Production Settings setting, you must Finish the Production Operations connected to a particular Production in the correct order, as determined by the Sequence and Sub Sequence fields in the header of each Production Operation.

Usually you will mark each Production Operation as Finished individually. However, you can also open the parent Production and use the 'Backflush' Operations menu function to mark all connected Production Operations as Finished at one stroke.

## Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations

When you mark a Production Operation as Finished and save it, a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be generated automatically if you have so determined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and in the Number Series - Production Operations and Account Usage Productions settings.

The postings in the Transaction will depend on the position of the Production Operation in the sequence. If the Operation is not the last one in the sequence, the Transaction will credit the value of the Input Items to a Stock Account and debit that value to a Work In Progress Account, as follows—

- 1. The Input Costs will be credited to the Stock Account from the Location.
- 2. If the Location does not have a Stock Account, or you have not specified a Location, and if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module, the Input Costs will be credited in the appropriate proportions to the Stock Accounts of the Item Groups to which the Input Items belong.
- 3. In all other circumstances (i.e. if you are not using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option or an Input Item does not belong to an Item Group), the Production I-cost Account, as specified on the 'Stock' card of the Account Usage Stock setting in the Stock module, will be credited.

If you have specified Objects in any of the rows, separate credit postings will be made for each Object/Account combination.

The choice of Stock Account described in steps 1 and 2 above means that it will not be possible to distinguish the value of Items removed from stock to be used in Productions and Production Operations from the value of the same Items removed from stock for other purposes (e.g. Delivery or Stock Depreciation). If you need to make such a distinction, specify Components Usage and Production Control Accounts in the Account Usage Production setting, in the Item records for the components and/or in the Item Groups to which the components belong. If you do so (i.e. if you specify both a Components Usage Account and a Production Control Account), the Transaction will contain additional postings, debiting the value of the components to the Components Usage Account and crediting that value to the Production Control Account.

The Production Operation may contain extra rows allowing you to record the running costs of the Operation. If you have used the Time options on the 'Cost Items' card of the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Fixed Time against Production Operations, the Production Operation

will include four extra rows for each of the cost types, using the Labour Cost Item, Setup Cost Item, Move Cost Item and Queue Cost Item specified in the same setting. If you have chosen to record Actual Time, the Production Operation will include one extra row, using the Labour Cost Item (providing you have used the 'Add Labour' Operations menu function to bring the labour cost into the Operation). If you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option, the costs in these rows will be credited to W-cost Accounts chosen as follows—

- 1. The W-cost Accounts will be the Production W-cost Accounts specified in the Item Groups to which the relevant Items belong.
- 2. If an Item Group does not have a Production W-cost Account, the W-cost Account will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.
- 3. If there is no W-cost Account in the Account Usage Stock setting, the Stock Account in the Item Group to which the relevant Item belongs will be used as the W-cost Account.

If you are not using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option, the running costs will always be posted to the W-cost Account in the Account Usage Stock setting. In this case, you will not be able to save a Finished Production Operation with running costs if you have not specified a W-cost Account in the Account Usage Stock setting.

If any components in the Production Operation are Service Items, they will be treated as Work Cost. Their value will be credited to a W-cost Account chosen as described above, using if appropriate the Production W-cost Account in the Item Groups to which the Service Items belong.

If the Production Operation contains a row for Machine Cost (i.e. you are using the Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items option in the Production Settings setting, you have specified a Machine Cost Item in the same setting, and you have specified a Running Cost/hr in the Asset record for the Machine specified in the Production Operation), the Machine Cost will also be credited to a W-cost Account. This will be chosen as described above, using if appropriate the Production W-cost Account in the Item Group to which the Machine Cost Item belongs.

The total value of the Input Item(s) (including Items representing running costs) will be debited to a Work In Progress Account chosen as follows—

1. If you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option, and the Input Item belongs to an Item Group in which you have specified a Work In Progress Account, that Account will be used.

2. If you are not using this option or the Item Group does not have a Work In Progress Account, the Work In Progress Account will be taken from the Account Usage Production setting.

Illustrated below is an example Nominal Ledger Transaction created from a Production Operation that is not the last one in a sequence—

No.         51         Trans. Date         6/11/2009         Reference           Text         Making Shelf Frames         Base 1         Base 1           1         740         Objects         Description         Base 1         Base 1           2         745         Objects         Description         Base 1         Base 1           3         -         74         Vork in Progress         10.00         10.00           4         -         -         10.00         10.00         10.00         10.00           6         -         6         -         6         10.00	Credit V-Cr 10.00	Cd
AccountObjectsDescriptionBase 1 DebitBase 11740Stock Valuation12745Work in Progress10.003456789101112131415161718191011121314151617181910111213141516171819- <th></th> <th><u>^</u>,</th>		<u>^</u> ,
1740Stock ValuationIntermediate2745Work in Progress10.003IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate4IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate5IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate6IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate7IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate8IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate9IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate10IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate11IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate12IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate13IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate14IntermediateIntermediateIntermediate		<u>^</u> ,
2     745     Workin Progress     10.00       3	10.00	
3		
4       Image: Constraint of the sector of the		E
5		E
6		
7		F (
8         Image: second se		F
9         Image: margin ma		
10		
11		
12 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14		
13 14 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		~
Difference Base 1 0.00 Total 10.00	10.00	10

If the Operation is the last one in the sequence, the Transaction will debit the value of the Output Item to a Stock Account and credit that value to a Work In Progress Account. These Accounts will be chosen as described above. The Work In Progress Account will be taken from the Item Group to which the Output Item belongs (if you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option) or from the Account Usage Production setting.

1740Stock Valuation27.802740Stock Valuation46.303745Work in Progress18.504More Progress18.505Image ProgressImage Progress6Image ProgressImage Progress6Image ProgressImage Progress7Image ProgressImage Progress8Image ProgressImage Progress9Image ProgressImage Progress9Image ProgressImage Progress10Image ProgressImage Progress11Image ProgressImage Progress12Image ProgressImage Progress13Image ProgressImage Progress14Image ProgressImage Progress15Image ProgressImage Progress16Image ProgressImage Progress17Image ProgressImage Progress18Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress10Image ProgressImage Progress13Image ProgressImage Progress14Image ProgressImage Progress15Image ProgressImage Progress16Image ProgressImage Progress17Image ProgressImage Progress18Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress		ave
AccountObjectsDescriptionBase 1 DebitBase 1 Credit1740Stock Valuation27.802740Stock Valuation46.303745Work in Progress10.8.50410.9.55Image: Stock Valuation46.3018.50418.505Image: Stock Valuation46.3018.506Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation18.506Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation18.507Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation6Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation6Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation6Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation7Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation7Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation7Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation9Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation10Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation11Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation12Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation13Image:		
1740Stock Valuation27.802740Stock Valuation46.303745Work in Progress18.504More Progress18.505Image ProgressImage Progress6Image ProgressImage Progress6Image ProgressImage Progress7Image ProgressImage Progress8Image ProgressImage Progress9Image ProgressImage Progress9Image ProgressImage Progress10Image ProgressImage Progress11Image ProgressImage Progress12Image ProgressImage Progress13Image ProgressImage Progress14Image ProgressImage Progress15Image ProgressImage Progress16Image ProgressImage Progress17Image ProgressImage Progress18Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress10Image ProgressImage Progress13Image ProgressImage Progress14Image ProgressImage Progress15Image ProgressImage Progress16Image ProgressImage Progress17Image ProgressImage Progress18Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress19Image ProgressImage Progress		
2740Stock Valuation46.303745Work in Progress18.50418.505Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation18.506Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation6Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation7Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation10Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation11Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation12Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation13Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation14Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation15Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation16Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation17Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Valuation18Image: Stock ValuationImage: Stock Va	V-Cd	
3745Work in Progress18.50418.505 </td <td></td> <td>~</td>		~
4		١
5Image: section of the sec		
6Image: section of the sec		
7		
8		
9         Image: second se		
10		
11       Image: Constraint of the symbol of th		
12       Image: Constraint of the symbol of th		
13		
14		
15		
16		
18		
19		
20		~
Difference Base 1 0.00 Total 46.30 46	.30	

Illustrated below is an example Nominal Ledger Transaction created from the last Production Operation in a sequence—

When you first create a Production Operation, the Input and Output Costs in each row will be taken from the parent Production. Each time you save the Production Operation, these figures will be updated with the Item's unit stock value (if the row contains an Input Item) or by a unit value calculated from the total value of the components including running costs (if the row contains an Output Item). The unit stock value of each Input Item will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used.

If you have specified in the Account Usage Production setting that you will wait until Finishing the Production before updating the stock valuation in the Nominal Ledger, no Transactions will be created from Production Operations. Instead, a single Transaction will be created from the Production, posting every removal and addition to stock at once. In this situation, all Production Operations must be Finished before you can create the Transaction by Finishing the Production.

Once the Transaction has been generated from a Production Operation, you can look at it straight away using the 'Open NL Transaction' function on the Operations menu.

## **Operations Menu**

Operations	
Add Labour	
Open NL Transaction	Shift+Ctrl+T
Create Activity	Shift+Ctrl+C
Quality Control	Shift+Ctrl+U

The Operations menu for the 'Production Operation: New' and 'Production Operation: Inspect' windows is shown above. There is no Operations menu for the 'Production Operations: Browse' window.

#### Add Labour

You will usually need to use this function if you have used the Time options in the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Actual Time against Production Operations. In this case, you will use the 'Create Activity' function described below on page 270 to create Activities that will record the time spent working on the Production Operation. You should then use this function to bring the time represented by those Activities into the Production Operation. When you select this function, an extra row will be added to the Production Operation. This row will contain the Labour Cost Item specified in the Production Settings setting. The In Qty of this row (number of hours) will be the total Cost (Time) of the Activities, and the Unit Cost will be the Work Cost per Hour (also specified in the Production Settings setting).

When you mark the Production Operation as Finished, the value of this row (In Qty x Unit Cost) will be credited to a Work Cost Account. The choice of this Account will depend on whether you are using the Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts option in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module. If you are, and the Labour Cost Item belongs to an Item Group in which you have specified a Production W-cost Account, this Account will be used. If you are not using this option or the Item Group does not have a Production W-cost Account, the W-cost Account will be taken from the Account Usage Stock setting.

If you are recording Fixed Time against Production Operations, you will usually not need to use this function. But you can still use it together with the 'Create Activity' function as described if you need to add an extra cost to a particular Production Operation.

If you use the 'Add Labour' function and no extra row is added to the Production Operation, the probable causes are—

- 1. You have not specified a Labour Cost Item in the Production Settings setting.
- 2. You have not created any Activities from the Production Operation, or the Activities that you have created have not been marked as Done.
- 3. The Status of the Production Operation is not Created or Started.

## **Open NL Transaction**

When you mark a Production Operation as Finished and save it, if so defined in the Sub Systems setting in the Nominal Ledger and in the Number Series -Productions and Account Usage Production settings, a Nominal Ledger Transaction will be created. This function allows you to view that Transaction.

Select this function to open the Transaction in a new window.

### **Create Activity**

You can use this function to create records in the Activity register in the System module. You will usually need to do this if you have used the Time options in the Production Settings setting to choose that you will record Actual Time against Production Operations. In this case, you will record that time using Activities that you create using this function. The Activity Type given to Activities created by this function will be taken from the Activity Types, Sub Systems setting in the CRM module. The Task Type of the new Activities will be Calendar, the Calendar Type will be Time and the Symbol will be Other. The Start and End Dates and Times in the Activity will be copied from the Start and End Dates and Times in the Production Operation, so it is recommended that you make sure these are correct in the Production Operation before creating the Activity. The Labour Cost Item specified in the Production Settings setting will be copied to the Item field on the 'Service' card of the Activity.

When you select the function from the 'Production Operation: Inspect' window, the following screen appears, where you can create a new Activity—

0	perations				New	Duplicate	e Cancel	Save
	Text	Making Shelf I	- rames					C.
	Туре	RUN	Persons	IP				
L	anguage		Cc	AM				
	Priority		Supervisor		Result		Private	🗹 Done
	Time	Custom	er Text Su	ub Alarm	Resources	Service	User Defined	
	End Time	11:00:00 11:15:00 00:15:00		6/11/2009 6/11/2009	Task Type <ul> <li>Calend</li> <li>To Do</li> <li>Timed</li> <li>Work F</li> </ul>	lar To Do	Calenda Time Profi Don'	
	Project		Name					
0	Iustomer		Telephone					
Inve	oice Item		Contact					
Cod	de 1	fext						
1								2
2								
4								
5								
6								

A new record is opened in a window entitled 'Activity: Inspect'. This means that it has already been saved and is being opened for checking. The Person of the Activity will be taken from the Production Operation, and the initials of the current user will appear in the Cc field. The Comment from the Production Operation will be copied to the Text field in the Activity, and the Production and Production Operation Numbers will also be copied to the Activity ('Service' card). After amendment if necessary, save the record in the Activity register by clicking the [Save] button in the Button Bar and close it using the close box. Alternatively, if you no longer require the Activity, remove it using the 'Delete' function on the Record menu. In either case, you will be returned to the Production Operation window.

If you have created the Activity because you are recording Actual Time against Production Operations as mentioned in the first paragraph, mark the Activity as Done before saving. When you have recorded the entire time spent working on the Production Operation using Done Activities, choose 'Add Labour' from the Operations menu of the Production Operation. This will add a row to the Production Operation with the Labour Cost Item and Work Cost per Hour specified in the Production Settings setting. The quantity will be the total time for all Done Activities created from the Production Operation. Please refer to the description of the 'Add Labour' function above on page 269 for more details.

The Production Operation and the Activity will remain connected to each other through the Attachments facility. This allows you to open the Operation quickly and easily when reviewing the Activity, or to open the Activity from the Operation. When viewing the Activity or Operation, click the button with the paper clip image to open a list of attachments. Then double-click an item in this list to open it.

You can also use Activities to schedule personnel to work on Production Operations. In this case, you need to create the Activities in advance of working on the Operation. You can still specify Start and End Dates and Times in the Activity, mark it as Done and bring it into the Operation using the 'Add Labour' function as already described in this section. An illustrated example can be found above on page 78.

Please refer to the 'CRM' manual for full details of the 'Activity: Inspect' window and of the Activity Types, Subsystems setting.

### **Quality Control**

This function will be useful in cases where the assembled Item produced by the Production Operation is one that should be subject to a quality control cycle. For example, the Item might be perishable. Place the insertion point in a row containing an assembled Item (which must be Serial Numbered at unit or batch level) and select this function. A new record will be created in the Batch Quality Control setting in the Service Orders module, shown overleaf.

Bate	:h Qual	ity Con	trol: New						
•		Operati	ons		New	Duplica	ate Ca	ancel	Save
		Item	80601						0
Batch/Serial No.		erial No.	091114						
	Analy	se Date	9/11/2009			Result			
Next Analyse Date				New Bes	t Before				
Tested By		AM							
	C	omment	HiFi Rack						
Reaister		Register	Production C	)pera⊳		No.	64		
	т	emplate	RACK						
	Test	Comme	nt	Unit	From		То	Result	
1	PAINT	Check I	Paint Quality		0.00		0.00		~
2	TOL	Check <sup>*</sup>	Tolerances 🔿		0.00		0.00		
3	WELD	Check '	Welding		0.00		0.00		
4									
5									
6									~
	] ок								

The new Batch Quality Control record will be opened in a window entitled 'Batch Quality Control: New'. This means that it has not yet been saved. The Item Number, Serial Number and Comment will be taken from the Production Operation row, the Analyse Date will be the current date, and your Signature as the current user will be placed in the Tested By field. The Production Operation Number will also be copied to the Batch Quality Control record. If you have configured a Batch Quality Control Template for the Item containing a list of the Tests that should be carried out to ensure the Item meets quality standards, it will appear in the Template field and the Tests will be listed in the matrix. Save the record to bring the Item into the quality control cycle.

If the function does not create a Batch Quality Control record when expected, the probable causes are—

- 1. You did not place the insertion point in a Production Operation row before selecting the function.
- 2. The row containing the insertion point does not have an Out Qty.
- 3. The Item in the row containing the insertion point is not Serial Numbered at unit or batch level.

Please refer to the 'Service Orders' manual for more details about the Batch Quality Control setting.

# The Machine Hours Register

The Machine Hours register allows you to record the hours when your Machines operate. This information will have an impact on the calculation of the Should Start date in Production Orders, and on the scheduling of those Production Orders in the Resource Planner.

You will often create Production Orders from Sales Orders with Planned Delivery Dates. The Due Date in a Production Order created from a Sales Order will be the Planned Delivery Date in that Sales Order. The Should Start date in the Production Order is the date when work should begin, in order for it to be completed by the Due Date. The Should Start date will be calculated from the Due Date, taking into account the Fixed Assembly Days, the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce and the Time to Setup recorded in the Recipe, and the Buffer Days and the Round Odd Hours To One Day option in the Production Settings setting. The Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce together are the time required to produce a single unit, while the Fixed Assembly Days and the Time to Setup are independent of the quantity being produced. For example—

Planned Delivery Date of Sales Order (qty 2)	January 25
Days to Produce for the first unit (from Recipe)	2
Days to Produce for the second unit (from Recipe)	2
Fixed Assembly Days (from Recipe)	1
Buffer Days (from Production Settings)	5
Should Start Date	January 15

A Production Order created by the 'Create Planned Records' and 'Create Planned Records from Orders' functions from such a Sales Order will therefore have a Should Start Date of January 15, in order to meet the Due Date (i.e. the Planned Delivery Date) of January 25. This Production Order will appear in the Resource Planner as shown below—



The Days to Produce and the Fixed Assembly Days in the Recipe and the Buffer Days in the Production Settings setting are assumed to be 24-hour days. The calculation of the Should Start date therefore assumes that work will be carried out constantly. If this assumption is not correct, you should use the Machine Hours register to specify the working hours of your Machines. For example, the working day might not be 24 hours as so far assumed, but eight hours.

You should enter a separate record in the Machine Hours register for each Machine Group.

	New	Dup	licate	Cancel Save	
Group	WELD	Colour	Gray	(	2
Description					
Monday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Tuesday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Wednesday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Thursday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Friday Start	08:00:00	for	8.0	hours	
Saturday Start	00:00:00	for	0.0	hours	
Sunday Start	00:00:00	for	0.0	hours	

Enter a Machine Group in the Group field using 'Paste Special', and choose the colour to be used in the Resource Planner to signify Time when Machines belonging to the Group can not be used (i.e. times when the Machines are idle). This should be a different colour to that in the Recipes that you will use the Machines to produce.

In the remaining fields, specify the time each day when you can begin using the Machines belonging to the Machine Group, and how long you can use them. The hours field will accept figures with one decimal place. In the example illustrated, work will begin at 8 am and end at 4 pm (i.e. each working day is eight hours).

Enter zero in an hours field if the Machines in the Group will not be used at all on a particular day, as shown for Saturday and Sunday in the illustration. If the Machines are to be used for the entire day (i.e. for 24 hours), leave the relevant hours field blank.

These Machine Hours will change the calculation of the Should Start date in Production Orders. The 'Create Planned Records' and 'Create Planned Records from Orders' functions will calculate this date as follows—

- 1. They will first check the Production Item Alternative register to find the Machine that can produce the Item in the Sales Order.
- 2. They will then check the Machine Hours register to find the working hours for the Machine Group to which the Machine in step 1 belongs.
- 3. They will calculate the date when work should start in order to meet the Planned Delivery Date, as described earlier in this section.

4. The date when work should start will be adjusted, to take the Machine Hours into account.

This sequence demonstrates that if you are using the Machine Hours register, you must also use the Production Item Alternative register to specify default Machines for each Item. This register is described above on page 239.

The Machine Hours illustrated above will mean that work on the example Sales Order can no longer begin on January 15 to meet the January 25 deadline, because we have now specified that the Machine cannot be used constantly. These changes mean that work must begin on December 31. So, when we use the 'Create Planned Records' or 'Create Planned Records from Orders' function to create a Production Order to satisfy the example Sales Order, the Should Start date in that Production Order will now be December 31. This Production Order will appear in the Resource Planner as shown below—



The working hours are shown in red (as specified in the Recipe), and the time when the Machine is not working is shown in grey (as specified in the Machine Hours register).

You can also create Production Orders from Production Plans using the 'Create Productions' Maintenance function in the MRP module. In these Production Orders, the Should Start and Due Dates will be copied from the Start and Needed Dates respectively in the relevant row in the Production

Plan. In this Production Plan row, the Start Date will have been calculated from the Needed Date using the formula described above (i.e. using the Fixed Assembly Days, the Days, Hours, Minutes and Seconds to Produce and the Time to Setup recorded in the Recipe, the Buffer Days and the Round Odd Hours To One Day option in the Production Settings setting, and the information in the Machine Hours register for the relevant Machine Group). So, the Should Start date in a Production Order will be calculated using the same formula, irrespective of whether that Production Order was created from a Sales Order or a Production Plan.

# Maintenance

## Introduction

Maintenance functions allow you to carry out certain updating tasks, usually involving batch processing and encompassing all or many of the records in the affected register. There are two such functions available in the Production module. To use them, ensure you are in the Production module and click the [Routines] button in the Master Control panel. Then click the [Maintenance] button in the subsequent window. The following window appears—

😂 Maintenance	
Create Planned Records	^
Update Recipes	
	~

Double-click an item in the list. A specification window will then appear, where you can decide how the function is to operate. Click [Run] to operate the function.

## **Create Planned Records**

Please refer to the 'Sales Orders' manual for full details of this function.

## **Update Recipes**

This function updates the Input Costs and other details of components in Recipes with new prices from the Item register. Before running it, produce a

	Specify Update Reci	pes 🛛 🗙				
		Run				
	Recipe					
	Item					
	Item Group					
	Replace in Item with	(not Locked Recipes)				
	L. L	Jpdate to				
		Cost Price				
		Unit Stock Value				
		<ul> <li>If the Recipe has one Out Item</li></ul>				
		O Update Out Item Cost				
	(	Update Out Item Cost and Item's Cost Price				
	[	Update Item Descriptions				
Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe register, Production module				
	Range Reporting	Alpha				
	To update the costs Code or a range of R	in particular Recipes, enter a Recip Lecipe Codes here.				
ltem	Paste Special	Item register				
	Range Reporting	Alpha				
	-	s of particular Items when used a pes, enter an Item Number or rangere.				
Item Group	Paste Special	Item Group register, Sales Ledger				
	-	of Items belonging to a single Item as components in Recipes, enter an re.				
Replace in Item	with					
	Paste Special	Item register				
		te the Recipes by changing an Inpu w Item here. This Item will replace				

Recipe Cost Comparison report if you need to see the differences between a Recipe and the details in the Item register.

the one specified in the field above in every Recipe in the range (except Locked Recipes).

If you enter a range of Items in the field above, no action will be taken. You can only replace one Input Item at a time.

**Update to** Determine here how the new Input Costs of the components are to be calculated.

**Cost Price** The new Input Costs are taken from the Cost Prices of the components as shown on the 'Costs' cards of their records in the Item register.

**Unit Stock Value** The new costs are calculated using the unit stock value of the component Items. This will be calculated using the Cost Model specified in the relevant Item or Item Group record. If that Cost Model is Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting will be used. This option will therefore use as the new cost the FIFO, LIFO, Weighted Average or other value of an Item, depending on the Cost Model.

If you use this option, any Service Items used as components in Recipes will have their Input Cost set to zero. This will also be the case for any Stocked Items of which there is no stock.

#### If the Recipe has one Out Item

Use these options to specify whether you would like the cost of the Output Item (as shown in the Recipe) to be updated to reflect the changes made to the costs of the Input Items. These options will only affect Recipes with a single Output row: if there are several Output Items, you should update them manually so that the costs can be apportioned correctly.

### **Do not update** The cost of the Output Item will not be updated.

### **Update Out Item Cost**

The cost of the Output Item will be updated.

#### Update Out Item Cost and Item's Cost Price

The cost of the Output Item will be updated, and the Cost Price in its record in the Item register will also be updated. If the Output Item is a Structured Item, it is recommended that you do not use this option. Where costs are required (e.g. in gross margin calculations), they will be taken from the Item records of the components. If the Output Item is a Stocked Item, then you should use this option.

### **Update Item Descriptions**

Check this box if you would like the names of the Items in the selected Recipes to be updated from the Item register.

Press the [Run] button to start the updating process.

# Documents

## Introduction

Use the 'Documents' function to print particular documents or Forms in batches. To begin printing documents, click the [Documents] button in the Master Control panel or use the Ctrl-D (Windows and Linux)/ $\Re$ -D (Mac OS X) key combination. The window illustrated below appears, listing the documents that you can print from the Production module. Each item in the list ("Document") will be printed using a different Form.

Socuments	
Operations	
Production Labels Production Operation Picking Lists Production Picking Lists Productions Routing Productions Routing Production Orders	

To print a document, follow this procedure-

- 1. Highlight an item in the list.
- 2. If you want to fax the document and your hardware can support this feature, select 'Fax' from the Operations menu.
- 3. Double-click the document name or press the Enter key. A specification window will then appear, where you can determine the information that you want to be printed (e.g. which Production Orders are to be printed). The specification window for each document is described in detail below.

- 4. Click [Run] to print the documents.
- 5. Close the 'Documents' window using the close box.

To determine the Form that will be used when you print a document, follow this procedure—

- For each option, design a Form using the Form register in the System module. This process is fully described in the 'System Module' manual. A file containing samples of each Form is supplied with HansaWorld Enterprise: if you want to use these samples as templates for your own designs, import the "UKForms.txt" file as described in the 'Importing Sample Data' section in the 'Introduction to HansaWorld Enterprise' manual.
- 2. Change to the Production module and open the 'Documents' list window by clicking the [Documents] button in the Master Control panel or using the Ctrl-D (Windows and Linux)/署-D (Mac OS X) key combination.
- 3. Highlight each item in the list in turn and select 'Define Document' from the Operations menu. In the subsequent window, assign a Form (or more than one Form) to the document: this window is fully described in the 'Documents' section of the 'Working Environment' chapter in the 'Introduction to HansaWorld Enterprise' manual. For example, each document can use different Forms determined perhaps by the Number Series of the Production record.
- 4. You only need use the 'Define Document' function once. Afterwards, Form selection will be automatic.

The selection process for each document is described below. Except where specified, leave all the fields in the specification window blank if you want to print documents for every record in the relevant register. If you need to restrict the number of documents printed, use the fields as described.

Where specified below, you can often print documents for a selection range, such as a range of Production Numbers. To do this, enter the lowest and highest values of the range, separated by a colon. For example, to print Productions 001 to 010, enter "001:010" in the Production Number field. Depending on the field, the sort used might be alpha or numeric. In the case of an alpha sort, a range of 1:2 would also include 100, 10109, etc.

## **Standard Fields**

There are a number of standard fields that you can include in the Forms that will be used by the documents in the Production module (except the Form used by the Production Label document). These fields are—

Prints

## Field in Form

These fields print information from the Company Info setting-

-	
Chief Accountant	Chief Accountant
Сору Туре	When you design a Form, you can use the
	'Copies' function on the Operations menu
	to specify that more than one copy will be
	printed, and that each copy will be
	marked with specified text (e.g. "Office
	Copy", "Customer Copy", etc). This field
D.4	will print the specified text
Date	The date when the document was printed
Manager / CEO Own Address	CEO
Own Address	Company Name and Address. This
	information will be printed on separate
	lines, so you should specify a Line Height for this field
Own Address 2	Address. This information will be printed
Own Address 2	on separate lines, so you should specify a
	Line Height for this field
Own ANA Code	ANA Code
Own Bank 1	Bank 1
Own Bank 2	Bank 2
Own Bank Code	Bank Code. This information will only be
	printed if there is a record in the Banks
	setting in the Purchase Ledger for the
	Bank Code specified in the Company Info
	setting
Own Bank Customer ID	Bank Customer ID
<b>Own Commercial Registration</b>	Number
	Commercial Reg.No.
Own E-mail	E-mail
Own Fax Number	Fax
Own Home Community	Home Community
Own Name	Company Name
Own Registration Number	Reg. No.
Own Telephone Number	Telephone
Own VAT Reg. Number	VAT Reg. No.
Own WWW Address	WWW Address

Period Short Underline Time	The period from the document's specification window The time when the document was printed		
*	om the record in the Banks setting in the le specified in the Company Info setting—		
Own Bank Account (IBAN) Own Bank Address	Account (IBAN) Address. This information will be printed on separate lines, so you should specify a		
Line Height for this fieldOwn Bank Address 1first line of the AddressOwn Bank Address 2second line of the AddressOwn Bank Address 3third line of the AddressOwn Bank Address 4fourth line of the AddressOwn Bank Address 5fifth line of the AddressOwn Bank Address 5fifth line of the AddressOwn Bank BIC (SWIFT)BIC (SWIFT)Own Bank Corr. Acc.Corr. AccountOwn Bank ClearingClearingOwn Bank NameNameOwn Bank SortingSort Key			

## **Production Labels**

Use this document to print labels for each Production. One label will be printed per page.

Specify Production Labels		
		Run
Production Label		
Media ○ Screen ④ Printer ○ File ○ Clipboard ○ Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

### Production Label Range Reporting Numeric

Specify the Productions for which you need labels to be printed. You must specify a Production Number or range of Production Numbers: if you leave this field empty, no labels will be printed.

Illustrated below is a sample PROD\_LABEL record from the Form register in the System module. Note that you should only draw each field once: the label printing function will print the fields the appropriate number of times on each page.

S Form PRODUCTION_LABEL: Inspect		
Operations	New Duplicate Cancel Save	
Text Line Frame Field	Picture Page Sum	
Prod No.       Production Number         Prod Date       Production Date         Item No.       Item Code         Name       Out Item Name         Serial No.       Serial Number		
		•

Add the fields to the Form design in the usual way (click the [Field] button and draw a rectangle where you want the field to appear). When the Field dialogue box opens, specify the Fieldname—

If the labels on each row are not aligned properly, set the Format to 1.

If you want static text to be printed on your labels (i.e. text that identifies the information on the labels, such as "Item Name"), follow these steps—

- 1. Click the [Field] button and draw a rectangle where you want the static text to appear. The Field dialogue box opens.
- 2. Leave the Fieldname blank and enter the static text in the Field Argument field.

😂 Field		
Fieldname Field Argument Left Top Right Bottom Style Line Height Escape Sequence Format	Prod No. 31 29 109 43 FIELD_T 0	Exclude from page First MiddleLast Single Justification © Left Right Centre
	Clipping Off On	Word Wrap Off On, flow down On, flow up OK Cancel

- 3. Click [OK] to save.
- 4. Do not use the [Text] button for this purpose: any text entered this way will be printed for the first label only.

You can use the following fields when you design the Form to be used by the Production Label document—

## **Field in Form**

## **Prints (from Production record)**

Header Fields (these print once per Production)

End Time	End Time
Fixed Asset Code	Machine
Location	Location
Location Name	Name from the Location record
Production Number	No.
Production Date	End Date
Quantity	Qty (two decimal places)
Recipe Code	Recipe
Recipe Name	Name
Start Time	Start Time
Total Weight	Out Weight (two decimal places)
Row Fields (If these fields have a Format of 0, they will print once for each row, so remember to specify a Line Height. If they have a Format of 1, they will only print for the first row)

Item Code	Item
Out Item Name	Descr.
Quantity Out	Out Qty (two decimal places)
Serial Number	Serial No.

# **Production Operation Picking Lists**

This document allows you to print a Production Operation as a picking list that warehouse staff can use to transfer the components from the warehouse to the production area. Only rows with In Quantities will be printed.

😂 Specify Prod. Oper. Pic	cking Lists	
		Run
Prod. Oper. No.		
Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

Prod. Oper. No. Range Reporting

Numeric

Specify the Production Operations that you want to be printed. You must specify a Production Operation Number or range of Production Operation Numbers: if you leave this field empty, no documents will be printed. You can use the following fields when you design the Form to be used by the Production Operation Picking List document—

Field in Form	Prints (from Production Operation record)		
Header Fields (these print once pe	Production Operation)		
Actual Qty Calculated Volume	Actual Qty (number of decimal places determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as "1.5", etc)		
Calculated Volume	Sum of (In Qty * Item Volume from the Item record) for each row (two decimal places)		
Calculated Weight	Sum of (In Qty * Weight from the Item record) for each row (two decimal places)		
Delivery Date and Time	The date and time when the document was printed		
End Time	End Time		
Number of Items in Text	Prints as a word the number of different		
	Items in the Production Operation. The word is taken from the relevant record in the Values in Text setting in the System module for the Language of the Production Operation or, if that is blank, the Language in the Company Info setting		
Order Number (ordnummer)	Prod. Order		
Payment Number for Russia	Prints the No. of the Production Operation with the first three characters removed		
Production Date	End Date		
Production Number	Prod. No.		
Serial Number (Number Series)	es) No.		
Sequence	Sequence		
Start Date	Start Date		
Start Time	Start Time		
Sub Sequence	Sub-Sequence		
Total FIFO	Sum of (Row FIFO) from each row (two		
Total Quantity Total Quantity (totqty)	decimal places) Sum of (In Qty) from each row (two decimal places) Qty (number of decimal places		
	determined by the data e.g. "1" will be printed as "1", "1.5" will be printed as "1.5", etc)		

Row Fields (these print once per Input row, so remember to specify a Line Height. Output rows are not printed)

8 1 1	,
Alternative Code	Alternative Code from the Item record
Barcode	Barcode from the Item record
Catalog Serialnumber (K-xxxx)	If the first character of the Item Number is
	"K", prints the No. of the Production
	Operation with "K-" as a prefix.
	Otherwise, prints the No.
Commodity Code	Commodity Code from the Item record
Commodity Code	Conversion 1 from the Item record
Conversion 1	
Conversion 2	Conversion 2 from the Item record
Delivered Quantity (antallev	)In Qty (number of decimal places
	determined by the data e.g. "1" will be
	printed as "1", "1.5" will be printed as
	"1.5", etc)
Delivered Unit	Unit from the Item record
Department on Item Record	Department from the Item record
Depth	Item Depth from the Item record (two
•	decimal places)
Description 1	Descr.
EU Code	Commodity Code from the Item record
FIFO	FIFO (number of decimal places
in o	determined by the Round Off setting in
	the System module)
Usight	Item Height from the Item record (two
Height	
Item Barcode BC39	decimal places)
Item barcoue bC39	Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the
	Stock module, or Barcode or Item
	Number from the Item record, printed
	using the Code 39 barcode format. You
	should give this field a Style that uses a
	Code 39 barcode font
Item Barcode EAN 13	Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the
	Stock module, or Barcode or Item
	Number from the Item record, printed
	using the EAN 13 barcode format. You
	should give this field a Style that uses an
	appropriate EAN 13 barcode font
Item Code	The full Item Number, including any
	portion representing Varieties. For
	example, if the Item Number is
	"10126.GRE.SM", "10126.GRE.SM" will
	be printed
	of printed

Itom Variation	The portion of the Item Description
Item Varieties	The portion of the Item Description representing Varieties. For example, if the
	Item Description is "Shirt, Green, Small",
	"Green, Small" will be printed. If the
	Item does not have Varieties, nothing will
	be printed
Item Without Varieties	The basic Item Number, without any
	portion representing Varieties. For
	example, if the Item Number is
	"10126.GRE.SM", "10126" will be
	printed
Material	Material
Quantity Conversion 1, Quantit	y Conversion 2, Quantity Conversion 3
	If the Item record has a Conversion 1 and
	a Conversion 2, these fields print the
	relevant quantities. Please refer to the
	description of these fields in the 'Items
	and Pricing' manual for details and an example. You should set the Format to 1
	in these fields
Quantity In	In Qty (number of decimal places
Quantity III	determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be
	printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as
	"1.5", etc)
Quantity Out	Out Qty
Row Number	Row number
Sales Depth	Sale Depth from the record in the Batch
	Specifications setting in the Stock module
	for the Item/Serial Number combination
	(two decimal places)
Sales Height	Sale Height from the record in the Batch
	Specifications setting in the Stock module
	for the Item/Serial Number combination (two decimal places)
Sales Width	Sale Width from the record in the Batch
Sales Witth	Specifications setting in the Stock module
	for the Item/Serial Number combination
	(two decimal places)
Serial Number bc39	Serial No., printed using the Code 39
	barcode format. You should give this
	field a Style that uses a Code 39 barcode
	font
Serial Number (serienr)	Serial No.
Shelf Code	Shelf Code from the Item record

Sum, FIFO	In Qty * FIFO (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in the System module)
Supplier Address 1	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the first line of the Invoice Address of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Supplier Address 2	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the second line of the Invoice Address of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Supplier Address 3	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the third line of the Invoice Address of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Supplier Code	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the Contact Number of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Supplier Item No.	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the Supplier's Item Number in that Purchase Item
Supplier Name	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the Name of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Unit	If the Item has a Unit, the correct translation of the Unit Name from the Units setting for the Language of the Production Operation
Volume	Volume from the Item record (two decimal places)
Volume, row	In Qty * Item Volume from the Item record (two decimal places)
Weight	Weight from the Item record (two decimal places)
Weight, row	In Qty * Weight from the Item record (two decimal places)
Width	Item Width from the Item record (two decimal places)

Please refer to page 285 above for details of the standard fields that you can also include in the Form.

# **Production Orders**

Use this document when you need to print a Production Order record or a range of Production Order records, perhaps to provide instructions to the assembly department. You can also print the document by clicking on the Printer icon when viewing a Production Order record, or print it to screen by clicking the Preview icon.

If the Status of the Production Order is Started and if you are not using the No Test Printout option in the Optional Features setting in the System module, the Production Order will be printed with the text "Test Printout" as a diagonal watermark.

Specify Production Or	ders	
		Run
Period Production Order	1/1/2009:31/12/2009	
Media ○ Screen ④ Printer ○ File ○ Clipboard ○ Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

Period

### Paste Special

Reporting Periods setting, System module

If there are any Production Orders in the range that you specify below with Start Dates, those whose Start Dates fall within this period will be printed. To have a Start Date, a Production Order must be Started or Finished. Production Orders in the range with blank Start Dates (i.e. those that are Created and Accepted) will also be printed.

#### Production Order Range Reporting Numeric

Enter a Production Order Number (or range of Production Order Numbers) for which you need documents to be printed.

You must specify a Production Order Number or range of Production Order Numbers: if you leave this field empty, no documents will be printed. You can use the following fields when you design the Form to be used by the Production Order document—

### Prints (from Production Order record)

Header Fields (these print once per Production Order)

**Field in Form** 

Treader Fields (these print once per	(infoduction Order)	
Barcode	No.	
Description	Comment. The three Comment lines will	
•	be printed on separate lines, so you	
	should specify a Line Height for this field	
Description 1	Instruction. The three Comment lines will	
•	be printed on separate lines, so you	
	should specify a Line Height for this field	
Description 2	Comment. The three Instruction lines will	
-	be printed on separate lines, so you	
	should specify a Line Height for this field	
Fixed Asset Code	Machine	
Instructions	Instruction. The three Instruction lines	
	will be printed on separate lines, so you	
	should specify a Line Height for this field	
Location	Location	
Location Name	Name from the Location record	
Payment Number for Russia	Prints the No. of the Production Order	
	with the first three characters removed	
Person	Person	
Person Name	Name from the Person record	
Production Date	Due Date	
Recipe Code	Recipe	
Recipe Name	Name	
Routing	Routing	
Serial Number (Number Series)		
Start Time	Start Time	
Total Quantity (totqty)	Qty (number of decimal places determined by the data e.g. "1" will be	
	printed as "1", "1.5" will be printed as	
	"1.5", etc)	
Total Quantity In	Qty (from the header) * sum of (In Qty)	
Total Quality II	from each row (number of decimal places	
	determined by the Round Off setting in	
	the System module)	
Total Quantity out	Qty (from the header) * sum of (Out Qty)	
	from each row (number of decimal places	
	determined by the Round Off setting in	
	the System module)	

Serial Number bc39	No., printed using the Code 39 barcode format. You should give this field a Style that uses a Code 39 barcode font
Row Fields (these print once p	per row, so remember to specify a Line Height)
Comment 2	Descr.
Item Code	Item
Item Code 2	Item
Material	Material
Quantity In	In Qty (number of decimal places
	determined by the Round Off setting in the System module)
Quantity Out	Out Qty (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in the System module)
Shelf Code (lagerplats)	Shelf Code from the Item record
Unit	Unit from the Item record
Row Fields (these print once Height. These fields are not pr	per Output row, so remember to specify a Line rinted for Input rows)
Comment	Descr.
Item Barcode BC39	Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the Stock module, or Barcode or Item Number from the Item record, printed using the Code 39 barcode format. You should give this field a Style that uses a Code 39 barcode font
Item Barcode EAN 13	Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the Stock module, or Barcode or Item Number from the Item record, printed using the EAN 13 barcode format. You

	using the Lint 15 bareoue format. Tou
	should give this field a Style that uses an
	appropriate EAN 13 barcode font
Out item	Item
Out Item Name	Descr.
Out Item Quantity	Out Qty (number of decimal places determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as "1.5", etc)
Quantity	Out Qty (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in the System module)
Quantity 2	Out Qty * Unit Coefficient from the Item record, or Out Qty / Unit Coefficient from

296

the Item record (depends on the Unit 2 Conversion Calculation options in the Stock Settings setting in the Stock module) (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in the System module) Item

#### XItemCode

Please refer to page 285 above for details of the standard fields that you can also include in the Form.

# **Production Picking Lists**

This document is unusual in that it first creates new records and then prints them. You can use it when there is insufficient stock of components in the production area for a Production and you need to create a Stock Movement to move stock there from the warehouse. After the Stock Movement has been created, it will be printed as a picking list that warehouse staff can use to transfer the components from the warehouse to the production area.

The 'Specify Production Picking Lists' window contains a single field-

Specify Production Picking Lists		
		Run
Prod. No.		
Media Screen ● Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

Enter a Production Number (or range of Production Numbers) for which you need Stock Movements to be created and printed. You must specify a Production Number or range of Production Numbers: if you leave this field empty, no Stock Movements will be created and no documents will be printed.

When you click the [Run] button, a separate Stock Movement will be created for each Production in the range, as follows—

1. If the Status of a Production is Created or Started, a Stock Movement will be created that will move the components from the Main Location specified in the Stock Settings setting to the Production Location. All Input rows with Stocked Items from the Productions in the range will be transferred to the corresponding Stock Movement.

By default, the Requested Quantity in each Stock Movement row will be the exact Quantity needed to complete the Production. This will be the In Qty in each Production row, less any quantity that has been moved in a previous Stock Movement (i.e. one of any status with the same Production Number in the For Production field). If there is not enough stock in the From Location to satisfy the Requested Quantity, then it will be reduced to the quantity in stock. This because each Stock Movement will be marked as Reserved, meaning that when you deliver similar Items, HansaWorld Enterprise will maintain sufficient stock for the Stock Movement until it is Sent or Received. It is not possible to reserve stock that is not there.

- 2. If the Status of a Production is Finished, a Stock Movement will be created that will move the assembled Item from the Production Location. The To Location will be left empty, so you will need to choose one before you can mark the Stock Movement as Received. All Output rows with Stocked Items from the Production will be transferred to the Stock Movement. The Quantity in each Stock Movement row will be the exact Quantity built by the Production.
- 3. If the Status of a Production is Cancelled or Discarded, no new Stock Movement will be created.
- 4. If there is a previous Stock Movement (of any status) for the entire In Qty, no new Stock Movement will be created and nothing will be printed.

You can use Access Groups to control who can use this document to create Stock Movements from Productions. To do this, deny access to the 'Stock Movement from Production' Action. Access Groups are described in the 'System Module' manual.

Please refer to the 'Stock Module' manual for full details about Stock Movements.

You can use the following fields when you design the Form to be used by the Production Picking List document—

Header Fields (these print once per Stock Movement)

From Address	Address of From Location from the Location record. This will be printed on separate lines, so you should specify a Line Height for this field
From Contact	Contact of From Location from the Location record
From Fax Number	Fax of From Location from the Location record
From Location	From Location
From Name	Name of From Location from the Location record
From Telephone	Telephone of From Location from the Location record
Payment Number for Russia	Prints the No. of the Stock Movement with the first three characters removed
Person	Name of the Person printing the document, from their Person record
Production Number	For Production
Routing	Routing from the Production
Stock Serial Number	No.
To Address	Address of To Location from the Location record. This will be printed on separate lines, so you should specify a Line Height for this field
To Contact	Contact of To Location from the Location record
To Fax	Fax of To Location from the Location record
To Location	To Location
To Name	Name of To Location from the Location record
To Phone	Telephone of To Location from the Location record

Row Fields (these print once per row, so remember to specify a Line Height)

Now I leads (these print once per row, so remember to speerry a Line Height)			
Alternative Code	Alternative Code from the Item record		
Barcode	Barcode from the Item record		
Catalog Serialnumber (K-xxxx)	If the first character of the Item Number is		
	"K", prints the No. of the Stock		
	Movement with "K-" as a prefix.		
	Otherwise, prints the No.		
Commodity Code	Commodity Code from the Item record		
Conversion 1	Conversion 1 from the Item record		
Conversion 2	Conversion 2 from the Item record		
Delivered Unit	Unit from the Item record		
Department on Item Record	Department from the Item record		
Depth	Item Depth from the Item record (two		
1	decimal places)		
Description 1	Description		
EU Code	Commodity Code from the Item record		
FIFO	R. Old Unit Pr. (number of decimal places		
	determined by the Round Off setting in		
	the System module)		
Height	Item Height from the Item record (two		
	decimal places)		
Item Barcode BC39	Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the		
	Stock module, or Barcode or Item		
	Number from the Item record, printed		
	using the Code 39 barcode format. You		
	should give this field a Style that uses a		
	Code 39 barcode font		
Item Barcode EAN 13	Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the		
	Stock module, or Barcode or Item		
	Number from the Item record, printed		
	using the EAN 13 barcode format. You		
	should give this field a Style that uses an		
	appropriate EAN 13 barcode font		
Item Code	The full Item Number, including any		
	portion representing Varieties. For		
	example, if the Item Number is		
	"10126.GRE.SM", "10126.GRE.SM" will		
	be printed		
Item Varieties	The portion of the Item Description		
	representing Varieties. For example, if the		
	Item Description is "Shirt, Green, Small",		
	"Green, Small" will be printed. If the		
	steen, shan will be printed. If the		

Item Without Varieties	Item does not have Varieties, nothing will be printed The basic Item Number, without any portion representing Varieties. For example, if the Item Number is "10126.GRE.SM", "10126" will be printed
Ordered Quantity	Req. Qty (number of decimal places determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as "1.5", etc)
Quantity Conversion 1, Quantity	y Conversion 2, Quantity Conversion 3
	If the Item record has a Conversion 1 and
	a Conversion 2, these fields print the
	relevant quantities. Please refer to the
	description of these fields in the 'Items
	and Pricing' manual for details and an
	example. You should set the Format to 1
	in these fields
Row Number	Row number
Sales Depth	Sale Depth from the record in the Batch
	Specifications setting in the Stock module
	for the Item/Serial Number combination
	(two decimal places)
Sales Height	Sale Height from the record in the Batch
	Specifications setting in the Stock module for the Item/Serial Number combination
Sales Width	(two decimal places) Sale Width from the record in the Batch
Sales Witth	Specifications setting in the Stock module
	for the Item/Serial Number combination
	(two decimal places)
Serial Number bc39	Serial No., printed using the Code 39
Seriar Humber wees	barcode format. You should give this
	field a Style that uses a Code 39 barcode
	font
Serial Number (serienr)	Serial No.
Shelf Code	Shelf Code from the Item record
Supplier Address 1	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item,
	the first line of the Invoice Address of the
	Supplier in that Purchase Item
Supplier Address 2	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item,
	the second line of the Invoice Address of the Supplier in that Purchase Item

Supplier Address 3	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the third line of the Invoice Address of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Supplier Code	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the Contact Number of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Supplier Item No.	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the Supplier's Item Number in that Purchase Item
Supplier Name	If the Item has a Default Purchase Item, the Name of the Supplier in that Purchase Item
Unit	If the Item has a Unit, the correct translation of the Unit Name from the Units setting for the Language of the Production Operation
Volume	Volume from the Item record (two decimal places)
Weight	Weight from the Item record (two decimal places)
Width	Item Width from the Item record (two decimal places)

Please refer to page 285 above for details of the standard fields that you can also include in the Form. In particular, you may want to include the "Date" field (the date when the document was printed) if you want a date to be printed.

# **Productions**

Use this document when you need to print a Production record or a range of Production records, perhaps to provide instructions to the assembly department. You can also print the document by clicking on the Printer icon when viewing a Production record, or print it to screen by clicking the Preview icon.

Specify Productions		
		Run
Production		
Media ○ Screen ④ Printer ○ File ○ Clipboard ○ Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

#### Production

**Field in Form** 

#### Range Reporting Numeric

Enter a Production Number (or range of Production Numbers) for which you need documents to be printed. If you leave the field empty, every Production will be printed.

You can use the following fields when you design the Form to be used by the Production document—

#### Prints (from Production record)

Header Fields (these print once per Production)

Actual Qty Barcode	Actual Qty No.
Comment 2 BC39	Second line of Comment, printed using
	the Code 39 barcode format. You should give this field a Style that uses a Code 39 barcode font
Description	First line of Comment
Description 1	Second line of Comment
Description 2	Third line of Comment
Discarded Reason	Discarded Reason

303

End TimeEnd TimeFixed Asset CodeMachineLocationLocationLocation NameName from the Location recordPayment Number for RussiaPrints the No. of the Production with the first three characters removedPersonPersonPerson NameName from the Person recordProduction DateEnd Date
LocationLocationLocation NameName from the Location recordPayment Number for RussiaPrints the No. of the Production with the first three characters removedPersonPersonPerson NameName from the Person record
Location NameName from the Location recordPayment Number for RussiaPrints the No. of the Production with the first three characters removedPersonPersonPerson NameName from the Person record
Payment Number for RussiaPrints the No. of the Production with the first three characters removedPersonPersonPerson NameName from the Person record
first three characters removedPersonPersonPerson NameName from the Person record
PersonPersonPerson NameName from the Person record
Person Name Name from the Person record
Production Date End Date
Production Number No.
Production Order Prod. Ord.
Recipe Code Recipe
Recipe Name Name
Responsible Person Inspector
<b>Responsible Person Name</b> Name of the Inspector, from their Person
record
Routing Routing
Serial Number bc39 Third line of Comment, printed using the
Code 39 barcode format. You should give
this field a Style that uses a Code 39
barcode font
Serial Number (Number Series) No.
Start Date Start Date
Start Time Start Time
Total Quantity (totqty) Qty (number of decimal places
determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be
printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as
"1.5", etc)
Total Weight Out Weight (number of decimal places
determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be
printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as
"1.5", etc)
Row Fields (these print once per row, so remember to specify a Line Height)
Actual Qty - Row Actual
Comment 2 Descr.
Extra Cost W-cost (number of decimal places

Actual
Descr.
W-cost (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in the System module). You should set the Format to 1 in this field
Item
Item
Material

304

Price	I-cost (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in
	the System module). You should set the
	Format to 1 in this field
Quantity In	In Qty (number of decimal places
	determined by the Round Off setting in
	the System module)
Quantity Out	Out Qty (number of decimal places
	determined by the Round Off setting in
	the System module)
Serial Number	Serial No.
Total Quantity In	In Qty (if you are using the Production
	Lines Hold Actual Qty option in the
	Production Settings setting) or In Qty *
	Qty from the Production header
	(otherwise) (number of decimal places
	determined by the Round Off setting in
	the System module). You should set the
	Format to 1 in this field
Total Quantity out	Out Qty (if you are using the Production
	Lines Hold Actual Qty option in the
	Production Settings setting) or Out Qty *
	Qty from the Production header
	(otherwise) (number of decimal places
	determined by the Round Off setting in
	the System module). You should set the
<b>T</b> T •/	Format to 1 in this field
Unit	Unit from the Item record

Row Fields (these print once per Output row, so remember to specify a Line Height. These fields are not printed for Input rows)

Comment Item Barcode BC39	Descr. Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the Stock module, or Barcode or Item Number from the Item record, printed using the Code 39 barcode format. You should give this field a Style that uses a Code 39 barcode font
Item Barcode EAN 13	Barcode from the Barcodes setting in the Stock module, or Barcode or Item Number from the Item record, printed using the EAN 13 barcode format. You should give this field a Style that uses an appropriate EAN 13 barcode font

Out item	Item
0	
Out Item Name	Descr.
Out Item Price	I-cost (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in the System module). You should set the
	Format to 1 in this field
Out Item Quantity	Out Qty (number of decimal places determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as "1.5", etc)
Out Item Serial Number	Serial No.
Quantity	Out Qty (number of decimal places determined by the data e.g. "1.00" will be printed as "1", "1.50" will be printed as "1.5", etc)
Quantity 2	Out Qty * Unit Coefficient from the Item record, or Out Qty / Unit Coefficient from the Item record (depends on the Unit 2 Conversion Calculation options in the Stock Settings setting in the Stock module) (number of decimal places determined by the Round Off setting in the System module)
Serial Number (serienr)	Serial No.
XItemCode	Item
XItemName	Descr.
XItemUnit	Unit from the Item record

Please refer to page 285 above for details of the standard fields that you can also include in the Form.

306

### **Routing Productions**

Use this document when you need to print details of a Production together with a list of its connected Production Operations. The connected Production Operations are listed in Status order (Created, Started, Finished, Cancelled and finally Discarded). Production Operations with the same Status are listed in Sequence Order.

Specify Routing Production	n	_ 🗆 🔀
		Run
Production Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

#### Production

**Field in Form** 

#### Range Reporting Numeric

Enter a Production Number (or range of Production Numbers) for which you need documents to be printed. You must specify a Production Number or range of Production Numbers: if you leave this field empty, no documents will be printed.

You can use the following fields when you design the Form to be used by the Routing Production document—

#### Prints (from Production record)

Header Fields (these print once per Production)

Comment from the Routing record Comment Description First line of Comment **Description 1** Second line of Comment **Description 2** Third line of Comment End Time **End Time Fixed Asset Code** Machine Location Location **Person Name** Name of the Inspector, from their Person record

Production Date	End Date
Production Order	Prod. Ord.
Recipe Code	Recipe
Recipe Name	Name
Responsible Person	Inspector
<b>Responsible Person Name</b>	Name of the Inspector, from their Person record
Routing	Routing
Serial Number (Number Series)	No.
Start Date	Start Date
Start Time	Start Time

Row Fields (these print once for each Production Operation that is connected to the Production, so remember to specify a Line Height)

Comment 2	Comment
End Date 2	End Date
End Time 2	End Time
Row Number	Row number (i.e. counts the number of
	connected Production Operations)
Start Date 2	Start Date
Start Time2	Start Time
Status	Status

Please refer to page 285 above for details of the standard fields that you can also include in the Form.

# **Routing Production Orders**

Use this document when you need to print details of a Production Order together with a list of its connected Production Operations. The connected Production Operations are listed in Status order (Created, Started, Finished, Cancelled and finally Discarded). Production Operations with the same Status are listed in Sequence Order.

Specify Routing Production	ı Order	
		Run
Production Order Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

#### Production Order Range Reporting Numeric

Enter a Production Order Number (or range of Production Order Numbers) for which you need documents to be printed. You must specify a Production Order Number or range of Production Order Numbers: if you leave this field empty, no documents will be printed.

You can use the following fields when you design the Form to be used by the Routing Production Order document—

#### Prints (from Production Order record)

Header Fields (these print once per Production Order)

**Field in Form** 

Comment	Comment from the Routing record
Due Date	Due Date
Fixed Asset Code	Machine
Location	Location
Planned Date	Should Start
Recipe Code	Recipe
Recipe Name	Name
Routing	Routing
Serial Number (Number Series)	No.

Row Fields (these print once for each Production Operation that is connected to the Production Order, so remember to specify a Line Height)

Comment 2	Comment
End Date 2	End Date
End Time 2 Row Number	End Time Row number (i.e. counts the number of connected Production Operations)
Start Date 2	Start Date
Start Time2	Start Time
Status	Status

Please refer to page 285 above for details of the standard fields that you can also include in the Form.

# Reports

# Introduction

As with all modules, to print a report in the Production module, click the [Reports] button in the Master Control panel or use the Ctrl-R (Windows and Linux)/ $\Re$ -R (Mac OS X) key combination. Then, double-click the appropriate item in the list.

The following reports are available in the Production module-

S Reports	
	Select
Create Production Operations	^
Deficiency List	
Discarded Statistics	
Item Effectivity	
Process Flow	
Produceability List	
Production Cost Allocation	
Production Deficiency	
Production Journal	
Production Order Journal	
Production Planning	
Production Queue	
Production Statistics	
Production Status	
Recipe Cost Calculation	
Recipe Cost Comparison	
Recipe List (Made of)	
Recipe List (Part of)	
Running Production Orders	~

A specification window will then appear, where you can decide what is to be included in the report. Leave all the fields in this window blank if the report is to cover all the records in the appropriate register. If you need to restrict the coverage of the report, use the fields as described individually for each report.

Where specified below, it is often possible to report on a selection range, such as a range of Production records, or a range of Recipes. To do this, enter the lowest and highest values of the range, separated by a colon. For example, to report on Productions 001 to 010, enter "001:010" in the Production Number field. Depending on the field, the sort used might be

alpha or numeric. In the case of an alpha sort, a range of 1:2 would also include 100, 10109, etc.

Use the Media options at the bottom of the specification window to determine the print destination of the report. The default is to print to screen. You can initially print to screen and subsequently send the report to a printer by clicking the Printer icon at the top of the report window.

Once you have entered the reporting criteria and have chosen a print destination, click [Run].

With a report in the active window, use the 'Recalculate' command on the Operations menu to update the report after making alterations to background data. The 'Reopen Report Specification' command on the same menu allows you to produce a new report using different reporting criteria.

# **Create Production Operations**

This report lists the Production Operations that you can create from a particular Production or range of Productions.

When printed to screen, the Create Production Operations report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production Number to open the corresponding record. You will then be able to create the Production Operations listed in the report by choosing 'Create Production Operations' from the Operations menu.

😂 Specify Create	Production Operations	
		Run
Production		
	Only Productions without Operations     Only Productions that cannot be completed	
Media Screen	O Pdf	
	Html as Attachment     Excel	
◯ Clipboard ◯ Fax	Print Dialog Ignore Timeout Limit	

#### Production

Range Reporting Numeric

Enter a Production Number to see the Production Operations that can be created from that Production. A

Production must have Routing to be included in the report.

Function

Two versions of the report are available—

#### **Only Productions without Operations**

The report will list those Productions in the specified range that currently have no connected Production Operations. For each Production, the anticipated Production Operations will be listed, showing the Sequence, Comment, Item Numbers and Names, and In and Out Quantities.

#### Only Productions that cannot be completed

The report will list those Productions in the specified range that currently cannot be completed.

One reason that a Production cannot be completed is because it has at least one connected Production Operation that has been marked as Cancelled or Discarded. This means that the process cannot be completed. For each such Production, the existing Production Operations will be listed, showing the Sequence, Comment, Item Numbers and Names, In and Out Quantities and Status.

A second reason that a Production cannot be completed is because it has no connected Production Operations. This means that the process cannot be started. For each such Production, no Production Operations will be listed in the report.

# **Deficiency List**

This report shows for each Item the stock balance, the quantity ordered, the quantity on Purchase Orders, and a proposed purchase quantity, based on the minimum stock level for each Item. It can therefore be used prior to entering Production records to show how many of a particular Stocked Item should be assembled. The report does not show Structured Items.

For full details of this report, please refer to the 'Purchase Orders' manual.

# **Discarded Statistics**

This report can either list Discarded Productions or Production Orders with at least one connected Discarded Production.

When printed to screen, the Discarded Statistics report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production Number or Production Order Number to open the corresponding record.

		Bun
l		nun
Period	1/1/2009:31/12/2009	
Machine		
	Function	
	Production Order	
	O Production	
Media		
<ul> <li>Screen</li> </ul>	🔘 Pdf	
O Printer	🔘 Html as Attachment	
🔘 File	O Excel	
🔘 Clipboard	Print Dialog	
O Fax	Ignore Timeout Limit	

Period	Paste Special	Reporting Periods setting, System module
	Function option be Productions whose St	or the report. Depending on the elow, Production Orders or art Dates fall within this period eput Item has been discarded will rt.
Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
	Production Orders or	nine here, the report will list the Productions produced using that ast one Output Item has been
Function	Use this option to cho Production Orders or P	bose whether the report is to list roductions.
Production	Orders	

The report will list Production Orders that have at least one connected Discarded Production and whose Start Dates fall within the specified period.

For each Production Order, the report will show the Machine, Production Order, Recipe, Name from the Production Order, Planned Quantity (i.e. the Quantity in the Production Order header), the quantity produced so far, the quantity discarded, the percentage of the Planned Quantity that has been discarded, and the cost of producing the produced and discarded quantities. The quantity produced so far does not include the discarded quantity. **Productions** The report will list the Discarded Productions whose Start Dates fall within the specified period. For each Production, the report will show the Machine, Production Number, Recipe, Name from the Production, Discarded Quantity (i.e. the Quantity in the Production header) and the cost (i.e. the cost of the components and the Work Cost).

# **Item Effectivity**

This report is a list of the records in the Item Effectivity setting. This setting allows you to monitor the use and performance of consumable Items in the production process.

Specify Item Effect	tivity	
		Run
Period Item Supplier Machine	1/1/2009:31/12/2009 Function • Detailed • Overview	
Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>✓ Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

Period	Paste Special	Reporting Periods setting, System module
		od. Item Effectivity records whose this period will be listed in the
Item	Paste Special	Item register
	Choose the consur performance you want	
Supplier	Paste Special	Suppliers in Contact register
		if you want to analyse the mable Items purchased from that
Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
	1 1	if you want to analyse the nable Items used on that Machine.
Function	Use these options to d included in the report.	etermine the level of detail to be
Overview	The Overview prints accumulated figures for each Item/Supplier/Machine combination. The report shows the Item, Supplier, Machine, Used Quantity, Produced Quantity and Average (Produced Quantity divided by Used Quantity).	
Detailed	in the Item Eff the Start Date Quantity, Produ	port is a list of individual records ectivity setting. For each record, and Time, Supplier, Item, Used ced Quantity, Average (Produced d by Used Quantity) and End Date e printed.

# **Produceability List**

This report shows the quantity of assembled Items (Stocked and Structured Items with Recipes) that you can produce from the components currently in stock. For each Item, this figure is compared with the quantity of unfulfilled Sales Orders.

For full details of this report, please refer to the 'Sales Orders' manual.

316

### **Production Cost Allocation**

This report will be useful if you need to distribute the actual costs of production (e.g. components, labour, energy, machine depreciation) to various cost centres.

Every Production will contain figures for the costs of components. In the case of Productions with Routings from which you have created Production Operations, these costs will be copied from the Recipe and they will therefore to some extent be estimated. In the case of Finished Productions without Routings, these costs will be calculated using the Cost Models specified in the relevant Item or Item Group records or, if those Cost Models are Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module.

It may be that you include other costs in each Production (e.g. labour, energy, machine depreciation). If so, these costs will be fixed costs taken from the Recipe or Asset, sometimes depending on the time spent working on the Production. You may also have costs such as electricity listed in the Recipe as Service Items and again transferred to Productions as fixed costs. Alternatively, you may choose not to include these costs in each Production at all.

When you know what the actual costs are (e.g. when you receive Purchase Invoices for services such as electricity, or pay costs such as salaries), you can use this report to compare the actual costs with the calculated ones included in the Productions. It will also suggest how you should distribute any differences to Recipes, Items or Objects (i.e. to various cost centres), which will help you if you need to post those differences to variance accounts. You can also use the report when you receive a single Purchase Invoice (e.g. for electricity for the workshop or factory). In this case you can ignore the comparison aspects of the report and use it to check how to distribute the Invoice to the various cost centres.

When producing this report, first enter a figure for actual costs (e.g. the complete actual cost of your Productions, including components, labour, energy, machine depreciation and any other costs, or perhaps the value of a single Purchase Invoice) in the Cost to Compare With field in the 'Specify Production Cost Allocation' window (illustrated below). You can choose to distribute this cost to each Recipe, each assembled Item or each Object. Depending on this choice, the report will contain a single line for each Recipe used during the report period, a single line for each Item produced, or a single line for each Object used in a Production. For each Recipe (or Item or Object, depending on the distribution method), the report will then contain the figures described on the next page.

Tot. Cost	If you choose to distribute the actual cost to each Recipe, the Tot. Cost will be the total cost of the Productions with each Recipe (i.e. the total I-cost of the Output Items produced using the Recipe). If you choose to distribute the cost to each assembled Item, it will be the total I-cost of each Output Item. If you choose to distribute the cost to each Object, it will be the total cost of the Productions with each Object (i.e. the total I-cost of the Output Items produced with the Object).
Comparison	This column will show how much of the actual cost figure can be allocated to each Recipe, Item or Object. This amount is calculated on a <i>pro rata</i> basis, based either on the quantities of the output Items produced during the report period or the values of those Items. This column therefore shows the proportion of the actual cost that you can allocate to each cost centre.
Diff %, Diff	These columns will show the percentage and actual differences between the first two columns.
Key	The final column will show the proportion of the actual cost that you can allocate to each cost centre, expressed as a percentage.
XX71 · · 1 ·	$(1 - \mathbf{D}) = 1 - (1 - \mathbf{C}) + (1 - \mathbf{C})$

When printed to screen, the Production Cost Allocation report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Recipe Number or Item Number to open the corresponding record.

	Specify Production Cost	Allocation	
			Run
	Period	1/1/2009:31/12/2009	
	Item Group		
	Item		
	Machine Group		
	Machine		
	Cost to Compare With		
	Spread Cost Based On .	Grouping	
	<ul> <li>Existing Cost</li> </ul>	💿 By Recipe	
	O Produced Quantity	O By Item	
	Display	O By Object	
	Item Name		
	<ul> <li>Objects</li> </ul>		
	Media		
	Screen	🔿 Pdf	
	O Printer	O Html as Attachment	
	O File	O Excel	
	Clipboard	Print Dialog	
	🔘 Fax	Ignore Timeout Limit	
		Every Finished Product	
	the report calculation	riod specified here will ons.	be included
tem Group	Paste Special	Item Group regist Ledger	er, Sales
	If you specify an Item Group, the figures in the repor will be calculated from Productions where the Output Item belongs to the specified Item Group.		
	You must specify the report will be en	an Item or an Item Gr mpty.	oup, otherwis
tem	Paste Special	Item register	
	If you specify an Item Group, the figures in the repor will be calculated from Productions where the Outpu Item is the specified Item.		
	Remember that i particular Item wi	t will usually be th ll always be used as a ects (visible on flip B	n Output Ite

card of each Production). So, specifying an Item and choosing to group by Object using the option below will not produce a useful report because there will only be one Object, and so the entire actual cost will be allocated to that single Object.

You must specify an Item or an Item Group, otherwise the report will be empty.

Machine Group	Paste Special	Machine Groups setting,	
		Production module	
	If you specify a Me	ching Group, the figures in the t	

If you specify a Machine Group, the figures in the report will be calculated from Productions that use a Machine that belongs to the specified Machine Group.

Asset register, Assets module

If you specify a Machine, the figures in the report will be calculated from Productions that use the specified Machine.

#### **Cost to Compare With**

Enter an actual cost figure here. This can be a total figure for actual costs (e.g. including components, labour, energy, machine depreciation and any other costs) or perhaps the value of a single Purchase Invoice. The report will show how this figure should be allocated to the various cost centres (i.e. to the various Recipes, Items or Objects).

#### Spread Cost Based On

The Comparison column in the report will show how much of the actual cost figure can be allocated to each Recipe, Item or Object. This amount is calculated on a *pro rata* basis: use these options to choose whether this calculation will be based on the quantities of the output Items produced during the report period or the values of those Items. For example, if you have produced 2 x Item A and 1 x Item B and you choose the Produced Quantity option, the report will show that you can allocate 2/3 of the Cost to Compare With to Item A and 1/3 to Item B. However, if Item A cost 10.00 to produce and Item B cost 20.00 and you choose the Existing Cost option, the report will show that you can allocate 1/2 of the Cost to Compare With to Item A and 1/2 to Item B.

320

Grouping	Use these options to choose whether the Cost to Compare With will be distributed to the Recipes you have used during the report period, to the Items you have produced or to the Objects you have assigned to the Output Items.
Display	Use these options to choose whether the Item Name or Object Name will be printed in the report.

# **Production Deficiency**

This report will list the components that you need to purchase in order to assemble a specified quantity of a Stocked Item with a Recipe. It will calculate this purchasing requirement taking into account the quantity already in stock, the quantities on unfulfilled Sales and Purchase Orders and the minimum stock level (from the 'Stock' card of the Item record) of each component.

The report will list each component in the Recipe for the Stocked Item with the following figures—

In Stock	The quantity of the component currently in stock.		
On Order	The quantity of the component included in unfulfilled Sales Orders. This includes Sales Orders for the component itself and for Structured Items that require the component. It does not include Sales Orders for Stocked Items with Recipes that require the component, as it is assumed that these Items are already assembled and the component will not be needed again to satisfy the Order.		
Required	The quantity of the component required to build the specified number of assembled Items.		
Net	In Stock - On Order - Required		
Pur Ord	The quantity of the component included in unfulfilled Purchase Orders.		
Sugg	-Net - Pur Ord + Item Minimum Level. This is the quantity you need to purchase to build the specified number of assembled Items.		

Following the list of components, the maximum quantity of the assembled Item that you can produce from the components currently in stock will be shown. This figure assumes that the entire stock of components will be used

Location

Quantity

Function

**Paste Special** 

Locations.

that you need to build.

	Specify Production D	eficiency	
			Run
	Item No.		
	Group		
	Location		
	Quantity		
		ction	-
		One Level of Production	
	0	Multiple Levels of Production	
	Media Screen	O Pdf	
	O Printer	Html as Attachment	
	O File	O Excel	
	🔘 Clipboard	🗹 Print Dialog	
	O Fax	Ignore Timeout Limit	
m No.	Paste Special	Item register	
	Range Reporting	g Alpha	
	production requi Numbers, only th	umber of an assembled is rements. If you enter a nose Items in the range t will be shown in the rep	hat are Stocked
oup	Paste Special	Item Group regis Ledger	ter, Sales
	Enter an Item Gro Group that have I	oup to report on all Stock Recipes.	xed Items in the

Locations setting, Stock module

If you specify a Location here, the In Stock, On Order and Pur Ord figures in the report will all apply to that Location only. Otherwise, they will apply to all

Use this field to specify the quantity of assembled Items

These options apply to components that themselves are assemblies (i.e. sub-assemblies). For example, to build

in the assembly process, even if there are also unfulfilled Sales Orders for those components.

Item "TOP" you need 2 x Item "SUB". Item "SUB" itself is built from 3 x Item "COMPONENT".

#### **One Level of Production**

This option will show that you need 2 x "SUB" to build an Item "TOP". For Item "SUB", the Sugg figure in the report will be the quantity that you need to build, while for other components that are not sub-assemblies, the Sugg figure will be the quantity that you need to purchase.

#### **Multiple Levels of Production**

This option will show that you need  $3 \times$  "COMPONENT" to build an Item "TOP". In this case, the Sugg figure in the report will always be the quantity that you need to purchase.

# **Production Journal**

This report lists registered Production records.

When printed to screen, the Production Journal has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production Number to open the corresponding record.

Specify Production Journal			
			Run
Prink T Includ Media  Screen  Printer File	ed rom Item Record iotal by Item e Activities O Pdf O Html a Excel	Include Created Cancelled Started Finished Discarded	
○ Clipboard ○ Fax	Print D	nalog : Timeout Limit	

Number	Range Reporting	Numeric	
	Enter the Production Number (or range of Production Numbers) of the records to be shown in the report.		
Period	Paste Special	Reporting Periods setting, System module	
	Enter the start and end dates of the reporting period. Productions whose End Dates fall within this period will be shown in the report.		
Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe Register, Production module	
	Enter a Recipe Number to list Production records th use a particular Recipe.		
Object (from Header)			
	Paste Special	Object register, Nominal Ledger/System module	
	<ul><li>Enter an Object to list Production records with a particular Object (visible on the 'Comment' card). If you enter a number of Objects separated by commas, only those Productions featuring all the Objects listed will be shown.</li><li>Remember that when you specify a Machine in a Production, the Object from the Asset record for the Machine will be copied to that Production. So, if you are using that connection, specifying an Object here will list the Productions that were built or assembled using a particular Machine.</li></ul>		
Work Shift	Paste Special	Work Shifts setting, Production module	
	been worked on duri Production will be sho and End Date comply record. If a Production	vant to list Productions that have ng a particular Work Shift. A wn in the report if its Start Time with the specified Work Shift has an End Date that complies cord but its Start Time is blank, it	

will not be included in the report.
Function	These options control the level of detail shown in the report.
Overview	On a single line per Production record, this option shows Number, End Date, Recipe, Quantity produced, Comment and whether it has been marked as Finished.
Detailed	This option shows the details of each Production record, listing the components individually with Serial Numbers and costs.
Cost from Item Re	cord
	Usually, the Detailed version of this report takes the costs of the components from the Production records. If you would like the costs to be taken from the relevant Item records, check this box.
Print Total by Iten	n
	This option adds a second section to the report, listing the Input and Output Items used in the Productions listed in the report. The list includes total Input and Output quantities, I-costs and W-costs for each Item.
Include Activities	This option will add an extra column to the Overview version of the report, showing the number of hours spent working on each Production. This is calculated from Activities that have been marked as Done where the Production Number is recorded on the 'Service' card.
	In the Detailed version of the report, this option will add a summary section for each Production, showing the total number of hours spent working on the Production by each Person/Activity Type combination.
	Profile Activities will not be included in the figures.
Include	Check the boxes to include Production records of different types in the report. At least one option must be checked, otherwise a blank report will result.

#### **Production Order Journal**

This report lists registered Production Orders, and also shows the Productions that have been created from each Production Order.

You can also produce the Overview version of this report by opening a Production Order and choosing 'Production Order Status' from the Operations menu.

When printed to screen, the Production Order Journal has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production Order or Production Number to open the corresponding record.

😒 Specify Produc	ction Order Journal	
		Run
Period Number Out Items Group Recipe Machine	1/1/2009:31/12/2009	
Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	Function Overview Detailed Multiply by Order Qty Pdf Html as At Excel Print Dialo Ignore Tin	-

Period

**Paste Special** 

Reporting Periods setting, System module

Enter the start and end dates of the reporting period. If you choose to list Started Production Orders in the report, those whose Start Dates fall within this period will be included. For other Production Orders, those whose Due Dates fall within this period and those with blank Due Dates will be included.

Number	Range Reporting	Numeric
		Order Number (or range of bers) of the records to be shown
Out Items	Paste Special	Item register
	Range Reporting	Alpha
		er of an assembled Item to list a particular Output Item.
Group	Paste Special	Item Group register, Sales Ledger
	-	oup here, the report will list every e Output Item is a member of the
Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe Register, Production module
	Enter a Recipe Number a particular Recipe.	to list Production Orders that use
Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
	Enter a Machine Numb have been assigned to a	per to list Production Orders that particular Machine.
Function	These options control report.	the level of detail shown in the
Overview	On a single line per Production Order, this option shows Number, Due Date, Queue Position, Machine, Recipe, Name and Quantity. If any Productions have been created from a Production Order, these will be listed on individual lines under the Production Order. Information shown will be the Number, Date, Person, total Weight and Quantity.	
Detailed	option shows t	he details in the Overview, this he Comments and Instructions oduction Order, and lists its vidually.

#### Multiply by Order Qty

The list of components in the Detailed option can include the quantities required to produce one Output Item (as entered to the Production Order), or it can include the total quantities required to complete the Production Order. Check this box if you want to use the second option.

For example, a Production Order has a total quantity of 2000. 500 have already been built (i.e. included in Finished Productions). Two examples of a particular component are required for each Output Item: this is the quantity entered in the grid in the Production Order. If you are not using this option, the report will show that a quantity of two components is required to produce one Output Item. If you are using this Item, the report will show a quantity of 3000 components is required to produce to produce 1500 Output Items.

#### **Production Planning**

This report lists Production Orders whose Status is Created. It therefore lists the Production Orders that have not yet been placed in a queue for a Machine.

For each Production Order, the report shows the Production Order Number, the Recipe, the Machine, the Name, the Quantity (from the Production Order header) and the Planned Date (the Should Start date).

When printed to screen, the Production Planning report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production Order Number to open the corresponding record.

Include Check the boxes to include Production Orders of different types in the report. At least one option must be checked, otherwise a blank report will result.

#### Production - Reports - Production Planning

	Specify Production P	lanning	
			Run
	Location Recipe Item Group	1/1/2009:31/12/2009	
	Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachmeni</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Lim</li> </ul>	
Planned Period	Paste Special	Reporting Periods System module	setting,
	Enter the start and er Production Orders wh Should Start dates fall the report, as will Cru Should Start dates.	ose Status is Creat within this period w	ed and whose will be listed in
Location	Paste Special	Locations setting,	Stock module
	Enter a Location to line have been assigned particular workshop).		
Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe register, Pr module	roduction
	Enter a Recipe Number that use a particular Re		duction Orders
Item Group	Paste Special	Item Group registe Ledger	er, Sales
	If you specify an Item Production Orders tha that Item Group.		

Machine

Asset register, Assets module

Enter a Machine Number to list Started Production Orders that have been assigned to a particular Machine.

#### **Production Queue**

This report lists the Production Orders that are currently waiting to be produced. This means Production Orders whose Status is Started or Accepted and that have a Queue Position.

**Paste Special** 

This report shows every Production Order in the queue for a Machine, while the similar Running Production Orders report only shows the Production Order currently being produced (i.e. the one with the lowest Queue Position).

When printed to screen, the Production Queue report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production Order Number to open the corresponding record. For example, if you need to move a Production Order to a different position in the queue, you can open it by drilling down and then choose 'Move in Queue' from the Operations menu. If you need to begin or continue work on a Production Order, open it and choose 'Finish Batch' from the Operations menu.

😂 Specify Production Queue		
		Run
Location Recipe Item Group Machine	Function • All • Only Started • Only Accepted	
Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	

#### Location

**Paste Special** 

Locations setting, Stock module

Enter a Location to list Production Orders that have been assigned to a particular Location (e.g. a particular workshop).

Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe register, Production module
	Enter a Recipe Num a particular Recipe.	ber to list Production Orders that use
Item Group	Paste Special	Item Group register, Sales Ledger
		Item Group, the report will list that have Output Items belonging to
Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
		umber to list the Production Orders for a particular Machine.
Function		b list Accepted Production Orders, Orders or both in the report.

#### **Production Statistics**

The Production Statistics report is a list of Recipes, showing the number of applications of each Recipe during the report period. One example of its use is to compare what has been produced during various work shifts. The report shows the Recipe Number and Name, the Unit of the Output Item, the number of applications (calculated by adding the Quantities from the header of each Finished Production) and the output weight (calculated by adding the Out Weights from the footer of each Finished Production).

Specify Production S		
		Run
Period	1/1/2009:31/12/2009	
Recipe		
Machine		
Start Time from		
Start Time until		
Media		
Screen	🔘 Pdf	
🔘 Printer	🔘 Html as Attachment	
🔘 File	O Excel	
🔘 Clipboard	🗹 Print Dialog	
🔘 Fax	📃 Ignore Timeout Limi	t

Period	Paste Special	Reporting Periods setting, System module
	Productions whose St	nd dates of the reporting period. actus is Finished and whose End a period will be included in the
Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe register, Production module
	Enter a Recipe to repo field blank to report on	rt on a single Recipe, or leave the all Recipes.
Machine	Paste Special	Asset register, Assets module
		report on the Recipes that it he field blank to report on all
Start Time from,	Start Time until	
	If you want to use t	he report to see what has been

If you want to use the report to see what has been produced during a work shift, specify the start and end times of the shift here. Productions whose Start Times fall between these times will be included in the report calculations. If the report period covers more than one day, the Start Time until can be earlier than the Start Time from.

Use the 24 hour clock in these fields.

#### **Production Status**

This report is a list of Productions, showing any connected Production Operations and Stock Movements. You can also produce the Overview version of this report by opening a Production (which must have a Routing) and choosing 'Production Status' from the Operations menu.

When printed to screen, the Production Status report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production or Stock Movement Number or Production Operation Comment to open the corresponding record.

pecify Production Stat	us	
		Run
Production		
F	unction	
	🕑 Overview	
(	🔵 Detailed	
[	Production in Progress Only	
Media		
💿 Screen	🔘 Pdf	
🔘 Printer	🔘 Html as Attachment	
🔘 File	🔘 Excel	
🔘 Clipboard	🗹 Print Dialog	
🔘 Fax	📃 Ignore Timeout Limit	

#### Production Range Reporting Numeric

Enter the Production Number (or range of Production Numbers) of the records to be shown in the report.

**Function** Use these options to control the level of detail shown in the report.

**Overview** For each Production, this option first shows the Production Number and Status and then lists the connected Production Operations and Stock Movements. For each Production Operation, the Comment, Sequence and Sub-Sequence, Status, the Qty and Actual Qty, and the total cost are printed. For each Stock Movement, the Stock Movement Number is printed.

**Detailed** This option is similar to the Overview, with the exception that the Qty and Actual Qty, and the total cost of each Production Operation are not printed. Instead, the Items in the Operation are listed, showing the Item Number and Name and In or Out Qty.

#### **Production in Progress Only**

Use this option if you want to exclude any Cancelled, Finished and Discarded Productions in the range from the report.

### **Recipe Cost Calculation**

This report is a list of Recipes that compares the total cost of assembly with the sales price of the Output Item. The cost of assembly is the I-cost plus the W-cost. The I-cost can be taken from the Recipe or from the Item records of the components ('Costs' card). The sales price of the Output Item is taken from the 'Pricing' card of the relevant Item record.

Specify Recipe Cost	Specify Recipe Cost Calculation		
		Run	
Recipe			
Function	Take Cost From		
📀 Overvi	iew 💿 Recipe		
🔘 Detaile	ed 📀 Item Card		
🔘 Detaile	ed, show Level		
Media			
<ul> <li>Screen</li> </ul>	O Pdf		
O Printer	🔘 Html as Attachment		
🔘 File	O Excel		
U 1 10			
O Clipboard	🗹 Print Dialog		

Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe register, Production module
	Range Reporting	Alpha
	Specify the Recipes t Number, or range of R	o be listed by entering a Recipe ecipe Numbers.
Function	Use these options to control the level of detail shown in the report.	
Overview	This option produces a simple list showing Recipe Number and Name, total cost and sales price.	
together with individual co Components that are assemb		s the components of each Recipe individual costs and quantities. at are assemblies themselves are are broken down so that the mponents are shown.

#### **Detailed**, show Level

This option is very similar to the Detailed option, with the exception that the component level is also shown. Since components that are assemblies themselves are not listed, but are broken down so that the bottom-level components are shown, this will be a useful indication of the number of levels of sub-assembly that go towards producing the final Item. The final Item is on level 0, the components of that Item are on level 1, the components of those Items are on level 2 etc.

Take Cost FromUse these options to choose whether the cost prices of<br/>the components are to be taken from the Recipes or from<br/>the 'Costs' cards of the relevant Item records.

#### **Recipe Cost Comparison**

This report allows you to compare the costs in Recipes with those in Productions.

When you mark a Production as Finished and save, the I-costs of Stocked Items will be updated. In the case of components, costs will be calculated using the Cost Models specified in the relevant Item or Item Group records or, if those Cost Models are Default, the Primary Cost Model specified in the Cost Accounting setting in the Stock module. In the case of assembled Items, costs will be updated to be the sum of those of the components. As a result, the costs in a Finished Production may differ significantly to those in the Recipe.

You can also use this report to compare the costs in a Recipe with those in the Item records for the components and assembled Item(s). You can then update the Recipe using the 'Update Recipes' Maintenance function (described above on page 279).

When printed to screen, the Recipe Cost Comparison report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Recipe or Item Number to open the corresponding record.

	Specify Recipe Cost Compa	ırison	
			Run
	Recipe Production		
	Compare Period 1/1/2009: Compare None To Item Cost Specific Productic Productions in Pe	Display ③ By Item Group ○ As Is on Recip	
	Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachment</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Limit</li> </ul>	_
Recipe	Paste Special	Recipe register, Pr module	oduction
	Range Reporting	Alpha	
	Specify the Recipe o the report.	r range of Recipes the	at you want in
Production	Paste Special	Production registe module	r, Production
	<b>Range Reporting</b>	Numeric	
	you want to compare	are options (below) t a Recipe with specifi	c Productions,

use this field to specify those Productions. Only Finished and Discarded Productions in the range will be included in the report calculations.

#### **Compare Period** Reporting Periods setting, **Paste Special** System module If you use the Compare options (below) to specify that you want to compare a Recipe with Productions from a certain period, use this field to specify that period. Every Finished and Discarded Production whose End Date falls in the period specified here will be included in the report

calculations.

Choose a comparison option, as follows—

This option is a list of Recipes. For each Recipe, the Code and Comment and Minimum and Normal Production quantities will be printed, followed by a list of Output and Input Items. This list will include the Item Number and Description, the Input or Output quantity, the Icost and W-cost and the Total Cost ((I-cost \* quantity) + W-cost). Finally, that Total Cost will be expressed as a percentage of the entire cost of the Recipe.

**To Item Cost** This option compares the costs in the selected Recipes with those in the Item records for the components and assembled Item(s).

First, the report shows the Total Cost of each Item in the Recipe (I-cost \* quantity), and that Total Cost will be expressed as a percentage of the entire cost of the Recipe.

The report then shows the same figures, but calculated using the Cost Prices in the Item records (i.e. Cost Price \* quantity).

Finally, the difference between the two is expressed as a percentage.

#### **Specific Production**

Compare

None

This option compares the costs in the selected Recipes with those in the Productions you have specified in the Production field above. The calculations will only include Finished and Discarded Productions in the range. If you do not specify any Productions in the field above, all Finished and Discarded Productions will be included (i.e. not just those from the Compare Period).

The appearance of the report is similar to that described for the To Item Cost option above. The second section will show average cost figures for each Item (i.e. an average figure for Production I-cost \* quantity will be calculated from the selected Productions).

#### **Productions in Period**

	This option compares the costs in the selected Recipes with those in the Productions whose End Dates fall in the Compare Period. The calculations will only include Finished and Discarded Productions from that period.	
	The appearance of the report is similar to that described for the Specific Production option above.	
Display	By default, for each Recipe the Output Items will be printed first, sorted by Item Group, followed by the Input Items, again sorted by Item Group. Alternatively, you can print the Items in the order in which they are listed in the Recipe.	
Function	Use these options to choose whether you want to compare costs or quantities. The second option will only produce a meaningful report if you choose to compare Recipes with Specific Productions or Productions in Period.	

#### Recipe List (Made of)

This report is a list of assembled Items (i.e. Structured Items, Phantom Items and Stocked Items with Recipes), listing the components used in each case.

When printed to screen, the Recipe List (Made of) report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Item Number to open the corresponding record.

	Specify Recipe Lis	t (Made of)	
			Run
	Item No.		
	Item Group		
		Function	
		Overview     Detailed	
		<ul> <li>All Levels including In-Items</li> </ul>	
		O All Levels excluding In-Items	
	Media		
	<ul> <li>Screen</li> </ul>	🔘 Pdf	
	O Printer	Html as Attachment	
	O File	O Excel	
	Clipboard	Print Dialog     Ignore Timeout Limit	
No.	Paste Special Range Report	Item register ing Alpha	
	how it is made	n Number of an assembled Item up. If you enter a range of Item N ems in the range with Recipes report.	Numbers,
n Group	Paste Special	Item Group register, Sa Ledger	les
	Range Report	<b>ing</b> Alpha	
	Enter an Item have Recipes.	Group to show all Items in the G	roup that
nction	These options report.	control the level of detail show	vn in the
Overview	This option shows the Item Number of the assembled Item, the Recipe, the Item Number o		

each Input and Output Item, and the In or Out Quantity as appropriate.

Detailed In addition to the above, this option shows the Name of the Recipe, the Names of each Item and the I-cost and W-cost of each Input and Output Item.

#### All Levels including In-Items

For the assembled Item and the Input and Output Items, this option shows the In or Out Quantity as appropriate, the quantity in stock and the I-cost and W-cost. If a Recipe contains a sub-assembly, the Input Items in that sub-assembly will also be listed.

#### All Levels excluding In-Items

This is similar to the previous option, but only lists Output Items.

#### **Recipe List (Part of)**

This report is a list of Recipes, showing the components with quantities and costs.

Specify Recipe List (Part of	)	
		Run
Recipe		
Item No. (Component)		
Item Group (Component)		
Display	em (shows one selected component)	
Media		
<ul> <li>Screen</li> </ul>	🔘 Pdf	
O Printer	O Html as Attachment	
O File	C Excel	
Clipboard	Print Dialog	
() Fax	Ignore Timeout Limit	

## Paste SpecialRecipe register, Production<br/>module

#### Range Reporting Alpha

Use this field to limit the report to a single Recipe, or range of Recipes.

#### Item No. (Component)

Recipe

Paste Special	Item register	
Range Reporting	Alpha	

Enter an Item Number to show the Recipes in which the Item is used as a component.

#### Item Group (Component)

	Paste Special	Item Group register, Sales Ledger	
	Range Reporting	Alpha	
	Enter an Item Group to show the Recipes in which Items from this Group are used as components.		
Display	These options control the level of detail shown in the report.		
Entire Reci	each Recip Normal Pr Input and (	n produces a very detailed report. For e, the Code, Name and Minimum and oduction Quantities are shown. The Dutput Items are then listed. For each em Number and Name, the In or Out	

#### Only Out and Selected Item (shows one selected component)

If you produce the report leaving the Item No, and Item Group fields in the specification window empty, this report will be identical to the Entire Recipe option described above.

Quantity, the I-cost, the W-cost and the Total ((I-

cost \* Quantity) + W-cost) are shown.

If you specify an Item No., this report will be a simple list of the Recipes that contain the Item you have specified as a component. This list will show the Recipe Code, the Output Item Number and Name, the Out Quantity, the Item Number and Name of the specified component and the In Quantity of that component.

If you specify a range of Item Numbers or an Item Group, the report will be as described in the previous paragraph. If a particular Recipe contains more than one component in the range of Item Numbers or in the Item Group, only the first one will be included in the report.

#### **Running Production Orders**

This report shows the first Production Order in the queue for each Machine (i.e. the one currently being produced). This means the Production Order whose Status is Started or Accepted and with the lowest Queue Position for the Machine.

The otherwise similar Production Queue report shows every Production Order in the queue for a Machine, not just the first one in the queue.

When printed to screen, the Running Production Orders report has the HansaWorld Enterprise Drill-down feature. Click on any Production Order Number to open the corresponding record. For example, if you need to move a Production Order back in the queue, you can open it by drilling down and then choose 'Move in Queue' from the Operations menu. If you need to begin or continue work on a Production Order, open it and choose 'Finish Batch' from the Operations menu.

😂 Specify Running Pr		
		Run
Mach	nine	
Media Screen Printer File Clipboard Fax	<ul> <li>Pdf</li> <li>Html as Attachmer</li> <li>Excel</li> <li>Print Dialog</li> <li>Ignore Timeout Lin</li> </ul>	

 Machine
 Paste Special
 Asset register, Assets module

 Extense
 Machine
 Number to print the Draduction Order

Enter a Machine Number to print the Production Order that is first in the queue for a particular Machine.

# HansaWorld Enterprise Production Index

## Index

#### Α

Accepted Production Orders, 31, 178 Access Groups Using to control who can create Stock Movements from Productions, 235, 298 Account Usage Production Components Usage Account, 101 Production Control Account, 101 Production module setting, 101 Work In Progress Account, 102, 124, 267 Account Usage Stock Discarded Production Cost Account, 220 Production Input Cost Account, 219, 265 Production Work Cost Account, 145, 146, 219, 265.269 Activities Creating from Production Operations, 270 Creating from Productions, 231 Activity Types, Sub Systems CRM module setting, 270 Actual Costs Recording against Production Operations, 147, 253, 270 Actual Machine. See also Machine Production Operations, 262 Recording the Running Cost, 249, 262 Actual Person Production Operations, 263 Actual Quantity Production Operations, 247 Add Discarded Cost check box Production Settings, 51, 150 Add Labour Operations menu command, Production Operations, 269 Add Work Cost check box Production Settings, 40, 148, 161 Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned check box Production Settings, 140, 156, 158 Area in Production Orders, 189 in Productions, 216

Assembled Items. See Output Items, Recipes and Structured Items Assets. See also Machine Recording the Running Costs of Assets used in Production Operations, 249, 262, 266 Recording the Running Costs of Assets used in Productions, 18, 144, 200, 206, 220 Use of Objects, 217 Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items check box Production Settings, 18, 144, 200, 206, 220, 249, 262, 266 Auto Production Items Production module setting, 104 B

Backflush Operations menu command, Productions, 230 Batch Quality Control Service Orders module setting Creating Records from Production Operations, 272 Creating Records from Productions, 237 **Batch Specifications** Stock Module setting, 215 Best Before Date Productions, 215 Bill of Materials. See Recipes Break Time Productions, 217 Buffer Days Production Settings, 139, 159 Bundles. See Recipes and Structured Items

#### С

Calculate Cost Operations menu command, Productions, 212, 224 Cancelled Production Operations, 249 Production Orders, 177 Productions, 199 Capacity Planning. See Production Orders Closed check box Recipes, 161

Code Recipes, 156 Coefficient Production Operations, 257 Productions, 214 Comment Production Operations, 248 Production Orders, 185 Productions, 217 Recipes, 156 Components. See also Input Items and Recipes Generic and Specific, 104 Purchasing Requirements, 321 Substituting, 104 Components Usage Account Account Usage Production, 101 Consumable Items and Tools Monitoring Usage in Productions, 117, 315 Cost Accounting Cost Model in Production Operations, 257 in Productions, 212, 220, 224, 226 in Stock Movements, 234 Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts check box, 145, 146, 218, 265, 269 Cost Model Using with Production Operations, 257 Using with Productions, 212, 220, 224 on Disassembly, 226 Using with Stock Movements, 234 Cost of In-Items Recipes, 170 Costs Calculating in Production Operations, 256 Calculating in Productions, 212, 220, 224 on Disassembly, 226 Create Activity Operations menu command, Production Operations, 270 Operations menu command, Productions, 231 Create Planned Records Production module function, 139, 140, 156, 158. See also Sales Orders manual Creating Productions or Production Orders, 143 Rounding the Lead Time Calculation, 141 Create Planned Records from Orders Sales Orders function, 139, 140, 156, 158. See also Sales Orders manual Creating Productions or Production Orders, 143

Rounding the Lead Time Calculation, 141

Create Production Operations Operations menu command, Productions, 123, 236, 243 Production module report, 312 Create Productions Operations menu command, Productions, 223 Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production check box Production Settings, 141 Create Stock Movement Operations menu command, Productions, 232 Restricting access to, 235 Created Production Operations, 249 Production Orders, 177 Productions, 199 Created Production Orders Listing, 328

#### D

Days Duration Production Orders, 190 Days to Produce Recipes, 158 Default Auto Production Item, 109 Default Routing Recipes, 136, 164 Defaults Cost Model in Production Operations, 257 in Productions, 212, 220, 224, 226 in Stock Movements, 234 Objects in Nominal Ledger Transactions from Production Operations, 257 Objects in Nominal Ledger Transactions from Productions, 214, 217 Deficiency List Production module report, 313 Depth Production Orders, 189 Productions, 216 Dimensions Using to Calculate Quantity in Production Orders, 189 in Productions, 216 Disassemble Operations menu command, Productions, 225 Disassembly of Productions, 225 Calculating Input and Output Costs, 226 Disassembly Row FIFO Productions, 216

Discarded Production Operations, 251 Discarded Production Cost Account Account Usage Stock, 220 **Discarded Productions** Listing, 314 Discarded Reason Production Operations, 261 Productions, 207 **Discarded Statistics** Production module report, 314 Display Group Production Operations, 262 Do Not Allow Over Delivery Stock Settings, 200, 250 Documents Production Labels, 286 Production module, 283 Production Operation Picking Lists, 289 Choosing Form and Printer based on Language, 261 Production Orders, 293 Choosing Form and Printer based on Language, 183 Production Picking Lists, 297 Choosing Form and Printer based on Language, 217 Restricting access to, 298 Productions, 303 Choosing Form and Printer based on Language, 217 Routing Production Orders, 309 Choosing Form and Printer based on Language, 183 Routing Productions, 307 Choosing Form and Printer based on Language, 217 Due Date Production Orders, 180

#### E

End Date Production Operations, **248** Production Orders, **190** Productions, **202** End Time Production Operations, **260** Production Orders, **190** Productions, **205**, **217** Error Messages Quantity has not been produced yet, 91

#### F

Finish Operations menu command, Productions, 223 Finish Batch Operations menu command, Production Orders, 35, 192 Finished Production Operations, 230, 249, 264 Controlling Sequence, 103, 142, 248, 264 Production Orders, 179 Productions, 200, 218, 223 Finished but Discarded Production Operations, 251 Productions, 201 Listing, 314 Fixed Assembly Days Recipes, 158 Fixed Costs Recording against Production Operations, 128, 135, 148, 253, 259, 265

#### G

Generate Planned options Production Settings, **143** Generate Serial Numbers for Out Items Operations menu command, Productions, **225** Generic Components, 104

#### Η

Height Production Orders, **189** Productions, **216** Hours to Produce Recipes, **158** 

#### Ι

I-Cost. See Input Cost In Quantity Production Operations, **254** Production Orders, **187** Calculating, based on Dimensions, 189 Productions, **210** Calculating, based on Dimensions, 216 Recipes, **166** Purchasing Requirements, 321 In Weight Productions, **216**  Input Cost Productions, 212 Calculating, 212, 220, 224 Calculating on Disassembly, 226 Recipes, 167 Updating in Recipes, 279 Input Items Listing, 164, 208 Inspector Productions, 206 Instructions Production Orders, 185 Recipes, 164 Item Production Orders, 186 Productions, 208 Recipes, 165 Item Effectivity Production module report, 117, 315 Production module setting, 117, 315 Item Groups Production Work Cost Account, 145, 146, 219, 265, 269 Stock Account, 218, 265 Work In Progress Account, 266 Item Search Operations menu command, Productions, 228 Operations menu command, Recipes, 171 Item Status Operations menu command, Productions, 227 Items Minimum Level, 223 Not For Sales check box, 89 Phantom, 89, 154 Production module register, 153 Recipe, 155

#### J

Journal Entries. See Transactions

#### L

Labels Designing, 287 Not Properly Aligned, 287 Printing Static Text, 287 Labour Cost Item Production Settings, 128, 135, **145**, 259 Labour Time, 128, 135, 145, 259 Language Production Operations, **261** 

Production Orders, 183 Productions, 217 Recipes, 157 Languages System Module setting, 183, 217, 261 Using to determine Form and Printer when printing documents Production Operation Picking Lists, 261 Production Orders, 183 Production Picking Lists, 217 Productions, 217 Routing Production Orders, 183 Routing Productions, 217 Lead Time. See Fixed Assembly Days and Days to Assemble Each Unit Location Production Operations, 261 Production Orders, 182 Productions, 205 Requiring in Production Operations, 261 Requiring in Production records, 205 Locations Stock Account, 218, 265 Locked check box Recipes, 169

#### Μ

Machine. See also Actual Machine Listing Production Orders in Queue for, 34, 330, 342 Production Operations Recording the Running Cost, 266 Production Orders, 182 Productions, 206 Recording the Running Cost, 18, 144, 200, 206, 220 Machine Cost Item Production Settings, 18, 144 Machine Group Production Operations, 262 Machine Groups Production module setting, 23, 120 Machine Hours Production module register, 24, 274 Machines. See also Assets Connecting to Recipes and Output Items, 25, 239 Hours of Operation, 24, 274 Main Location Stock Settings, 205, 261

#### HansaWorld Enterprise

Maintenance Production module, 279 Maintenance functions Create Planned Records, 139, 140, 156, 158. See also Sales Orders manual Creating Productions or Production Orders, 143 Rounding the Lead Time Calculation, 141 Create Planned Records from Orders, 139, 140, 156, 158. See also Sales Orders manual Creating Productions or Production Orders, 143 Rounding the Lead Time Calculation, 141 Update Recipes, 279 Material Production Orders, 189 Productions, 215 Recipes, 129, 169 Materials Production module setting, 128 Minimum Level Items, 223 Minimum Production Quantity Recipes, 158 Minutes to Produce Recipes, 158 Modules Production, 10 Move Cost Item Production Settings, 127, 135, 145, 259 Move in Queue Operations menu command, Production Orders, 34, 191 Move Time, 127, 135, 145, 259

#### Ν

Negative Stock Preventing in Productions, 200, 250 No Serial No. on Goods Receipts check box Stock Settings, 210, 254 No Test Printout Optional Features, 294 Nominal Ledger Transactions. *See* Transactions Non-instant Availability, 127, 135, 145, 259 Normal Production Quantity Recipes, 140, **156**, 224 Not For Sales check box Items, 89 Number Production Operations, **246**  Production Orders, **177** Productions, **199** Number Produced Recipes, **162** Number Series - Production Operations Production module setting, **136**, 246 Number Series - Production Orders Production module setting, **137**, 177 Number Series - Productions Production module setting, **137**, 199

#### 0

Objects Production Operations, 257 Production Orders, 185, 188 Productions, 214, 217 System Module register, 185, 188, 214, 217, 257 Transferring from Machines/Assets to Productions, 217 Open NL Transaction Operations menu command, Production Operations, 270 Operations menu command, Productions, 230 Open Production Item Alternative Operations menu command, Recipes, 171 Operations, 121. See also Production Operations and Standard Operations **Operations Menu** Production Operations, 269 Add Labour, 269 Create Activity, 270 Open NL Transaction, 270 Quality Control, 272 Production Orders, 191 Finish Batch, 35, 192 Move in Queue, 34, 191 Productions, 223 Backflush, 230 Calculate Cost, 212, 224 Create Activity, 231 Create Production Operations, 123, 236, 243 Create Productions, 223 Create Stock Movement, 232 Restricting access to, 235, 298 Disassemble, 225 Finish, 223 Generate Serial Numbers for Out Items, 225 Item Search, 228 Item Status, 227

Open NL Transaction, 230 Production Order Status, 38, 195, 326 Production Status, 229, 332 Quality Control, 237 Recipes, 171 Item Search, 171 Open Production Item Alternative, 171 **Optional Features** No Test Printout, 294 Out Quantity Production Operations, 255 Production Orders, 188 Calculating, based on Dimensions, 189 Productions, 211 Calculating, based on Dimensions, 216 Recipes, 166 Out Weight Productions, 216 **Output Costs** Production Operations Calculating, 256 Productions Calculating, 212, 220, 224 Calculating on Disassembly, 226 Output Items Building, 196 Connecting to Machines, 25, 239 Generating Serial Numbers, 225 Listing Components, 164, 185, 208

#### Р

Perishable Goods Creating from Production Operations, 272 Creating from Productions, 237 Setting Best Before Dates, 215 Person Production Orders, 182 Productions, 206 Phantom Items, 89, 154 Preferences. See Settings Printers Choosing where to print documents Production Operation Picking Lists, 261 Production Orders, 183 Production Picking Lists, 217 Productions, 217 Routing Production Orders, 183 Routing Productions, 217 Produceability List Production module report, 316

Production Control Account Account Usage Production, 101 Production Cost Allocation Production module report, 317 Production Deficiency Production module report, 321 Production Input Cost Account Account Usage Stock, 219, 265 Production Item Alternatives Production module register, 25, 239 Production Journal Production module report, 323 Production Labels Designing, 287 Not Properly Aligned, 287 Printing Static Text, 287 Production module document, 286 Production Lines hold Actual Qty check box Production Settings, 140, 179, 187, 188, 203, 210, 211, 246, 247, 254, 255 Production module, 10 Documents, 283 Maintenance, 279 Registers, 153 Reports, 311 Settings, 100 Production Number Production Operations, 246 Sequences Defining, 137 Production Operation Number Sequences Defining, 136 Production Operation Picking Lists Printing in different Languages, 261 Production module document, 289 Production Operations Actual Machine, 262 Recording the Running Cost, 249, 262 Actual Person, 263 Actual Quantity, 247 Approving, 230, 249, 264 Calculating Input and Output Costs, 256 Choice of Cost Model, 257 Coefficient, 257 Comment, 248 Creating Batch Quality Control records from, 272 Creating from Productions, 123, 236, 243 Defining Number Sequences, 136 Discarded Reason, 261 Display Group, 262 End Date, 248

End Time, 260 Entering, 243 Finished, 264 Controlling Sequence, 103, 142, 248, 264 Generating Activities from, 270 Generating Nominal Ledger Transactions from, 102, 124, 222, 265 In Quantity, 254 Language, 261 Location, 261 Machine Recording the Running Cost, 266 Machine Group, 262 Number, 246 Objects, 257 Out Quantity, 255 Posting Work In Progress, 102, 124, 222, 265 Printing, 289 Production module register, 243 Production Number, 246 Production Order Number, 246 Quantity, 246 Recording Running Costs, 69, 128, 135, 145, 147, 253, 259, 265, 270 Actual Costs, 147, 253, 270 Fixed Costs, 128, 135, 148, 253, 259, 265 Relativity, 256 Requiring Location in, 261 Scheduling in the Resource Planner, 78 Sequence, 248 Enforcing, 103, 142, 248, 264 Serial Number, 253 Whether Compulsory, 254 Start Date, 248 Start Time, 260 Status, 249 Cancelled, 249 Created, 249 Finished, 230, 249 Finished but Discarded, 251 Started, 249 Sub-Assemblies, 86 Unit Cost, 256 Calculating, 257 Use of Objects, 257 Viewing Transactions Generated From, 270 Production Order Productions, 206 Production Order Journal Production module report, 38, 195, 326 Production Order Number Production Operations, 246 Sequences

Defining, 137 Production Order Status Operations menu command, Productions, 38, 195, 326 Production Orders Accepted, 31, 178 Approving, 179 Cancelled, 177 Comment, 185 Created, 177 Listing, 328 Creating Productions from, 35, 192 Days Duration, 190 Defining Number Sequences, 137 Depth, 189 Dividing into Stages, 184, 189 Due Date, 180 End Date, 190 End Time, 190 Entering, 174 Finished, 179 Height, 189 In Quantity, 187 Calculating, based on Dimensions, 189 Instructions, 185 Item, 186 Language, 183 Listing Connected Productions, 38, 195, 326 Listing Queue, 34, 330, 342 Location, 182 Machine, 182 Material, 189 Number, 177 Objects, 185, 188 Out Ouantity, 188 Calculating, based on Dimensions, 189 Person, 182 Printing, 293 Together with Connected Production Operations, 309 Printing in different Languages, 183 Production module document, 293 Production module register, 173 Quantity, 179 Queue Position, 183 Changng, 34, 191 Recipe, 179 Reserved check box, 184 Resource Planner Adding to, 31, 178 Changing Queue Position, 34, 191 Determining Colour in, 162 Queue Position, 183

Scheduling, 173 Routing, 184 Scheduling in the Resource Planner, 23 Should Start Date, 180 Start Date, 190 Start Time, 190 Started, 178 Status, 177 Accepted, 31, 178 Cancelled, 177 Created, 177 Finished, 179 Started, 178 Time Duration, 190 Width, 189 Production Picking Lists Printing in different Languages, 217 Production module document, 297 Restricting access to, 298 Production Planning Production module report, 328 Production Queue Listing Production Orders in, 34, 330, 342 Production module report, 34, 330 Production Settings Add Discarded Cost check box, 51, 150 Add Work Cost check box, 40, 148, 161 Always create Normal Production Qty from Planned check box, 140, 156, 158 Auto Calculate Cost of Produced Items check box, 18, 144, 200, 206, 220, 249, 262, 266 Buffer Days, 139, 159 Create Stock Depreciation from Discarded Production check box, 141 Generate Planned options, 143 Labour Cost Item, 128, 135, 145, 259 Machine Cost Item, 18, 144 Move Cost Item, 127, 135, 145, 259 Production Lines hold Actual Qty check box, 140, 179, 187, 188, 203, 210, 211, 246, 247, 254, 255 Production module setting, 139 Queue Cost Item, 127, 135, 145, 259 Round odd Hours to One Day check box, 141, 160 Run Time Activity Type, 40, 146 Sequence of Production Operations options, 103, 142, 248, 264 Setup Activity Type, 40, 147 Setup Cost Item, 127, 134, 145, 259 Time options, 128, 135, 147, 253, 259, 265, 270 Work Cost per Hour, 128, 135, 149, 161, 259

Production Stages. See Production Operations and Standard Operations Production Statistics Production module report, 331 Production Status Operations menu command, Productions, 229, 332 Production module report, 229, 332 Production Time Entry Interface, 39 and Routings, 164, 184 and Serial Numbers, 165, 187 Recording Running Costs, 40, 148, 163 Run Time Activities, 47 Activity Type, 40, 146 Setup Activities, 49 Activity Type, 40, 147 Creating, 40, 148 Production Work Cost Account Account Usage Stock, 145, 146, 219, 265, 269 Item Groups, 145, 146, 219, 265, 269 Productions Approving, 200, 201, 218, 223 Assembly in Stages, 54, 121, 236, 243 Assigning Componens to each Stage, 126, 169, 189, 215 Defining the Sequence of the Stages, 133, 164, 184, 207 Defining the Stages, 124 Recording Additional Production Costs, 69, 145 Sub-Assemblies, 86 Automatic Generation, 223 Best Before Date, 215 Break Time, 217 Calculating Input and Output Costs, 212, 220, 224 on Disassembly, 226 Choice of Cost Model, 212, 220, 224 on Disassembly, 226 Coefficient, 214 Comment, 217 Comparing Costs with Actual Costs, 317 Comparing Costs with those in Recipes, 335 Creating Batch Quality Control records from, 237 Creating from Production Orders, 35, 192 Creating Production Operations from, 123, 236, 243 Defining Number Sequences, 137 Depth, 216 Disassembly Row FIFO, 216 Discarded Reason, 207 Distributing Actual Costs to Cost Centres, 317

#### HansaWorld Enterprise

Dividing into Stages, 207, 215 End Date, 202 End Time, 205, 217 Ensuring Work Cost is a Credit, 213 Entering, 196 Example, 14 Finished, 218, 223 Finished but Discarded Listing, 314 Generating Activities from, 231 Generating Nominal Ledger Transactions from, 102, 137, 218, 222, 265 Generating Serial Numbers Automatically, 225 Height, 216 In Quantity, 210 Calculating, based on Dimensions, 216 In Weight, 216 Input Cost, 212 Calculating, 212, 220, 224 Inspector, 206 Item, 208 Language, 217 Listing Connected Production Operations and Stock Movements, 229, 332 Location, 205 Machine, 206 Recording the Running Cost, 18, 144, 200, 206, 220 Material, 215 Monitoring Usage of Consumable Items and Tools, 117, 315 Moving Stock into correct Location, 232, 297 Restricting access to, 235, 298 Number, 199 Objects, 214, 217 Out Quantity, 211 Calculating, based on Dimensions, 216 Out Weight, 216 Person, 206 Preventing Negative Stock, 200, 250 Printing, 303 Together with Connected Production **Operations**, 307 Printing in different Languages, 217 Printing Labels, 286 Production module document, 303 Production module register, 196 Production Order, 206 Quantity, 203 Recipe, 202 Relativity, 211 Requiring Location in, 205

Reversing, 225 Calculating Input and Output Costs, 226 Routing, 207 Scheduling, 23, 139, 140, 158, 173 Serial Number, 209 Whether Compulsory, 210 Start Date, 202 Start Time, 205, 217 Status, 199 Cancelled, 199 Created, 199 Finished, 200 Finished but Discarded, 201 Started, 200 Use of Objects, 214, 217 Viewing Stock Status of each Item, 227 Viewing Transactions Generated From, 230 Weight, 215 Width, 216 Work Cost Value, 213

#### Q

Products. See Items

**Quality Control** Operations menu command, Production Operations, 272 Operations menu command, Productions, 237 Quantity Production Operations, 246 Production Orders, 179 Productions, 203 Queue Listing Production Orders in, 34, 330, 342 Queue Cost Item Production Settings, 127, 135, 145, 259 Queue Position Production Orders, 183 Changing, 34, 191 Queue Time, 127, 135, 145, 259

#### R

Received Old Unit Price Stock Movements Calculating, 234 Recipe Items, 155 Production Orders, **179** Productions, **202** Recipe Cost Calculation Production module report, **334** 

Recipe Cost Comparison Production module report, 335 Recipe List (Made of) Production module report, 339 Recipe List (Part of) Production module report, 340 Recipes Closed check box, 161 Code, 156 Comment, 156 Comparing Costs with those in Productions and Items, 335 Connecting to Machines, 25, 239 Cost of In-Items, 170 Days to Produce, 158 Default Routing, 136, 164 Determining Colour in the Resource Planner, 162 Dividing into Stages, 164, 169 Fixed Assembly Days, 158 Hours to Produce, 158 In Quantity, 166 Purchasing Requirements, 321 Input Cost, 167 Instructions, 164 Item, 165 Language, 157 Locked check box, 169 Material, 129, 169 Minimum Production Quantity, 158 Minutes to Produce, 158 Normal Production Quantity, 140, 156, 224 Number Produced, 162 Out Quantity, 166 Production module register, 155 Relativity, 166 Resource Manager Colour, 162 Seconds to Produce, 158 Standard Batch, 163 Time to Setup, 158 Updating Input Costs, 279 Value of Out-Items, 170 Work Cost Value, 167 Calculating Automatically, 148, 149, 161 Registers Items, 153 Machine Hours, 24, 274 Objects, 185, 188, 214, 217, 257 Production Item Alternatives, 25, 239 Production module, 153 Production Operations, 243 Production Orders, 173 Productions, 196

Recipes, 155 Rel. See Relativity Relativity Production Operations, 256 Productions, 211 Recipes, 166 Reports Create Production Operations, 312 Deficiency List, 313 Discarded Statistics, 314 Item Effectivity, 117, 315 Produceability List, 316 Production Cost Allocation, 317 Production Deficiency, 321 Production Journal, 323 Production module, 311 Production Order Journal, 38, 195, 326 Production Planning, 328 Production Queue, 34, 330 Production Statistics, 331 Production Status, 229, 332 Recipe Cost Calculation, 334 Recipe Cost Comparison, 335 Recipe List (Made of), 339 Recipe List (Part of), 340 Running Production Orders, 342 Require Location check box Stock Settings, 205, 261 Reserved check box Production Orders, 184 Resouce Planner Determining Colour of Recipes/Production Orders, 162 Working Hours of Machines, 24, 274 Resource Manager Colour Recipes, 162 Resource Planner Adding Production Orders to, 31, 178 Changing Queue Position of Production Orders, 34, 191 Queue Position of Production Orders, 183 Scheduling Production Operations, 78 Scheduling Production Orders, 23, 173 Round odd Hours to One Day check box Production Settings, 141, 160 Routing Production Orders, 184 Productions, 207 Routing Production Orders Printing in different Languages, 183 Production module document, 309 **Routing Productions** Printing in different Languages, 217

Production module document, **307** Routings Production module setting, **133** Run Time, 128, 135, 145, 259 Run Time Activities, 47 Activity Type, 40, 146 Run Time Activity Type Production Settings, 40, **146** Running Production Orders Production module report, **342** 

#### S

Scheduling Productions, 139, 140, 158 Seconds to Produce Recipes, 158 Sent Old Unit Price Stock Movements Calculating, 234 Sequence Production Operations, 248 Enforcing, 103, 142, 248, 264 Sequence of Production Oprerations options Production Settings, 103, 142, 248, 264 Serial Number Production Operations, 253 Whether Compulsory, 254 Productions, 209 Whether Compulsory, 210 Serial Numbers Generating Automatically in Productions, 225 Settings Account Usage Production, 101 Activity Types, Sub Systems, 270 Auto Production Items, 104 Batch Quality Control Creating Records from Production Operations, 272 Creating Records from Productions, 237 Batch Specifications, 215 Item Effectivity, 117, 315 Languages, 183, 217, 261 Machine Groups, 23, 120 Materials, 128 Number Series - Production Operations, 136, 246 Number Series - Production Orders, 137, 177 Number Series - Productions, 137, 199 Production module, 100 Production Settings, 139 Routings, 133

Standard Operations, 124 Standard Problems, 150 Work Shifts, 150 Setup Activities, 49 Activity Type, 40, 147 Creating, 40, 148 Setup Activity Type Production Settings, 40, 147 Setup Cost Item Production Settings, 127, 134, 145, 259 Setup Time, 127, 134, 145, 259 Should Start Date Production Orders, 180 Stages in Production Process. See Production Operations and Standard Operations Standard Batch Recipes, 163 Standard Operations Production module setting, 124 Standard Problems Production module setting, 150 Start Date Production Operations, 248 Production Orders, 190 Productions, 202 Start Time Production Operations, 260 Production Orders, 190 Productions, 205, 217 Started Production Operations, 249 Productions, 200 Started Production Orders, 178 Static Text Showing on Labels, 287 Status Finished Production Operations, 230, 249 Productions, 200 Production Operations, 249 Cancelled, 249 Created, 249 Started, 249 Production Orders, 177 Accepted, 31, 178 Cancelled, 177 Created, 177 Finished, 179 Started, 178 Productions, 199 Cancelled, 199 Created, 199 Started, 200

Stock Reserving for Production Orders, 184 Stock Account Item Groups, 218, 265 Locations, 218, 265 Stock Levels Viewing for each Production Item, 227 Stock Movements Choice of Cost Model, 234 Creating from Productions, 232, 297 Restricting access to, 235 Received Old Unit Price Calculating, 234 Sent Old Unit Price Calculating, 234 Stock Settings Do Not Allow Over Delivery, 200, 250 Main Location, 205, 261 No Serial No. on Goods Receipts check box, 210, 254 Require Location check box, 205, 261 Stocked Items and Recipes, 153 Purchasing Requirements of Components, 321 Structured Items and Recipes, 154 Sub-assemblies, 186, 208. See also Phantom Items Substitute Components, 104

#### Т

Test Printout, 294 Time Duration Production Orders, **190** Time options Production Settings, 128, 135, **147**, 253, 259, 265, 270 Time to Setup Recipes, **158** Transactions Generating from Sub Systems Production Operations, 102, 124, 222, 265 Productions, 102, 137, 218, 222, 265 Ensuring Work Cost is a Credit, 213 Opening from Production Operations, 270 Productions, 230

#### U

Unit Cost Production Operations, **256** Calculating, 257 Update Recipes Production module function, **279** Use Item Groups for Cost Accounts check box Cost Accounting, 145, 146, 218, 265, 269

#### V

Value of Out-Items Recipes, **170** Volume in Production Orders, 189 in Productions, 216

#### W

W-Cost. See Work Cost Value Weight Productions, 215 Width Production Orders, 189 Productions, 216 WIP. See Work In Progress Work Cost per Hour Production Settings, 128, 135, 149, 161, 259 Work Cost Value Credit in Nominal Ledger Transactions, 213 Productions, 213 Recipes, 167 Calculating Automatically, 148, 149, 161 Work In Progress Posting from Production Operations, 102, 124, 222, 265 Work In Progress Account Account Usage Production, 102, 124, 267 Item Groups, 266 Work Shifts Production module setting, 150